

**BEFORE THE
STATE OF NEW JERSEY
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES**

**IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF :
NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER : CASE SUMMARY
COMPANY, INC. FOR APPROVAL OF :
INCREASED TARIFF RATES AND : BPU DOCKET NO.
CHARGES FOR WATER AND :
WASTEWATER SERVICE, CHANGE IN :
DEPRECIATION RATES, AND OTHER :
TARIFF MODIFICATIONS :**

New Jersey-American Water has provided high quality, reliable water and wastewater services to its customers for over 130 years. As recently as 2023, the Company was rated the highest in Customer Satisfaction of all investor-owned large water utilities in the Northeast.¹ In order to continue to provide this high level of service to its customers, the Company must continue to make the capital investments required to serve the long-term interests of our customers.

NJAWC's proposed rate increase is driven primarily by the capital investment required to maintain and improve the Company's infrastructure. Since the effective date of rates in the Company's last base rate case, NJAWC has invested, or will invest, approximately \$1.3 billion in capital expenditures through the end of 2024. Nearly 68% of the Company's proposed revenue increase is driven by investment in New Jersey's infrastructure.

The investments the Company makes include improving the resiliency of its distribution system and treatment plants, treatment changes to maintain regulatory compliance, technology investments that will integrate with existing systems to enhance service to customers, and management of source of supply and system demands. NJAWC has made and will continue to

¹ Press Release, J.D. Power, Water Utilities Counteract Negative Effects of Inflation with Strong Customer Communication Strategies, J.D. Power Finds (May 3, 2023), <https://www.jdpower.com/business/press-releases/2023-us-water-utility-residential-customer-satisfaction-study>.

make these capital investments to continue to provide safe and reliable water and wastewater service to its customers. NJAWC's infrastructure investment provides vital benefits to the health and welfare of our customers and the state – vital service that continued in the face of the floodwaters spawned by Hurricane Ida and power outages from Tropical Storm Isaias. Moreover, since every \$1 million the Company spends in capital is expected to create or sustain approximately 16 jobs in New Jersey, the Company will have created or sustained over 20,000 jobs since its last rate case.

NJAWC has managed and continues to manage its operations responsibly and effectively to uphold its continued commitment to provide safe and reliable water and wastewater services to its customers at reasonable rates. Moreover, the Company's operations and maintenance ("O&M") expense over the last decade has increased at a rate significantly less than the rate of inflation. Because each dollar saved in O&M expenses permits approximately \$8 dollars to be invested in plant at no impact to rates, the Company's cost containment efforts provided significant benefits to customers beyond mere cost savings.

The Company is requesting an increase in base rates because its existing rates will not afford NJAWC the opportunity to earn a reasonable return on its investments or to recover its reasonable operating costs in the period during which rates are effective.² The rates proposed in this filing would yield additional total operating revenues of \$161.7 million, representing an increase of 16.89% over existing annual revenues. The impact of the proposed increase on the bill

² On December 20, 2023, in Docket No. WM23030145, the Board approved the completion of the merger of New Jersey-American Water and Environmental Disposal Corp. ("EDC"), with NJAWC as the surviving entity. Effective December 31, 2023, the companies were merged; therefore, the Petition, Exhibits and Schedules for the requested revenue requirement include the former EDC wastewater service area.

of an average residential customers using 5,640 gallons of water per month would be \$11.30. The average monthly residential wastewater bill would increase about \$6.16 per month.³

³ The actual increases applicable to specific customers will vary according to the pertinent rate schedule and the level of each customer's usage.

**BEFORE THE
STATE OF NEW JERSEY
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES**

**IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF :
NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER : PETITION
COMPANY, INC. FOR APPROVAL OF :
INCREASED TARIFF RATES AND : BPU DOCKET NO.: WR
CHARGES FOR WATER AND :
WASTEWATER SERVICE, CHANGE IN :
DEPRECIATION RATES, AND OTHER :
TARIFF MODIFICATIONS :**

TO: THE HONORABLE COMMISSIONERS OF THE BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc. (the “Company,” “NJAWC” or “Petitioner”), a public utility corporation of the State of New Jersey, with its principal office at 1 Water Street, Camden, New Jersey 08102, hereby petitions this Honorable Board (the “Board” or “BPU”) for authority pursuant to N.J.S.A. 48:2-18, N.J.S.A. 48:2-21, N.J.S.A. 48:2-21.1, N.J.A.C. 14:1-5.7 and N.J.A.C. 14:1-5.12 to increase its base tariff rates and charges for water and wastewater service, to change its depreciation rates, and to implement certain other tariff revisions. In support thereof, Petitioner states as follows:

I. BACKGROUND

1. NJAWC is engaged in the production, treatment and distribution of water and collection of wastewater within its defined service territory within the State of New Jersey. Said service territory includes portions of the following counties: Atlantic, Bergen, Burlington, Camden, Cape May, Essex, Gloucester, Hunterdon, Mercer, Middlesex, Monmouth, Morris, Ocean, Passaic, Salem, Somerset, Union, and Warren. As of December 31, 2023, Petitioner provides service to approximately 668,000 water and fire service customers and 64,200 wastewater service customers.

2. On December 20, 2023, in Docket No. WM23030145, the Board approved the completion of the merger of New Jersey-American Water and Environmental Disposal Corp. (“EDC”), with NJAWC as the surviving entity. Effective December 31, 2023, the companies were merged; therefore, this Petition, as well as its Exhibits and Schedules supporting the requested revenue requirement, include the former EDC wastewater service area.

3. The rate schedules and other tariff provisions that NJAWC proposes to modify by virtue of this filing are those currently effective rate schedules and tariff provisions now on file with the Board, designated “Tariff for Water and Wastewater Service, B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater,” and EDC’s “Tariff for Sewer Service, B.P.U. No. 1 – Sewer” (together, the “Existing Tariff”).

4. The Existing Tariff was issued pursuant to multiple Board Orders, including those issued in NJAWC past base rate cases in Docket Nos. WR10040260, effective January 1, 2011, WR15010035, effective September 21, 2015, WR16111065, effective April 1, 2017, WR18111241, effective March 26, 2018, WR17090985, effective October 29, 2018, WM18080904, effective January 1, 2019, WR17111183, effective July 1, 2019, WR19121516, effective October 28, 2020, and WR22010019, effective August 24, 2022, and EDC past rate cases in Docket Nos. WM1600969, effective June 15, 2017, and WR07090715, effective February 11, 2009.

5. The proposed rate schedules and other tariff provisions that Petitioner seeks to make effective as a result of this filing are those contained in the tariff sheets, which are blacklined against the Existing Tariff to reflect proposed changes (the “Proposed Tariff”), a copy of which is attached as Exhibit P-1. It is requested that the Proposed Tariff be made effective February 21, 2024, a date which is no less than thirty (30) days from the date of this filing.

II. BASE RATES

6. The Company's proposed revenue requirement, equal to the cost of providing water, fire and wastewater service to NJAWC's customers, is approximately \$1.095 billion.

7. The proposed increase will produce additional revenues of \$161.7 million per year or 16.89% over existing annual revenues.

8. The impact of this Petition on the bill of an average customer using 5,640 gallons of water per month would be an increase of \$11.30. The average monthly residential wastewater bill would increase about \$6.16 per month. The actual increases applicable to specific customers will vary according to the applicable rate schedule and the level of each customer's usage.

9. Petitioner's test year ends June 30, 2024. Petitioner is proposing to reflect changes in capital expenditures through December 31, 2024, and changes in certain revenues and expenses through March 31, 2025.

10. Petitioner's filing in this case is based on five months of actual and seven months of estimated data. During the proceeding, the Company will update its Direct Testimony, Exhibits and Schedules, as appropriate, to reflect actual results. It is anticipated that by the conclusion of this case, the entire test year ending June 30, 2024 will reflect actual results.

11. As required by N.J.A.C. 14:1-5.12(a)(11), the Company has applied a consolidated tax adjustment. After the execution of an Agreement of Non-Disclosure ("NDA"), a proposed version of which is attached as Exhibit P-1A, a consolidated tax savings schedule will be provided to the NDA signatory parties.

III. THE NEED FOR THE REQUESTED RATE RELIEF

12. The primary driver of the proposed rate increase is the capital investment to maintain and improve the Company's infrastructure to continue providing safe, reliable and

adequate service to its customers. Nearly 68% of the Company's proposed revenue increase is driven by investment in the Company's infrastructure. In total, the Company will have invested approximately \$1.3 billion in capital improvements since the effective date of rates in the Company's last rate case (Docket No. WR22010019) (the "2022 Rate Case"). Specifically, the Company has invested or plans to invest over \$561 million during the test year, and an additional \$300 million by December 31, 2024. Those investments total \$861 million, including \$423 million of distribution system improvement charge ("DSIC") and wastewater system improvement charge ("WSIC") eligible investments.

13. In making these investments, NJAWC works to control capital expenditure costs through competitive bidding, streamlined selection of services and materials and utilization of large volume purchasing power.

14. Petitioner has made these capital improvements to allow it to continue to provide safe, reliable and proper service in a manner that serves the long-term interests of our customers.

15. Many of these projects, which are described in the Company's Direct Testimony, Exhibits and Schedules, are necessary to comply with environmental or water quality regulations, address aging facilities, and increase system resiliency and reliability. Additional capital improvement projects address mitigation of emerging compounds such as perfluorooctanoic acid ("PFOA"), 1,4-dioxane, and hexavalent chromium, the reduction of non-revenue water, and climate variability. In each instance, these projects support the Company's continued provision of safe, adequate and reliable service to customers.

16. It is not possible to continue to make investments at this level without a fair opportunity to earn a reasonable return on the Company's capital invested in the system.

17. The Company also seeks to recover \$263.7 million in O&M expenses. The Company's O&M expenses over the past decade have increased at a rate less than the rate of inflation.

IV. REVENUE DECOUPLING MECHANISM

18. The Company is proposing a Revenue Decoupling Mechanism ("RDM") for water service. The RDM is an alternative rate design mechanism whose purpose is to harmonize revenue actually collected with the revenue requirement and associated fixed costs approved by the Board in this case.

19. As discussed in the Direct Testimony of Company witness Charles B. Rea, approximately 67% of the Company's water service revenues will be collected through volumetric rates under the Company's proposed rate structure in this case, which means that revenues will vary up or down depending on how much water our customers use. At the same time, approximately 95% of the Company's costs are fixed costs, which do not vary depending on how much water our customers use. If water sales are less than the levels used to set the Company's water service rates in this proceeding, the Company's revenues will be less than the authorized level in this proceeding, and as a result, the Company's ability to recover the costs that the Board determines to be prudent will be diminished. Likewise, if revenues exceed the authorized level in this proceeding due to higher than anticipated water sales, customers may pay more than the rate levels authorized in this proceeding.

20. The RDM will better reflect the levels of revenue requirement and fixed costs authorized in this case, as the difference between those amounts and actual revenues will be charged or credited back to customers in the subsequent year.

V. REGULATORY ACCOUNTING DEFERRAL TREATMENT

21. The Company is requesting to continue regulatory accounting deferral treatment for pension and OPEB expenses, consistent with the treatment authorized for these expenses in the Company's last rate case (Docket No. WR22010019). The Company is also requesting regulatory accounting deferral treatment for production costs, excluding purchased water expense and purchased wastewater expense.

22. As discussed in the Direct Testimony of Company witness Michael McKeever, the sensitivity of these expenses to changes in asset returns, market fluctuations, inflation, and other factors outside of the Company's control creates the potential for large variability in the future. This proposed treatment ensures that the Company and its customers remain protected from large variations in expense levels.

VI. REVENUE NORMALIZATION AND DECLINING USAGE

23. The declining consumption trend among water companies is well supported and has a material and ongoing impact on the Company's ability to recover the revenues authorized in setting rates. As discussed in the Direct Testimony of Company witness Charles B. Rea, after normalization of the impacts of weather and COVID-19, the statistical analysis of residential and commercial water usage indicates a downward trend for both classes. Therefore, the Company proposes to normalize revenues in this case to account for the downward trends.

VII. COMPENSATION EXPENSE RECOVERY

24. Petitioner is seeking recovery of its employee expenses, including its market-based total compensation. Employee compensation is a necessary cost of providing utility service and should be assessed through the same lens as other necessary operating costs. The Company's total compensation philosophy aligns the interests of our customers, employees and investors. The plan

emphasizes operational goals, including customer service, environmental compliance, and a safe work environment, as well as certain financial goals.

25. As discussed in the Direct Testimonies of Messrs. Thomas Shroba and Robert Mustich, the Company's market-based total compensation package, including performance pay, is necessary for the Company to attract, retain, and motivate the talent needed to run the Company successfully and efficiently. Performance pay also benefits both the Company and customers by providing incentives to employees to continue delivering excellent service to customers. The operational components of the Company's performance compensation plans measure performance that can most directly influence customer satisfaction, health and safety, and environmental excellence. Customers derive direct and demonstrable benefits from the Company's focus on these key measures in the plan.

26. As part of this case, the Company is submitting a study of the Company's market-based total compensation conducted by a third-party consultant, Willis Towers Watson, and supported by Company witness Robert Mustich (the "Compensation Study"). The Compensation Study assessed the Company's total compensation philosophy, including its short-term and long-term performance pay programs; comparing them to peer utilities and industry generally. The Compensation Study is confidential, trade secret and/or proprietary and will be provided to parties after execution of an NDA.

27. The Compensation Study results show that when performance pay is included in the total compensation program, NJAWC employees are generally within the range of market median indicating that the Company's compensation practices are reasonable. The Compensation Study also concluded that the Company's long-term and short-term performance pay programs are reasonable.

28. In addition, the Company's overall total direct compensation is in line with the market, and thus, is a reasonable and prudently incurred cost of service that is appropriate for inclusion in rates.

VIII. RATE DESIGN PROPOSALS

29. Petitioner is presenting in this case a cost of service study which was prepared by Company witness Heath Brooks.

30. The Company proposes to roll in the current DSIC surcharge into the monthly fixed service charge. The Company proposes to increase the fixed service charge for 5/8 inch meters to \$23.80 per month.

31. The Company is proposing changes to its water service rate design, including the following:

- The Company is proposing to align monthly meter charges and volumetric charges for Rate Schedules A-15 and A-17 with Rate Schedule A-1.
- The Company is proposing to align the monthly meter charges for Rate Schedule A-16 with Rate Schedule A-1.
- The Company is proposing to add meter charges for Rate Schedule A-18 5/8-inch meters and 3/4-inch meters with 5/8-inch meter charges starting at \$5.00 and escalating with meter size based on proportionate A-1 meter charge escalation with meter size.
- The Company is proposing to align the volumetric rate for Rate Schedule A-18 with Rate Schedule A-1.
- The Company is proposing to reduce differences in public fire rates.

32. The Company is proposing to make changes to the wastewater service rate design, including the following:

- The Company is proposing to modify the rate design (type of billing determinants used) for Rate Schedules 3-A, 11-A, and 17-A by implementing usage rates that are applicable to billing determinants based on winter quarter consumption. This modification will eliminate rates applicable to annual metered usage.
- The Company is proposing to modify the rate design (type of billing determinants used) for Rate Schedule 13-A by eliminating multiple flat rates that are applicable to different dwelling types and businesses and implementing a fixed service charge and a usage rate that is applicable to billing determinants based on winter quarter consumption.
- The Company is proposing to modify the rate design (type of billing determinants used) for Rate Schedule 21-A by implementing a monthly fixed service charge and a usage rate that is applicable to billing determinants based on winter quarter consumption for metered customers. Unmetered customers will continue to pay a monthly flat rate.
- The Company is proposing to align the fixed service charge and usage charge under Rate Schedules 2-A, 3-A, and 12-A.
- The Company is proposing to align the fixed service charge under Rate Schedules 13-A and 17-A.
- The Company is proposing to align the usage rates under Rate Schedules 6-A, 10-A, and 21-A.

- The Company is proposing that the following rate schedules be subject to the PSTAC to recover revenue associated with wastewater treatment currently being recovered through base rates: Rate Schedules 12-A, 16-A, 17-A, and 20-A.

IX. AFFORDABILITY

33. Water and wastewater services are essential, and the Company acknowledges the need for such services to be affordable. To that end, the Company has conducted an affordability study regarding the impact on customer bills as a result of the proposed rates in this case (the “Affordability Study”).

34. As discussed in the Direct Testimony of Company witness Charles Rea, the Affordability Study concludes that the Company’s water service is currently affordable for most residential customers. The Affordability Study also indicates that the Company’s water service will remain affordable under proposed rates. The Company is proposing a new Universal Affordability Discount Tarriff, which will replace its current service discount program. The Company’s Help to Others (“H2O”) Program will remain available to qualifying customers.

X. DEPRECIATION RATES

35. The Company has submitted a complete Depreciation Study in this case.

36. The Company proposes to utilize the depreciation rates proposed by its depreciation witness, Larry E. Kennedy, Senior Vice President of Concentric Energy Advisors, Inc. (“Concentric”).

XI. TARIFF PROPOSALS

37. The Company proposes a number of Tariff changes discussed in the Direct Testimony of Jamie Hawn. The changes proposed by Ms. Hawn are designed to conform the Tariff to the relief requested in this case.

XII. TESTIMONY AND EXHIBITS INCORPORATED HEREIN

38. The Company submits herewith, and incorporates as a part hereof, all documents and exhibits required to accompany such a Petition pursuant to the Board's rules of practice as set forth in N.J.A.C. 14:1-5.12.

39. Attached hereto and incorporated herein are the Direct Testimony (Exhibits) and Schedules submitted on behalf of the following witnesses:

- a. Mark McDonough, President, NJAWC, whose testimony includes an overview of the Company and the primary issues driving the Company's filing (Exhibit P-3);
- b. Thomas Shroba, Vice President of Operations, NJAWC, whose testimony includes an overview of the Company's operations, its commitment to water quality, environmental compliance, safety, improving water efficiency, as well as the Company's proposed staffing levels and compensation philosophy (Exhibit P-4);
- c. Donald C. Shields, Vice President, Engineering for the Eastern Division, American Water Works Service Company "Service Company", whose testimony addresses the Company's capital investment planning process, the need to recover capital expenditures incurred since the Company's last rate case, the plan for the engineered coating of steel structures, and some of the risks and challenges for water and wastewater utilities associated with increased identification and regulation of contaminants and with increased climate variability (Exhibit P-5);
- d. Jamie D. Hawn, Director Rates and Regulatory for New Jersey, whose testimony supports the Company's revenue requirement calculation, rate base, capital structure, acquisitions, depreciation and amortization, and proposed tariff modifications (Exhibit P-6);
- e. Michael B. McKeever, Senior Director of Rates and Regulatory for NJAWC, whose testimony includes the Company's compensation and benefits, Service Company expenses, other operations and maintenance ("O&M"), general and income taxes, and deferral requests (Exhibit P-7);

- f. Heath J. Brooks, Principle Regulatory Analyst for Service Company whose testimony supports and describes NJAWC’s cost of service study, the proposed rate design for both water and wastewater service and the determination of Post-Test Year revenues at present and proposed rates (Exhibit P-8)
- g. Charles B. Rea, Director, Rates and Regulatory for Service Company, whose testimony addresses affordability analyses for the Company’s water and wastewater service, the Company’s proposal to offer a universal affordability tariff, the Company’s analysis of residential, commercial, and public authority customers’ water consumption and long-term trends in water usage, and the proposed Revenue Decoupling Mechanism (Exhibit P-9);
- h. Ann Bulkley, Principal of The Brattle Group, whose testimony discusses the reasonableness of the Company’s cost of equity and its capital structure (Exhibit P-10);
- i. Patrick L. Baryenbruch, President of Baryenbruch & Company, LLC, whose testimony discusses the reasonableness of the Service Company costs (Exhibit P-11);
- j. Robert V. Mustich, Managing Director and East Region Rewards Business Leader for Willis Towers Watson, whose testimony (1) addresses the reasonableness of the Company’s compensation program, and (2) benchmarks the Company’s compensation expense against national and regional peer groups (Exhibit P-12);
- k. Harold M. Walker, Manager, Financial Studies for Gannett Fleming Valuation and Rate Consultants, LLC, whose testimony presents the Company’s cash working capital and the lead/lag study (Exhibit P-13); and
- l. Larry E. Kennedy, Senior Vice President of Concentric Energy Advisors., Inc. whose testimony and reports set forth the Company’s depreciation studies for water and wastewater. (Exhibit P-14)

40. Attached hereto and incorporated herein is Exhibit P-2, which includes Schedule Nos. RR and 1 through 18 in support of this Petition.

XIII. PROPOSED PROCEDURAL SCHEDULE

41. The Company respectfully proposes the adoption of the following procedural schedule for the conduct of this proceeding:

February 28, 2024	Service of first round discovery
March 21, 2024	Responses to first round discovery due
April 8, 2024	Public Hearings
April 11, 2024	Service of second round discovery

April 23, 2024	Company files 9+3 update
April 26, 2024	Second round discovery responses due
May 9, 2024	Service of 9+3 update discovery
May 20, 2024	Responses to discovery on 9+3 update due
Week of May 13, 2024	Discovery/Settlement Conferences
Week of May 20, 2024	Discovery/Settlement Conferences
June 20, 2024	Rate Counsel and Intervenor Direct Testimony Due
June 27, 2024	Serve discovery on Rate Counsel and Intervenor Direct Testimony
July 11, 2024	Responses to discovery on Rate Counsel and Intervenor testimony due
July 17, 2024	Company files 12+0 update
July 25, 2024	Company, Rate Counsel and Intervenors file Rebuttal Testimony
August 1, 2024	Serve discovery on Rebuttal Testimony
August 8, 2024	Responses to rebuttal discovery due
August 15, 2024	Surrebuttal Testimony
August 26, 2024	Evidentiary Hearings begin (subject to ALJ's availability)

XIV. MISCELLANEOUS

42. Petitioner is serving notice and a copy of this Petition, together with a copy of the exhibits and schedules annexed hereto, on the Division of Rate Counsel and the Department of Law and Public Safety via electronic mail, to be followed by paper courtesy copies. Notice of this filing and the effect thereof will be served by mail upon the clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders and County Executive Officers of those counties in the Company's service territory, as well as upon the clerks of the respective municipalities within the Company's service territory. Such notice will be given at least 20 days prior to the date set for the initial public hearing and

shall include and specify the time and place of said hearing. The counties and municipalities upon whom service of said notice will be made are shown in NJAWC's tariff.

43. Customers will be notified of this filing, and the effect thereof, together with the time and place of hearing by publication at least 20 days prior to the date set for hearing in newspapers published and circulated within the Company's service territory. A copy of the form of notice is attached as Exhibit P-1B.

44. Proof of Service of the Notices referred to herein will be served upon the parties and filed with the Board and Office of Administrative Law.

45. The reasons for the proposed increase in rates requested by the Company are as follows:

a. To recognize in rates its investments to continue to provide safe, adequate and reliable service to existing and new customers of Petitioner, which have been put into service since the Company's last base rate case, as well as the opportunity to earn its requested return on equity on those investments. These investments are not currently included in rate base and Petitioner currently bears carrying charges and depreciation expense associated with these facilities.

b. To recover increased costs, not previously recovered in rates.

c. To provide the Company with an opportunity to earn a reasonable return on its net investment.

d. To establish rates which will be sufficient to enable the Company, under efficient and economical operation, to maintain and support its financial integrity and to raise such funds as may be necessary for the proper discharge of its public duties.

e. To provide earnings sufficient to attract investors and provide sufficient cash flow to fund the Company's operations.

f. To enable the Company to continue to provide safe, adequate and proper service to its customers.

46. Petitioner respectfully submits that the rates, tariff modifications and other relief requested by it are in all respects just and reasonable.

WHEREFORE, the Company respectfully requests that the Board find, determine and rule as follows:

a. that the proposed rates submitted with this Petition are just and reasonable and should be made effective;

b. that the proposed tariff revisions requested herein and herewith are necessary and reasonable; and

c. that the Company may have such other further relief as requested herein and as the Board may deem reasonable and proper under the circumstances presented to it in this case.

Respectfully submitted,

CULLEN AND DYKMAN

Attorneys for New Jersey-American Water
Company, Inc.

By: 
Bruce V. Miller

DATED: January 19, 2024

Communications addressed to the Petitioner in this case are to be sent to:

Bruce V. Miller
Cullen and Dykman LLP
Bruce V. Miller, Esq.
Cullen and Dykman, LLP
333 Earle Ovington Boulevard, 2d Floor
Uniondale, NY 11553
(516) 296-9133
bmiller@cullenllp.com

Zachary A. Klein
Cullen and Dykman LLP
229 Nassau Street
Princeton, New Jersey 08542
(609) 279-0900
zklein@cullenllp.com

Stephen Bishop
Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary
New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
1 Water Street
Camden, New Jersey 08102
(856) 955-4877
stephen.bishop@amwater.com

Christopher M. Arfaa
Director, Corporate Counsel
American Water Works Service Company, Inc.
1 Water Street
Camden, New Jersey 08102
(856) 955-4116
chris.arfaa@amwater.com

Jamie D. Hawn
Director, Rates & Regulatory
New Jersey-American Water Works Company, Inc.
1 Water Street
Camden, New Jersey 08102
(856) 955-4797
jamie.hawn@amwater.com

VERIFICATION

Jamie Hawn, of full age, being duly sworn, according to law, deposes and says:

1. I am the Director, Rates and Regulatory, of New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc., and am authorized to make this Verification on behalf of this company.
2. I have read the contents of the foregoing Petition and hereby verify that the statements therein contained are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Jamie Hawn
Director, Rates and Regulatory

Sworn to and subscribed before
me this 19th day of January, 2024

Notary Public

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 - Water and Wastewater

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

TARIFF FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, New Jersey 08102

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 1
Superseding Third Revised Sheet: No. 1

Deleted: Third
Deleted: Second

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Sheet No.</u>
New Jersey-American Water: Water and Wastewater	
Table of Contents	1
An Introduction to Customers	2
Definitions – Water	3
Definitions – Wastewater	5
An Overview of Customer Rights	6
General Rules	6
Standard Terms and Conditions	8
Deposits	8
Form of Bill for Metered Service	8
Budget Billing	9
Financial Aid	10
Deferred Payment Arrangements	11
Discontinuance of Service	11
Restoration of Service	14
Theft of Service	14
Late Payment Charge	14
Meter	15
Applications for Service	16
New Jersey-American Water: Water Service	
Standard Terms and Conditions - Water	18
Water Service And Connecting Lines	18
Company Side – Service Lines	18
Customer Side – Connecting Lines	18
Water Main Extensions	19
Customer's Premises	19
Private Fire Protection Service	20
Public Fire Protection Service	21
Multi-Use Service	21
Emergency Responses Due to Extraordinary Demand and/or Diminished Supply	21
New Jersey-American Water: Wastewater Service	
Standard Terms and Conditions - Wastewater	23
A. Wastewater Main Extensions	23
B. Calculation of Winter Quarter Consumption	23
C. Special Requirements Relating to Wastewater Service – Collection Systems	24
D. Special Requirements Relating to Wastewater Service – Treatment Systems	26
New Jersey-American Water: Water Service Rate Schedules	
Area Served – Water	28
Water Service Rate Schedules Table of Contents	33
New Jersey-American Water: Wastewater Service Rate Schedules	
Area Served – Wastewater	44
Wastewater Service Rate Schedules Table of Contents	45

Deleted: Sewer

Deleted: 25

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶
Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶
¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President ¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102 ¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in ¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

~~Seventh~~ Revised Sheet: No. 2
Superseding ~~Sixth~~ Revised Sheet: No. 2

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: Fifth

AN INTRODUCTION TO CUSTOMERS

The approved tariff located in the Company's office at 1 Water Street, Camden, NJ, and on its website at <https://www.amwater.com/njaw/customer-service-billing/your-water-and-wastewater-rates>, is available for your review. The Company is obligated to keep its tariff current, including any changes approved by the Board of Public Utilities. The Company is required to maintain it in exactly the same format as the Company's tariff on file at the Board of Public Utilities, 44 South Clinton Avenue, 1st Floor, Trenton, NJ.

Deleted: 9th

Through the Company's My Account portal, customers can complete some of the most common functions associated with their accounts and schedule some appointments. The Company's Customer Service personnel can also be reached at 1-800-272-1325 for assistance. If, after you review this tariff and discuss it with appropriate Company employees, you still have questions regarding clarification or interpretations, please contact the Board of Public Utilities, Division of Water at 1-609-633-9800 or the Board's Division of Customer Assistance at www.nj.gov/bpu/ or 1-800-624-0241.

Deleted: , or at www.nj.gov/bpu/

You have the right to review this tariff at the Company's offices or at the Board's office in Trenton. Your inquiries will be handled by the Board's Staff in an expeditious manner in order to protect your rights as well as those of the water and/or wastewater Company. Please feel free to exercise this right by telephone or by visiting the Board's offices at any time between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, or by writing a letter. The letter should contain the writer's name, address and phone number, including the area code. If the writer is a customer of record, the account number should be included.

The Company also has available in its office a leaflet entitled "The Utility Customer's Bill of Rights." This is a summary document; it does not include all customer rights or utility obligations.

New Jersey-American Water hereby adopts the rules and regulations promulgated by the Board of Public Utilities of the State of New Jersey, some of which are referenced herein, and all of which are herein adopted and incorporated by reference. New Jersey-American Water provides water and wastewater service to various municipalities, all in the State of New Jersey.

Deleted:

The Board of Public Utilities is responsible for the final interpretation and enforcement of a utility's tariff provisions and rates. The utility is bound by New Jersey's statutes and the Board's regulations. If a conflict should exist in the tariff that is detrimental to the customer, the Board's regulations supersede the tariff provision absent specific approval to the contrary by the NJ Board of Public Utilities. A utility company may provide for more liberal treatment than that provided for in the Board's regulations.

Tariff B.P.U. No. 8 - Water and Wastewater is divided into a water section and a wastewater section, preceded by standard terms and conditions which are universally applicable, standard terms and conditions applicable to water service only, and standard terms and conditions applicable to wastewater service only. Tables of contents for each section precede a series of sequentially numbered and lettered tariff rate schedules. The tables of contents denote the appropriate rate schedule applicability for all classes of service and are an integral part of this tariff.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022¶

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022¶

¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in

Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 3
Superseding Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 3

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: Fourth

DEFINITIONS - WATER

The following are definitions of specific terms that are used in this document:

- 1- "Board" or "BPU" shall mean the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities.
- 2- "Company" or "New Jersey-American Water" shall mean New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc. or, as applicable, any predecessor entity.
- 3- "Connecting line" is the portion of pipe that starts at the curb stop and conveys domestic water and/or fire service to the customer. The customer and/or premises owner owns, and is responsible for the operation and maintenance of the connecting line.
- 4- "Curb stop" is the fitting attached to the service line on the roadside utility right-of-way of the property, and is used primarily for turning on and shutting off water at the curb in emergencies, for purposes of repair or to discontinue service to a customer.
- 5- "Customer" means a person that is an end-user, a customer of record or both, as defined in N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.1. "Customer of Record" means the person that applies for utility service and is identified in the account records of a public utility as the person responsible for payment of the public utility bill. A customer may or may not be an end-user. "End User" means a person who receives, uses, or consumes water or wastewater service. An end user may or may not be a customer of record.
- 6- "DEP" shall mean the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection.
- 7- "End User" means a person who receives, uses, or consumes water or receives wastewater or fire protection service. An end user may or may not be a customer or a premises owner.
- 8- "Extension" is an addition to the existing system of mains, intended to service more than one customer, either at the time of installation or in the future.
- 9- "Interruptible Service" means service which may be interrupted in the sole discretion of the Company on not less than three (3) hours' notice to the customer by telephone or otherwise.
- J- "Main" is a pipe or conduit for conveying water or wastewater. A "water main" will exclusively convey water and a "wastewater main" will exclusively convey wastewater.
- 11- "Meter" is a device to measure the quantity of water, wastewater and/or the rate of flow delivered to or from a customer.
- 12- "Meter pit" is a structure that houses a small meter or meters less than or equal to 2-inches. Unless agreed to by the Company and the customer, it is installed, furnished and maintained by the Company.
- 13- "Meter vault" is a structure that houses a meter or meters larger than 2-inches. Unless explicitly agreed to by the Company and the customer in writing, it is located and designed by the Company, and constructed, installed, furnished and maintained by the Customer at the sole expense to the customer. The Company will ensure that the vault is kept clear of any of its equipment that is no longer in service, to the extent possible.
- 14- "Person" means an individual, firm, joint venture, partnership, co-partnership, corporation, association, State, county, municipality, public agency or authority, bi-state or interstate agency or authority, public utility, regulated entity, cable television company, cooperation association, or joint stock association, trust, limited liability company, governmental entity, or other legal entity, and includes any trustee, receiver, assignee, or personal representative thereof. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.1)
- 15- "Premises" is defined as follows:
 - a) A building under one-roof, owned or leased by one customer and occupied as one place of business or residence.
 - b) A combination of buildings, owned or leased by one customer in one common enclosure, occupied by one family or business.

Deleted: sewer

Moved down [1]: A combination of buildings, such as a garden type apartment, owned or leased by one customer, in one common enclosure, none of the individual buildings of which is adapted to separate ownership.

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President ¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102 ¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in ¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 4
Superseding Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 4

Deleted: Fourth

Deleted: Third

DEFINITIONS – WATER (Continued)

Moved (insertion) [1]

- c) ~~A combination of buildings, such as a garden type apartment, owned or leased by one customer, in one common enclosure, none of the individual buildings of which is adapted to separate ownership.~~
 - d) The one side of a double house having a solid vertical partition wall, so that it may be adapted to separate ownership.
 - e) A building owned or leased by one person, of more than one apartment and using in common one hall and one entrance.
 - f) A building owned or leased by one person, having a number of apartments or offices, and using a common one hall and one or more means of entrance.
 - g) A public building or a single plot such as a park or a playground.
 - h) A building or combination of buildings owned by one customer or entity located on contiguous property not intersected or intervened by another customer or entity.
- 16- "Premises owner" is the party who possesses the exclusive right to hold, use, benefit from, enjoy, convey, transfer, and otherwise dispose of the property. A premises owner may or may not be the customer of record or end-user, as defined in N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.1.
- 17- "PWAC" or "Purchased water adjustment clause" is a provision that authorizes a utility to adjust its rates to compensate for an increase or decrease in the cost of water purchased from a water purveyor. (N.J.A.C. 14:9-7.2)
- 18- "PWAC Year" shall mean the twelve-month period beginning each April 1 and ending March 31 of the following calendar year.
- 19- "Residential customer" means a customer who receives service from a regulated entity for use in a residence. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.1)
- 20- "Sales for Resale Customer" means a municipal water system, a Municipal Utilities Authority, a County Utilities Authority, a Water Supply Authority, district or commission or a water utility regulated by the Board.
- 1- "Service line" is the portion of pipe that starts from a main and ends at the curb stop. The service line is owned, operated and maintained by the Company. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-8)
- 22- "Tap" is the fitting inserted in the main to which the service line is attached. It is used to facilitate the tapping of the main and for shutting off water in case of repairs to the service line.
- 23- "Tariff," as referred to herein, is the entire "Tariff for Water and Wastewater Service" as the same may be amended or revised from time to time in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.3, Tariffs.
- 24- "Water connection" includes all service line, taps and curb stops necessary to supply customers with water at their premises from the Company's water mains.
- 25- "Water service" is the act of providing water to a customer.

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 5
Superseding Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 5

Deleted: Fourth

Deleted: Third

DEFINITIONS - WASTEWATER

The following are definitions of specific terms that used hereafter in the tariff. Additional definitions are set forth in the Definitions section of the tariff for water and wastewater service.

1- "New Account" as herein used shall be defined as an account opened as the result of the construction of a new building.

2- "Building Drain" shall mean that part of the lowest horizontal piping of a drainage system which receives the discharge from drainage pipes inside the walls of the building terminating five (5) feet outside the face of the building wall from whence it becomes known as the building sewer.

3- "Building Sewer" shall mean the extension from the building drain to service lateral line and/or other point of connection to the Company wastewater collection system.

4- "Biochemical Oxygen Demand", denoted hereinafter as "B.O.D.", shall mean the quantity of oxygen utilized (demanded) in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory procedure in five (5) days when incubated at 20°C.

5- "Bulk User" means a municipality which has contracted with the utility for wastewater treatment services. The utility has no responsibility for construction of the mains connecting the Bulk User to the utility nor in the collection of payments of customers of the bulk user. Bulk User customers are not in the service territory of the utility.

6- "Suspended Solids" shall mean solids that either float on the surface of or are carried in suspension in water, wastewater or industrial wastes, and which are removable by laboratory filtering.

7- "pH" shall mean the logarithm to the base ten of the reciprocal of the weight of hydrogen ions in moles per liter of solution.

8- "Garbage" shall mean solid wastes from domestic and commercial preparation, cooking, dispensing or marketing of food or food products and from the handling, storage and sale of produce.

9- "Properly Shredded Garbage" shall mean garbage that has been shredded to such a degree that all particles will be carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in the wastewater system with no particle greater than one-half inch (1/2") in any dimension.

Deleted: sewerage

10- "PSTAC" or "Purchased wastewater treatment adjustment clause" is a provision that authorizes a utility to adjust its rates to compensate for an increase or decrease in the cost of wastewater treatment purchased from a wastewater treatment purveyor. (N.J.A.C. 14:9-7.2)

11- "PSTAC Year" shall mean the twelve-month period beginning each April 1 and ending March 31 of the following calendar year.

12- "Slug" shall mean the discharge of water, sewage, or industrial waste which in concentration of any constituent or in quantity of flow exceeds for any period of duration longer than fifteen (15) minutes more than five (5) times the average twenty-four hour flow or concentration under normal operating conditions.

Deleted: er

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in ¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Seventh Revised Sheet: No. 6
Superseding Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 6

Deleted: Sixth
Deleted: Fifth

AN OVERVIEW OF CUSTOMER RIGHTS

- (1) No public utility shall refuse to furnish or supply service to a qualified applicant. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.1
- (2) The utility shall not place the name of a second individual on the account of a residential customer unless specifically requested by said second individual. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.2(b))
- (3) A customer has the right to have any complaint against the utility handled promptly by that utility. (Board Order, Docket No. CO8602155)
- (4) Each utility shall, upon request, furnish its customers with such information as is reasonable in order that the customers may obtain safe, adequate and proper service. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.3(a)) Each utility shall inform its customers, where peculiar or unusual circumstances prevail, as to the conditions under which sufficient and satisfactory service may be secured from its system. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.3(c)) Each utility shall supply its customers with information on the furnishing and performance of service in a manner that tends to conserve energy resources and water resources and preserve the quality of the environment. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.3(d)

GENERAL RULES

- 1- The location of meters and the arrangement of the fittings and piping are subject to inspection and approval of the Company and should meet Company's requirements presented herein.
- 2- The Company will endeavor to provide a regular and uninterrupted supply of water through its facilities. However, if service shall be interrupted, irregular, or defective, or fail because of breakdown or emergency, the Company will not be liable for damage, inconvenience or lost income resulting there from.
- 3- A customer's responsibility to pay for service continues from the time service is commenced, pursuant to his/her application, until notice is received by the Company of a change of ownership or occupancy of the premises or notice is received by the Company to discontinue the applicable service. Upon receipt of such notice, the Company will arrange for a final meter reading and billing. No allowance will be made in case of non-occupancy, unless the Company is notified as stated above.
- 4- The Company does not undertake to render any special service or maintain any fixed pressure. In the event of an accident or for other reasons, the Company may shut off the water in its mains and pipes and may restrict the use of water whenever the public welfare may require it. All customers requiring an uninterrupted supply or a uniform pressure of water for any purpose, such as steam boilers, are cautioned to provide their own means of providing such special uninterrupted service. When the supply is to be interrupted or curtailed, the Company will endeavor to give notice.
- 5- The Company does not undertake to supply any uniform quality of water for special purposes, such as laboratories, manufacturing or processing plants, swimming pools, bleaching or dyeing plants, or laundries. Customers requiring water of special quality, or water free from discoloration or turbidity, are required to provide their own means of treating water, or provide such other protection as may be deemed necessary for the purpose required.
- 6- From time to time, the Company may provide public notices, specific notices, correspondence or other notifications ("Notices") regarding the presence of conditions affecting the quality and/or quantity of water service provided by the Company. (Examples of such Notices include, but are not limited to, boil water alerts, notice of hydrant and main flushing, and notice of water quality testing results.) These Notices may contain information about actions members of the public may wish to, are recommended to, or should take in response to the conditions identified in the Notice. In the event the Company issues a Notice, the Company will not be liable for any expenses or costs incurred by a customer or end-user for any action taken in response to any condition identified in the Notice.

Moved (insertion) [3]
Deleted: written
Deleted: written
Deleted: in writing
Moved up [3]: <#>The location of meters and the arrangement of the fittings and piping are subject to inspection and approval of the Company and should meet Company's requirements presented herein.¶
Deleted: <#>¶
Moved down [2]: <#>The location of meters and the arrangement of the fittings and piping are subject to inspection and approval of the Company and should meet Company's requirements presented herein.¶ Neither by inspection approval nor failure to approve, nor in any other way, does the Company give any guarantee, or assume any responsibility, expressed or implied, as to the adequacy, safety or characteristics of any structures, equipment, pipes, appliances or devices owned, installed or maintained by the customer or leased by the customer from third parties.¶ The Company will not be liable for any loss, injury, casualty, or damage resulting from the supply or use of water service, or from the presence or operation of the Company's structures, equipment, pipes, appliances or devices on the customer's premises.¶ No unauthorized person is permitted to turn the water on or off at any street valve, corporation stop, curb stop, or other street connection, or disconnect or remove any meter without the consent of the Company.¶ No agent or employee of the Company shall have authority to bind it, by any promise, agreement, or representation not provided in this tariff, or in any way inconsistent ther
Deleted: <#>¶
Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶
Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020¶
¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 6.1

GENERAL RULES (Continued)

- 7- ~~Neither by inspection approval nor failure to approve, nor in any other way, does the Company give any guarantee, or assume any responsibility, expressed or implied, as to the adequacy, safety or characteristics of any structures, equipment, pipes, appliances or devices owned, installed or maintained by the customer or leased by the customer from third parties.~~
- 8- ~~The Company will not be liable for any loss, injury, casualty, or damage resulting from the supply or use of water service, or from the presence or operation of the Company's structures, equipment, pipes, appliances or devices on the customer's premises.~~
- 9- ~~No unauthorized person is permitted to turn the water on or off at any street valve, corporation stop, curb stop, or other street connection, or disconnect or remove any meter without the consent of the Company.~~
- 10- ~~No agent or employee of the Company shall have authority to bind it, by any promise, agreement, or representation not provided in this tariff, or in any way inconsistent therewith.~~

Deleted: Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 7¶
Superseding Fifth Revised

Deleted: 7

Moved (insertion) [2]

Deleted: <#>The location of meters and the arrangement of the fittings and piping are subject to inspection and approval of the Company and should meet Company's requirements presented herein.¶

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 7
Superseding Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 7

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: Fourth

GENERAL RULES (Continued)

- 11- Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.
- 12- The quantity of water recorded by the meter shall be taken to be the amount delivered to the customer, except where the meter has been found to be registering fast by more than one and one-half percent (1.5%) or has ceased to register.
- 13- All service provided by the Company except public fire protection shall be metered. Thus, no unmetered water service connections are permitted except as otherwise set forth herein or approved by the Company.
- 14- The Company shall own and provide without charge for each customer supplied on a measured basis, a meter and such appurtenances related to the meter as are customarily furnished by the Company, such as encoders, radio transmitters, meter pits (but not meter vaults), or other devices designed to facilitate the collection of accurate and efficient meter reads.
- 15- The Company requires that all meters be housed inside meter pits (for meters that are less than or equal to 2-inches) or meter vaults (for meters that are larger than 2-inches). Where more than one service type exists (domestic, private fire protection or irrigation) all meters shall be housed inside a meter vault if any one meter is greater than two inches. The Customer is responsible for the installation and maintenance of meter vaults. All meter pits and meter vaults will be located outside of the Customer's structure in a location acceptable to the express approval of the Water Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may grant an exception to this rule on a case by case basis at the Company's discretion.
- 16- The Company maintains and repairs meters except in case of misuse or damage by the customer or the customer's invitees, agents, representatives or contractors, in which case the Company shall charge the customer for repairing and replacing the meter, said charge to be based on the costs related to the removing, repairing, replacing and/or resetting the meter. The charge will be made in accordance with Rate Schedule P-2.
- 17- Where more than one rate schedule is available to particular customers, the utility shall have at all times the duty to assist such customers in the selection of the rate schedule most favorable for their individual requirements and to make every reasonable effort to ensure that such customers are served under the most advantageous schedule.
- 18- Upon the request of a customer, the Company shall send a Spanish language version of the notice of discontinuance for nonpayment. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3(e)
- 19- The Company reserves the right to require any customer having unusual requirements of demand, services or supply to enter into a special written contract, which contract shall provide for the mutual obligations of the customer and Company. Special contracts will be filed with the Board.
- 20- In case of fraud, deception, illegal use, or when it is clearly indicated that the customer is preparing to leave, the Company may demand immediate payment of accounts and terminate service without further notice.
- 21- The Company reserves the right to change, take from or add to this tariff and the Standard Terms and Conditions, to the extent permitted by law, or permitted by the applicable regulations of the state regulatory body having jurisdiction.
- 22- For all materials furnished or services rendered to any governmental agency or unit of the United States, New Jersey, or sub-unit thereof, that is not covered by any other tariff provision or rate schedule, and which pertain to hydrants, meters or situations involving emergencies, the charges will be 10% more than the total of the following applicable items:
 - (a) Equipment and materials: actual costs;
 - (b) Labor charges: actual costs (including base plus fringe); and,
 - (c) Other charges: actual costs (such as permits, police protection, contractor labor, restoration, etc.).

Deleted: insure

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 8
Superseding Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 8

Deleted: Fourth

Deleted: Third

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

DEPOSITS

1. If after notice of the methods of establishing credit and being afforded an opportunity, a customer has not established satisfactory credit, the utility may require a deposit. The deposit amount shall be determined in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.4.
2. The utility must furnish a receipt to any customer posting a deposit. The deposit will be returned with simple interest at a rate established annually by the Board of Public Utilities. Once the customer has established satisfactory credit with the utility, the deposit shall be returned to the customer with interest due. The customer has the option of receiving the deposit refund either by a check or a credit on the account. If a residential customer's deposit is not returned, the utility shall credit the customer's account with the accrued interest once every twelve months, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.5.
3. Where a water or wastewater utility furnishes unmetered service, for which payment is received in advance, it may not require a deposit. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.4(j)
4. The Company shall review a residential customer's account at least once every year and a nonresidential customer's account at least once every two years to determine whether the customer has established credit satisfactory to the Company. If this review indicates that the customer has met the utility's standard requirements for establishing credit, the utility shall refund the customer's deposit. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.5, Return of deposits, interest on deposits.
5. If the deposit has remained with the Company for at least three months, without default, it will be returned to the customer with simple interest on an annual basis at a rate established annually by the Board of Public Utilities. Deposits shall cease to bear interest upon the discontinuance of service.

FORM OF BILL FOR METERED SERVICE

All bills will be computed in accordance with the rates of the Company as shown in this Tariff, and as the same may be amended or revised from time to time. Rates are subject to such changes as the state regulatory body having jurisdiction may require, authorize or allow.

7. A customer has twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted, or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing, to pay a bill. A water and/or wastewater company may not discontinue water or wastewater service unless it has provided written notice giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. This written notice shall be sent by first class mail, apart from the bill and as a separate mailing. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3 (c)) The notice shall not be given until after the expiration of the said twenty (20) days time to pay a bill. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3(b)) The notice shall contain sufficient information for the customer to notify the Board of Public Utilities of the nature of the dispute. The utility shall make a good faith effort to determine which of its residential customers are over 65 years of age, and shall make good faith efforts to notify such customers of discontinuance of service by telephone in addition to notice by regular mail. This effort may consist of an appropriate inquiry set forth on the notice informing customers that they may designate a third party to receive notice of discontinuance.
8. Bills rendered must contain the following information: (a) the meter readings at the beginning and end of the billing period; (b) the dates on which the meter is read; (c) the number and kind of units measured; (d) identification of applicable rate schedule or statement that the applicable rate schedule will be furnished upon request; (e) the amount of the bill; (f) a distinctive marking to indicate an estimated, averaged, or remote meter index and web address and telephone number where the customer can obtain a description of the method used; (g) an explanation or statement of any conversion from meter reading to billing units or any other calculations or factors used in determining the bill; and (h) the gross receipts and franchise tax statement. N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.2

Deleted: fifteen (15)

Deleted: fifteen (15)

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____ Effective _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 9
Superseding Third Revised Sheet: No. 9

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

FORM OF BILL FOR METERED SERVICE (Continued)

9. Estimated Billing. If for any reason a utility cannot read a customer's meter, the utility may use estimated billing in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.2(c). Customers may request a special reading for a meter where a high bill or other reason exists to believe the meter reading used for billing purposes is in error. Rules concerning estimated bills for residential customers are as follows:
- a. The Company shall maintain a regular meter reading schedule and make a reasonable effort to read all meters.
 - b. The Company, upon request, must make available to all customers a postage-paid business reply card on which the customer may mark the meter reading. Said card shall have appropriate explanation. The utility must permit the customer to telephone the meter reading to the utility. The customer reading is to be used in lieu of an estimated reading, provided the reading is received in time for billing.
 - c. When the Company estimates an account for four consecutive billing periods (monthly accounts), or two consecutive billing periods (bi-monthly and quarterly accounts), the Company must initiate a program to mail a notice marked "Important Notice" to the customer on the fifth and seventh months explaining that a meter reading must be obtained and said notice must explain the penalty for failure to complete an actual meter reading. After all reasonable means to obtain a meter reading have been exhausted, the Company may discontinue service provided at least eight months have passed since the last meter reading was obtained, the Board of Public Utilities has been so notified, and the customer has been properly notified by prior mailing. If service is discontinued and subsequently restored, the utility may charge a reconnection charge equal to the reconnection charge for restoring service after discontinuance for non-payment. The reconnection charge shall become due when service is restored, whether the Company or an authorized professional physically restores service. Unauthorized reconnections shall be considered theft of service. Unauthorized reconnections by a customer no longer in arrears, shall be considered tampering with utility facilities.
 - d. The Company must submit to the Board of Public Utilities a statement detailing their estimating procedures.
 - e. An estimated bill must be clearly designated as such.
 - f. If low estimates result in a customer receiving an actual bill that is at least twenty five percent (25%) greater than the prior estimated bill, the Company shall allow the customer to amortize the excess amount. The amortization will be in equal installments over a period of time equal to the period when no actual meter reading was taken by the customer or the Company. (7) Annually, the Company shall notify all customers of their rights to amortize as set forth in N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.2.

BUDGET BILLING

10. The Company will make available to residential customers whose accounts do not reflect past-due balances the option to pay their bills on a monthly, budgeted basis. The budget billing plan year will be a twelve (12)-month time frame and allows a customer to pay a predetermined monthly amount, based upon the customer's average usage. If a customer is a new customer with little or no prior history of utility use, the monthly budget amount shall be determined using a reasonable estimate of likely usage. The budget billing plan will be made available to eligible customers by bill insert or bill message at least twice in each twelve (12)-month period.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 10
Superseding Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 10

Deleted: Fifth
Deleted: Fourth

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

BUDGET BILLING (Continued)

- 11. The Company will "true up" the actual cost of service rendered as determined by actual meter readings and the actual monthly budgeted amount at the beginning of the budget plan year, and at least once during the budget plan year if the true-up performed during the customer's budget plan year reveals an increase or decrease of twenty-five (25) percent or more in the monthly budget amount, the Company will adjust the budget billing plan up or down, if necessary. There shall be no more than one such adjustment during the budget plan year. The Company will notify the customer of any change in the budget billing amount prior to such change.
- 12. A final bill for the budget plan year shall be issued in the last month of the budget plan year, and shall contain the month's monthly budget amount, plus an adjustment of any difference between said amount and the actual cost of service rendered during the budget plan year. Payment of this final balance due is required before the customer will be allowed to participate in the budget billing program for the upcoming budget billing plan year.
- 13. The Company shall notify the budget billing plan customers in writing of a revised monthly budget amount at least ten (10) working days before the due date the initial bill of the next budget plan year. Should the customer opt out of the budget billing plan, payment of the total charges incurred to date will be due immediately, or, in the alternative, agree to enter into a deferred payment agreement according to N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.7; or a credit will be applied to the account, whichever is applicable. The plan bill shall contain the information required by N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.2, Form of Bill for Metered Service, N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.3 Form of Bill for Unmetered Service, and N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.4, Method of Billing.
- 14. Should the customer breach the terms of the budget billing plan by failing to make the monthly payments as required under the plan or by having a budget billing plan payment returned due to insufficient funds, the Company reserves the right to terminate the customer's participation from the program; payment of total charges incurred to date will be due immediately, or, in the alternative, the Company and the customer will agree to enter into a deferred payment agreement according to N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.7.

FINANCIAL AID

- 15. The Company understands that from time to time its customers may have difficulty paying their water and/or wastewater bills issued by the Company. If at any time customers find that they cannot pay their water and/or wastewater bill by the due date, the Company requests that the customers contact the Company's Customer Service Center, prior to the due date, to work out a payment arrangement with the Company to avoid a shut-off of service, at 1-800-272-1325.
- 16. In addition to working out payment arrangements with customers in times of financial difficulty, the Company has also established a residential customer assistance program for its low-income customers who are having difficulty paying their water and/or wastewater bills issued by the Company. This residential customer assistance program, called the H2O Help to Others Assistance Program, is designed to provide financial assistance to qualified residential customers to pay their water and/or wastewater bills and protect them from an unnecessary discontinuance of their water and/or wastewater service. A grant from the H2O Help to Others Assistance Program may be awarded to cover a portion or all of the residential customer's outstanding bill based on the customer's ability to pay, income level and the availability of funds in the program. For more information about this program, please contact NJ Shares at 1-877-652-9426 or any subsequent program administrator whose contact information may be found on the Company's web site. Customers who qualify for the program are required to recertify income eligibility every two years.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022¶
Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022¶
¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 11
Superseding Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 11

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: Fourth

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

DEFERRED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

17. A customer is entitled to at least one deferred payment plan in one year. In the case of a residential customer who receives more than one utility service from the same utility (ex: water and wastewater; gas and electric) and the amount which is in arrears is a combination of those services, the utility shall offer a separate deferred payment agreement for each service based on the outstanding balance for that service. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.7(b)2) The Company must renegotiate the deferred payment agreement should the customer document a significant change in financial situation. The Company must also issue a new discontinuance notice each time it intends to shut off service, including defaults on the terms of the agreement. In the case of a residential customer who receives more than one utility service from the same utility and has subsequently entered into an agreement for each separate service, default on one such payment agreement shall constitute grounds for discontinuance of only that service. N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.7(f)

DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE

18. A water and wastewater utility shall not discontinue service because of nonpayment of bills in cases where a charge is in dispute provided the undisputed charges are paid (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.2(e)5) and a request is made to the Board within five (5) days for investigation of the disputed charge. The Company must advise the customer of their right to appeal to the Board of Public Utilities. N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.6(b)

19. Basis for Discontinuance of Service. The Company shall have the right to suspend or curtail or discontinue service for any of the following reasons (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(a)):

- a. For the purpose of making permanent or temporary repairs, changes or improvement in any part of its system;
- b. For compliance in good faith with any governmental order or directive, regardless of whether such order or directive subsequently may be held to be invalid;
- c. For non-payment of a valid bill due for service furnished at a present or previous location, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.2. However, non-payment for business service shall not be a reason for discontinuance of residence service except in cases of diversion of service pursuant to N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.8;

d. For nonpayment of a deposit, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14: 3-3A.9;

e. For any of the following acts or omissions on the part of the customer:

- (i) Refusal of reasonable access to the customer's premises in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.6;
- (ii) tampering with any facility of the Company;
- (iii) fraudulent representation in relation to the use of service;
- (iv) customer moving from the premises, unless the customer requests that service be continued;
- (v) providing service to others without approval of the Company;
- (vi) refusal to contract for service where such contract is required;
- (vii) connecting and operating equipment in such manner as to produce disturbing effects on the service of the Company or other customers;
- (viii) failure of the customer to comply with reasonable Standard Terms and Conditions;
- (ix) where the condition of the customer's installation presents a hazard to life or property; or
- (x) failure of a customer to repair any faulty facility of the customer.

Deleted: FINANCIAL AID (Continued)¶

The Company established a second residential customer assistance program for customers with a total annual income at or below 300% of the Federal Poverty guidelines called the H2O Help to Others Low Income Payment Program ("LIPP") or Discount Program. Through this program, the Company will provide a discount off of the customer's monthly bill. The actual H2O LIPP discount is set equal to the customer's applicable water Fixed Service Charge (not greater than a 1" meter charge). If the customer is also provided wastewater service by the Company, the customer is also eligible for a wastewater service discount equal to the water service discount amount, in an amount not to exceed the wastewater service charge. Residential customers who need help and qualify for the H2O LIPP should call the NJ Shares toll free number at 1-877-652-9426 or any subsequent program administrator whose contact information may be found on the Company's web site. Upon acceptance into the LIPP, residential customers who receive Social Security benefits or Medicare coverage can qualify for a credit equal to the current DSIC surcharge rate per Rate Schedule K on their monthly bill (not greater than the current 1" DSIC surcharge). Customers must recertify their eligibility for the program through NJ Shares annually.¶

¶ Upon acceptance into the LIPP, qualifying residential customers will be offered the opportunity to enroll in the Company's Conservation Program. Conservation Program offerings are free of charge to residential customers enrolled in the LIPP and can include instructions on performing a home water audit, a retrofit kit for use with certain appliances and fixtures, and a leak repair of fixtures for which the customer is responsible (value up to \$300)....

Moved (insertion) [4]

Moved (insertion) [5]

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020¶

¶ By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 12
Superseding Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 12

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: Fourth

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE (Continued)

- 20. Public Utilities shall not discontinue residential service except between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday unless there is a safety-related emergency. There shall be no involuntary discontinuance of service on Fridays, Saturdays or Sundays or on the day before a New Jersey State holiday or on a New Jersey State holiday, absent such emergency. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(c)
- 21. Should a customer be more than 20 days delinquent in paying the monthly bill for service, or violate one or more of the standard terms and conditions of service contained in this or subsequent tariffs of the Company, the Company may discontinue service by giving 10 days' written notice of disconnection to the customer and, for wastewater service, a copy of such notice to the local Board of Health.
- 22. Notices herein of discontinuance of service shall be sent by first class mail, apart from the bill and as a separate mailing. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3(b)2) Customers are advised that it is illegal to operate a dwelling without adequately functioning wastewater facilities, and that the Company is required to notify local health authorities of wastewater service termination.
- 23. Medical Emergency. Notwithstanding the following, at the end of the period of medical emergency the customer remains liable to the Company for the charges for services rendered during the period of non-discontinuance, subject to the provisions of N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.6. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.2(i)). Residential service may not be discontinued for non-payment for a period of 90 days if a medical emergency exists within the premises and which would be aggravated by the shut off so long as the customer provides the Company with reasonable proof of his or her inability to pay and a licensed medical professional's written statement as to the existence of the emergency, its nature and probable duration, and how the termination of service will aggravate the medical emergency. This period of non-discontinuance may be extended as set forth in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.2(j). The Company reserves the right to contest the validity of any claimed medical emergency before the BPU.
- 24. Utilities shall annually notify all residential customers that, upon request, notice of discontinuance of service will be sent to a designated third party as well as to the customer of record. This provision shall not apply if Company makes a good faith effort to contact all residential customers by telephone prior to discontinuance and file with the Board a statement setting forth such procedure. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4
- 25. The Company shall make every reasonable attempt to determine when a landlord-tenant relationship is known to exist, and if the tenants are not the customers of record but are end-users, as these terms are defined at N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.1. Discontinuance of service is prohibited unless the utility has given a 15-day written notice to the owner of the premises or to the customer of record to whom the last preceding bill was rendered. The utility shall use its best efforts to determine the names and addresses of each tenant, in order to provide such notice, for example, through mailings to landlords requesting a list of tenants. The utility shall use its best efforts to provide copies of the discontinuance notice to all tenants. In addition, the utility shall provide the tenant(s) with a twenty (20) day written notice, which shall be hand delivered, mailed, or posted in a conspicuous area of the premises and in the common areas of multiple family premises. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.6(a) If a utility uses posting as the method of notice, each utility shall use its best efforts to also place a copy of the notice on each tenant's car windshield or under the door of each tenant's dwelling. In the case of tenants of single and two-family dwellings, each tenant shall also be provided with a 15-day individual notice. Each utility shall offer the tenant(s) continued service to be billed to the tenant(s) unless the utility demonstrates that such billing is not feasible. Tenants seeking continuation of service under this provision shall supply the utility with a copy of a valid lease or rental agreement. The continuation of service to a tenant shall not be conditioned upon payment by the tenant of any outstanding bills due upon the account of any other person. The utility shall not be held to the requirements of this provision if the existence of a landlord-tenant relationship could not be reasonably ascertained. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.6(b)

Moved up [4]: <#>For nonpayment of a deposit, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14: 3-3A.9;

- Moved up [5]: <#>For any of the following acts or omissions on the part of the customer: ¶
- (i) Refusal of reasonable access to the customer's premises in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.6;
 - (ii) tampering with any facility of the Company; ¶
 - (iii) fraudulent representation in relation to the use of service; ¶
 - (iv) customer moving from the premises, unless the customer requests that service be continued; ¶
 - (v) providing service to others without approval of the Company; ¶
 - (vi) refusal to contract for service where such contract is required; ¶
 - (vii) connecting and operating equipment in such manner as to produce disturbing effects on the service of the Company or other customers; ¶
 - (viii) failure of the customer to comply with reasonable Standard Terms and Conditions; ¶
 - (ix) where the condition of the customer's installation presents a hazard to life or property; or ¶
 - (x) failure of a customer to repair any faulty facility of the customer. ¶

Deleted: 15

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 13
Superseding Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 13

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: Fourth

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE (Continued)

- 26. The utility or its designated contractor shall have the right of reasonable access to customer's premises, and to all property furnished by the utility, at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspection of customer's premises incident to the rendering of service, reading meters, or inspecting, testing, repairing or conducting markouts, either itself or through its contractor designated to perform said markouts, in compliance with the Underground Facility Protection Act, N.J.S.A. 48:2-73 et seq., and N.J.A.C. 14:2, also known as the "One-Call rules," of its facilities used in connection with supplying the service, for the discontinuance of service for nonpayment after proper notice, or for the removal of its property, (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.6(a)) Service can be discontinued for refusal of reasonable access to customer's premises for necessary purposes in connection with rendering of service, including meter and remote reading device installation, reading or testing, or the maintenance or removal of the utility's property. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(a)5.i) Reconnection fees as shown on Rate Schedule P-2 and Rate Schedule 9-A will be charged upon restoration of service.
- 27. It is the responsibility of a customer who wishes to voluntarily discontinue his or her service to notify the Company and request a final reading. A customer wishing to discontinue service shall give notice to the utility. Within 48 hours of said notice, the utility shall discontinue service or obtain a meter reading for the purpose of calculating a final bill. Where such notice is not received by the utility, the customer shall be liable for service until the final reading of the meter is taken. Notice to discontinue service will not relieve a customer from any minimum or guaranteed payment under any contract or rate in accordance with the Standard Terms and Conditions on Sheet Nos. 23 and 24, nor will it mitigate any of the obligations on the Company's General Metered Rate Schedules. In accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(b).
- 28. If a customer wishes to have his service physically disconnected, then notice as set forth within this tariff is required prior to such disconnection provided, however, that nothing herein shall operate to prevent the Company from discontinuing service at any time under conditions and for reasons set forth in this tariff; and provided further, that nothing herein shall be construed to prevent the making of contracts for extension of service or other special conditions.
- 29. When a customer is physically disconnected (water service) or the service lateral is plugged (wastewater service) for non-payment of a bill for, or violation of the standard terms and conditions of service, the customer will be required to pay, in addition to any outstanding or delinquent amount, the Company's actual cost of reconnection or \$350.00, whichever is more, before service is restored. See Rate Schedules P-2 and 9-A. Wastewater service customers who remove plugs from their service laterals, and water customers who operate the curb stop to restore service after disconnection are tampering with Company property and may be charged with theft of service.

Deleted: <#>The Company shall make every reasonable attempt to determine when a landlord-tenant relationship is known to exist, and if the tenants are not the customers of record but are end-users, as these terms are defined at N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.1. Discontinuance of service is prohibited unless the utility has given a 15-day written notice to the owner of the premises or to the customer of record to whom the last preceding bill was rendered. The utility shall use its best efforts to determine the names and addresses of each tenant, in order to provide such notice, for example, through mailings to landlords requesting a list of tenants. The utility shall use its best efforts to provide copies of the discontinuance notice to all tenants. In addition, the utility shall provide the tenant(s) with a fifteen (15) day written notice, which shall be hand delivered, mailed, or posted in a conspicuous area of the premises and in the common areas of multiple family premises. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.6(a) If a utility uses posting as the method of notice, each utility shall use its best efforts to also place a copy of the notice on each tenant's car windshield or under the door of each tenant's dwelling. In the case of tenants of single and two-family dwellings, each tenant shall also be provided with a 15-day individual notice. Each utility shall offer the tenant(s) continued service to be billed to the tenant(s) unless the utility demonstrates that such billing is not feasible. Tenants seeking continuation of service under this provision shall supply the utility with a copy of a valid lease or rental agreement. The continuation of service to a tenant shall not be conditioned upon payment by the tenant of any outstanding bills due upon the account of any other person. The utility shall not be held to the requirements of this provision if the existence of a landlord-tenant relationship could not be reasonably ascertained. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.6.(b)¶

Deleted: <#>or

Deleted: <#>

Deleted: written

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022¶

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022¶

¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 14
Superseding Third Revised Sheet: No. 14

Deleted: Third

Deleted: Second

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

RESTORATION OF SERVICE

30. Service shall be restored within 12 hours upon proper application when: 1. all of the conditions under which service was discontinued are corrected; and 2. payment of all charges due is received at the utility or at an authorized payment center and the utility has received notice of the payment. Any other provision notwithstanding, the utility shall restore service within 12 hours if there is a complaint involving such matters before the Board and Board staff so directs the utility. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.9. See Rate Schedules P-2 and 9-A for restoration of service charges. Restoration of water service performed outside of normal business hours as shown on Rate Schedule P-2 will be subject to the Emergency Reconnection service charge of \$100 as shown on that Rate Schedule P-2.

THEFT OF SERVICE

31. Whenever the Company reconnects service to a customer under the following conditions, a charge will be rendered for providing this service as described in Rate Schedule P-2 or 9-A.

a. Whenever the Company has determined that a customer's service has been reconnected without the permission of the Company after service has been terminated for non-payment of bills or violation of the Company's tariff, the Company will terminate the customer's service for a second time and give written notice to the customer that if service is reconnected again without the permission of the Company, it will be necessary for the Company to excavate and physically disconnect service. A reconnection charge will be applied as set forth in Rate Schedules P-2 or 9-A of the present tariff.

b. Customers in default in the payment of a bill may be required to furnish a deposit or increase their existing deposit in an amount sufficient to secure the payment of future bills. Service shall not be discontinued for failure to make such deposit except after proper notice to the customer. If a customer who has made a deposit fails to pay a bill, the Company may apply such deposit insofar as is necessary to liquidate the bill and may require that the deposit be restored to its original amount. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.4(f)

32. The Company has certain rights under the law to obtain the cessation of acts constituting theft of service that have been committed in violation of N.J.S.A. 2C:20-8, as well as complete restitution for any losses or damages it has suffered as a result of said acts. Customers who tamper with Company property to illegally restore service after being shut off for nonpayment or any other reason under N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A et seq. may be subject to fees pursuant to Rate Schedule P-2 and Rate Schedule 9-A and responsible for payment of any resulting damages.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

33. Should a nonresidential customer fail to make payment as specified under Terms of Payment in the Rate Schedules the Company may, on the twenty-sixth (26th) day, assess a late charge at the rate of 0.35%. Service to state, county or municipal government entities will not be subject to a late payment charge. The charge will be applied to all amounts billed and unpaid finance charges applied to previous bills. The amount of the late payment charge to be applied to the Customer's account shall be calculated by multiplying the previous unpaid bill amount by the late payment charge rate. When payment is received by the Company from a Customer who has an unpaid balance which includes charges for late payment, the Customer's payment shall be applied first to the oldest aged unpaid bill amount and its applicable late charge, and then to the next oldest aged bill amount and late charge. Notwithstanding the foregoing, shut off provisions in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A will still apply to past due accounts.

Deleted: equivalent to 1/12th the prime rate as published in the Money Rates column in *The Wall Street Journal*

Deleted: the previous

Deleted: amount that is not paid at the time the next monthly bill is prepared

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 15
Superseding Third Revised Sheet: No. 15

Deleted: Third

Deleted: Second

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

METER

34. The utility must provide for one free water meter test during any twelve (12) month period if the customer so requests it. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5) A meter of a customer who has a complaint filed with the Board reflecting on the accuracy of the meter shall not be removed from service by the utility during the pendency of said complaint or during the following thirty (30) days unless otherwise authorized or directed by the Board. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.8(c)) When a billing dispute is known to exist, the water utility shall, prior to removing the meter, advise the customer that they may have the meter tested by the utility or may have the Board witness a testing of the meter by the utility, and that in any event the customer may have the test witnessed by a third party. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5(c)) A meter test arising from a billing dispute may be appropriate in instances which include, but not limited to, unexplained increased consumption, crossed meters, consumption while an account is vacant or any other instance where the meter's accuracy might be an issue in a bill dispute. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5 (d)) The customer can apply to the Board for a Board inspector to test the customer's meter. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5(e)) All costs such a test shall be borne by the Company. N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5(e)
35. If more than one meter test is made within a twelve (12) month period at the request of the customer and the meter is found to be accurate, the Company shall charge the customer for this meter test at the rate set forth in Rate Schedule P-2 for each additional test. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5). If the meter is found to register fast by more than one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the water passed through the meter at full capacity, the customer will not be charged for the test. N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.6
36. Whenever a water meter is found to be registering fast by more than one and one-half percent, an adjustment of charges shall be made in accordance with the regulations which can be found at N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.6.
37. If a meter is found to be registering less than 100 percent of the service provided, an adjustment of charges may be made in accordance with the regulations which can be found at N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.6. In cases where the meter registers zero usage for an entire billing period, and the customer has knowingly taken and received water service, the customer shall be deemed to have reasonable knowledge that the meter may be defective or malfunctioning.
38. A water utility must maintain records of customers' accounts for each billing period occurring within a six year period. Such records shall contain all information necessary to permit computation of the bill. N.J.A.C. 14:3-6.1(b)
39. When the meter is not located inside the customer's building but outside in a meter pit, the customer shall not make connections or alterations inside the meter pit. All such connections are to be made outside of the meter pit on the customer's side of the meter. The meter pit or vault shall be installed at a location acceptable to, and with the express approval of, the Company. The Company may install, at the Company's discretion, radio transmitters or other remote meter reading devices on its meters and appurtenances as needed to promote efficient and accurate meter reads. Failure to comply with this requirement will be considered tampering with facilities of the Company and the customer will be subject to charges for repairs to damaged equipment and/or discontinuance of service.
40. When the customer's usage is obtained through an electronic ("encoder") read, that usage shall be deemed actual. No adjustment shall be made for a meter that is found to be registering less than 100 percent except in the case of meter tampering, non-registering meters or in circumstances in which the customer should reasonably have known that the bill did not reflect the actual usage. N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.6(d)

Deleted: For

Deleted: , a fee, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 48:2-56,

Deleted: paid to the Board

Deleted: customer at the time the application is made

Deleted: f

Deleted: the utility shall not adjust the charges retrospectively or require the customer to repay the amount undercharged, except if: 1) the meter was tampered with; 2) the meter failed to register at all; or 3) the circumstances are such that the customer should reasonably have known that the bill did not reflect the actual usage

Deleted: If a meter is found to be registering less than 100 percent of the service provided because of theft or tampering, the utility may require immediate payment of the amount the customer was undercharged. In cases of a charge to a customer's account under 2 or 3 above, the customer shall be allowed to amortize the payments for a period of time equal to that period of time during which the customer was undercharged.

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 16
Superseding Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 16

Deleted: Fourth

Deleted: Third

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

METER (Continued)

41. A customer having two or more meters (excluding meters for Service to Privately Owned Fire Protection Systems under applicable Rate Schedules set forth in the tariff) on the same premises will be charged at the tariff rate for the quantity of water equivalent to the sum registered on all of the meters on the premises, subject to a facilities charge equal to the sum of the facilities charges for each meter. Private Fire Protection services will be charged separately, in agreement to the present tariff.

APPLICATIONS FOR SERVICE

42. Inquiry for a water or wastewater service connection may be made by mail, telephone (888.237.1333) or via the Company's website at www.amwater.com/njaw, and the Company will provide and submit to the applicant, if necessary, any and all forms required to be filled out and signed by the owner, or their agents, for the premises to be supplied, including the identity of the customer of record before any new connection shall be installed. The application will not be processed until all forms are completed in full and any required supporting documentation is provided. Customers must agree to the terms, conditions and rates for service as set forth in this and subsequent tariffs of the Company.

43. Such inquiry shall be made in a reasonable time before such service is required for new buildings and premises not previously supplied to allow for the installation of service lines and accessories by the Company, as hereinafter defined.

44. Separate inquiry shall be made for each premises and for each type of service requested to be furnished (i.e. consumptive, irrigation, construction, wastewater, etc.)

45. Water and wastewater connections shall be made by the Company subject to the prior existence of a main that is adequately sized in terms of capacity and pressure required for the specific water connection within a public right of way or company easement abutting the property or premises to be served except in the case where the location of the connection is proposed to be on the long side of a divided (raised or grass) state highway, in which case the customer will be required to enter into an extension agreement. The acceptance of such inquiries for service shall in no way obligate the Company to extend its distribution or collection mains to abut the property or premises except as hereinafter provided.

Deleted: water

46. The connection shall be in accordance with the applicable laws including but not limited to those of the BPU, DEP and all federal, state and local agencies.

47. In areas where the billing for wastewater service is based on the volume of water supplied to the premise by the Company, the Company will provide wastewater service only where the water used on the premises is measured by a water meter, subject to the limitations described within this paragraph, below. Where wastewater service is provided and water used on the premises is not supplied by the Company, then the water so used shall be measured by a meter furnished and installed by the Company at a location approved by the Company subject to the limitations described within this paragraph, below. Said wastewater charges shall be based on the volume of water supplied to the premises and measured by the water meter, unless the Company determines that, due to such issues as adverse ground conditions or due to other such unforeseen circumstances, or as required by other tariff provisions herein, it is impracticable or imprudent to install a water meter at the customer's premises in order to base wastewater service charges on the volume of water supplied to the premises as measured by said meter. In such situations, wastewater service billing will be based upon a flat rate, or a minimum usage as established by the applicable rate schedule within this tariff. In instances where a customer's water comes from a well, the Company will make a reasonable effort to install a meter on said well for purposes of determining wastewater service based on water consumption. However, if the utility determines that it is not feasible or practical to install a water meter on the well, the wastewater service billing shall be based upon a flat rate. In addition, should conditions in or around the well cause the meter to malfunction 2 times after installation, the Company has the right to remove the meter and to bill wastewater service on a flat rate, or a minimum usage as established by the applicable rate schedule within this tariff.

Deleted: However;

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in ¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 17
Superseding Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 17

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: Fourth

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

APPLICATIONS FOR SERVICE (CONTINUED)

- 48. The Company is not obligated to install more than one service and meter for each property or premises. Furthermore, in those instances where more than one service is requested the Company reserves the right to recapture all costs associated with the additional service(s).
- 49. Physical connections, such as cross-connections, interconnections, valves, pumps, or similar devices, either permanent or temporary, connecting the pipelines or facilities of the Company with other pipelines or facilities supplied with water from other sources will not be permitted without the express written consent of the Company. Water which has once been drawn from the Company's distribution network and used for any purpose or stored in tanks, is considered an unapproved source of supply.
- 50. The Company may require a cross-connection protective device on a customer's service, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:10-10, which will be purchased and installed at the expense of the customer. The cross-connection device shall be of the type approved by the Company. Inspection and testing at intervals, in accordance to N.J.A.C. 7:10-10, will be performed at the expense of the customer.
- 51. No device or connection is permitted between pipes carrying water from the mains of the Company and any portion of the plumbing system of the premises, which may under any condition permit back-flow or back-siphonage unless prior written permission has been granted by the Company.
- 52. Customers requesting a relocation of their service line will be required to pay a fee for the new service line and elimination of the existing service line.
- 53. Customers requesting a relocation of a Public Fire Hydrant will be required to pay a fee for its relocation.
- 54. Installation of electronic meter reading devices and other equipment designed to facilitate efficient and accurate meter reads, protect the integrity of the water system and/or quality of the water supplied by the Company may be required from any customer as a condition of service at the discretion of the Company.
- 5. Water sales to customers or entities using trucks or tanks that require additional attention can affect the Company's daily operations. A surcharge may be applied as listed in Rate Schedule P-1 of the present tariff.
- 56. A deposit may be required to guarantee payment for water service used for general construction and contracting purposes in an amount equal to the cost of the meter furnished. The deposit, less the cost of repairs to the meter, if any, will be refunded after surrender of the meter and payment of all charges for water supplied through it.

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered
in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 18
Superseding Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 18

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER

WATER SERVICE AND CONNECTING LINES

Company Side – Service Lines

1. The Company is responsible for the installation and maintenance of the service line.
2. Only employees of the Company or persons duly authorized to do so by the Company are permitted to operate or otherwise access the curb stop.
3. No service line shall be used to supply more than one customer unless authorized in advance by the Company in writing.
4. Where two or more customers are supplied through a single service line, the customers and/or premises owner must provide a suitable location(s) for a separate meter and separate shut-off valve that will be dedicated to each customer. The piping of the building must be so arranged that each customer can be supplied through an independent meter, shut off valve and piping system as may be required by the Company, at the Company's sole discretion. The meter pit or vault shall be installed at a location acceptable to, and with the express approval of, the Company. Failure to comply with this provision may result in termination of service to all accounts serviced by a single connecting line when service to one account must be discontinued for non-payment or failure to otherwise comply with the terms and conditions of service provided for herein. Notice provisions outlined on Sheet No. 12, paragraph 25, will apply.
5. No single building or single group of buildings in one common enclosure and under one ownership shall be supplied by more than one of the same type of service line (i.e., only one domestic line and one fire line).

Deleted: 13

Deleted: 27

Customer Side – Connecting Lines

6. Connecting lines are owned, installed, maintained and repaired by the premises owner at the premises owner's sole expense. The connecting line should be maintained in a condition conducive for the Company to perform the services required to serve its customers. If the connecting pipe is not so maintained, any failure of this pipe following the operation of the curb stop by the Company will be the responsibility of the premises owner. While performing its duties, if the Company notices that the connecting pipe or other premises owner-owned and maintained appurtenances appear to be in poor condition, the Company will attempt to notify the premises owner of such, including that the owner may desire to contact a licensed plumber for a professional evaluation and/or repair of the connecting pipe and appurtenances. Failure to repair a leaking connecting line is grounds for termination of water service. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(a)5.
7. Notwithstanding any other provision of this tariff, the Company may, at its own expense, and with the permission of the customer, replace a customer's connecting line that is i) made of lead pipe, ii) made of pipe lined with lead or iii) made of ferrous-based pipe material capable of retaining lead particles.
 - a. After the Company replaces the customer's connecting line, as described above, the customer will continue to own and be responsible for the connecting line, including maintenance of such line, in accordance with this tariff. The Company will offer the customer a warranty of the workmanship of its installation of the new connecting line for a period of 12 months following the date the customer signs the replacement agreement with the Company, with the Company's liability limited to the cost of repairing or replacing the customer's connecting line during that time. Except for the Company's limited liability under the 12-month workmanship warranty, the Company will not own nor assume any liability or responsibility with respect to the customer connecting line. The customer will agree to release and hold the Company harmless the Company, its contractors and subcontractors from and against all claims, liability and costs resulting from acts and omissions of Company and/or its approved contractors and/or subcontractors in installing the Customer service line pursuant to the replacement agreement.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Ninth Revised Sheet: No. 19
Superseding Eighth Revised Sheet: No. 19

Deleted: Eighth
Deleted: Seventh

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER

WATER SERVICE AND CONNECTING LINES

Customer Side – Connecting Lines (continued)

- 8. Connecting lines should be installed, without sharp bends, at right angles to the line of the street and shall be installed in the trench not less than 3-1/2 feet in depth to avoid damage and possible interruption to service caused by freezing. Other utility service lines shall not be installed in the same trench as the connecting line. No attachment shall be made to the connecting line between the curb stop and the meter except as otherwise authorized by the Company. Unauthorized attachments are grounds for termination of service. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(a)5.ii
- 9. Connecting lines should not be less than ¾ inch in inside diameter.
- 10. A customer must install a water pressure reducing valve where required by State of New Jersey plumbing code. If a water pressure reducing valve is required to be installed, the customer must install a pressure relief valve (collectively both are referred to as the "Valves"). In all cases, the costs of installation and maintenance of the Valves shall be borne by the customer. The customer shall own and be obligated to maintain the Valves. The Company will not be liable for damage due to meter failures if the customer is located in a high pressure zone and does not have a pressure reducing valve or has a pressure reducing valve downstream from a water meter that is installed inside the premises.
- 11. For meters less than or equal to 2 inches the pressure reducing valve will be located on the downstream side of the meter if the meter is located outside of the customer's premises and on the upstream side of the meter, if the meter is located inside of the customer's premises. For meters greater than 2 inches the pressure reducing valve will always be located on the upstream side of the meter.
- 12. The customer is required to make all changes in the connecting line due to changes in grade, relocation of mains, or other causes only if such changes are mandated by a municipality, county, state or other governmental body.

WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS

- 13. The Company will extend water service in accordance with all applicable laws of the State of New Jersey and Board of Public Utilities regulations and orders including N.J.A.C. 14:3-8.1 et seq. Mains will be extended to the mid-point of property frontage for residential properties, and along the entire frontage for commercial properties, regardless of where the service stub is installed.

Information on how to apply for a water main extension can be found on the Company's website at <https://www.amwater.com/njaw/About-Us/Providing-Solutions/Developers/>.

Deleted: <https://amwater.com/njaw/about-us/doing-business-with-us...>

Deleted: The application form can be downloaded, filled out and faxed in to the Company at the fax number provided on the application....

CUSTOMER'S PREMISES

- 14. The Company may refuse to provide a water connection, or furnish water through a connection pipe already installed, when a customer's piping system is not installed in accordance with the regulations of the Company and of the municipality in which the premises are located; or when the system on the premises is not at sufficient depth to prevent freezing.
- 15. Customers shall not permit access to the meter and other appliances of the Company except by authorized employees of the Company or properly authorized state or local inspectors.
- 16. In all cases the customers should not interfere with property of the Company, but should immediately notify the Company of any problem.
- 17. It is the sole responsibility of each customer to ensure that all piping and appurtenances within a customer's premises comply with state, municipal and other public health regulations in force with respect hereto including state and local plumbing codes. The piping and appurtenances shall be maintained in a condition conducive for the Company to perform the services required to serve the customer.

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶
Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶
¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 20
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 20

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER

CUSTOMER'S PREMISES (CONTINUED)

- 18. In any premises where devices are used which might produce a back pressure, such as steam boilers, carbonation equipment for soft drinks, booster pumps, etc., a check valve shall be installed by the customer at the meter. In the event such check valve is installed, pressure relief valves should be provided by the customer in the system.
- 19. In any premises where an auxiliary water source is available, the pipes carrying water from the mains of the Company are required to be marked in some distinctive manner for ready identification.

PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

- 20. Customers desiring a separate service connection for private fire service are required to make separate application for such service on forms prescribed by the Company. Private fire service installations are made in accordance with the provisions of this tariff regarding the installation of service and connecting pipes and other facilities.
- 21. Service lines designated for private fire protection are installed for customers requiring a private fire service to supply sprinkler heads, hydrants or hose connections. Any connection in which sprinkler heads and/or hose connections are supplied through a domestic service connection are considered "multi-use", are not considered as part of a private fire protection service, and shall not be deemed as part of this section. The utility shall have the right to suspend or curtail or discontinue service for any of the following acts or omissions on the part of the customer: tampering with any facility of the utility; fraudulent representation in relation to the use of service; and connecting and operating in such manner as to produce disturbing effects on the service of the utility or other customers. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(a)5)
- 22. The connection shall be in accordance with the applicable laws including but not limited to those of the BPU, DEP and all federal, state and local agencies.
- 23. Unless specified by the Company, dedicated private fire service lines and facilities, including hydrants, are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes and should be equipped with special meters.
- 24. No water should be used through private fire protection facilities except for permitted testing purposes or in case of fire. The use of private fire protection facilities for other reasons will result in termination of service following notification pursuant to N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(d).
- 25. Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for private fire protection.
- 26. A "multi-use" service is not a private fire service. Please refer to Schedule P-3 for the terms and conditions regarding multi-use service.
- 27. ~~Private fire protection shall not be offered or charged for service to private fire hydrants connected after a master meter on a general metered or multi-use service. A master meter on general metered or multi-use service with a hydrant will be billed pursuant to the applicable general metered rate schedule and considered as such.~~
- 28. The Company shall not be liable for any loss, injury, casualty or damage resulting from fire or water, or other agency, resulting from the supply or use of water service or the failure thereof, which may occur on account of the installation or presence of a private fire service connection, or from the presence or operation of the Company's structures, equipment, pipes, appliances or devices on the customer's premises, or connected therewith.
- 29. The Company may not discontinue water service unless it has provided written notice giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. However, in case of fraud, illegal use, or when it is clearly indicated that the customer is preparing to leave, immediate payment of accounts may be required, and service may be discontinued without further notice.

Deleted: written

Deleted: supplied

Deleted: multi-use

Deleted: a multi-use

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 21
Superseding Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 21

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: Fourth

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER

PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

30. Upon application or request by a duly authorized representative of a municipality in the Company's service area, the Company will install fire hydrants for purposes of public fire protection. The locations of such hydrants are selected by agreement between officials of the municipalities and representatives of the Company after careful consideration. Municipalities or the designated customer of record (e.g. local fire district) shall pay the Company a charge for service to public fire hydrants within that municipality as provided in the applicable rate schedule set forth in this tariff.

MULTI-USE SERVICE

31. Multi-use service is only available to franchise customers who submit a completed application to the Company. By applying for multi-use service, the customer agrees to be responsible for all claims, costs and liability for personal injury, death and/or property damage, resulting from the customer's individual water system, unless caused by the negligence of the water utility. A "multi-use" service is not a private fire service. Please refer to Schedule P-3 for the terms and conditions regarding multi-use service.

32. All multi-use service lines shall be metered and the meter shall be located in a meter pit or vault located outside of the Customer's structure. The meter pit or vault shall be installed at a location acceptable to the express approval of the Water Company.

33. If a customer requests a change in meter size associated with a multi-service meter, the customer must re-apply for service and re-certify each item addressed below and in Rate Schedule P-3.

34. By applying for multi-use service, and operating the same, the customer agrees:

- a. The customer has complied with all of the terms and conditions set forth on Rate Schedule P-3;
- b. To include a backflow prevention device(s) as defined at N.J.A.C. 7:10-1.3, and as specified at N.J.A.C. 7:10-10.3;
- c. To be solely responsible for all costs and expenses relating to the installation, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the customer's water system, including the fire suppression system and backflow prevention device(s);
- d. To ensure that the customer's water system complies with the applicable requirements of the Uniform Construction Code in effect at the time of system installation, including any applicable building, plumbing and fire protection sub-codes;
- e. To ensure that the customer's water system is maintained in accordance with all applicable law so as to protect against backflow, back-siphonage and contamination of the potable water system; and
- f. To be subject to disconnection under the standard terms and conditions as apply to fire protection service or multi-use service in accordance with the Board's rules governing discontinuance of such service at N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(k) and N.J.A.C. 14:9-8.3.

EMERGENCY RESPONSES DUE TO EXTRAORDINARY DEMAND AND/OR DIMINISHED SUPPLY

34. Discontinuance of service for failure to comply with use restrictions. For compliance by the utility in good faith with any governmental order or directive, notwithstanding that such order or directive subsequently may be held to be invalid, the Company may, upon reasonable notice, suspend, curtail, or discontinue service pursuant to N.J.S.A. 48:2-23, N.J.S.A. 48:2-24, and N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A for any of the following acts or omissions on the part of the customer:

- a. Connecting or operating any piping or other facility, including but not limited to, lawn sprinkling on the customer's premises in such a manner as to adversely affect the safety or adequacy of service provided to other customers present or prospective; or

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in ¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Seventh Revised Sheet: No. 22
Superseding Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 22

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: Fifth

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER

EMERGENCY RESPONSES DUE TO EXTRAORDINARY DEMAND AND/OR DIMINISHED SUPPLY

Discontinuance of service for failure to comply with use restrictions (continued)

- b. Continuing waste of water by customers after notice from the utility through improper or imperfect pipes, fixtures, or failure to comply with restrictions; or
 - c. Failure to comply with the standard terms and conditions contained in this tariff or failure to comply with any state law, or the rules, regulations, orders or restrictions of any governmental authority having jurisdiction.
35. Water service shall be restored when the conditions under which such service was discontinued, as specified above, are corrected and upon the payment of the SPECIAL RESTORATION OF SERVICE CHARGE of \$100.00 for each restoration.
36. The Company will endeavor to provide a regular and uninterrupted supply of water through its facilities. However, if because of emergencies beyond the control of the Company, including governmental mandate, service is interrupted, irregular, defective or fails, the Company will not be liable for damages or inconvenience resulting there from. In the event of an extraordinary demand and/or diminished supply, or when operational issues make such actions desirable, including, among other things, protecting the integrity of the system and permit conditions, the Company may restrict the use of water whenever the public welfare may require it and, if necessary, may shut off the water in its mains and pipes. In such cases the Company shall advise its customers by placing a prominent advertisement detailing the conditions and restrictions in a newspaper of general circulation in the utility service area. The notice will state the purpose and probable duration of the restriction or discontinuance. Failure to provide regular and uninterrupted service due to breakdowns is covered under other sections of this tariff.
37. The Company may restrict water service during certain periods, where the Company advises the Board of Public Utilities, in order to protect the public water supply, or otherwise to comply with any regulations, orders or decrees issued by the Governor of New Jersey or the Department of Environmental Protection, or any successor agency or department pursuant to the Water Supply Management Act, or other statutes or regulations of the state or federal government. Such interruptions or restrictions shall be reported to the Department of Environmental Protection, if necessary, and the Board by each utility by the speediest means of communications available, promptly followed by a detailed written report, pursuant to the provisions of N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.7 et seq. Thereafter the utility shall provide weekly reports for the duration of the emergency.
38. When the supply of water to individual customers is to be discontinued or curtailed for the customer's failure to comply with emergency water restrictions imposed because of extraordinary demand or diminished supply, the Company shall advise such customer(s) by placing a door tag on the front door of the home of the individual(s) in violation of the restrictions, at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to discontinuance or curtailment, or by giving another form of notice acceptable to the Board. The Company will advise business and commercial customers, in writing, by mailing a notice to the customers' billing address. In the case of door tags, they shall be sequentially numbered and include the date, time and nature of the violation and the procedure for restoration of service. All such notices shall be accounted for by the utility.

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered
in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Seventh Revised Sheet: No. 23
Superseding Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 23

Deleted: Sixth
Deleted: Fifth

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WASTEWATER

A. WASTEWATER MAIN EXTENSIONS

Deleted: SEWER

Applicability

Applicable to all wastewater service customers served by the Company.

1. The Company will extend wastewater service in accordance with all applicable laws, regulations and orders of the State of New Jersey and Board of Public Utilities including N.J.A.C. 14:3-8, et seq.
2. Mains will be extended to the mid-point of property frontage for residential properties, and along the entire frontage for commercial properties, regardless of where the service stub is installed.
3. Documentation on how standard wastewater main extensions are handled can be found on the Company's website at <https://www.amwater.com/njaw/About-Us/Providing-Solutions/Developers/>
4. Please also refer to Sheet No. 13, paragraph 28 of the Standard Terms and Conditions.

Deleted: sewer

Deleted: <https://amwater.com/njaw/about-us/doing-business-with-us...>

Deleted: item number

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 30

Deleted: in the Application for Service Connection section

Deleted: on

Deleted: Sheet No. 13

Deleted: page 76

Deleted: in

Deleted: (

Deleted:)

Deleted: and in

Deleted: and

Deleted: 12

Deleted: 1

Deleted: Sewer

Deleted: Usage

Deleted: sewer use

Deleted: Monthly

Deleted: Sewer Usage

Deleted: s

Deleted: The Monthly Sewer Usage

Deleted: Sewer Usage

Deleted: Sewer Usage

Deleted: sewer use

Deleted: Sewer Usage

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶

¶ By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in ¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

B. CALCULATION OF WINTER QUARTER CONSUMPTION

Applicability

Applicable to wastewater service customers served by the Company in the Statewide Wastewater Collection Areas of Lakewood, Tewksbury Township, Service Area 1D, the former Applied Wastewater Management Service Area ("Applied"), Plumsted Township, Elk Township, the Boroughs of Haddonfield and Mount Ephraim, the former Environmental Disposal Corp. Service Area ("EDC"), and the Borough of Manville, Rate Schedules 2-A, 6-A, 10-A, 11-A, 13-A, 21-A, and 23-A, respectively.

Volumetric Wastewater Charge

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. The monthly Volumetric Wastewater Charge shall be determined based upon winter quarter consumption, but in no case less than 2,000 gallons per month. Winter quarter consumption shall be determined based on an initial water meter reading taken in December of one year with the concluding meter reading taken approximately 90 days thereafter in March of the following year.

The monthly Volumetric Wastewater Charge shall be determined as follows:

Meters read in January, February and March

The Volumetric Wastewater Charge for each respective month shall be determined by multiplying the applicable monthly usage times applicable volumetric charges.

Meters read in April through December

The Volumetric Wastewater Charge for each month April through December shall be based on the Monthly Usage Constant, equal to one-third of the winter quarter consumption, but in no case less than 2,000 gallons per month, multiplied by applicable volumetric charges.

In the case of new customers, the volume of wastewater discharged shall be determined as follows:

1. New Customers in an Existing Dwelling or Premises for Which Actual Full Period Winter Quarter Usage History is Available.

Determination of the monthly use constant shall be based on the last known full period winter quarter usage at that property, but in no case less than 2,000 gallons per month. This monthly use constant will be used for billing purposes until the customer receives the January bill in the following year. The January and subsequent bills will be calculated in accordance with the method described in this Tariff for determining the monthly Volumetric Wastewater Charge.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Eleventh Revised Sheet: No. 24
Superseding Tenth Revised Sheet: No. 24

Deleted: Tenth
Deleted: Ninth

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WASTEWATER

B. CALCULATION OF WINTER QUARTER CONSUMPTION (CONTINUED)

2. Existing or New Customers in an Existing or New Dwelling or Premises for Which No Full Period Winter Quarter History has Been Established.

a. For service established outside of the winter quarter:

Determination of the monthly use constant shall be based on 12,000 gallons per quarter (a monthly usage constant of 4,000 gallons) until the customer receives the January bill in the following year. The January and subsequent bills will be calculated in accordance with the method described in this Tariff for determining the monthly Volumetric Wastewater Charge.

Deleted: Sewer Usage

b. For service established during the winter quarter:

Determination of the monthly use constant will be based upon the actual usage during the winter quarter with a minimum of 12,000 gallons (a monthly usage constant of 4,000 gallons). This monthly use constant will be used for billing purposes until the customer receives the January bill in the following year. The January and subsequent bills will be calculated in accordance with the method described in this Tariff for determining the monthly Volumetric Wastewater Charge.

Deleted: Sewer Usage

Deleted: ¶

C. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO WASTEWATER SERVICE – COLLECTION SYSTEMS

Applicability

Applicable to wastewater service customers served by the Company in Bound Brook, Bridgewater, Haddonfield, the Egg Harbor City Utility, Howell Township, Lakewood Township, Mount Ephraim, Ocean City, Elk Township, and the Boroughs of Somerville, and Manville.

Deleted: .

1. Separate and independent wastewater service lines shall be installed for each customer. All building drains and building wastewater appurtenances shall be the responsibility of the customer and shall be installed and maintained by the customer.

Deleted: sewers

2. No customer shall discharge or cause to be discharged into the Company's system any storm water, surface water, ground water, roof runoff, sub-surface drainage, foundation or basement sump drainage, uncontaminated cooling water or unpolluted industrial process water.

3. No customer shall discharge or cause to be discharged into the Company's system the following described substances, materials, waters, or wastes without the prior written approval of the Company. Such wastes can harm either the wastewater system or treatment process and/or equipment, have an adverse effect upon the receiving stream for the treated wastewater, or can otherwise endanger life, limb or property or create a nuisance. In forming the opinions as to whether or not to permit the discharge, the Company will consider the effect upon receiving wastewater system, as well as the conditions placed upon the Company by its service agreements with the local treatment Utilities Authorities that treat the wastewater the Company collects.

Deleted: sewerage

Deleted: sewers

4. The customer shall be responsible for maintaining and repairing the "building drain" and "building sewer."

5. The customer shall be responsible for installing and maintaining a backwater valve in buildings that have fixtures below grade level. In the event of a gray water backup, the Company shall not be liable for any damage or inconvenience resulting from the absence/malfunctioning of this appurtenance.

6. The Company reserves the right upon completion of its findings to:

Deleted: Effective: October 3, 2023¶

Deleted: Issued: October 6, 2023¶

¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Orders of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket Nos. WE23030197 and WE23040233 dated September 27, 2023.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 25
Superseding Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 25

Deleted: Fourth
Deleted: Third

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WASTEWATER

C. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO WASTEWATER SERVICE – COLLECTION SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)

7. In the event pretreatment facilities or flow equalization is required, the design and construction of such facilities shall be subject to approval of the Company and operation of said facilities shall be subject to inspection by the Company. Monitoring and/or sampling equipment shall be installed and operated by the customer as deemed necessary by the Company to ascertain proper operation of the pretreatment facilities.

8. The wastes requiring written approval are:

- a. Any liquid or vapor having a temperature in excess of 150°F.
- b. Any waters or wastewaters containing phenols.
- c. Any waters or wastes having a pH in excess of 9.5.
- d. Any water containing unusual concentrations of inert suspended solids, such as, but not limited to, diatomaceous earth, lime and lime slurries or of dissolved solids such as but not limited to sodium chloride or sodium sulfate.
- e. Any water or wastewater containing excessive discoloration.
- f. Wastewater having unusual "B.O.D." concentration, suspended solids concentration or high chlorine demand in such quantities as to constitute a significant load on the treatment plant.
- g. Unusual volume of flow or concentrations of wastes constituting "slugs" as hereinbefore defined.
- h. Water or wastes containing substances not amenable to biological treatment processes as defined by a wastewater treatment plant owner or operator.

Deleted:

Deleted:

Deleted:

9. No customers shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following described waters or wastes to the wastewater system:

- a. Any gasoline, benzene, naphtha, paints, lacquers, fuel oil or other flammable or explosive liquid, solid or gas which by reason of its nature or quality may cause fire or explosion or which, in any way, may be injurious to personnel or the wastewater system.
- b. Any water or wastes containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, or gases in sufficient quantity either singly or by interaction with other wastes to injure or interfere with any wastewater treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans or animals, create a public nuisance, or create any hazard in the receiving waters of the wastewater treatment plant.
- c. Any waters or wastes having a pH of lower than 5.5 or having any other corrosive property capable of causing damage or hazard to the wastewater system and/or personnel of the Company.
- d. Plating mill wastewater or other industrial process water containing spent pickle liquor, concentrated plating solutions, chromium, zinc and similar toxic heavy metals, cyanides and cleaning solvents.
- e. Any radioactive material.
- f. Any water or wastes containing fats, wax, grease, tar, oils or any other substances, whether emulsified or not which may solidify or become viscous at temperatures between 32° and 150°F or which would impair, impede, affect, interfere with, or endanger personnel or the wastewater system.
- g. Any garbage not properly shredded.
- h. Any solids of such size or characteristic capable of causing obstruction to the flow in sewers, such as, but not limited to, ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, metal shavings, glass, rags, feathers, tar, plastic, wood, paunch manure, hair fleshings, offal, entrails, etc.

Deleted: sewers

Deleted: sewer

Deleted: sewerage

Deleted:

Deleted: sewer

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶
Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶
¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President ¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102 ¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in ¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Thirteenth Revised Sheet: No. 26
Superseding Twelfth Revised Sheet: No. 26

Deleted: Twelfth

Deleted: Eleventh

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WASTEWATER

C. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO WASTEWATER SERVICE – COLLECTION SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)

10. Any customer discharging industrial wastes shall provide and maintain a control manhole suitable to facilitate observation, sampling and measurement of the wastes. The Company (and the local treatment Utilities Authorities that treat the wastewater the Company collects) shall have the right to inspect, sample, measure and analyze wastewater as they deem necessary.

Deleted:

D. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO WASTEWATER SERVICE – TREATMENT SYSTEMS

Applicability

Applicable to wastewater service to customers served by the Company in Service Area 1D, the former Applied Wastewater Management Service Area ("Applied"), Plumsted Township, Tewksbury Township, Long Hill Township, the former EDC Service Area and Salem City, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff.

Deleted: and

1. The within rates are applicable to normal wastewater, as defined by the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection, namely 250 ppm.5 – day B.O.D. The utility company reserves the right to require pretreatment of the wastewater prior to discharge into sewers in the event that the wastewater contains harmful substances such as gasoline, PCBs, oil, explosive liquids, phenols, acids, alkalines, lint, excessive detergents or any other substance as defined by NJDEP. Each customer shall be fully responsible for proper use of the wastewater system and shall therefore not discharge any chemicals or contaminants which are toxic and which may cause damage to the wastewater system's electrical, mechanical, biological, or physical process components or may harm either the groundwater, soil or atmosphere, as listed on Schedule A on Sheet No. 27, as it may be periodically updated. Any cost involved in repairs of damage to the Company's facilities, environmental damages and penalties or fines levied against the utility caused by the introduction by the customer of unacceptable or harmful substances shall be the responsibility of the customer.

Deleted: sewerage

In accordance with the National Standard Plumbing Code adopted by the Uniform Construction Code of the State of New Jersey, no storm drainage system of a building shall be connected directly or indirectly to the sanitary drainage system. The company adopts the above provision and prohibits the drainage of storm water into its collecting system. Each customer shall be responsible to prevent any surface water or groundwater from entering into the wastewater system and therefore shall not connect or allow to be connected to the system any sump pumps, basement or crawl space drains, roof gutters, downspouts, or floor drains, and shall properly maintain all pipes and clean-outs to assure a watertight connection. Improperly discharging effluent from a non-approved drainage or collection system shall be considered the basis for immediate termination of service pursuant to N.J.A.C.14:3-3A.1 et seq. The Company will provide notice of the termination of service to the extent reasonably possible.

- 3. Garbage disposal units are not permitted unless specifically authorized by the Company.
- 4. Each customer shall prevent damage to all system components located on the property being served, including components located within easement area; maintain the grass growth and prevent the growth of trees, shrubs, and ornamentals within the easement areas; maintain and repair pipes connecting the home to the septic tank to prevent clogging and leaking; and to notify the Company of any damage which may occur to system components.
- 5. Because the wastewater system can only handle a limited quantity of water, each residential customer may discharge no more than the maximum average of 350 gallons per day, or 32,000 gallons per quarter, of wastewater. In order to verify compliance with this provision, each customer must allow a representative of the Company to inspect all plumbing components upon request and to obtain all water meter readings as may be required.
- 6. Customers may not trespass on Company property or enter any Company facility without a representative of the Company being present.

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Tenth Revised Sheet: No. 27
Superseding Ninth Revised Sheet: No. 27

Deleted: Ninth

Deleted: Eighth

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WASTEWATER

C. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO WASTEWATER SERVICE – TREATMENT SYSTEMS
(CONTINUED)

7. A customer may permanently terminate service by giving notice to the Company, which shall terminate service within five (5) business days of receipt of each notification. Temporary discontinuance of wastewater service is not permitted and each customer shall pay the applicable fixed service charge and minimum monthly charge (i.e., "RATES"), per month or per quarter, as applicable, unless and until such time as a replacement customer commences service at the premise. Customers are advised that it is illegal to operate a dwelling without adequate functioning wastewater facilities, and that the Company is required to notify local health authorities of wastewater service termination.

SCHEDULE A

I. MATERIALS NOT TO BE DISPOSED THROUGH THE WASTEWATER SYSTEM

- Grease
- Wipes (baby, cleaning, flushable, wet)
- Gloves (latex, rubber)
- Food scraps
- Plastics
- Gasoline or motor fuels
- Paint and paint thinners
- Used motor oils
- Petroleum solvents
- Pesticides (solids or liquids)
- Herbicides (solids or liquids)
- Engine coolants (antifreeze)
- Acids
- Water softener backwash
- Photographic development solutions

Deleted: SEWER

II. MAXIMUM PERMITTED DISCHARGE CONCENTRATIONS

- "Biochemical Oxygen Demand" – 250mg/L
- Chemical oxygen demand – 351 mg/L
- Total organic carbon – 99 mg/L
- Total solids – 1,608 mg/L
- Volatile solids – 295 mg/L
- Total suspended solids – 75 mg/L
- Volatile suspended solids – 62 mg/L
- Calcium – 59 mg/L
- Magnesium – 33 mg/L
- Sodium – 218 mg/L
- Chlorine – 218 mg/L
- Oil and grease – 22 mg/L
- Total dissolved solids – 872 mg/L
- Total Kjeldahl nitrogen – 60.7 mg – N/L
- Ammonia nitrogen – 53.3 mg – NL
- Phosphorus – 6.3 mg – P/L
- Turbidity – 45 NTU
- Ph – 5-9
- Alkaline – 479 mg CaCo3/L
- Hardness – 327 mg CaCo3/L
- Volatile organics by GC/MS – Non-detectable
- Pesticides – Non-detectable
- Herbicides – Non-detectable

Deleted: "--

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

~~Eleventh~~ Revised Sheet: No. 28
Superseding ~~Tenth~~ Revised Sheet: No. 28

Deleted: Tenth

Deleted: Ninth

AREA SERVED – WATER SERVICE

This tariff shall apply to the service area of the Company, which includes all or part of the following municipalities and all other places as may be permitted by law. This tariff shall also apply to other systems under contract wherever served. Hereafter, and unless otherwise specified herein,

- **Service Area 1** refers to the water service area of New Jersey-American Water Company as it existed prior to January 1, 2007;
- **Service Area 2** refers to the water service area of the former Elizabethtown Water Company;
- **Service Area 3** refers to the water service area of the former Mount Holly Water Company;
- **Service Area 1A** refers to the water service area of the former South Jersey Water Supply Company;
- **Service Area 1B** refers to the water service area of the former Pennsgrove Water Supply Company;
- **Service Area 1C** refers to the service area of the former Shorelands Water Company;
- **Service Area 1D** refers to the service area of the former Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"); and
- **Service Area 1E** refers to the service area including all customers formerly served by the Borough of Haddonfield or located within the geographic boundaries of Haddonfield;
- **Service Area 1F** refers to the service area of the former Roxbury Water Company; and
- **Service Area 1G** refers to the service area of the former Egg Harbor City Water & Sewer Utility ("Egg Harbor City Utility").
- **Service Area 1H** refers to the former service area of Salem City ("Salem");

Deleted: the City of

Unless otherwise indicated, all municipalities and customers referenced below having no numeric designation next to their names were served by New Jersey-American Water Company as it existed prior to January 1, 2007. All municipalities and customers with a (2) designation next to their names were served by the former Elizabethtown Water Company prior to January 1, 2007; with a (3) designation next to their names were previously served by the former Mount Holly Water Company prior to January 1, 2007; with a (1A) designation next to their names were previously served by the former South Jersey Water Supply Company prior to November 1, 2007; with a (1B) designation next to their names were previously served by the former Pennsgrove Water Supply Company prior to November 1, 2007; with a (1C) next to their names were previously served by the former Shorelands Water Company prior to April 3, 2017; with a (1D) designation next to their names were previously served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. prior to September 1, 2010; and with a (1F) designation were previously served by Roxbury Water Company prior to January 1, 2019; with a (1G) designation were previously served by the Egg Harbor City Water & Sewer Utility prior to June 1, 2023, and with a (1H) designation, were previously served by Salem City prior to [date of closing]. Where a municipality was served in part by two of the former water companies listed above, service provided by New Jersey-American Water Company as it existed prior to January 1, 2007 shall be identified by a (1) designation. All municipalities for which the Company provides water service only to a portion of the municipality are reflected by a double asterisk (**) designation.

Deleted: and

Deleted: the City of

Atlantic County

Franchise Customers

Cities		Townships
Absecon	Northfield	Egg Harbor
Egg Harbor	Pleasantville	Galloway (1)(1G)
Linwood	Somers Point	

Burlington County

Franchise Customers

Boroughs	Townships	
Palmyra	Burlington **	Maple Shade**
Riverton	Cinnaminson	Mt. Laurel *
	Delanco	Mt. Holly (3)
<u>Cities</u>	Delran	Pemberton **
Beverly	Eastampton (3)	Riverside
	Edgewater Park	Southampton (3)
	Hainesport (3)	Springfield (3) **
	Lumberton (3)	Westampton (3)
	Mansfield (3)	

Resale Customers

Evesham Township MUA
Township of Moorestown
*Medford Township
Mt. Laurel Township MUA
Township of Maple Shade

Deleted: ¶

¶

Deleted: Effective: June 1, 2023 ¶

¶

Deleted: issued: June 12, 2023 ¶
¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President ¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102 ¶
Filed pursuant to Orders of the Board of Public Utilities entered in ¶
Docket Nos. WE21091147, WE21091148 & WE21091146 dated August 17, 2022.

(Continued)

Issued:

Effective:

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Ninth Revised Sheet: No. 29
Superseding Eighth Revised Sheet: No. 29

AREA SERVED - WATER SERVICE
(Continued)

Camden County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>		<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Cities</u>	
Audubon	Camden (11th and 12th Wards) **	Township of Haddon
Barrington		Aqua New Jersey
Bellmawr **		Borough of Berlin
Clementon **		Merchantville-Pennsauken
Gibbsboro	<u>Townships</u>	Water Commission
Haddon Heights	Cherry Hill **	Winslow Township MUA
Haddonfield (1E)	Gloucester **	Pine Hill Borough MUA
Hi-Nella	Haddon **	Audubon Park
Laurel Springs	Pennsauken **	Ancora Psychiatric Hospital
Lawnside	Voorhees	
Lindenwold		
Magnolia		
Mt. Ephraim		
Oaklyn		
Runnemede		
Somerdale		
Stratford		

Cape May County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>		<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Cities</u>		
Ocean City		Middle Township Water District #2
<u>Townships</u>		
Idle **		
Upper		

Essex County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>		<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>	
North Caldwell **	Cedar Grove **	Township of Livingston
	Irvington	City of Orange
	Livingston **	Township of South Orange Village
	Maplewood	Borough of Essex Fells
	Millburn	
	South Orange Village **	
	West Orange	

Gloucester County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>		<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Townships</u>		
East Greenwich **		Deptford Township MUA
Elk Township		East Greenwich Township
Harrison (1A)		Mantua Township MUA
Logan (1) & (1B)		Township of West Deptford
Mantua**		City of Woodbury
Woolwich**		Borough of Pitman
		Borough of Woodbury Heights
		Borough of Glassboro
		Borough of National Park
		Aqua New Jersey
		Borough of Clayton

(Continued)

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Tenth Revised Sheet: No. 30
Superseding Ninth Revised Sheet: No. 30

Deleted: Ninth
Deleted: Eighth

AREA SERVED - WATER SERVICE
(Continued)

Hunterdon County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>	
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>
Frenchtown	Raritan (2) Readington (2)** Tewksbury (2) (1D)**

Mercer County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>	
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>
Princeton (2)	Hopewell (2) ** Lawrence (2)** West Windsor (2)

Resale Customers
Borough of Hopewell (2)

Middlesex County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>	
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>
Dunellen (2) Jamesburg Middlesex (2)** South Plainfield (2) **	Cranbury (2) Edison (2)** Monroe ** Piscataway (2) ** Plainsboro (2) ** South Brunswick (2) **

Resale Customers
Township of Edison
Township of South Brunswick (2)
Middlesex Water Co. (2)

Monmouth County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>	
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Cities</u>
Allenhurst Bradley Beach Deal Eatontown Fair Haven Highlands Interlaken Little Silver Monmouth Beach Neptune City Oceanport Red Bank ** Rumson Sea Bright Shrewsbury Tinton Falls Union Beach West Long Branch	Asbury Park Long Branch <u>Townships</u> Aberdeen ** Colts Neck ** Freehold ** Hazlet (1C) Holmdel **(1C) Howell ** Middletown Neptune (incl. Ocean Grove) Ocean Shrewsbury ** <u>Villages</u> Loch Arbour

Resale Customers
Borough of Avon
Borough of Belmar
Lake Como Borough
Borough of Matawan
Borough of Red Bank
Borough of Keansburg
Farmingdale Borough
Aberdeen Township (1C)
Keyport Borough (1C)

(Continued)

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶
Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶
¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President ¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102 ¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered
in ¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Tenth Revised Sheet: No. 31
Superseding Ninth Revised Sheet: No. 31

Deleted: Ninth

Deleted: Eighth

AREA SERVED - WATER SERVICE
(Continued)

Morris County

Franchise Customers

Boroughs
Mendham
Florham Park **
Chester

Townships
Chatham
Chester (2) (1D)**
Harding **
Long Hill (formerly Passaic)
Mendham **
Mt. Olive (1) (1D)**
Roxbury (1F)

Resale Customers

Township of East Hanover

Ocean County

Franchise Customers

Boroughs
Bay Head
Lavallette **
Mantoloking

Townships
Berkeley**
Brick**
Toms River (formerly Dover)**
Lakewood
Plumsted (3)

Resale Customers

Borough of Point Pleasant

Passaic County

Franchise Customers

Boroughs
West Paterson **

Townships
Little Falls

Deleted: ¶

Salem County

Franchise Customers

Boroughs
Pennsgrove (1B)

Townships
Carneys Point (1B)
Mannington (1H)
Oldmans (1B)
Quinton (1H) **

Cities
Salem (1H)

Deleted: ¶
¶

Somerset County

Franchise Customers

Boroughs
Bernardsville
Bound Brook (2)
Far Hills
Manville (2)
Millstone (2)
North Plainfield (2)
Peapack and Gladstone (2)
Raritan (2)
Rocky Hill
Somerville (2)
South Bound Brook (2)
Watchung (1) & (2)

Townships
Bedminster (1) & (2)
Bernards
Branchburg (2)
Bridgewater (2)
Franklin (2) **
Green Brook (2)
Hillsborough (2)
Montgomery (2)
Warren (1) & (2)

Resale Customers

Franklin Township (2)
Rocky Hill Borough

(Continued)

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President ¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102 ¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered
in ¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 32
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 32

AREA SERVED - WATER SERVICE
(Continued)

Union County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>		<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>	
Fanwood (2)	Berkeley Heights	City of Elizabeth (2)
Garwood (2)	Clark (2)	Winfield Mutual Housing Corporation (2)
Kenilworth (2)	Cranford (2)	City of Rahway
Mountainside (2)	Hillside (1) & (2)	
New Providence	Scotch Plains (2)	
Roselle (2)	Springfield	
Roselle Park (2)	Union (1) & (2)	
<u>Cities</u>	<u>Towns</u>	
Summit	Westfield (2)	
Linden (2)		
Plainfield (2)		

Warren County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>	
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>
Washington	Franklin
	Mansfield
<u>Towns</u>	Oxford **
Belvidere	Washington
	White

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Seventh Revised Sheet: No. 33
Superseding Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 33

WATER SERVICE RATE SCHEDULES
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Class of Service	Rate Schedule	Sheet No.
General Metered – Area 1, Area 1A, Area 1B, Area 1C, Area 1D, Area 1E, Area 2, Area 3	A-1	34.1
General Metered – Sales for Resale	A-2	34.2
General Metered – Area 1F – Roxbury	A-16	34.6
General Metered – Area 1G – Egg Harbor City Utility	A-17	34.7
General Metered – Area 1G – Irrigation Service – Egg Harbor City Utility	A-18	34.8
General Metered – Area 1H – Salem (Residential, Light Commercial)	A-19	34.9
General Metered – Area 1H – Salem (Institutional, Heavy Commercial, Industrial)	A-20	34.10
Economic Development Program	Rider A	35
Sales for Resale – Commodity-Demand Service	C	36.1
Sales for Resale – Off-Peak Service	D	36.2
Sales for Resale – Area 1 – Manasquan	E	36.3
Sales for Resale – Area 1 – Manasquan Industrial – Optional Industrial Wholesale	Appendix A	36.3.2
Sales for Resale – Area 2 – Service to Others Systems	F	36.4
Sales for Resale – Peaking Services	G	36.5
Sales for Resale – Area 1C – Emergency or Backup Bulk Rate Sales	H	36.6
Sales for Resale – Area 1C – Manasquan	I	36.7
	J	36.8
Distribution System Improvement Charge	K	37
Private Fire – Area 1 – General	L-1	38.1
Private Fire – Area 1 – Logan and Woolwich Townships	L-2	38.2
Private Fire – Area 2 – General	L-3	38.3
Private Fire – Areas 1A and 3 – General	L-7	38.5
Private Fire – Area 1B – General	L-9	38.6
Private Fire – Area 1C – General	L-10	38.7
Private Fire – Area 1D – Applied	L-11	38.8
Private Fire – Area 1F – Roxbury	L-12	38.9
Private Fire – Area 1G – Egg Harbor City Utility	L-13	38.10
Private Fire – Area 1H – Salem	L-14	38.11
Public Fire – General	M-1	39.1
Public Fire – Area 1 – Logan and Woolwich Townships Ortley Beach, Pelican Island (Toms River Twp.) and Adelphia System	M-2	39.2
Public Fire – Area 2 – Bedminster and Franklin Townships	M-5	39.4
Public Fire – Area 3 – General	M-6	39.5
Public Fire – Area 1A – General	M-7	39.6
Public Fire – Area 1B – General	M-8	39.7
Public Fire – Area 1D – Applied	M-10	39.9
Public Fire – Area 1G – Egg Harbor City Utility	M-12	39.11
Purchased Water Adjustment Clause	O-1	40
Lead Service Line Replacement Charge	O-2	40.2
Universal Affordability – Water	O-3	40.3
Revenue Decoupling Mechanism	O-4	40.4
Miscellaneous Service	P-1	41
Miscellaneous Service	P-2	42
Multi-Use Service Line	P-3	43

Deleted: Sixth
Deleted: Fifth

Deleted:

Deleted: Area 2 – ¶
Borough of Manville

Deleted: & Area 3 – Mansfield Twp. (Homestead), ¶
Area 3 – Mansfield Columbus section and Southampton – General...

Deleted: Area 1, Area 1A, Area 2, Area 3 & ¶
Area 3 – Mansfield Twp. (Homestead) –

Deleted: General Metered – Area 1D – Irrigation Service – Applied A-14 34.4¶
General Metered – Area 1E – Borough of Haddonfield A-15 34.5¶

Deleted: General

Deleted: General

Deleted: Area 1 –

Deleted:

Deleted: Ortley Beach, Pelican

Deleted: Public Fire – Area 1 – Adelphia M-3 39.3¶

Deleted: General

Deleted: Public Fire – Area 1C – General M-9 39.8¶

Deleted: General

Deleted: Public Fire – Area 1F – General M-11 39.10¶

Deleted:

Deleted: General

Deleted: Effective: June 1, 2023 ¶

Deleted: Issued: June 12, 2023¶

¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Orders of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket Nos. WE21091147, WE21091148 & WE21091146 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 34.1
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 34.1

Deleted: Second
Deleted: First

**RATE SCHEDULE A-1
GENERAL METERED SERVICE**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general metered residential, commercial, industrial, and municipal service throughout Service Area 1, Service Area 1A, Service Area 1B, Service Area 1C, Service Area 1D, Service Area 1E, Service Area 2, and Service Area 3, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month	Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$23.80	\$20.55
3/4"	35.70	30.83
1"	59.60	51.47
1 1/2"	119.20	102.94
2"	190.90	164.87
3"	357.80	309.00
4"	596.00	514.72
6"	1,191.90	1,029.35
8"	1,907.00	1,646.93
10"	2,383.70	2,058.61
12"	2,979.40	2,573.07
16"	4,767.40	4,117.23

Deleted: Service Area 3 Mansfield Township (Homestead), the Columbus section of the Townships of Mansfield and Southampton, Burlington County in Service Area 3, and the Borough of Manville, Somerset County (formerly served by the Borough of Manville Water Utility) located in Service Area 2, and Service Area 1D, formerly served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"), noted on Sheet Nos. 28 – 32.

Deleted: 19.85

Deleted: 17.14

Deleted: 29.80

Deleted: 25.74

Deleted: 49.65

Deleted: 42.88

Deleted: 99.30

Deleted: 85.77

Deleted: 159.00

Deleted: 137.33

Deleted: 298.00

Deleted: 257.39

Deleted: 496.30

Deleted: 428.67

Deleted: 992.50

Deleted: 857.25

Deleted: 1,588.00

Deleted: 1,371.60

Deleted: 1,985.00

Deleted: 1,714.50

Deleted: 2,481.00

Deleted: 2,142.91

Deleted: 3,970.00

Deleted: 3,428.99

Deleted: 77752

Deleted: 7,7752

Deleted: 67156

Deleted: 6,7156

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

Deleted: 727

Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023

Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter.

	Gallons Per Month	Rate* Per 100 Gallons	Rate* Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.97710	\$9.7710
Exempt	All	\$0.84384	\$8.4384

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54-30A-50, et seq.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 34.2
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 34.2

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

RATE SCHEDULE A-2
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general metered sales for resale service throughout the entire territory served except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month	Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$23.80	\$20.55
3/4"	35.70	30.83
1"	59.60	51.47
1 1/2"	119.20	102.94
2"	190.90	164.87
3"	357.80	309.00
4"	596.00	514.72
6"	1,191.90	1,029.35
8"	1,907.00	1,646.93
10"	2,383.70	2,058.61
12"	2,979.40	2,573.07
16"	4,767.40	4,117.23

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter.

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.97710	\$9.7710
Exempt	All	\$0.84384	\$8.4384

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears, and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Deleted: \$19.85
Deleted: \$17.14
Deleted: 29.80
Deleted: 25.74
Deleted: 49.65
Deleted: 42.88
Deleted: 99.30
Deleted: 85.77
Deleted: 159.00
Deleted: 137.33
Deleted: 298.00
Deleted: 257.39
Deleted: 496.30
Deleted: 428.67
Deleted: 992.50
Deleted: 857.25
Deleted: 1,588.00
Deleted: 1,371.60
Deleted: 1,985.00
Deleted: 1,714.50
Deleted: 2,481.00
Deleted: 2,142.91
Deleted: 3,970.00
Deleted: 3,428.99
Deleted: \$0.77752
Deleted: \$7.7752
Deleted: \$0.67156
Deleted: \$6.7156
Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),
Deleted: fifteen (15)
Deleted: 727
Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023
Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022
By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

First Revised Sheet: No. 34.3
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 34.3

Reserved for future use.

Issued: August 29, 2022

Effective: September 1, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 34.4
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 34.4

Reserved for Future Use

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

Deleted: RATE SCHEDULE A-14
IRRIGATION SERVICE – WATER

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to use of water supplied through meters located in Service Area 1D, formerly served by Applied Wastewater Management, inc. ("Applied"), noted on Sheet Nos. 28 – 32 for the sole purpose of irrigation. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed service charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service. The charge for the general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

Deleted:

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears (or quarterly at the option of the Company), and are due fifteen (15) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863727 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023

Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 34.5
Superseding ~~Second Revised Sheet: No. 34.5~~

Reserved for Future Use

~~Deleted: Second~~

~~Deleted: First~~

~~Deleted: RATE SCHEDULE A-15~~
~~GENERAL METERED SERVICE WATER~~

~~¶~~
~~APPLICABILITY~~
Applicable for general metered residential, commercial, industrial, municipal and sales for resale service to customers served by the Company in Service Area 1E, Haddonfield, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.¶

~~¶~~
~~CHARACTER OF SERVICE~~
Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."¶

~~¶~~
~~FIXED SERVICE CHARGE~~
All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.¶ ... [3]

~~Deleted: TERMS OF PAYMENT~~
Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears (or quarterly at the option of the Company), and are due fifteen (15) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.¶

~~¶~~
~~SPECIAL PROVISION~~
*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863727 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

~~Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023~~

~~Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022~~

~~¶~~
~~By: Mark K. McDonough, President~~
~~1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102~~
~~Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in~~
~~in~~
~~Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.~~

Issued _____

Effective _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 34.6
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 34.6

Deleted: Second
Deleted: First

RATE SCHEDULE A-16
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general metered service throughout Service Area 1F, Roxbury, served by the Company, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$23.80
3/4"	35.70
1"	59.60
1 1/2"	119.20
2"	190.90
3"	357.80
4"	596.00
6"	1,191.90
8"	1,907.00
10"	2,383.70
12"	2,979.40
16"	4,767.40

Deleted: \$17.30
Deleted: 22.00
Deleted: 28.30
Deleted: 41.60
Deleted: 56.55
Deleted: 90.00
Deleted: 133.00
Deleted: 992.50

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter.

	Gallons Per Month	Rate* Per 100 Gallons	Rate* Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.49150	\$4.9150

Deleted: 39158
Deleted: 3.9158

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),
Deleted: fifteen (15)

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

Deleted: Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863727 863621 per 1,000 gallons.
Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023
Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022
By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

First Revised Sheet No. 34.7
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 34.7

**RATE SCHEDULE A-17
GENERAL METERED SERVICE**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general metered residential, commercial, industrial, and municipal service throughout Service Area 1G, Egg Harbor City Utility, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

Deleted: and

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$23.80
3/4"	35.70
1"	59.60
1 1/2"	119.20
2"	190.90
3"	357.80
4"	596.00
6"	1,191.90
8"	1,907.00
10"	2,383.70
12"	2,979.40
16"	4,767.40

- Deleted: \$34.17
- Deleted: 34.17
- Deleted: 44.19
- Deleted: 251.96
- Deleted: 307.43
- Deleted: 469.06
- Deleted: 515.02

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter.

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.97710	\$9.7710

- Deleted: 7000
- Deleted: 7.0000

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

- Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company)
- Deleted: fifteen (15)

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

- Deleted: Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.8634646 863621 per 1,000 gallons.
- Deleted: June 12, 2023
- Deleted: June 1, 2023
- Deleted: s
- Deleted: s
- Deleted: WE21091147, WE21091148 & WE21091146
- Deleted: August 17, 2022

Issued: _____

Effective: June 2, 2025

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

First Revised Sheet: No. 34.8
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 34.8

RATE SCHEDULE A-18
IRRIGATION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to use of water supplied through meters to residential, commercial, industrial, and municipal customer located in Service Area 1G, the Egg Harbor City Utility, for the sole purpose of irrigation. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed service charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service. The charge for the general metered irrigation service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge and the Water Charge.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$5.00
3/4"	7.50
1"	12.50
1 1/2"	25.00
2"	49.10
3"	75.20
4"	125.20
6"	250.40
8"	400.60
10"	500.80
12"	625.90
16"	1,001.60

Deleted: \$7.08

Deleted: 8.33

Deleted: 16.67

WATER CHARGE

Non-Exempt	Gallons Per Month	Rate* Per 100 Gallons	Rate* Per 1,000 Gallons
	All	\$0.97710	\$9.7710

Deleted: 7000

Deleted: 7.0000

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company)

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

Deleted: Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.8634646 863621 per 1,000 gallons.

Deleted: Effective: June 1, 2023 ¶

Deleted: Issued: June 12, 2023 ¶

¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Orders of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket Nos. WE21091147, WE21091148 & WE21091146 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 - Water

Original Sheet No. 34.9

RATE SCHEDULE A-19
GENERAL METERED AND FLAT SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general metered residential and light commercial service throughout Service Area 1H, Salem, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. Those who receive metered water service will receive volume-based water service billings; all others will receive flat rate billings for unmetered service. The Company may require a water meter to be installed by any customer utilizing a well or other private water system at the property owner's expense. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge and the Water Charge.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Size of Meter	Usage Allowance	Non-Exempt Per Month
5/8"	2,500	\$30.87
3/4"	5,000	61.41
1"	9,000	110.15
1 1/4"	20,000	244.99
1 1/2"	20,000	244.99
2"	35,000	429.22

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter above the usage allowance included in the Fixed Service Charge.

Gallons Per Month	Rate* Per 100 Gallons	Rate* Per 1,000 Gallons
Up to 1,000,000	\$0.84600	\$8.4600
Over 1,000,000	\$1.01300	\$10.1300

FLAT RATE WATER CHARGE

All unmetered water service customers in a Single Family unit as defined by the Salem City municipal code shall pay a Flat Rate Water Charge per unit as indicated below.

	RATE PER MONTH PER UNIT
Non-Exempt	\$35.42

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 34.10

RATE SCHEDULE A-20
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general metered institutional, heavy commercial, industrial and municipal service throughout Service Area 1H, Salem, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge and the Water Charge.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Size of Meter	Usage Allowance	Non-Exempt Per Month
5/8"	2,500	\$30.98
3/4"	5,000	62.85
1"	9,000	110.30
1 1/4"	20,000	245.25
1 1/2"	20,000	245.25
2"	35,000	429.26
3"	50,000	614.10
4"	100,000	1,226.25
6"	150,000	1,837.25
8"	300,000	3,571.63

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter above the usage allowance included in the Fixed Service Charge.

Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Up to 167,000	\$0.84600	\$8.4600
Over 167,000	\$1.01300	\$10.1300

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 35
Superseding Third Revised Sheet: No. 35

RIDER A
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

ELIGIBILITY:

- Minimum Annual Average Monthly Volume: 35,000 gallons per monthly billing cycle for new customers or a net increase of 35,000 gallons for existing customers meeting the additional provisions below.
- Employment of a minimum of ten (10) new full-time equivalent employees or a 50% increase in the number of new full-time jobs created, whichever is less, who will be employed in the new or expanded space.
- Customer Classes: General Metered Service Commercial and General Metered Service Industrial
 - Customer class exception: Residential uses in Commercial class (Apartments and condominiums) while considered commercial customers, are not eligible for this program.
- New customers who lease, purchase or construct new space for manufacturing, retail, research, office or warehousing.
- Existing customers who lease, purchase or construct new space for manufacturing, retail, research, office or warehousing and/or expand its existing operations.
- Any existing space that is reconverted for use for the purpose of qualifying under this program must have been vacant for a minimum of one (1) year.
- Application to New Jersey American Water shall be made on the Company's form, which must be completed and submitted by the customer and approved by New Jersey American Water, at the Company's discretion, before the customer may participate in the program.
- An annual certification is required. The certification shall be made on the form prescribed by New Jersey American Water by an officer of the customer stating that eligibility requirements have been met. Failure to submit the annual certification shall be grounds for termination of the customer's participation in the program.

BENEFITS:

- Credit on water consumption charge for up to four (4) years. Applicable fixed charges, PWAC charges, and any other applicable charges will continue to be applied at the standard rate, as set forth within this tariff.
- Amount of Credit on Water Consumption Charges:

Year	Amount of Credit
1 st Year	50%
2 nd Year	40%
3 rd Year	25%
4 th Year	10%
- Additional credit of five per cent (5%) on water consumption charges will be added to the above credits for all of the Company's customers who qualify for the Economic Development Program and who are also located in a "priority location" (Urban Enterprise Zone) as defined by the New Jersey Economic Development Authority.

NOTE:

The decision to accept the initial application, or continued participation, of a customer into the program resides with New Jersey American Water, at the Company's discretion. Also, the ability to include customers into the program is subject to available capacity as established through the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection permitting process.

Failure of the customer to maintain the minimum monthly usage during 2 or more months in a rolling 12-month period shall be grounds to remove the customer from the Economic Development Program.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 36.2
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.2

Deleted: Second
Deleted: First

**RATE SCHEDULE D
SALES FOR RESALE – OFF-PEAK SERVICE**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to Sales for Resale customers served by the Company who have executed an Off-Peak Water Sales Agreement ("Agreement") with an initial term of 10 years and a minimum Off-Peak Demand, as defined in the Agreement, of 50,000 gallons per day. The charge for service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Commodity Charge, the Demand Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the terms of the agreement.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All such customers shall pay a monthly fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company, in addition to the charge for the commodity of water used and the charge for the demand selected or experienced, whichever is greater. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established for a new customer or discontinued for a customer leaving the system permanently, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service. The fixed service charge shall not be prorated for any service provided during the months of May through September of each year.

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month	Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$23.80	\$20.55
3/4"	35.70	30.83
1"	59.60	51.47
1 1/2"	119.20	102.94
2"	190.90	164.87
3"	357.80	309.00
4"	596.00	514.72
6"	1,191.90	1,029.35
8"	1,907.00	1,646.93
10"	2,383.70	2,058.61
12"	2,979.40	2,573.07
16"	4,767.40	4,117.23

COMMODITY CHARGE

A charge will be rendered for all water used pursuant to the provisions of the Applicability section of this Rate Schedule D as follows:

Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons		Rate Per 1,000 Gallons	
	Non-Exempt	Exempt	Non-Exempt	Exempt
All	\$0.07540	\$0.06510	\$0.7540	\$0.6510

DEMAND CHARGE

A monthly charge will be rendered for all water available to the customer in accordance with the customer's Off-Peak Demand, as provided for in the Agreement. The Demand Rate is 91.96% of the Commodity-Demand Service Demand Rate set forth on Rate Schedule C.

Off-Peak Demand Charge Per Month			
Rate Per 100 Gallons of Off-Peak Demand		Rate Per 1,000 Gallons of Off-Peak Demand	
Non-Exempt	Exempt	Non-Exempt	Exempt
\$8.2343	\$7.1113	\$82.3430	\$71.1130

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sales for resale service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due 30 days after the invoice date. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.63621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

- Deleted: \$19.85
- Deleted: \$17.14
- Deleted: 29.80
- Deleted: 25.74
- Deleted: 49.65
- Deleted: 42.88
- Deleted: 99.30
- Deleted: 85.77
- Deleted: 159.00
- Deleted: 137.33
- Deleted: 298.00
- Deleted: 257.39
- Deleted: 496.30
- Deleted: 428.67
- Deleted: 992.50
- Deleted: 857.25
- Deleted: 1,588.00
- Deleted: 1,371.60
- Deleted: 1,985.00
- Deleted: 1,714.50
- Deleted: 2,481.00
- Deleted: 2,142.91
- Deleted: 3,970.00
- Deleted: 3,428.99
- Deleted: 05952
- Deleted: 05141
- Deleted: 5952
- Deleted: 5141
- Deleted: 6.5000
- Deleted: 5.61422
- Deleted: 65.0000
- Deleted: 56.1422
- Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),
- Deleted: 863727
- Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023
- Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022
- By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 36.3
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.3

Deleted: Second
Deleted: First

RATE SCHEDULE E
SALES FOR RESALE – MANASQUAN

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to Sales for Resale customers served by the Company in Service Area 1 who have executed Manasquan Reservoir Water Supply System Water Purchase Contracts and either: (1) whose purchases of water and rates of flow are in accordance with the provisions of Appendix A of this Rate Schedule; or, (2) who have executed a Water Resale and Treatment Agreement, in which case the terms of such Agreement, regarding purchase limitations, shall supersede the applicable Appendix A schedule herein.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the terms of the agreement.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All such customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company, in addition to the charge for the quantity of water used, if any, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$23.80
3/4"	35.70
1"	59.60
1 1/2"	119.20
2"	190.90
3"	357.80
4"	596.00
6"	1,191.90
8"	1,907.00
10"	2,383.70
12"	2,979.40
16"	4,767.40

WATER CHARGE

A charge will be made for all water used pursuant to the provisions of the Applicability section of this Rate Schedule E as follows:

	Rate Per 100 Gallons Non-Exempt	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons Non-Exempt
Uninterruptible	\$0.25080	\$2.5080
Interruptible	\$0.97710	\$9.7710

(Continued)

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

Deleted: Exempt
Deleted: Per Month
Deleted: \$19.85
Deleted: \$17.14
Deleted: 29.80
Deleted: 25.74
Deleted: 49.65
Deleted: 42.88
Deleted: 99.30
Deleted: 85.77
Deleted: 159.00
Deleted: 137.33
Deleted: 298.00
Deleted: 257.39
Deleted: 496.30
Deleted: 428.67
Deleted: 992.50
Deleted: 857.25
Deleted: 1,588.00
Deleted: 1,371.60
Deleted: 1,985.00
Deleted: 1,714.50
Deleted: 2,481.00
Deleted: 2,142.91
Deleted: 3,970.00
Deleted: 3,428.99
Deleted: Exempt
Deleted: Exempt
Deleted: 19390
Deleted: \$0.16748
Deleted: 1.9390
Deleted: \$1.6748
Deleted: 77752
Deleted: \$0.67156
Deleted: 7.7752
Deleted: \$6.7156
Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023
Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022
By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.3.1
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 36.3.1

Deleted: First
Deleted: Original

RATE SCHEDULE E
SALES FOR RESALE – MANASQUAN
(Continued)

DEFINITIONS:

UNINTERRUPTIBLE SERVICE

Uninterruptible service is water service to be provided to customers in quantities specified in Appendix A herein or Schedule A of the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement. The Annual Purchase Requirement is the minimum total volume of water per year which will be purchased take-or-pay by the customer from the Company. The Company agrees to provide to the customer the quantity specified in Appendix A herein or Schedule A of the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement unconditionally, except to the extent that: (1) the limitations of Appendix A herein or Schedule A of the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement apply to restrict the quantity of water which the customer may take on a maximum monthly, maximum daily and peak hourly basis; and, (2) in those cases where the contracts have been executed, the provisions of Section 5 of the Agreement, regarding force majeure events, may apply under certain circumstances. The rate may be found on Rate Schedule E of the present tariff.

INTERRUPTIBLE SERVICE

Interruptible service means a supply of water, to the extent that the Company in its reasonable judgment determines that it has excess water available above the Annual Purchase Period Limitations specified in Appendix A herein or Schedule A of the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement, which may be provided to the customer: (1) to meet extraordinary consumer demand requirements; (2) for occasional, temporary, or emergent needs; or (3) in such other circumstances as shall be agreed upon by the Company and the customer. The rate may be found on Rate Schedule E of the present tariff. In addition to the charge for the quantity of water used, if any, above the Annual Purchase Period Limitations specified in Appendix A herein or Schedule A of the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1 will apply.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sales for resale service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due 30 days after the invoice date. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company).

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

Deleted: Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863727621 per 1,000 gallons.

(Continued)

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022
Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022
By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 36.3.2

RATE SCHEDULE E
SALES FOR RESALE – MANASQUAN

APPENDIX A

Annual Purchase Period: July 1, 1990 through June 30, 1991 and each subsequent 12-month period thereafter.

Uninterruptible Service shall not exceed the limits established for each month, day and hour in each Annual Purchase Period as set forth in the following tables:

Borough of Avon-By-The-Sea

Annual Purchase Requirement: 46.0 Million Gallons Per Year (MGY)

Uninterruptible Service
Annual Purchase Period Limitations

Month	Maximum Monthly Purchase Million Gallons (MG)	Maximum Daily Purchase Million Gallons (MG)	Peak Hourly Purchase Gallons Per Minute (GPM)
January	7	0.30	250
February	7	0.30	250
March	7	0.30	250
April	7	0.30	250
May	3	0.11	90
June	2	0.11	90
July	1	0.05	90
August	2	0.11	90
September	4	0.16	90
October	7	0.30	250
November	7	0.30	250
December	7	0.30	250

Borough of Belmar

Annual Purchase Requirement: 105.0 MGY

Uninterruptible Service
Annual Purchase Period Limitations

Month	Maximum Monthly Purchase (MG)	Maximum Daily Purchase (MG)	Peak Hourly Purchase (GPM)
January	17	1.00	1000
February	17	1.00	1000
March	17	1.00	1000
April	17	1.00	1000
May	0	0.00	0
June	0	0.00	0
July	0	0.00	0
August	0	0.00	0
September	0	0.00	0
October	17	1.00	1000
November	17	1.00	1000
December	17	1.00	1000

(Continued)

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President

One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 36.3.3

RATE SCHEDULE E
SALES FOR RESALE – MANASQUAN

APPENDIX A
(Continued)

Borough of Matawan

Annual Purchase Requirement: 121.18 MGY

Uninterruptible Service
Annual Purchase Period Limitations

<u>Month</u>	<u>Maximum Monthly Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Maximum Daily Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Peak Hourly Purchase (GPM)</u>
January	24	1.20	900
February	21	1.05	900
March	23	1.15	900
April	21	1.05	900
May	0	0.00	0
June	0	0.00	0
July	0	0.00	0
August	0	0.00	0
September	0	0.00	0
October	23	1.15	900
November	23	1.15	900
December	23	1.15	900

Borough of Red Bank

Annual Purchase Requirement: 200.0 MGY

Uninterruptible Service
Annual Purchase Period Limitations

<u>Month</u>	<u>Maximum Monthly Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Maximum Daily Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Peak Hourly Purchase (GPM)</u>
January	51	2.55	2100
February	51	2.55	2100
March	51	2.55	2100
April	34	1.46	1200
May	6	0.30	300
June	6	0.30	300
July	6	0.30	300
August	6	0.30	300
September	6	0.30	300
October	34	1.46	1200
November	62	2.66	2150
December	62	2.66	2150

With mutual consent, the parties may agree to reduce delivery at one point while increasing delivery at the other point.

(Continued)

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 36.3.4

RATE SCHEDULE E
SALES FOR RESALE – MANASQUAN

APPENDIX A
(Continued)

Lake Como Borough
Annual Purchase Requirement: 36.5 MGY

Uninterruptible Service
Annual Purchase Period Limitations

<u>Month</u>	<u>Sales for resale Manasquan Maximum Monthly Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Manasquan Maximum Daily Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Manasquan Peak Hourly Purchase (GPM)</u>
January	4.0	0.37	300
February	4.0	0.37	300
March	4.0	0.37	300
April	4.0	0.37	300
May	3.65	0.12	400
June	2.45	0.12	500
July	1.23	0.06	450
August	2.45	0.12	400
September	4.8	0.18	350
October	5.0	0.37	350
November	4.0	0.37	300
December	4.0	0.37	300

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 - Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 36.4
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.4

Deleted: Second
Deleted: First

RATE SCHEDULE F
OPTIONAL INDUSTRIAL WHOLESALE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable only to customers that are served by the Company and that (a) use 9,350,000 or more gallons of water per month, each and every month (b) have loading factors (the ratio of maximum demand (peak load) to the average demand (load) during a given period) not in excess of 1.2 times their monthly consumption on an average daily basis. The charge for service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

Deleted: (c) have signed an annual commitment as to their average monthly consumption on an average daily basis

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All such customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge based on the size of the meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or discontinued, all applicable fixed charged shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service as follows:

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt		Exempt	
	Per Month		Per Month	
5/8"	\$23.80	\$20.55	\$20.55	\$20.55
3/4"	35.70	30.83	30.83	30.83
1"	59.60	51.47	51.47	51.47
1 1/2"	119.20	102.94	102.94	102.94
2"	190.90	164.87	164.87	164.87
3"	357.80	309.00	309.00	309.00
4"	596.00	514.72	514.72	514.72
6"	1,191.90	1,029.35	1,029.35	1,029.35
8"	1,907.00	1,646.93	1,646.93	1,646.93
10"	2,383.70	2,058.61	2,058.61	2,058.61
12"	2,979.40	2,573.07	2,573.07	2,573.07
16"	4,767.40	4,117.23	4,117.23	4,117.23

Deleted: \$19.85
Deleted: \$17.14
Deleted: 29.80
Deleted: 25.74
Deleted: 49.65
Deleted: 42.88
Deleted: 99.30
Deleted: 85.77
Deleted: 159.00
Deleted: 137.33
Deleted: 298.00
Deleted: 257.39
Deleted: 496.30
Deleted: 428.67
Deleted: 992.50
Deleted: 857.25
Deleted: 1,588.00
Deleted: 1,371.60
Deleted: 1,985.00
Deleted: 1,714.50
Deleted: 2,481.00
Deleted: 2,142.91
Deleted: 3,970.00
Deleted: 3,428.99
Deleted: 40117
Deleted: 34650
Deleted: 4,0117
Deleted: 3,4650
Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),
Deleted: fifteen (15)
Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023
Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022
By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

WATER CHARGE

Rate Per 100 Gallons		Rate Per 1,000 Gallons	
Non-Exempt	Exempt	Non-Exempt	Exempt
\$0.51200	\$0.44220	\$5.1200	\$4.4220

MINIMUM CONSUMPTION CHARGE

A minimum consumption charge is applicable. The minimum consumption charge is equal to 9,350,000 gallons of water per month multiplied by the appropriate Water Charge herein and the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sale of water under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

(Continued)

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.4.1
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 36.4.1

Deleted: First
Deleted: Original

RATE SCHEDULE F
OPTIONAL INDUSTRIAL WHOLESALE
(Continued)

TERMS

Bills are rendered monthly in arrears.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the sole option of the Company)

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

If monthly consumption on an average daily basis exceeds a load factor of 1.2 times the last (rolling) twelve months average monthly consumption on an average daily basis for three consecutive months, between April 1 and September 30, a customer will be removed from this Rate Schedule and will be billed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1. A customer eliminated from this Rate Schedule will continue to be billed under General Metered Service for a minimum of twelve months and will again be eligible for this schedule if, after twelve months, its monthly consumption on an average daily basis has not exceeded, for three consecutive months, 1.2 times the last twelve-month average monthly consumption.

Deleted: A customer can be exempt from the above requirements if they intend to increase their average daily consumption, on a monthly basis [entitled the committed average daily amount (CADA)] for the next twelve months provided they sign an additional written commitment at least one month prior to the period in which they exceed 1.2 times their consumption on an average daily basis.¶

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

¶ If a customer's actual amount used is less than the CADA, the customer will be billed at the CADA level. This minimum billing procedure will remain in effect for a period of twelve months from the date the new commitment becomes effective.

Deleted: 863727

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022¶

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022¶
¶ By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 36.5
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.5

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

RATE SCHEDULE G
SALES FOR RESALE – SERVICE TO OTHER SYSTEMS

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to Sales for Resale customers receiving service from the Company as of December 8, 2008. Applicable to customers served by the Company throughout Service Area 2 that have a contract demand of 500,000 or more gallons per day pursuant to a contract entered into with the Company at the Company's sole option. The charge for metered Service to Other Systems Under Contract shall consist of the total of Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by written agreement.

WATER CHARGE

Consumption	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons	
	Non-Exempt	Exempt
All water usage	\$3.9380	\$3.4010
All water usage	Rate Per 100 Gallons	
	Non-Exempt	Exempt
All water usage	\$0.39380	\$0.34010

Deleted: 3.1251

Deleted: 2.6992

Deleted: 31251

Deleted: 26992

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sale of water under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: 15

TERMS

Subject to written agreement.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Deleted: 727

Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023

Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No.36.6
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No.36.6

Deleted: Second
Deleted: First

RATE SCHEDULE H
SALES FOR RESALE – PEAKING SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to Sales for Resale customers for sales occurring during the Company's peak service period May 1 through September 30 who: (1) do not have a written agreement with the Company for the provision of water service; or (2) whose written agreement with the Company does not contain an annual purchase commitment. This Rate Schedule does not apply to customers taking service under Rate Schedule D (Off-Peak) during non-drought conditions unless otherwise provided for in that customer's agreement. During drought emergencies declared by the Governor, this Rate Schedule will be applied to all surplus water transfers ordered by the Commissioner of the Department of Environmental Protection to mitigate drought. The charge for this service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Interruption.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All such customers shall pay a fixed service charge, during any month when water is consumed pursuant to this Rate Schedule H, based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate.

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month	Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$23.80	\$20.55
3/4"	35.70	30.83
1"	59.60	51.47
1 1/2"	119.20	102.94
2"	190.90	164.87
3"	357.80	309.00
4"	596.00	514.72
6"	1,191.90	1,029.35
8"	1,907.00	1,646.93
10"	2,383.70	2,058.61
12"	2,979.40	2,573.07
16"	4,767.40	4,117.23

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter.

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$1,144.50	\$11,445.00
Exempt	All	\$988.41	\$9,884.10

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sales for resale service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due 30 days after the invoice date. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Deleted: \$19.85
Deleted: \$17.14
Deleted: 29.80
Deleted: 25.74
Deleted: 49.65
Deleted: 42.88
Deleted: 99.30
Deleted: 85.77
Deleted: 159.00
Deleted: 137.33
Deleted: 298.00
Deleted: 257.39
Deleted: 496.30
Deleted: 428.67
Deleted: 992.50
Deleted: 857.25
Deleted: 1,588.00
Deleted: 1,371.60
Deleted: 1,985.00
Deleted: 1,714.50
Deleted: 2,481.00
Deleted: 2,142.91
Deleted: 3,970.00
Deleted: 3,428.99
Deleted: 9,965.42
Deleted: 9,654.2
Deleted: 8,338.6
Deleted: 8,338.6
Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company).
Deleted: 863727
Deleted: ¶
Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023¶
Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022¶
¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 36.7
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.7

RATE SCHEDULE I
EMERGENCY OR BACKUP BULK RATE SALES

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to emergency/backup bulk sales to municipalities or other water purveyors in Service Area 1C, Shorelands, and only by yearly contract between the municipality or other water purveyor and the Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by "Standard Terms and Conditions".

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All such customers shall pay a fixed service charge, during any month when water is consumed pursuant to this Rate Schedule I, based on the size of each meter installed by the Company, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K. The Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, will apply to all water used in excess of any Annual Purchase Requirement. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate.

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$23.80
3/4"	35.70
1"	59.60
1 1/2"	119.20
2"	190.90
3"	357.80
4"	596.00
6"	1,191.90
8"	1,907.00
10"	2,383.70
12"	2,979.40
16"	4,767.40

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter.

Non-Exempt	Gallons	Rate	Rate
	Per Month	Per 100 Gallons	Per 1,000 Gallons
All		\$0.67810	\$6.7810

Exempt customers, as defined in N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50(c), are those public utility corporations which are subject to the payment of a tax based on gross receipts.

Non-Exempt customers are all other customers not entitled to the statutory exemptions provided pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50(c). Uninterruptible customers are as defined in the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sale of water under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

Deleted: Second
Deleted: First

Deleted: Exempt
Deleted: Per Month
Deleted: \$19.85
Deleted: \$17.14
Deleted: 29.80
Deleted: 25.74
Deleted: 49.65
Deleted: 42.88
Deleted: 99.30
Deleted: 85.77
Deleted: 159.00
Deleted: 137.33
Deleted: 298.00
Deleted: 257.39
Deleted: 496.30
Deleted: 428.67
Deleted: 992.50
Deleted: 857.25
Deleted: 1,588.00
Deleted: 1,371.60
Deleted: 1,985.00
Deleted: 1,714.50
Deleted: 2,481.00
Deleted: 2,142.91
Deleted: 3,970.00
Deleted: 3,428.99
Deleted: 57031
Deleted: 5.7031
Deleted: Exempt
Deleted: All
Deleted: \$0.49259
Deleted: \$4.9259
Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),
Deleted: 15
Deleted: Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863727 863621 per 1,000 gallons.
Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023
Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022
By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities e ... [7]

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 36.8
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.8

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

RATE SCHEDULE J
SALES FOR RESALE – MANASQUAN

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to bulk sales to municipalities or other water purveyors taking water from the New Jersey Water Supply Authority ("NJWSA") delivered through Service Area 1C, Shorelands, pursuant to Water Resale and Treatment contractual requirements where they pay the NJWSA directly for the raw water.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All sales for resale service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed, in addition to the charge for the quantity of water used, if any, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K. The Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, will apply to all water used in excess of any Annual Purchase Requirement. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate.

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$23.80
3/4"	35.70
1"	59.60
1 1/2"	119.20
2"	190.90
3"	357.80
4"	596.00
6"	1,191.90
8"	1,907.00
10"	2,383.70
12"	2,979.40
16"	4,767.40

Deleted: ¶
Non-Exempt

81

Deleted: Exempt

Deleted: Per Month

Deleted: \$19.85

Deleted: \$17.14

Deleted: 29.80

Deleted: 25.74

Deleted: 49.65

Deleted: 42.88

Deleted: 99.30

Deleted: 85.77

Deleted: 159.00

Deleted: 137.33

Deleted: 298.00

Deleted: 257.39

Deleted: 496.30

Deleted: 428.67

Deleted: 992.50

Deleted: 857.25

Deleted: 1,588.00

Deleted: 1,371.60

Deleted: Exempt¶

Rate Per 1,000 Gallons

Deleted: 2.7885

Deleted: \$2.4085

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of

\$0.01 multiplied by 0.863727621 per 1,000 gallons.

Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023¶

¶

By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered

in¶

Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

WATER CHARGES

A charge will be made for all water used pursuant to the take or pay contractual agreement as follows:

	Non-Exempt Rate Per 1,000 Gallons	Non-Exempt Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Uninterruptible	\$0.35790	\$3.5790

Exempt customers, as defined in N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50(c), are those public utility corporations which are subject to the payment of a tax based on gross receipts.

Non-Exempt customers are all other customers not entitled to the statutory exemptions provided pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50(c). Uninterruptible customers are as defined in the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sales for resale service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due 30 days after the invoice date. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$0.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in

Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Sixteenth Revised Sheet: No. 37
Superseding Fifteenth Revised Sheet: No. 37

Deleted: Fifteenth
Deleted: Fourteenth

**RATE SCHEDULE K
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT CHARGE**

Applicable to all general metered service and sales for resale customers throughout the entire territory served.

CHARACTER

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions".

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT CHARGE (DSIC)

In addition to all other charges for general metered service (GMS) and sales for resale customers throughout the entire territory served, the following charges will be assessed on a fixed, per meter basis for each monthly bill, commencing

Deleted: October 30, 2023

RATE

This charge is in addition to Rate Schedules A-1 through A-18 as noted on those rate schedules, and C, D, E, F, H, I and J.

Deleted: 16

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month	Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$0.00	\$0.00
3/4"	0.00	0.00
1"	0.00	0.00
1 1/2"	0.00	0.00
2"	0.00	0.00
3"	0.00	0.00
4"	0.00	0.00
6"	0.00	0.00
8"	0.00	0.00
10"	0.00	0.00
12"	0.00	0.00
16"	0.00	0.00

Deleted: 2.82

Deleted: \$2.44

Deleted: 4.23

Deleted: 3.66

Deleted: 7.06

Deleted: 6.10

Deleted: 14.12

Deleted: 12.19

Deleted: 22.58

Deleted: 19.51

Deleted: 42.35

Deleted: 36.58

Deleted: 70.58

Deleted: 60.96

Deleted: 141.16

Deleted: 121.92

Deleted: 225.85

Deleted: 195.07

Deleted: 282.31

Deleted: 243.84

Deleted: 352.89

Deleted: 304.80

Deleted: 564.62

Deleted: 487.68

Deleted: 727

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: Effective: October 30, 2023¶

Deleted: Issued: September 15, 2023¶

¶

By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶

Docket No. WR22030230 dated August 17, 2022.

LING

The DSIC is authorized pursuant to N.J.A.C. 14:9-10.1 et seq. and the procedures for filing, reviewing, approving and implementing the DSIC are set forth therein. The DSIC is based on the Company's Foundational Filing, which was reviewed and approved by the Board of Public Utilities on August 17, 2022. The approval process included public notice and four public hearings. The notice included proposed surcharge amounts, which were estimated based on projected construction schedules, costs and other factors. Pursuant to the approved Foundational Filing, the Company shall endeavor to make semi-annual DSIC filings at approximately six-month intervals. The DSIC is subject to a maximum amount and other limitations in N.J.A.C. 14:9-10.1 et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedules for applicable customer classes.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 38.1
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 38.1

Deleted: Second
Deleted: First

RATE SCHEDULE L-1
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively for private fire protection throughout Service Area 1, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the connection charge and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

Deleted: ¶

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

Deleted: ¶

RATES

1 – Service Charge

Size of Connection	Per Month
For each connection of 2" or less	\$30.16
For each 3" connection	67.85
For each 4" connection	120.60
For each 6" connection	271.37
For each 8" connection	482.45
For each 10" connection	754.00
For each 12" connection	1,085.76
For each 16" connection	1,930.24

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 24.60

Deleted: 55.34

Deleted: 98.37

Deleted: 221.34

Deleted: 393.51

Deleted: 615.00

Deleted: 885.60

Deleted: 1,574.40

Deleted: ¶

Hydrant Charge

	Per Month
For each Hydrant	\$66.00

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears, and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. The use of private fire protection facilities for other reasons will result in termination of service following notification pursuant to N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(d), and water charges will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-1.

Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023¶

Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022¶

¶ By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶

Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 38.2
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 38.2

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

RATE SCHEDULE L-2
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively for private fire protection where multiple customers are served from one private fire service connection in Service Area 1 in the Townships of Logan and Woolwich, Gloucester County in the area formerly served by Logan Wells Water Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

The charge for private fire protection shall consist of the total of the sprinkler head charge based on the number of sprinkler heads, the hydrant charge based on the number of hydrants, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

Per Month

For each Sprinkler Head

\$1.53

Deleted: 1.25

For each Hydrant

\$61.50

Deleted: 54.0

Deleted: 0

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered in monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-2.

Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023

Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in

Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 38.3
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 38.3

Deleted: Second
Deleted: First

**RATE SCHEDULE L-3
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively for private fire protection throughout Service Area 2, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the connection charge, the hydrant charge, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

1- Service Charge	
<u>Size of Connection</u>	<u>Per Month</u>
For each connection of 2" or less	\$55.18
For each 3" connection	108.40
For each 4" connection	174.79
For each 6" connection	324.23
For each 8" connection	553.64
For each 10" connection	722.97
For each 12" connection	1,041.04
For each 16" connection	2,045.52
For each 20" connection	3,727.87

Deleted: ¶
Deleted: 45.00
Deleted: 88.40
Deleted: 142.54
Deleted: 264.41
Deleted: 451.50
Deleted: 589.59
Deleted: 848.98
Deleted: 1,668.15
Deleted: ,040.13
Deleted: 62.84

2- Hydrant Charge	
For each Hydrant	<u>Per Month</u> \$65.50

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),
Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due only (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date or customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

Deleted: ¶

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Deleted: ¶

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

Deleted: ¶

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Deleted: ¶

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

Deleted: ¶

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Deleted: ¶

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-3.

Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023¶

Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022¶

By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

First Revised Sheet: No. 38.4
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 38.4

Reserved for future use.

Issued: August 29, 2022

Effective: September 1, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 38.5
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 38.5

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

RATE SCHEDULE L-7
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively for private fire protection throughout Service Area 3 and Service Area 1A, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the connection charge, the hydrant charge, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

1- Service Charge

Size of Connection	Per Month
For each connection of 2" or less	\$30.16
For each 3" connection	67.85
For each 4" connection	120.60
For each 6" connection	271.37
For each 8" connection	482.45
For each 10" connection	754.00
For each 12" connection	1,085.76
For each 16" connection	1,930.24

Deleted: \$24.60

Deleted: 55.34

Deleted: 98.37

Deleted: 221.34

Deleted: 393.51

Deleted: 615.00

Deleted: 885.60

Deleted: 1,574.40

Deleted: 44.96

2- Hydrant Charge

For each Hydrant	Per Month
	\$52.50

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-7.

Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023

Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in

Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 38.6
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 38.6

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

**RATE SCHEDULE L-9
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively for private fire protection throughout Service Area 1B, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the connection charge, the hydrant charge, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

1- Service Charge

Size of Connection	Per Month
For each connection of 2" or less	\$30.16
For each 3" connection	67.85
For each 4" connection	120.60
For each 6" connection	271.37
For each 8" connection	482.45
For each 10" connection	754.00
For each 12" connection	1,085.76
For each 16" connection	1,930.24

Deleted: \$26.75

Deleted: 60.18

Deleted: 106.97

Deleted: 240.68

Deleted: 427.90

Deleted: 668.75

Deleted: 963.00

Deleted: 1,712.00

Deleted: 37.80

2- Hydrant Charge

	Per Month
For each Hydrant	\$45.30

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission file for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-9.

Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023

Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in

Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 38.7
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 38.7

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

RATE SCHEDULE L-10
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively to private fire protection facilities served by the Company, throughout Service Area 1C, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the connection charge, the hydrant charge, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Sprinkler services with hose or hydrant connected to them:

Size of Connection	Per Month
For each 3" connection	\$190.00
For each 4" connection	316.26
For each 6" connection	632.52
For each 8" connection	1,012.52
For each 10" connection	1,569.18

Deleted: 155.00

Deleted: 258.00

Deleted: 516.00

Deleted: 826.00

Deleted: 280.00

Sprinkler services without hose or hydrant connected to them:

Size of Connection	Per Month
For each connection of 2" or less	\$63.74
For each 3" connection	133.61
For each 4" connection	223.09
For each 6" connection	446.18
For each 8" connection	713.40
For each 10" connection	1,114.22

Deleted: 52.00

Deleted: 109.00

Deleted: 182.00

Deleted: 364.00

Deleted: 582.00

Deleted: 909.00

Hydrant Charge

	Per Month
For each Hydrant	\$66.00

Deleted: 70.50

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company).

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

(continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in

Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023¶

Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022¶

¶ By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 38.7.1

RATE SCHEDULE L-10
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE
(Continued)

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-10.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 38.8
Superseding ~~Second~~ Revised Sheet: No. 38.8

~~Deleted: Second~~

~~Deleted: First~~

**RATE SCHEDULE L-11
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to customers throughout Service Area 1D, formerly served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"), for private fire protection service. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the connection charge, the hydrant charge, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by "Standard Terms and Conditions".

RATES

1- **Service Charge**

Size of Connection	Per Month
For each connection of 2" or less	\$30.16
For each 3" connection	67.85
For each 4" connection	120.60
For each 6" connection	271.37
For each 8" connection	482.45
For each 10" connection	754.00
For each 12" connection	1,085.76
For each 16" connection	1,930.24

~~Deleted: \$24.60~~

~~Deleted: 55.34~~

~~Deleted: 98.37~~

~~Deleted: 221.34~~

~~Deleted: 393.51~~

~~Deleted: 615.00~~

~~Deleted: 885.60~~

~~Deleted: 1,574.40~~

2- **Hydrant Charge**

For each Hydrant	Per Month
	\$40.30

~~Deleted: 33.20~~

~~Deleted:~~

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, applicable fixed service charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due ~~twenty (20)~~ days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted ~~or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing~~. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

~~Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company)~~

~~Deleted: fifteen (15)~~

CONDITIONS

Subject to "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-11.

~~Deleted: ¶
CONDITIONS¶~~

~~Subject to "Standard Terms and Conditions".~~

~~Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023¶~~

~~Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022¶~~

~~By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.~~

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 38.9
Superseding ~~Second~~ Revised Sheet: No. 38.9

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

RATE SCHEDULE L-12
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

Deleted: ¶

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively to private fire protection facilities served by the Company, throughout Service Area 1F, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the monthly system charge and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

For each system: Per Month
\$40.30

Deleted: 32.80

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-16.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-12.

Deleted: Effective: February 13, 2023¶

Deleted: Issued: November 30, 2022¶

¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

First Revised Sheet: No. 38.10
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 38.10

RATE SCHEDULE L-13
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively to private fire protection facilities served by the Company, throughout Service Area 1G, the Egg Harbor City Utility, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

1- **Service Charge**

Size of Connection	Per Month
For each connection of 2" or less	\$68.70
For each 3" connection	68.70
For each 4" connection	68.70
For each 6" connection	146.56
For each 8" connection	274.80
For each 12" connection	641.20

2- **Hydrant Charge**

	Per Month
For each Hydrant	\$15.00

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-17.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-13.

Deleted: 62.5
Deleted: 2.5
Deleted: 2.5
Deleted: 33
Deleted: .
Deleted: 3
Deleted: 3
Deleted: 250.00
Deleted: 583.33
Deleted: 0
Deleted: 42
Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company)
Deleted: fifteen (15)

Deleted: Effective: June 1, 2023 ¶
Deleted: Issued: June 12, 2023 ¶
¶ By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Orders of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket Nos. WE21091147, WE21091148 & WE21091146 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 38.11

RATE SCHEDULE L-14
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively to private fire protection facilities served by the Company, throughout Service Area 1H, Salem, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

1- Service Charge

Size of Connection	Per Month
For each connection of 2" or less	\$53.01
For each 4" connection	249.06
For each 6" connection	438.86
For each 8" connection	619.14
For each 12" connection	805.36

2- Sprinkler Charge

	Per Month
For each Sprinkler	\$0.36

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-19.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-14.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.1
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.1

Deleted: First

Deleted: Original

RATE SCHEDULE M-1
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company throughout Service Areas 1, 1C, 1E, and 2, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff.

Deleted: and

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$66.00

Deleted: 58.90

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company).

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.2
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.2

Deleted: First
Deleted: Original

RATE SCHEDULE M-2
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company in Service Area 1 in the Townships of Logan and Woolwich, Gloucester County in the area formerly served by Logan Wells Water Company as well as in Orley Beach and the Pelican Island System in Toms River Township, Ocean County, and in the Townships of Howell and Freehold, Monmouth County, in the area formerly served by Adelphia Water Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge

For each Hydrant Per Month
\$61.50

Deleted: 54.00

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due within (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in

Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.3
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.3

Deleted: First

Deleted: Original

Reserved for future use.

Deleted: RATE SCHEDULE M-3
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY
Applicable to municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company in Service Area 1 in the Townships of Howell and Freshold, Monmouth County in the area formerly served by Adelpia Water Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE
Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge
Per Month \$54.00
For each Hydrant

TERMS OF PAYMENT
Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears (or quarterly at the option of the Company), and are due fifteen (15) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

TERM
Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS
Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.4
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.4

~~Deleted: First~~
~~Deleted: Original~~

**RATE SCHEDULE M-5
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company in the Townships of Bedminster and Franklin in Service Area 2.

~~Deleted: throughout~~

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge

Per Month
For each Hydrant, \$60.50

~~Deleted: The amount of the bill will reflect the hydrant charge as defined hereafter for each tariff zone located in Service Area 2 as defined in Rate Schedule M-5. ¶~~

~~Deleted: Tariff Zone~~

~~Deleted: For each Hydrant ¶~~

~~Deleted: 2A~~

~~Deleted: 53.00~~

~~Deleted: 2C~~

~~Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),~~

TERMS AND PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due fifteen (15) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

TERM

Continuous until water service within municipality is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

~~Deleted: ¶~~
~~¶~~
~~¶~~
~~¶~~
~~¶~~
~~¶~~
~~¶~~
~~¶~~
~~(Continued)~~

~~Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022¶~~

~~Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022¶~~
~~¶~~
~~By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶~~
~~1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶~~
~~Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶~~
~~Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.~~

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.5
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.5

Deleted: First

Deleted: Original

RATE SCHEDULE M-6
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company in Service Area 3.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge The amount of the bill will reflect the hydrant charge as defined hereafter for each tariff zone located in Service Area 3 as defined in Rate Schedule M-6.

Deleted: RATE SCHEDULE M-5
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE
(Continued)
¶
The table hereafter defines the different tariff zones for Service Area 2.
¶
Tariff Zone [10]

Deleted:

Tariff Zone	For each Hydrant Per Month
3A	\$42.50
3B	47.80
3C	52.30
3D	56.80
3G	63.50

Deleted: 35.00

Deleted: 0.25

Deleted: 44.75

Deleted: 49.25

Deleted: 56.00

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

TERM

Continuous until water service within municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. The table hereafter defines the different tariff zones for Service Area 3:

Tariff Zone	Municipality
3A	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Mansfield (Columbus) Township Springfield Township
3B	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Plumsted Township
3C	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Mansfield-Homestead Southampton Township
3D	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Mount Holly Township
3G	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Eastampton Township Hainesport Township Lumberton Township Medford Township Westampton Township

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022
¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.6
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.6

Deleted: First

Deleted: Original

RATE SCHEDULE M-7
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company throughout Service Area 1A, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. Applicable for flat rate fire protection service in the locations where the Company has facilities suitable and adequate for the desired service upon request from the proper authorities.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$52.50

Deleted: 44.96

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company).

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in

Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.7
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.7

Deleted: First
Deleted: Original

RATE SCHEDULE M-8
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company throughout Service Areas 1B and 1H, Salem, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. Applicable for flat rate fire protection service in the locations where the Company has facilities suitable and adequate for the desired service upon request from the proper authorities.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$45.30

Deleted: 37.80

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.8
Superseding First Original Sheet: No. 39.8

Deleted: First

Deleted: Original

Reserved for future use.

Deleted: RATE SCHEDULE M-9
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company throughout Service Area 1C, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. Applicable for flat rate fire protection service in the locations where the Company has facilities suitable and adequate for the desired service upon request from the proper authorities.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge

Per Month	
For each Hydrant	\$70.50

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears (or quarterly at the option of the Company), and are due fifteen (15) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.9
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.9

Deleted: First
Deleted: Original

RATE SCHEDULE M-10
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to the municipality for all fire hydrants on public streets within Service Area 1D, formerly served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"), and Service Area 1F, Roxbury.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by "Standard Terms and Conditions".

RATES

Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$40.30

Deleted: 33.20

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due ~~twenty (20)~~ days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted ~~or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing~~. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company).

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed service charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to "Standard Terms and Conditions".

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.10
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.10

Deleted: First
Deleted: Original

Reserved for future use

Deleted: RATE SCHEDULE M-11
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

¶

¶

APPLICABILITY¶
Applicable to the municipality for all fire hydrants on public streets within Service Area 1F, Roxbury.¶

¶

CHARACTER OF SERVICE¶
Continuous, except as limited by "Standard Terms and Conditions".¶

¶

RATES¶

¶

Hydrant Charge	Per Month
For each Hydrant	\$32.80

¶

TERMS OF PAYMENT¶
Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears (or quarterly at the option of the Company), and are due fifteen (15) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.¶

¶

TERM¶
Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed service charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service. ¶

¶

CONDITIONS¶
Subject to "Standard Terms and Conditions".

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022
Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022
By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

First Revised Sheet: No. 39.11
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 39.11

RATE SCHEDULE M-12
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to the municipality for all fire hydrants on public streets within Service Area 1G, the Egg Harbor City Utility.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by "Standard Terms and Conditions".

RATES

Hydrant Charge

Per Month

For each Hydrant

\$15.00

Deleted: 10.42

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed service charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company)

Deleted: fifteen (15)

CONDITIONS

Subject to "Standard Terms and Conditions".

Deleted: Effective: June 1, 2023 ¶

Deleted: Issued: June 12, 2023 ¶

¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Orders of the Board of Public Utilities
entered in¶
Docket Nos. WE21091147, WE21091148 & WE21091146
dated August 17, 2022.

Issued _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in

Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Seventh Revised Sheet: No. 40
Superseding Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 40

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: Fifth

RATE SCHEDULE O-1
PURCHASED WATER ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PWAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Metered Water Customer classes served by the Company in all service areas for water service, except for Manasquan Uninterruptible Service, and those customers subject to Rate Schedules I and J, who will only be subject to the PWAC for any water used in excess of their Annual Purchase Requirement.

Deleted:

The PWAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions of this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased water associated with the normal operations of the Company and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased water costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the Standard Terms and Conditions.

Deleted: *

PURCHASED WATER ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PWAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons or per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased water costs not included in the Water Charge or any other Charge:

Deleted: *

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.05477	\$0.5477
Exempt	All	\$0.04731	\$0.4731

The PWAC Charge is also applicable to any difference between the quantity of water actually purchased by the customer and any applicable take-or-pay commitment.

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PWAC filing no later than December 1st of each year proposing a PWAC rate to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PWAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PWAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PWAC charge for purchased water;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased water costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframes over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PWAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential water customer bill for a twelve-month period.

(Continued)

Deleted: Effective: May 1, 2023 ¶

Deleted: Issued: April 28, 2023 ¶

By: Mark K. McDonough, President ¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102 ¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in ¶
Docket No. WR22110693 dated April 26, 2023.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 40.1

RATE SCHEDULE O-1
PURCHASED WATER ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PWAC)
(Continued)

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PWAC rates at the beginning of each PWAC Year succeeding any PWAC year in which any monthly purchased water costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred net revenue or separate cost of purchased water accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of purchased water balances. Interest on such water costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7.1, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7.1, et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedules for applicable customer classes.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 40.2
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 40.2

RATE SCHEDULE O-2
LEAD SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT CHARGE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all water customer classes served by the Company in all service areas for water service taking service under Rate Schedules A-1 through A-16 (GMS) and C, D, E, F, G, H, I, J, and L-1 through L12 (non-GMS). The Lead Service Line Replacement Charge is designed to recover project costs associated with replacing customer-owned lead service lines.

CHARACTER

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions".

LEAD SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT CHARGE (LSLRC)

In addition to all other charges for GMS and non-GMS customers throughout the entire territory served, the following charges will be assessed as follows commencing January 1, 2024:

- For each surcharge period, revenue responsibility shall be assigned to GMS customers on a volumetric basis in the same proportion as total revenue requirements were assigned to GMS in the Company's most recently concluded base rate case. Then the balance of the revenue responsibility shall be assigned to non-GMS as a fixed per customer surcharge based on the aggregate customer count of non-GMS customers.
- The non-GMS customer count and GMS volumetric usage will be updated with each surcharge filing. The non-GMS customer count will be updated to reflect the count at the end of the month prior to each surcharge filing. The GMS usage will be updated to reflect the actual usage from the six-month period during which the costs were incurred.
- GMS and non-GMS LSLRC revenue requirement allocation percentages will be updated following each base rate proceeding during the LSLRC recovery period.

RATE

This charge is in addition to Rate Schedules A-1 through A-16 (GMS) and C, D, E, F, G, H, I, J, and L-1 through L12 (non-GMS). The surcharge amounts for GMS and Non-GMS customers are as follows:

<u>GMS</u> <u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>	<u>Non-GMS</u> <u>Fixed Charge Per Month</u>
\$ 0.6630	\$21.24

The recovery of these costs will be shown as a LSLRC surcharge on each customer's bill.

FILING

The LSLRC is authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-40, et seq. (Lead Service Line Replacement Law) and the procedures for filing, approving and implementing the LSLRC are set forth therein, along with the Company's Lead Service Line Replacement Plan, which was reviewed and approved by the Board of Public Utilities in BPU Docket No. WR22010017 on October 12, 2022, and the BPU Order approving said Plan.

The approval process for implementing this surcharge includes public notice and hearing. The notice included a proposed surcharge amount based on the actual project costs associated with the replacement of customer-owned lead service lines incurred by the Company between July 1, 2020 and October 31, 2022, as well as estimated surcharge amounts for the first five years of the lead service line replacement program, which were estimated based on estimated construction schedules, costs and other factors described in the approved Lead Service Line Replacement Plan. Pursuant to the approved Lead Service Line Replacement Plan, the Company shall endeavor to make semi-annual LSLRC filings at approximately six-month intervals. In addition, to ensure that customers are surcharged the proper amount, the Company will reconcile any over- or under-collections on an annual basis as part of its surcharge filings.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedules for applicable customer classes.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: November 17, 2023

Effective: January 1, 2024

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 40.3

RATE SCHEDULE O-3
UNIVERSAL AFFORDABILITY

AVAILABILITY

Available to all residential water customers served by the Company in all service areas who meet the income criteria of 200% or less than the Federal Poverty Level ("FPL"). NJ Shares determines and maintains the qualification requirements for the Company's discount programs. Customers who qualify for the program are required to recertify income eligibility every two years.

APPLICABILITY

The discount will be applied to the Fixed Service Charge and Water Charge (volumetric) portion of the bill for water service. The discount will not be applied to the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, or the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

DISCOUNT

	<u>Household Income</u>	<u>Fixed Service Charge Discount</u>	<u>Water Charge Discount</u>
<u>Tier 1</u>	0% - 50% of FPL	80%	80%
<u>Tier 2</u>	51% - 100% of FPL	60%	60%
<u>Tier 3</u>	101% - 150% of FPL	40%	40%
<u>Tier 4</u>	151% - 200% of FPL	20%	20%

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 40.4

RATE SCHEDULE O-4
REVENUE DECOUPLING MECHANISM

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all water customer classes served by the Company in all service areas for water service taking service under Rate Schedules A-1 through A-16.

CHARACTER

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions".

REVENUE DECOUPLING MECHANISM ("RDM")

For purposes of the RDM only, the terms below are defined to mean:

Effective Period shall mean the period for which the adjustments are to be billed to customers and shall be the nine-month period April 1 through December 31 after the Filing Month.

Filing Month shall mean the month in which an adjustment is determined by the Company and submitted to the Board, which shall be on or before January 31 each year.

Fiscal Year shall mean the 12-month period that ended as of the most recent December 31.

GMS Residential Customers shall mean all general metered service residential customers.

GMS Non-Residential Customers shall mean all general metered service commercial, industrial, municipal, and Sales for Resale customers.

Previous Amortization Period shall mean the nine-month reconciliation amortization period that ended as of the most recent Fiscal Year.

Upcoming Amortization Period shall mean the nine-month reconciliation amortization period commencing on April 1 following the Fiscal Year.

RATE

This charge is in addition to Rate Schedules A-1 through A-16. The calculation of the adjustments for GMS Residential and GMS Non-Residential customers are detailed below.

The GMS Residential Adjustment is calculated as follows:

$$\frac{\text{RESREV} - (\text{VC} \cdot \text{RESUSE}) - (\text{RC} \cdot \text{RESCUST})}{\text{RESFC}}$$

Where:

RESREV represents the actual dollar amount of revenues billed to residential customers for the identified service classifications, excluding revenues arising from adjustments under this tariff and any other tariff, which were billed for the applicable month.

RESUSE represents the number of 100-gallon units delivered to residential customers by the Company, including the number of 100-gallon units for the applicable month.

RESCUST represents the average number of residential customers for the applicable month.

VC represents the Volumetric Charge (\$0.9771 per hundred gallons proposed).

RC represents the Residential Fixed Charge (based on meter size per month at proposed).

RESFC represents the number of 100-gallon units expected to be delivered to residential customers by the Company, including the number of 100-gallon units for the applicable Effective Period.

(continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 40.4.1

RATE SCHEDULE O-4
REVENUE DECOUPLING MECHANISM
(Continued)

The GMS Non-Residential Adjustment is calculated as follows:

$$\frac{\text{NONREV} - (\text{VC} \cdot \text{NONUSE}) - (\text{NC} \cdot \text{NONCUST})}{\text{NONFC}}$$

Where:

NONREV represents the actual dollar amount of revenues billed to GMS Non-Residential customers for the identified service classifications, excluding revenues arising from adjustments under this tariff and any other tariff, which were billed for the applicable month.

NONUSE represents the number of 100-gallon units delivered to GMS Non-Residential customers by the Company, including the number of 100-gallon units for the applicable month.

NONCUST represents the average number of GMS Non-Residential customers for the applicable month.

VC represents the Volumetric Charge (\$0.9771 per hundred gallons proposed).

NC represents the Non-Residential Fixed Charge (based on meter size per month at proposed).

NONFC represents the number of 100-gallon units expected to be delivered to GMS Non-Residential customers by the Company, including the number of 100-gallon units for the applicable Effective Period.

FILED

The Company shall submit to the Board on or before January 30 of each year, the RDM calculation and support for any annual adjustments to be effective under this tariff. The Board will have 60 days to review. The reconciliation amount will be surcharged from April 1 through December 31 of each calendar year. Any credit will be issued as soon as administratively possible.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedules for applicable customer classes.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 41
Superseding Third Revised Sheet: No. 41

Deleted: Third
Deleted: Second

**RATE SCHEDULE P-1
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable throughout the entire area served by the Company for Miscellaneous Municipal Service, General Building Construction and Trucked Bulk Water Sales.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

(a) **Miscellaneous Municipal Service:** Each customer shall pay for all water used for street sprinkling, street or sewer flushing, swimming pools or other miscellaneous uses at the General Metered Service Rates of this tariff as applicable. Water consumption will be determined by metering or by such other method as may be mutually agreed upon by the customer and the Company. Fire hydrants are not to be used for this service without the express consent of the Company in each circumstance where this service is required. No person, other than municipal fire and Company personnel, is permitted to operate or take water from any public fire hydrant for street sprinkling, flushing sewers, storm water drains, or any purpose unless authorized by the Company and the fire chief of the municipality in writing and upon the terms and conditions set forth by the fire chief and the Company therein.

(b) **Water For Building Construction:** Where water service is temporarily furnished for building construction and/or any other temporary use, it shall, wherever practical, be supplied through a meter at the General Metered Service Rates of this tariff as applicable. Should a new service be required to provide this temporary use, the customer shall pay the cost to install and remove the service. No person, other than municipal fire and Company personnel, is permitted to operate or take water from any public fire hydrant for building construction or any purpose unless authorized by the Company and the fire chief of the municipality in writing and upon the terms and conditions set forth by the fire chief and the Company therein.

(c) **Bulk Water Sales for water transfers using Trucks and Tanks:** Water sales to customers or entities using trucks or tanks to receive water service from the Company that require additional attention may affect the Company's daily operations. A surcharge in the amount of \$50 may be applied for each such request in addition to the water charge as set forth in the applicable General Metered Service Rates of this tariff. If at any time the Company determines that a customer or entity has taken water without permission or proper compensation to the Company under this provision, the Company reserves the right to refuse to sell water to the customer or entity hereunder. Bulk Water Sales for water transfers using trucks and tanks in Service Area 1H, Salem, will be charged \$19.95 per 1,000 gallons.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

All charges rendered under this Rate Schedule are in arrears for metered service and in advance for un-metered service. At the option of the Company, a deposit may be required for metered service billed in arrears, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.4, et seq. The Company may not require a deposit for un-metered service billed in advance in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.4(i). Bills are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill is transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing.

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Where metered service is provided through a hydrant meter, a deposit equal to the cost of the hydrant meter may be required by the Company. The meter shall be kept safe and accessible during its use. The deposit, less the cost of repairs to the meter, if any, will be returned to the applicant by the Company after surrender of the meter and payment of all charges for water supplied through it.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022
Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022
By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 42
Superseding Third Revised Sheet: No. 42

RATE SCHEDULE P-2
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE –
CHARGES NOT INVOLVING THE USE OF WATER

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all classes of customers unless specified for the following classes of miscellaneous services throughout the entire area served by the Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RECONNECTIONS AND RECONNECTION CHARGE

1. Resumption of service rates due to: discontinuance of service as a result of non-payment of bills; violation of the Company's tariff rules; the voluntary request of the customer when the meter has not been removed (e.g. seasonal requests) or for customer's convenience, are set forth as follows.

Conditions	Rate
<p>Normal working hours</p> <p>For the purpose of requests for reconnection services under this section, normal working hours are as follows:</p> <p>Monday through Friday* 8 AM to 6 PM Saturday* 8 AM to 2 PM</p> <p>*Except for the following holidays: New Year's Day, President's Day, Veteran's Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, the day after Thanksgiving, and Christmas Day.</p>	\$28.00
<p>After-hours restoration of service</p> <p>The Company has 12 hours from proper application by the customer to restore service, after all of the conditions under which such service was discontinued are corrected and the utility has received notice of payment. Requests for reconnection of service that must be worked all days and times outside of normal working hours as listed above, plus all holidays as listed above, are subject to the after-hours restoration of service rate.</p>	\$100.00

2. Resumption of service when a customer's service has been reconnected without the permission of the Company after service has been terminated by the Company for non-payment of bills or violation of the Company's tariff. The Company will physically disconnect the customer's service for a second time and the customer will be required to pay, in addition to any outstanding or delinquent amount, the Company's actual cost of reconnection or \$350.00, whichever is more, before service is restored. The Company shall give written notice to the customer that if service is reconnected again without the permission of the Company, it will be necessary for the Company to excavate and physically disconnect service and that a reconnection charge of \$500, or the actual cost incurred by the Company to excavate and physically disconnect and reconnect the service, whichever is more, will be made. The Company may also seek criminal prosecution under N.J.S.A. 2C:20-8c as well as civil damages.

(Continued)

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 42.1

RATE SCHEDULE P-2
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE –
CHARGES NOT INVOLVING THE USE OF WATER
(Continued)

3. Requirement for Customer to be Present for Reconnection. Customers must be present on the premises when the Company reconnects a discontinued water service to said premises. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the customer is not present but has given consent to the Company to reconnect the water service in his, her or its absence, the Company may reconnect the water service. In such case, the customer is solely responsible for any damage incurred by the customer and/or to the customer's premises due to an approved reconnection of service when the customer is not present at the time of said reconnection, provided that the customer will not be responsible for damage due to the sole negligence of the Company.

CROSS CONNECTION INSPECTION CHARGE

A charge of \$75.00 will be imposed by the Company for an inspection of each cross-connection device installed between an unapproved source of supply and the Company's water supply, subject to the availability of Company resources. The customer must provide proof of inspection.

METER TESTING AND REPLACEMENT CHARGE

1. Customer Request for Additional Meter Testing. If a customer requests that the Company test a meter during any twelve (12) month period in which the Company has already provided one free meter test per N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5, or if the meter first referred to has been in use less than two years, and the meter is found to be accurate, the Company may charge the customer a fee for removing the meter and a fee for testing the meter as follows:

Schedule for removing and replacing a meter

Meter Size	Rate
Meters up to and including 2" in diameter	\$37.00
Meters larger than 2" in diameter	Actual cost

These charges will not exceed the replacement cost of the meter.

Schedule for testing the meter

Meter Size	Rate
All meters from 3/8 inches up to 1 inch	\$50.00
All meters from 1 1/2 inches up to 3 inches	\$75.00
All meters from 4 inches up to 10 inches	\$100.00
All meters from 12 inches and larger	\$125.00

2. Removing, Repairing and Replacing Meters damaged due to negligence of the customer. The Company may impose a charge on any customer who causes damage to a meter as follows:

- (a) Repair Only: Actual cost of materials used to repair the meter, and the actual cost of labor required to repair and reinstall the meter.
- (b) Meter Replacement for Non-repairable Meters: Actual cost of a new meter, materials used to replace the meter, and the actual cost to install the meter, including the cost of labor required to install the meter.

(Continued)

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

First Revised Sheet: No. 42.2
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 42.2

**RATE SCHEDULE P-2
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE –
CHARGES NOT INVOLVING THE USE OF WATER
(Continued)**

BAD CHECK CHARGE

If the Company receives a negotiable instrument from a customer in payment of a bill, charge, or deposit due, and such instrument is subsequently dishonored or uncollectible for any reason, the Company shall charge the customer a handling charge per instrument of \$15.00.

If a bad check charge is applied to a customer account, that amount, as well as the amount of the dishonored check shall be paid with cash, certified check, money order, bank check, or other means of guaranteed payment before such account shall be deemed paid. Additionally, if a customer presents two checks that are dishonored by the bank as a result of the customer's error, the customer will be required to pay by the methods stated above for a period of twelve months from the date of the last dishonored check.

The provisions of this tariff section shall not be deemed to require a customer to submit to automatic deduction from any bank account, credit card, or by on-line banking but the Company may offer same as an option provided the customer is presented with all other available options offered by the Company.

UNAUTHORIZED USE OF COMPANY FACILITIES

There will be a minimum charge of \$500.00 for unauthorized use of Company facilities plus costs for repair of any damages to Company property resulting therefrom.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills furnished under this schedule are due ~~within (20)~~ days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Deleted: fifteen (15)

ERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The Company may waive the fees and charges referenced in this Rate Schedule P-2 for a customer who is enrolled in the Company's H2O Help to Others Assistance Program or the H2O Help to Others Discount Program, provided that the customer is not deemed to have been abusing and/or taking advantage of the system, including but not limited to repeatedly requiring service reconnections more than three (3) times in any twelve (12) month period.

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶
¶
Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020¶
¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Tenth Revised Sheet: No. 43
Superseding Ninth Revised Sheet: No. 43

RATE SCHEDULE P-3
MULTI-USE SERVICE LINE

APPLICABILITY

The Company will provide an option to customers, upon request and where applicable, to use a "multi-use" service line per N.J.A.C. 14:9-8.3 et seq.

"Multi-use service" means water service that is supplied through one water line extending from the water main to the structure, and which is used for both domestic water service on the premises and for fire suppression service inside a structure. A multi-use service is not private fire protection service.

Terms and Conditions not defined specifically below for Multi-Use services shall be the same as those under the STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

RATES

Rates applicable to multi-use service are those found in the Company's General Metered Service Rate Schedules in this tariff as applicable.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

A water utility may terminate a customer's multi-use service for non-payment of a valid water bill for multi-use service, in accordance with the Board's rules governing discontinuance of such service at N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) and N.J.A.C. 14:9-8.3.

CONDITIONS

By applying for multi-use service, the customer or builder certifies that:

1. The customer or builder has hydraulically calculated the demand for the customer's or builder's water system, based on the simultaneous domestic and fire sprinkler demand. The customer or builder shall make this calculation in accordance with the Uniform Construction Code and any other applicable state or local codes; and
2. The customer or builder will ensure that the system is installed in accordance with the Uniform Construction Code at N.J.A.C. 5:23; and
3. The customer will, prior to installation of the meter, obtain and provide the Company with a copy of a valid construction permit in accordance with the Uniform Construction Code from the enforcing agency having jurisdiction over the system.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 1- By applying for multi-use service, the customer agrees to be responsible for all claims, costs and liability for personal injury, death and/or property damage, resulting from the customer's individual water system, and agrees that the Company shall not be so liable unless caused by the negligence of the water utility. (N.J.A.C. 14:9-8.3(d))
- 2- All multi-use service lines shall be metered, and the meter shall be located in a meter pit or vault located outside of the Customer's structure. The meter pit or vault shall be installed at a location acceptable to the express, advance approval of the Water Company, and otherwise shall comply with the Company's standard terms and conditions.
- 3- If a customer requests a change in meter size associated with a multi-service meter, the customer must re-apply for service and re-certify each item addressed in this Rate Schedule.

(Continued)

Issued: August 29, 2022

Effective: September 1, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 43.1

RATE SCHEDULE P-3
MULTI-USE SERVICE LINE
(Continued)

PROVISION OF SERVICES

By applying for multi-use service, and operating the same, the customer agrees:

1. To include a backflow prevention device(s) as defined at N.J.A.C. 7:10-1.3, and as specified at N.J.A.C. 7:10-10.3;
2. To be solely responsible for all costs and expenses relating to the installation, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the customer's water system, including the fire suppression system and backflow prevention device(s);
3. To ensure that the customer's water system complies with the applicable requirements of the Uniform Construction Code in effect at the time of system installation, including any applicable building, plumbing and fire protection sub-codes; and
4. To ensure that the customer's water system is maintained in accordance with all applicable law so as to protect against backflow, back-siphonage and contamination of the potable water system.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Eleventh Revised Sheet: No. 44
Superseding Tenth Revised Sheet: No. 44

Deleted: Tenth
Deleted: Ninth

AREA SERVED – WASTEWATER SERVICE

	<u>County</u>	<u>Municipality</u>	<u>All or Portion</u>	<u>Development/Section</u>	<u>Wastewater System</u>
**	Atlantic	City of Egg Harbor	All	N/A	Egg Harbor City
**	Atlantic	Twp. of Galloway	Portion	N/A	Egg Harbor City
**	Atlantic	Twp. of Mullica	Portion	N/A	Egg Harbor City
A)	Bergen	Twp. of Oakland	Portion	Ramapo River Reserve	Ramapo River Reserve
A)	Burlington	Twp. of Mansfield	Portion	Mapleton (Mansfield Farms)	Mapleton
B)	Burlington	Twp. of Mansfield	Portion	Homestead (Country Walk)	Homestead
D)	Burlington	Twp. of Mansfield	Portion	John Hydock Elementary School	Mapleton
D)	Burlington	Twp. of Mansfield	Portion	Northern Burlington School	Mapleton
**	Burlington	Twp. of Mansfield	Portion	Mansfield Warehousing Area	
**	Camden	Borough of Haddonfield	All	N/A	Haddonfield/CCMUA
**	Camden	Borough of Mount Ephraim	All	N/A	Mount Ephraim
A)	Cape May	Twp. of Middle	Portion	Avalon Country Club	Avalon Links
*	Cape May	Ocean City	All	N/A	Ocean City/CMCMUA
**	Gloucester	Twp. of Elk	All	N/A	Elk Township
A)	Hunterdon	Borough of Bloomsbury	Portion	Fawn Run	Fawn Run
A)	Hunterdon	Twp. of Tewksbury	Portion	Crossroads at Oldwick	Crossroads
*	Hunterdon	Twp. of Tewksbury	Portion	Pottersville	Pottersville
A)	Hunterdon	Twp. of Union	Portion	Village Square	Village Square
A)	Hunterdon	Twp. of Clinton	Portion	Brass Castle	Brass Castle
A)	Hunterdon	Twp. of Union	Portion	Lookout Pointe	Lookout Pointe
A)	Hunterdon	Twp. of Clinton	Portion	Glen Meadows & Twin Oaks	Glen Meadows
A)	Monmouth	Twp. of Upper Freehold	Portion	Four Seasons at Upper Freehold	Beacon Hill
D)	Monmouth	Twp. of Upper Freehold	Portion	Beacon Hill Clubhouse	Beacon Hill
*,**	Monmouth	Twp. of Howell	Portion	N/A	Howell/MRRSA/OCUA
A)	Morris	Twp. of Mount Olive	Portion	Country Oaks	Country Oaks
A)	Morris	Twp. of Chester	Portion	Four Seasons @ Chester	Four Seasons @ Chester
A)	Morris	Twp. of Jefferson	Portion	Peaks @ Jefferson	Jefferson Peaks
A)	Morris	Twp. of Mount Olive	Portion	Morris Chase	Morris Chase
**	Morris	Twp. of Long Hill	All	N/A	Long Hill Township
*	Ocean	Twp. of Lakewood	Portion	N/A	Lakewood/OCUA
**	Ocean	Twp. of Plumsted	Portion	Jensen's Deep Run	Jensen's
**	Salem	City of Salem	All	N/A	Salem City
**	Salem	Twp. of Mannington	All	N/A	Salem City
C)	Somerset	Twp. of Bedminster	Portion	N/A	EDC
C)	Somerset	Twp. of Bernards	Portion	N/A	EDC
**	Somerset	Borough of Bound Brook	All	N/A	Bound Brook
**	Somerset	Twp. of Bridgewater	Portion	Somerville Adjacent	Somerville
A)	Somerset	Twp. of Hillsborough	Portion	Hillsborough Chase	Hillsborough Chase
**	Somerset	Borough of Manville	All	N/A	Manville
**	Somerset	Borough of Somerville	All	N/A	Somerville
A)	Warren	Twp. of Washington	Portion	Hawk Pointe	Hawk Pointe

KEY:

- A) Community On-Site Water and/or Wastewater System (COWS) (formerly served by Applied)
- B) Homestead (formerly served by Applied)
- C) ~~Wastewater system of the former Environmental Disposal Corp. ("EDC")~~
- D) Other Contracts (formerly served by Applied)
 - * Wastewater systems served by the Company prior to the merger of Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied") into the Company on September 1, 2010.
 - ** Systems acquired by the Company after January 1, 2011.

Deleted: ** [11]

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: Reserved

Deleted: Effective: October 3, 2023¶

¶

Deleted: Issued: October 6, 2023¶

¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Orders of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket Nos. WE23030197 and WE23040233 dated September 27, 2023.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Fifteenth Revised Sheet: No. 45
Superseding Fourteenth Revised Sheet: No. 45

Deleted: Fourteenth

Deleted: Thirteenth

**WASTEWATER SERVICE RATE SCHEDULES
TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Rate schedules are applicable for service provided in the entire area served as follows:

Location/Type	Class of Service	Rate Schedule	Sheet No.	
Ocean City	General Metered Service	1-A	46	
Ocean City	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	1-B	47	
<u>Statewide Collection</u>	General Metered Service	2-A	48	Deleted: Lakewood Township
Lakewood Township	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	2-B	49	
Howell Township	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	3-B	51	Deleted: Howell Township ... [12]
<u>Statewide Collection and Treatment</u>	General Flat Rate Service	5-A	52	Deleted: Tewksbury Township (Pottersville), COWS (A) and Homestead (B) (former Applied service area)¶
<u>Statewide Collection and Treatment</u>	General Metered Service	6-A	53	Deleted: Tewksbury Township (Pottersville), COWS ((A), Homestead ((B) (former Applied service area) and Mansfield Warehousing Area
Other Contracts (C) former EDC service area, and (D) former Applied service area, Entire Service Territory	Contracts	8-A	54	Deleted: ¶
Entire Service Territory	Miscellaneous Service Charges	9-A	55	Deleted: (
Entire Service Territory	Wastewater System Improvement Charge	9-A.1	55.1	Deleted: (
Entire Service Territory	Universal Affordability – Wastewater	9-A.2	55.2	Deleted:)
Plumsted Township (Jensen's Deep Run)	General Metered Service	10-A	56	
Haddonfield Borough	General Metered Service	11-A	57	
Ik Township	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	12-B	58	Deleted: General Metered Service
Borough of Mount Ephraim	General Metered Service	13-A	59	Deleted: A
Long Hill Township	General Flat Rate Service	14-A	60	Deleted: Flat Rate
Long Hill Township	General Metered Service	15-A	61	
Egg Harbor City Utility	General Metered and Flat Rate Service	16-A	62	
Egg Harbor City Utility	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	16-B	63	Deleted: General Metered Service
Bound Brook Borough	General Flat Rate Service	18-A	64	Deleted: 17-A
Bound Brook Borough	General Metered Service	19-A	65	
Somerville System	General Metered and Flat Rate Service	20-A	66	
Somerville System	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	20-B	67	
Former EDC System	General Metered Service	21-A	68	Deleted: (C)
Salem City and Mannington	General Metered Service	22-A	69	
Manville	General Metered Service	23-A	70	Deleted: ¶
Manville	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	23-B	71	Deleted: Effective: October 3, 2023¶ ¶ Deleted: Issued: October 6, 2023¶ ¶ By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶ 1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶ Filed pursuant to Orders of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶ Docket Nos. WE23030197 and WE23040233 dated September 27, 2023.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Twelfth Revised Sheet: No. 46
Superseding Eleventh Revised Sheet: No. 46

Deleted: Eleventh
Deleted: Tenth

**RATE SCHEDULE 1-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in the City of Ocean City. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Minimum Service Charge, the Wastewater Usage Charge, the Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff and as shown on Rate Schedule 1-B, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

MINIMUM SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Minimum Service Charge in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any. The Minimum Service Charge for a customer is determined every January 1 for the year based on the water usage for the prior July, August and September meter readings ("Summer Quarter Consumption") but in no event will a customer be billed for less than 7,480 gallons per year for wastewater service.

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$16,4000	\$16,4000

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. Charges shall be based on water consumption as indicated by water meter readings on a monthly basis.

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$0,40210	\$4,0210

TERMS OF PAYMENT

The following plan for payment of the Annual Minimum Service Charge is offered as a convenience to our customers and, in the case of seasonal service, does not relieve the customer of the liability to pay the entire Annual Minimum Service Charge if wastewater service is rendered for only a portion of the calendar year. In the case of a non-seasonal customer terminating their account, the customer shall be billed for service provided through the date of service termination.

A new customer, initiating service at existing premises, shall be billed for such service as of the account activation date. The new customer account usage will be based on the existing premises last known summer quarter consumption, until the new customer establishes a summer quarter consumption. A new customer account without established summer quarter consumption data will be required to pay a pro-rata share of the Annual Minimum Service Charge, until the new customer establishes a summer quarter consumption. The proration shall be based on the portion of the calendar year for which the customer receives service.

In addition, in the case of a reactivated account, the customer will be required to pay for the charges as if the account had been active as of January 1. The calculated Annual Minimum Service Charge will therefore be billed across the remaining installment billing periods in that calendar year.

For monthly billed customers, one-twelfth of the Minimum Service Charge shall be due and payable upon receipt of the regular bill for wastewater service.

If the Company determines by application of the following criteria that the customer's past record of payments does not warrant application of this payment plan, the Company may require payment of the entire service charge at one time rather than in installments.

- If a customer has been terminated at least once in the past two years for non-payment of a bill for wastewater service; or,
- If a customer receives three (3) Final Reminder Notices during a twelve-month period.

Usage charges based upon meter readings shall be billed in monthly in arrears. Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule are due within (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____
By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

Deleted: Sewer

Deleted: Sewer

Deleted: 35

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 5

Deleted: Exempt [13]

Deleted: SEWER

Deleted: sewer

Deleted: use

Deleted: or quarterly basis

Deleted: at the option of the Company

Deleted: 2325

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 325

Deleted: Exempt [14]

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company)

Deleted: fifteen (15)

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Twentieth Revised Sheet: No. 47
Superseding Nineteenth Revised Sheet: No. 47

Deleted: Nineteenth

Deleted: Eighteenth

RATE SCHEDULE 1-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Wastewater Service customer classes including general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in the City of Ocean City. The PSTAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs associated with the normal operations of the Company, and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

The following are the PSTAC charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons that will be charged based on the Summer Quarter Consumption as defined in the Minimum Service Charge section of Wastewater-Rate Schedule 1-A to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs, but in no event will the consumption level for PSTAC be less than 7,480 gallons per year.

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1000 Gallons
Non-Exempt, All		\$3.37033	\$33.7033

Deleted: and Exempt

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate or percentage to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for wastewater treatment and disposal;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for the applicable customer class.

(Continued)

Deleted: 1-A

Deleted: es

Deleted: Effective: May 1, 2023 ¶

Deleted: Issued: April 28, 2023 ¶

¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered
in¶
Docket No. WR22110693 dated April 26, 2023.

Issued:

Effective:

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 47.1

RATE SCHEDULE 1-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)
(Continued)

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Eleventh Revised Sheet: No. 48
Superseding Tenth Revised Sheet: No. 48

Deleted: Tenth
Deleted: Ninth

**RATE SCHEDULE 2-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE
STATEWIDE COLLECTION AREAS**

Deleted: WASTEWATER

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in the Statewide Wastewater Collection Area including Lakewood, Elk Township, and the Adelpia System (service area of the former Adelpia Sewer Company) and other franchise areas within the Township of Howell. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Wastewater Usage Charge, the Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, shown on Rate Schedule 2-B (Lakewood), Rate Schedule 3-B (Howell and Adelpia System), and Rate Schedule 12-B (Elk Township), and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

Deleted: (
Deleted:)
Deleted: Sewer

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any, as follows:

Deleted: Sewer

Fixed Service Charge per customer per month.	Non-Exempt \$18.20
--	-----------------------

Deleted: Exempt

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 0

Deleted: 0

Deleted: \$12.96

Deleted: SEWER

Deleted: sewer

Deleted: use

Deleted: Sewer

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 4517

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 517

Deleted: Exempt

Deleted: All

Deleted: \$0.39015

Deleted: \$3.9015

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company).

Deleted: fifteen (15)

Volumetric Charges

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.9890	\$9.890

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022 ¶

Deleted: issued: August 29, 2022¶

By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered

in¶

Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Twelfth Revised Sheet: No. 49
Superseding Eleventh Revised Sheet: No. 49

Deleted: Eleventh

Deleted: Tenth

RATE SCHEDULE 2-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Wastewater Service customer classes including general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in the Statewide Wastewater Collection Area (Lakewood). The PSTAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs associated with the normal operations of the Company, and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for general metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs not included in the Wastewater Usage Charge or any other Charge as set forth in Rate Schedule 2-A of the current Tariff:

Deleted: Sewer

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt, All	All	\$ 0.46191	\$4.6191

Deleted: and Exempt

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate or percentage to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for purchased wastewater treatment and disposal;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

(Continued)

Deleted: Effective: May 1, 2023

Deleted: Issued: April 28, 2023

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22110693 dated April 26, 2023.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

First Revised Sheet: No. 49.1
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 49.1

RATE SCHEDULE 2-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)
(Continued)

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for applicable customer class.

Deleted: s

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

Deleted: es

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

~~Eleventh~~ Revised Sheet: No. 50
Superseding ~~Tenth~~ Revised Sheet: No. 50

Reserved for Future Use

~~Deleted: Tenth~~

~~Deleted: Ninth~~

~~Deleted: RATE SCHEDULE 3-A~~
~~GENERAL METERED SERVICE~~

~~APPLICABILITY~~

~~Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service provided by the Company's Adelpia System (service area of the former Adelpia Sewer Company) and other franchise areas within the Township of Howell in Monmouth County. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Sewer Usage Charge, the Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, shown on Rate Schedule 3-B, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.~~

~~CHARACTER OF SERVICE~~

~~Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."~~

~~FIXED SERVICE CHARGE~~

~~All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Sewer Usage Charge, if any, as follows:~~

Non-Exempt	Exempt
Fixed Service Charge per customer per month. \$15.00	\$12.96

~~SEWER USAGE CHARGE~~

~~The volume of sewer use is assumed to equal water meter registration. Charges shall be based on water consumption as indicated by water meter readings on a monthly basis (or quarterly, at the option of the Company). Where wastewater service is provided and water used on the premise is not supplied or metered by the Company, then a monthly usage constant of 4,000 gallons will be used for billing purposes.~~

... [15]

~~Deleted:~~

~~TERMS OF PAYMENT~~

~~Valid bills for wastewater service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears (or quarterly at the option of the Company), and are due fifteen (15) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date.~~

~~Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.~~

~~Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022~~

~~Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022~~

~~By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.~~

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Twelfth Revised Sheet: No. 51
Superseding Eleventh Revised Sheet: No. 51

Deleted: Eleventh
Deleted: Tenth

RATE SCHEDULE 3-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Wastewater Service customer classes including general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service customers provided service by the Company's Adelpia System (service area of the former Adelpia Sewer Company) and other franchise areas within the Township of Howell in Monmouth County. The PSTAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased wastewater treatment and disposal associated with the normal operations of the Company, and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for general metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs not included in the Wastewater Usage Charge or any other Charge as set forth in Rate Schedule 2-A of the current Tariff:

Deleted: Sewer
Deleted: 3

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt, All		\$0.69196	\$6.9196

Deleted: and Exempt

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for purchased wastewater treatment and disposal;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

(Continued)

Deleted: Effective: May 1, 2023 ¶
Deleted: Issued: April 28, 2023 ¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President ¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102 ¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in ¶
Docket No. WR22110693 dated April 26, 2023.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

First Revised Sheet No. 51.1
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 51.1

RATE SCHEDULE 3-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)
(Continued)

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7 et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule, for applicable customer class.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Deleted: s
Deleted: es

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶
Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President ¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102 ¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered
in ¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 52
Superseding Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 52

Deleted: Fourth

Deleted: Third

Deleted: ¶

RATE SCHEDULE 5-A
GENERAL FLAT RATE SERVICE
STATEWIDE COLLECTION AND TREATMENT AREAS

APPLICABILITY FOR GENERAL FLAT RATE WASTEWATER SERVICE CUSTOMERS

Applicable to all general flat rate wastewater service customers located in the Company's Tewksbury System (Pottersville - service area of the former Valley Road Sewerage Company) in the Township of Tewksbury in Hunterdon County, and Service Areas noted as (A) and (B), formerly served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"), on Sheet No. 44 (COWS) who are not water service customers of NJAWC. The Class A/Class B designations in effect at the time rates were set by the Board in Docket. No. WR11070460 (May 1, 2012) shall remain in effect unless changed by order of the Board. No new Class A designations shall be made except at the discretion of the Company. The Company's charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of a Flat Rate Service Charge, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

FLAT RATE SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL FLAT RATE WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a flat rate service charge as indicated below.

	RATE PER MONTH
CLASS A	\$86.00
CLASS B	100.00

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 97

Deleted: 87

The Class A/Class B designations in effect at the time rates were set by the Board in Docket. No. WR11070460 (May 1, 2012) are as follows:

CLASS A

- 4 BEDROOM AGE RESTRICTED
- 3 BEDROOM AGE RESTRICTED
- 2 BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE
- 3 BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE AGE RESTRICTED
- 2 BEDROOM AGE RESTRICTED

- 1 BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE

CLASS B

- DETACHED SINGLE FAMILY
- 3 BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE

CHARACTER OF FLAT RATE SERVICE

Continuous (unmetered), except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due ~~twenty (20)~~ within (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022 ¶

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022 ¶

¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Seventh Revised Sheet: No. 53
Superseding Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 53

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: Fifth

RATE SCHEDULE 6-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE
STATEWIDE COLLECTION AND TREATMENT AREAS

APPLICABILITY FOR GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER SERVICE CUSTOMERS

Applicable to all general metered wastewater service customers located in the Company's Tewksbury System (Pottersville - service area of the former Valley Road Sewerage Company) in the Township of Tewksbury in Hunterdon County, Service Areas noted as (A) and (B), formerly served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"), on Sheet No. 44 (COWS and Homestead) who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC, and the Mansfield Warehousing Area. The Company's charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, a Wastewater Usage Charge, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

Deleted: Sewer

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a fixed service charge as indicated below, in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any.

Deleted: Sewer

RATE PER MONTH

Non-Exempt \$65.50

Deleted: 50

Deleted: 0

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

The volume of wastewater use is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

Deleted: SEWER

Deleted: Sewer

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$1.03990	\$10.3990

Deleted: 0.76

Deleted: 00

Deleted: 7

Deleted: .600

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022 ¶

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022 ¶

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in ¶
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in

Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Tenth Revised Sheet: No. 54
Superseding Ninth Revised Sheet: No. 54

Deleted: Ninth
Deleted: Eighth

**RATE SCHEDULE 8-A
OTHER CONTRACTS**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to wastewater service customers located in the Service Areas noted as D, formerly served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"), and C, formerly served by Environmental Disposal Corp. ("EDC") on Sheet No. 44 (Other Contracts).

Deleted: (

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous (unmetered).

RATES

SERVICE AREA	CLASS	RATE PER MONTH	
Applied	Schools	\$153.80	Per Formula*
Applied	Other	153.80	Per Equivalent Dwelling Units**
EDC	Bulk User***	9,6010	Per 1,000 Gallons

Deleted: 120.00

Deleted: 20.00

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 47

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Deleted: either monthly or quarterly, at the option of the Company, ...

Deleted: fifteen (15)

* Quarterly Charge = \$360.00 x (Average Daily Enrollment x Student GPD)/300
Where Student GPD is as follows:
NJDEP projected usage per Elementary School student = 15 GPD
NJDEP projected usage per Middle School student = 20 GPD
NJDEP projected usage per High School student = 25 GPD

**An equivalent residential customer is based on 235 GPD

*** Rates for treatment of wastewater of BULK USER Customers delivered by said customers to the EDC treatment facility as set forth in this Tariff Sheet shall supersede the contractual rates and terms set forth in each of the Amended and Restated Sewer Allocation and Bulk User Agreements Between Environmental Disposal Corp. and the Boroughs of Bedminster, Far Hills, and Peapack and Gladstone ("Bulk User Agreements"), respectively.

Deleted: sewage

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022 ¶

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022 ¶
¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Second Revised Sheet: No. 55
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 55

Deleted: First

Deleted: Original

RATE SCHEDULE 9-A
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE CHARGES

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all classes of customers unless specified for the following classes of miscellaneous services throughout the entire area served by the Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

BAD CHECK CHARGE

If the Company receives a negotiable instrument from a customer in payment of a bill, charge, or deposit due, and such instrument is subsequently dishonored or uncollectible for any reason, the Company shall charge the customer a handling charge per instrument of \$15.00.

If a bad check charge is applied to a customer account, that amount, as well as the amount of the dishonored check shall be paid with cash, certified check, money order, bank check, or other means of guaranteed payment before such account shall be deemed paid. Additionally, if a customer presents two checks that are dishonored by the bank as a result of the customer's error, the customer will be required to pay by the methods stated above for a period of twelve months from the date of the last dishonored check.

The provisions of this Tariff section shall not be deemed to require a customer to submit to automatic deduction from any bank account, credit card, or by on-line banking but the Company may offer same as an option provided the customer is presented with all other available options offered by the Company.

RESUMPTION OF SERVICE AFTER PHYSICAL DISCONNECTION OR PLUGGING DUE TO NONPAYMENT OF BILLS OR VIOLATION OF THE COMPANY'S RULES

Wastewater Service - At any time Greater of \$350.00 or actual cost

Deleted: Sewer

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The Company may waive the fees and charges referenced in this Rate Schedule 9-A for a customer who is enrolled in the Company's H2O Help to Others Program or the Low Income Payment Program, provided that the customer is not deemed to have been abusing and/or taking advantage of the system, including but not limited to repeatedly requiring service reconnections more than three (3) times in any twelve (12) month period.

Deleted: H2O

Deleted: Effective: November 1, 2020 ¶

Deleted: Issued: October 30, 2020 ¶

¶
By: Cheryl Norton, President¶
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 55.1
Superseding Third Revised Sheet: No. 55.1

Deleted: Third
Deleted: Second

**RATE SCHEDULE 9-A.1
WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT CHARGE**

Applicable to all wastewater treatment and service customers on Rate Schedules 1-A, 2-A, 5-A, 6-A, 10-A, 11-A and 13-A, and Rate Schedule 16-A effective June 2, 2025.

Deleted: 3-A,
Deleted: 12-A

CHARACTER

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions".

WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT CHARGE (WSIC)

In addition to all other charges for wastewater collection and treatment throughout the entire territory served, the following charges will be assessed on a fixed, per meter or meter equivalent basis for each monthly bill, commencing _____.

Deleted: December 30, 2023

RATE

This charge is in addition to Rate Schedules 1-A, 2-A, 3-A, 5-A, 6-A, 10-A, 11-A and 12-A.

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month	Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$0.00	0.00
3/4"	0.00	0.00
1"	0.00	0.00
1 1/2"	0.00	0.00
2"	0.00	0.00
3"	0.00	0.00
4"	0.00	0.00
6"	0.00	0.00
8"	0.00	0.00
10"	0.00	0.00
12"	0.00	0.00
16"	0.00	0.00

Deleted: 2.85
Deleted: \$2.46
Formatted Table
Deleted: 4.27
Deleted: 3.69
Deleted: 7.12
Deleted: 6.15
Deleted: 14.25
Deleted: 12.31
Deleted: 22.80
Deleted: 19.69
Deleted: 42.74
Deleted: 36.92
Deleted: 71.24
Deleted: 61.53
Deleted: 142.48
Deleted: 123.06
Deleted: 227.97
Deleted: 196.90
Deleted: 284.96
Deleted: 246.12
Deleted: 356.20
Deleted: 307.66
Deleted: 569.91
Deleted: 492.25

LINK

The WSIC is authorized pursuant to N.J.A.C. 14:9-11.1 et seq. and the procedures for filing, reviewing, approving and implementing the WSIC are set forth therein. The WSIC is based on the Company's Foundational Filing, which was reviewed and approved by the Board of Public Utilities on October 6, 2021. The approval process included public notice and public hearings. The notice included proposed surcharge amounts, which were estimated based on projected construction schedules, costs and other factors. Pursuant to the approved Foundational Filing, the Company shall endeavor to make semi-annual WSIC filings at approximately six-month intervals. The WSIC is subject to a maximum amount and other limitations in N.J.A.C. 14:9-11.1 et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedules for applicable customer classes.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Deleted: SPECIAL PROVISION¶
*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$0.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$0.01 multiplied by 0.863727 863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

Issued: November 15, 2023

Effective: December 30, 2023

By: Mark McDonough, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in Docket No. WR21060917 dated October 6, 2021.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 55.2

RATE SCHEDULE 9-A.2
UNIVERSAL AFFORDABILITY

AVAILABILITY

Available to all residential wastewater service customers served by the Company in all service areas who meet the income criteria of 200% or less than the Federal Poverty Level ("FPL"). NJ Share determines and maintains the qualification requirements for the Company's discount programs. Customers who qualify for the program are required to recertify income eligibility every two years.

APPLICABILITY

The discount will be applied to the Fixed Service Charge and Wastewater Usage Charge (volumetric) portions of the bill for wastewater service. The discount will not apply to the Purchased Wastewater Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1 or the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

DISCOUNT

	<u>Household Income</u>	<u>Fixed Service Charge</u> <u>Discount</u>	<u>Wastewater Charge</u> <u>Discount</u>
Tier 1	0% - 50% of FPL	80%	80%
Tier 2	51% - 100% of FPL	60%	60%
Tier 3	101% - 150% of FPL	40%	40%
Tier 4	151% - 200% of FPL	20%	20%

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

~~Eleventh~~ Revised Sheet: No. 56
Superseding ~~Tenth~~ Revised Sheet: No. 56

~~Deleted: Tenth~~
~~Deleted: Ninth~~

**RATE SCHEDULE 10-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general flat rate residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers served by the Company's Jensen's Deep Run System in the Township of Plumsted in Ocean County. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of a Fixed Service Charge, a ~~Wastewater~~ Usage Charge, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

~~Deleted: Sewer~~

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a fixed service charge as indicated below, in addition to the ~~Wastewater~~ Usage Charge, if any.

~~Deleted: Sewer~~

RATE PER MONTH

Non-Exempt \$40.00

~~Deleted: 3~~

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

The volume of wastewater ~~discharged~~ is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly ~~Wastewater~~ Usage Charges are calculated.

~~Deleted: SEWER~~

~~Deleted: use~~

~~Deleted: Sewer~~

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$1.03990	\$10.3990

~~Deleted: 0~~

~~Deleted: 7400~~

~~Deleted: 7~~

~~Deleted: 40~~

~~Deleted: 0~~

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

~~Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),~~

~~Deleted: fifteen (15)~~

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for wastewater service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due ~~twenty (20)~~ days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

~~Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022~~

~~Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022~~

~~By: Mark K. McDonough, President~~
~~1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102~~
~~Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in~~
~~Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.~~

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

~~Eleventh Revised Sheet: No. 57~~
Superseding ~~Tenth Revised Sheet: No. 57~~

~~Deleted: Tenth~~

~~Deleted: Ninth~~

**RATE SCHEDULE 11-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers served by the Company's Haddonfield Collection System in Camden County. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of a Wastewater Usage Charge based on the water consumption at the location for the same billing period, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

~~Deleted: Sewer~~

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a fixed service charge as indicated below, in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any.

~~Deleted: Sewer~~

RATE PER MONTH

Non-Exempt \$12.50

~~Deleted: 6~~

~~Deleted: 00~~

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

The volume of wastewater use is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

~~Deleted: SEWER~~

~~Deleted: .~~

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.56680	\$5.6680

~~Deleted: Charges shall be based upon water consumption as indicated by water meter readings on a monthly basis (or quarterly, at the option of the Company) ¶¶~~

~~Deleted: 3675~~

~~Deleted: 3.675~~

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for wastewater service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due ~~twenty (20)~~ days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or ~~electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing~~. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

~~Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022 ¶¶~~

~~Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022 ¶¶~~

~~¶¶ By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶¶
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶¶
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.~~

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Eleventh Revised Sheet: No. 58
Superseding Tenth Revised Sheet: No. 58

RATE SCHEDULE 12-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Wastewater Service customer classes including general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in Elk Township. The PSTAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs associated with the normal operations of the Company and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for general metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs not included in the Wastewater Usage Charge or any other Charge as set forth in Rate Schedule 2-A of the current Tariff.

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt, All	All	\$0.40008	\$4.0008

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate or percentage to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for purchased wastewater treatment and disposal;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C., 14:9-7, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for applicable customer class.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

Deleted: Tenth

Deleted: Ninth

Deleted: RATE SCHEDULE 12-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in Elk Township. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Sewer Usage Charge, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE
Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE
All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Sewer Usage Charge, if any, as follows:

Non-Exempt
Fixed Service Charge per customer per month. \$ 20.00

SEWER USAGE CHARGE
The volume of wastewater use is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Sewer Usage Charges are calculated.

Volumetric Charges

Deleted: 1

Deleted: and Exempt

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 59
Superseding Third Revised Sheet: No. 59

**RATE SCHEDULE 13-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in the Borough of Mount Ephraim. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of a Wastewater Usage Charge based on the water consumption at the location for the same billing period, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

Deleted: the Fixed Service Charge.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a fixed service charge as indicated below, in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any.

	RATE PER MONTH
Non-Exempt	\$12.50

Deleted: **FLAT RATE SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL FLAT RATE WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS**
All wastewater service customers shall pay a flat rate service charge as indicated below.
Rate Per Month
Effective
9/1/2022
Deleted: 6.0

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

The volume of wastewater use is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.03590	\$0.3590

Deleted: 3675
Deleted: 3.6750

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for wastewater service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company).

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022
Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022
By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Second Revised Sheet: No. 60
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 60

Deleted: First
Deleted: Original

**RATE SCHEDULE 14-A
GENERAL FLAT RATE SERVICE¹**

Deleted: RATE SCHEDULE 13-A¹
GENERAL METERED SERVICE¹
(Continued)¹
Rate Per Month Effective¹
9/1/2022 [18]

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers in Long Hill Township who do not receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC. The Company may require a water meter to be installed by any wastewater customer utilizing a well or other private water system at the property owner's expense. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the Fixed Service Charge and the Flat Rate Service Charge.

AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE

As the Company has implemented a voluntary wastewater connection ban due to excess wastewater flow, all requests for new wastewater connections to the Long Hill Township wastewater system will be granted at the sole discretion of the Company.

Deleted: sewer
Deleted: sewer

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous (unmetered), except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – WASTEWATER

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Flat Rate Service Charge as indicated below. If a wastewater customer has multiple connections to a single property, only one Fixed Service Charge shall be applied to the wastewater customer.

Deleted: ²

	▼ ▼ RATE PER MONTH
	Effective 10/23/2024
Non-Exempt, per unit	▼ ▼ \$15.93

Deleted: RATE PER MONTH¹
Effective 10/23/2022

Deleted: RATE PER MONTH¹
Effective 10/23/2023

Deleted: \$15.02

Deleted: \$15.47

Deleted: ³

FLAT RATE USAGE CHARGE – WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Flat Rate Usage charge as indicated below.

	▼ ▼ RATE PER MONTH
	Effective 10/23/2024
Non-Exempt Residential, per connection	▼ ▼ \$52.37
Non-Exempt Commercial, Industrial and Municipal, per connection	▼ ▼ \$109.27

Deleted: RATE PER MONTH¹
Effective 10/23/2022

Deleted: RATE PER MONTH¹
Effective 10/23/2023

Deleted: \$49.36

Deleted: \$50.84

Deleted: \$103.00

Deleted: \$106.09

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE DISCOUNT – RESIDENTIAL WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

Residential wastewater customers of Long Hill Township enrolled in the Township's Senior Discount Program as of October 22, 2020, shall receive a Fixed Service Charge discount of \$40.00 annually, or \$3.33 per month. After October 22, 2020, customers will no longer be added to this Fixed Service Charge Discount program.

Deleted: The Company has a residential customer assistance program for its low-income customers who are having difficulty paying water and/or wastewater bills issued by the Company....

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Fixed Service Charges and Flat Rate Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022 ¹

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022¹

By: Mark K. McDonough, President¹
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¹
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¹
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

¹ The rates on this schedule will increase by 3% on 10/23/2024 by the terms of the Agreement of Sale between Long Hill Township and New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Issued: _____ Effective _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Second Revised Sheet: No. 61
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 61

Deleted: First
Deleted: Original

**RATE SCHEDULE 15-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE⁴**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers in Long Hill Township who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge and the Wastewater Usage Charge.

Deleted: Sewer

AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE

As the Company has implemented a voluntary wastewater connection ban due to excess wastewater flow, all requests for new wastewater connections to the Long Hill Township wastewater system will be granted at the sole discretion of the Company.

Deleted: sewer
Deleted: sewer

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, as indicated below. If a wastewater customer has multiple connections to a single property, only one Fixed Service Charge shall be applied to the wastewater customer.

Deleted: \$
Deleted: Sewer

	RATE PER MONTH Effective 10/23/2024
Non-Exempt, per unit	\$15.93

Deleted: RATE PER MONTH
Effective 10/23/2022

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater discharged for monthly billing purposes shall be calculated by taking the total water metered (Actual Usage) for the six (6) winter months (January through March and October through December) from the preceding billing year, and dividing that Actual Usage by twelve (12).

Deleted: RATE PER MONTH
Effective 10/23/2023

Deleted: \$15.02

Deleted: \$15.47

Deleted: SEWER

If the meter is not read or incorrectly read for one or more months of the Actual Usage period as determined by the Company, the amount charged for those months shall be equal to the approximate average monthly usage among other billable months during the same period.

Deleted: \$

Deleted: used

Deleted: ,

Volumetric Charges

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt Effective 10/23/2024	All	\$1.99640	\$19.9640

Deleted: Non-Exempt Effective 10/23/2022

Deleted: All

Deleted: \$1.88180

Deleted: \$18.8180

Deleted: Non-Exempt Effective 10/23/2023

Deleted: All

Deleted: \$1.93830

Deleted: \$19.3830

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE DISCOUNT – RESIDENTIAL WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

Residential wastewater customers of Long Hill Township enrolled in the Township's Senior Discount Program as of October 22, 2020, shall receive a Fixed Service Charge discount of \$40.00 annually, or \$3.33 per month. After October 22, 2020, customers will no longer be added to this Fixed Service Charge Discount program.

Deleted: The Company has a residential customer assistance program for its low-income customers who are having difficulty paying water and/or wastewater bills issued by the Company.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Fixed Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Deleted: Effective: September 1, 2022

Deleted: Issued: August 29, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022

⁴ The rates on this schedule will increase by 3% on 10/23/2024 by the terms of the Agreement of Sale between Long Hill Township and New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Second Revised Sheet: No. 62
Superseding First Sheet: No. 62

RATE SCHEDULE 16-A
GENERAL METERED AND FLAT RATE SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial, and municipal wastewater service to customers in Service Area 1G, the Egg Harbor City Utility. Those who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC will receive volume-based wastewater service billings; all others will receive flat rate billings for unmetered service. The Company may require a water meter to be installed by any wastewater customer utilizing a well or other private water system at the property owner's expense. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Wastewater Usage Charge, the Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, shown on Rate Schedule 16-B, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A 1.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous (unmetered), except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a fixed service charge as indicated below, in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any.

	RATE PER MONTH
Non-Exempt	\$12.50

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater use is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

Non-Exempt	Gallons	Rate	Rate
	Per Month	Per 100 Gallons	Per 1,000 Gallons
All		\$0.42260	\$4.2260

FLAT RATE SERVICE CHARGE – WASTEWATER

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Flat Rate Service Charge as indicated below.

RATE PER MONTH

Non-Exempt	\$16.40
------------	---------

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Flat Rate Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Issued:

Effective: June 2, 2025

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated

Deleted: First

Deleted: Original

Deleted: , who do not receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 6.

Deleted: 0

Deleted: 7500

Deleted: 7.5

Deleted: 00

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 58.33

Deleted: CALCULATION OF WINTER QUARTER CONSUMPTION ¶

Deleted: Winter quarter consumption shall be determined based on an initial water meter reading taken in December of one year with the concluding meter reading taken approximately 90 days thereafter in March of the following year.¶

The monthly Wastewater Usage Charge shall be determined as follows:¶

Meters read in January, February and March¶

The Wastewater Usage Charge for each respective month shall be determined by multiplying the applicable monthly usage times applicable volumetric charges, but in no case less than 2,493 gallons per month, multiplied by applicable volumetric charges.¶

Meters read in April through December¶

The Wastewater Usage Charge for each month April through December shall be based on the Monthly Usage Constant, equal to one-third of the winter quarter consumption, but in no case less than 2,493 gallons per month, multiplied by applicable volumetric charges.¶

In the case of new customers, the volume of wastewater discharged shall be determined as follows:¶

New Customers in an Existing or New Dwelling or Premises for Which Actual Full Period Winter Quarter Usage History is Available: Determination of the monthly use constant shall be based on the last known full period winter quarter usage at that property.¶

Existing or New Customers in an Existing or New Dwelling or Premises for Which No Full Period Winter Quarter Usage History is Available: Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges will be calculated at the minimum usage of 2,493 gallons per month.¶

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company)

Deleted: fifteen (15)

Deleted: Effective: June 1, 2023 ¶

Deleted: Issued: June 12, 2023¶

¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶
Filed pursuant to Orders of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶
Docket Nos. WE21091147, WE21091148 & WE21091... [19]

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Second Revised Sheet: No. 63
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 63

Deleted: First

Deleted: Original

RATE SCHEDULE 16-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Wastewater Service customer classes including general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in Service Area 1G, the Egg Harbor City Utility. The PSTAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs associated with the normal operations of the Company and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for general metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs not included in the Wastewater Usage Charge or any other Charge as set forth in Rate Schedule 16-A of the current Tariff.

Non-Exempt	Gallons	Rate	Rate
	Per Month	Per 100 Gallons	Per 1,000 Gallons
	All	\$0.44935	\$4.4935

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate or percentage to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for purchased wastewater treatment and disposal.
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned.
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above.
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for applicable customer class.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Deleted: RATE SCHEDULE 17-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial, and municipal wastewater service to customers in Service Area 1G, the Egg Harbor City Utility, who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Sewer Usage Charge, as indicated below.

[20]

Issued: _____

Effective: June 2, 2025

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

First Revised Sheet: No. 64
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 64

RATE SCHEDULE 18-A
GENERAL FLAT RATE SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers in the Borough of Bound Brook who do not receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC. The Company may require a water meter to be installed by any wastewater customer utilizing a well or other private water system at the property owner's expense.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous (unmetered), except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FLAT RATE SERVICE CHARGE – WASTEWATER

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Flat Rate Service Charge as indicated below.

	<u>RATE PER MONTH⁷</u>
Non-Exempt	\$40.77

~~Deleted: ¶~~
~~Deleted: 39.58~~

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due ~~twenty (20)~~ days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted ~~or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing~~. All bills shall list a due date.

~~Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company)~~
~~Deleted: fifteen (15)~~

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Flat Rate Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

⁷ The Flat Rate Service Charge will increase by 3% on 8/12/2025, and 8/12/2026 by the terms of the Agreement of Sale between the Borough of Bound Brook and New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

~~Deleted: Effective: August 11, 2022 ¶~~
~~Deleted: Issued: August 18, 2022 ¶~~
~~¶~~
~~By: Mark K. McDonough, President ¶~~
~~1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102 ¶~~
~~Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in ¶~~
~~Docket No. WE22020072 dated July 14, 2022.~~

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

First Revised Sheet: No. 65
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 65

**RATE SCHEDULE 19-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE³**

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers in the Borough of Bound Brook who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, as indicated below.

	<u>RATE PER MONTH</u>
Non-Exempt	\$5.15

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater use is assumed to equal water meter registration.

Volumetric Charges

Customer Class*	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt Residential Tax Exempt Commercial – Class 1	All	\$0.65920	\$6.5920
Multiple-Dwelling	All	0.72510	7.2510
Commercial – Class 2 Industrial Significant Industrial Integrated Health Services and Successors Mixed Residential and Commercial Class 2	All	0.82400	8.2400

*Customer Class as these terms were defined by the Borough of Bound Brook at the time of acquisition, as follows:

Residential: any property solely used as a home or residence, including single family, multi two-family, and single dwelling condominium form of ownership, discharging domestic waste.

Tax-Exempt: any property exempt from real property taxation, discharging domestic waste.

Commercial - Class 1: any nonresidential property solely used for nonresidential purposes, including the retail of nonprocessed goods or for office or other business uses discharging domestic wastes.

Multiple-Dwelling: A building containing three or more dwelling units, discharging domestic waste.

Commercial - Class 2: Any property used for nonresidential purposes, including any use not classified in "Commercial User Class 1," discharging domestic wastes. Class 2 users include but are not limited to: industrial park, any property utilized for preparing food for sale, hair and nail salons, barber shops, laundromats and dry cleaners, automotive and small engine repair and sales, fueling/service stations, and funeral homes.

Industrial - Any person or property who discharges, causes, or permits the direct or indirect discharge of nondomestic wastewater into the treatment works. All nondomestic wastes discharged by an industrial user shall be considered industrial waste. **Multiple-Dwelling:** A building containing three or more dwelling units, discharging domestic wastes.

Significant Industrial - A user defined as a significant industrial user pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Middlesex County Utilities Authority.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Fixed Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

³ All rates on this schedule will increase by 3% on 8/12/2025, and 8/12/2026 by the terms of the Agreement of Sale between the Borough of Bound Brook and New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

Deleted: Sewer

Deleted: 00

Deleted: SEWER

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 000

Deleted: 4000

Deleted: 04

Deleted: 0

Deleted: 040

Deleted: 00

Deleted: 00

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company),

Deleted: fifteen (15)

Deleted: Effective: August 11, 2022 ¶

Deleted: Issued: August 18, 2022 ¶

¶
By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WE22020072 dated July 14, 2022.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

First Revised Sheet: No. 66
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 66

RATE SCHEDULE 20-A
GENERAL METERED AND FLAT RATE SERVICE⁹

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers in the Borough of Somerville and the portion of the Township of Bridgewater served by the Somerville System. Those who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC will receive volume-based wastewater service billings; all others will receive flat rate billings for unmetered service. The Company may require a water meter to be installed by any wastewater customer utilizing a well or other private water system at the property owner's expense. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Wastewater Usage Charge, and the Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, shown on Rate Schedule 20-B.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges shall be determined based upon winter quarter consumption (detailed below), but in no case less than 2,493 gallons per month.

Customer Location	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Somerville	All	\$0.34759	\$3.4759
Bridgewater	All	0.48128	4.8128

FLAT RATE SERVICE CHARGE

Customer Location	Rate Per Month
Somerville	\$32.00
Bridgewater	\$40.33

CALCULATION OF WINTER QUARTER CONSUMPTION

Winter quarter consumption shall be determined based on an initial water meter reading taken in December of one year with the concluding meter reading taken approximately 90 days thereafter in March of the following year.

The monthly Wastewater Usage Charge shall be determined as follows:

Meters read in January, February and March

The Wastewater Usage Charge for each respective month shall be determined by multiplying the applicable monthly usage times applicable volumetric charges, but in no case less than 2,493 gallons per month, multiplied by applicable volumetric charges.

Meters read in April through December

The Wastewater Usage Charge for each month April through December shall be based on the Monthly Usage Constant, equal to one-third of the winter quarter consumption, but in no case less than 2,493 gallons per month, multiplied by applicable volumetric charges.

In the case of new customers, the volume of wastewater discharged shall be determined as follows:

New Customers in an Existing or New Dwelling or Premises for Which Actual Full Period Winter Quarter Usage History is Available: Determination of the monthly use constant shall be based on the last known full period winter quarter usage at that property.

Existing or New Customers in an Existing or New Dwelling or Premises for Which No Full Period Winter Quarter Usage History is Available: Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges will be calculated at the minimum usage of 2,493 gallons per month.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears, and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Fixed Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

⁹ The rates on this schedule will increase by 3% on October 4th in 2025, 2026, and 2027, and by 4% on October 4th in 2028 and 2029 by the terms of the Agreement of Sale between the Borough of Somerville and New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: SEWER

Deleted: sewer

Deleted: use

Deleted: Sewer

Deleted: 86898

Deleted: 8.6898

Deleted: 1.00267

Deleted: 10.

Deleted: 0267

Deleted: 45

Deleted: 53

Deleted: Sewer

Deleted: Sewer

Deleted: Sewer

Deleted: sewer

Deleted: use

Deleted: Sewer

Deleted: (or quarterly at the option of the Company)

Deleted: fifteen (15)

Deleted: Effective: October 3, 2023¶

¶

Deleted: Issued: October 9, 2023¶

¶

By: Mark K. McDonough, President¶

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102¶

Filed pursuant to Orders of the Board of Public Utilities entered in¶

Docket Nos. WE23030197 and WE23040233 dated September 27, 2023.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 -- Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 67

RATE SCHEDULE 20-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers in the Borough of Somerville and the portion of the Township of Bridgewater served by the Somerville System.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for general metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs not included in the Wastewater Usage Charge or Flat Rate Service Charge any other Charge as set forth in Rate Schedule 20-A:

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.52139	\$5.2139

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate or percentage to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for wastewater treatment and disposal;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for applicable customer class.

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14-9-7, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14-9-7, et seq.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 68

RATE SCHEDULE 21-A
GENERAL METERED AND FLAT RATE SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial, and municipal wastewater service to customers in the Environmental Disposal Corp. ("EDC") Service Area. Those who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC will receive volume-based wastewater service billings; all others will receive flat rate billings for unmetered service. The Company may require a water meter to be installed by any wastewater customer utilizing a well or other private water system at the property owner's expense.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous (unmetered), except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a fixed service charge as indicated below, in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any.

	<u>Rate Per Month</u>
Non-Exempt	\$39.97

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

	<u>Gallons</u>	<u>Rate</u>	<u>Rate</u>
	<u>Per Month</u>	<u>Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$1.03990	\$10.3990

FLAT RATE SERVICE CHARGE

	<u>Rate Per Month</u>
Non-Exempt	\$81.57

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Flat Rate Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President

1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in

Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 69

RATE SCHEDULE 22-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service provided in Salem City and the Township of Mannington. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge and the Wastewater Usage Charge.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any, as follows:

	Non-Exempt
Fixed Service Charge per customer per month	\$56.88

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. Charges shall be based on water consumption as indicated by water meter readings on a monthly basis.

Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
All	\$0.88500	\$8.8500

SPECIAL SURCHARGES

Item	Additional Cost
Per pound of BODs	\$0.26000
Per pound of suspended solids	\$0.16000
Septage rate per gallon	\$0.08000

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for wastewater service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 70

RATE SCHEDULE 23-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE¹⁰

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service provided in the Borough of Manville. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Wastewater Usage Charge, and the Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, shown on Rate Schedule 23-B.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any, as follows:

	Non-Exempt
Fixed Service Charge per customer per month.	\$7.20

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

	Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons	Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.17136	\$1.7136

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for wastewater service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

¹⁰ The rates on this schedule will increase by 2% in 2025, 3% in 2026, 2027 and 2028, and 4% in 2029 and 2030 by the terms of the Agreement of Sale between the Borough of Manville and New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 71

RATE SCHEDULE 23-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Wastewater Service customer classes including general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in the Borough of Manville. The PSTAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs associated with the normal operations of the Company and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for general metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs not included in the Wastewater Usage Charge or any other Charge as set forth in Rate Schedule 23-A of the current Tariff.

Non-Exempt	Gallons	Rate	Rate
	Per Month	Per 100 Gallons	Per 1,000 Gallons
All		\$ 0.51380	\$5.1380

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate or percentage to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for purchased wastewater treatment and disposal.
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned.
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above.
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period, and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14-9-7, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14-9-7, et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for applicable customer class.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 - Water and Wastewater

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

TARIFF FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, New Jersey 08102

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Sheet No.</u>
New Jersey-American Water: Water and Wastewater	
Table of Contents	1
An Introduction to Customers	2
Definitions – Water	3
Definitions – Wastewater.....	5
An Overview of Customer Rights.....	6
General Rules.....	6
Standard Terms and Conditions	8
Deposits.....	8
Form of Bill for Metered Service.....	8
Budget Billing	9
Financial Aid.....	10
Deferred Payment Arrangements.....	11
Discontinuance of Service	11
Restoration of Service.....	14
Theft of Service	14
Late Payment Charge.....	14
Meter.....	15
Applications for Service	16
New Jersey-American Water: Water Service	
Standard Terms and Conditions - Water	18
Water Service And Connecting Lines	18
Company Side – Service Lines.....	18
Customer Side – Connecting Lines	18
Water Main Extensions	19
Customer’s Premises	19
Private Fire Protection Service.....	20
Public Fire Protection Service	21
Multi-Use Service	21
Emergency Responses Due to Extraordinary Demand and/or Diminished Supply.....	21
New Jersey-American Water: Wastewater Service	
Standard Terms and Conditions - Wastewater	23
A. Wastewater Main Extensions	23
B. Calculation of Winter Quarter Consumption.....	23
C. Special Requirements Relating to Wastewater Service – Collection Systems	24
D. Special Requirements Relating to Wastewater Service – Treatment Systems.....	26
New Jersey-American Water: Water Service Rate Schedules	
Area Served – Water	28
Water Service Rate Schedules Table of Contents.....	33
New Jersey-American Water: Wastewater Service Rate Schedules	
Area Served – Wastewater	44
Wastewater Service Rate Schedules Table of Contents	45

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

AN INTRODUCTION TO CUSTOMERS

The approved tariff located in the Company's office at 1 Water Street, Camden, NJ, and on its website at <https://www.amwater.com/njaw/customer-service-billing/your-water-and-wastewater-rates>, is available for your review. The Company is obligated to keep its tariff current, including any changes approved by the Board of Public Utilities. The Company is required to maintain it in exactly the same format as the Company's tariff on file at the Board of Public Utilities, 44 South Clinton Avenue, 1st Floor, Trenton, NJ.

Through the Company's My Account portal, customers can complete some of the most common functions associated with their accounts and schedule some appointments. The Company's Customer Service personnel can also be reached at 1-800-272-1325 for assistance. If, after you review this tariff and discuss it with appropriate Company employees, you still have questions regarding clarification or interpretations, please contact the Board of Public Utilities, Division of Water at 1-609-633-9800 or the Board's Division of Customer Assistance at www.nj.gov/bpu/ or 1-800-624-0241.

You have the right to review this tariff at the Company's offices or at the Board's office in Trenton. Your inquiries will be handled by the Board's Staff in an expeditious manner in order to protect your rights as well as those of the water and/or wastewater Company. Please feel free to exercise this right by telephone or by visiting the Board's offices at any time between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, or by writing a letter. The letter should contain the writer's name, address and phone number, including the area code. If the writer is a customer of record, the account number should be included.

The Company also has available in its office a leaflet entitled "The Utility Customer's Bill of Rights." This is a summary document; it does not include all customer rights or utility obligations.

New Jersey-American Water hereby adopts the rules and regulations promulgated by the Board of Public Utilities of the State of New Jersey, some of which are referenced herein, and all of which are herein adopted and incorporated by reference. New Jersey-American Water provides water and wastewater service to various municipalities, all in the State of New Jersey.

The Board of Public Utilities is responsible for the final interpretation and enforcement of a utility's tariff provisions and rates. The utility is bound by New Jersey's statutes and the Board's regulations. If a conflict should exist in the tariff that is detrimental to the customer, the Board's regulations supersede the tariff provision absent specific approval to the contrary by the NJ Board of Public Utilities. A utility company may provide for more liberal treatment than that provided for in the Board's regulations.

Tariff B.P.U. No. 8 - Water and Wastewater is divided into a water section and a wastewater section, preceded by standard terms and conditions which are universally applicable, standard terms and conditions applicable to water service only, and standard terms and conditions applicable to wastewater service only. Tables of contents for each section precede a series of sequentially numbered and lettered tariff rate schedules. The tables of contents denote the appropriate rate schedule applicability for all classes of service and are an integral part of this tariff.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

DEFINITIONS - WATER

The following are definitions of specific terms that are used in this document:

- 1- "Board" or "BPU" shall mean the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities.
- 2- "Company" or "New Jersey-American Water" shall mean New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc. or, as applicable, any predecessor entity.
- 3- "Connecting line" is the portion of pipe that starts at the curb stop and conveys domestic water and/or fire service to the customer. The customer and/or premises owner owns, and is responsible for the operation and maintenance of the connecting line.
- 4- "Curb stop" is the fitting attached to the service line on the roadside utility right-of-way of the property, and is used primarily for turning on and shutting off water at the curb in emergencies, for purposes of repair or to discontinue service to a customer.
- 5- "Customer" means a person that is an end-user, a customer of record or both, as defined in N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.1. "Customer of Record" means the person that applies for utility service and is identified in the account records of a public utility as the person responsible for payment of the public utility bill. A customer may or may not be an end-user. "End User" means a person who receives, uses, or consumes water or wastewater service. An end user may or may not be a customer of record.
- 6- "DEP" shall mean the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection.
- 7- "End User" means a person who receives, uses, or consumes water or receives wastewater or fire protection service. An end user may or may not be a customer or a premises owner.
- 8- "Extension" is an addition to the existing system of mains, intended to service more than one customer, either at the time of installation or in the future.
- 9- "Interruptible Service" means service which may be interrupted in the sole discretion of the Company on not less than three (3) hours' notice to the customer by telephone or otherwise.
- 10- "Main" is a pipe or conduit for conveying water or wastewater. A "water main" will exclusively convey water and a "wastewater main" will exclusively convey wastewater.
- 11- "Meter" is a device to measure the quantity of water, wastewater and/or the rate of flow delivered to or from a customer.
- 12- "Meter pit" is a structure that houses a small meter or meters less than or equal to 2-inches. Unless agreed to by the Company and the customer, it is installed, furnished and maintained by the Company.
- 13- "Meter vault" is a structure that houses a meter or meters larger than 2-inches. Unless explicitly agreed to by the Company and the customer in writing, it is located and designed by the Company, and constructed, installed, furnished and maintained by the Customer at the sole expense to the customer. The Company will ensure that the vault is kept clear of any of its equipment that is no longer in service, to the extent possible.
- 14- "Person" means an individual, firm, joint venture, partnership, co-partnership, corporation, association, State, county, municipality, public agency or authority, bi-state or interstate agency or authority, public utility, regulated entity, cable television company, cooperation association, or joint stock association, trust, limited liability company, governmental entity, or other legal entity, and includes any trustee, receiver, assignee, or personal representative thereof. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.1)
- 15- "Premises" is defined as follows:
 - a) A building under one-roof, owned or leased by one customer and occupied as one place of business or residence.
 - b) A combination of buildings, owned or leased by one customer in one common enclosure, occupied by one family or business.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

DEFINITIONS – WATER (Continued)

- c) A combination of buildings, such as a garden type apartment, owned or leased by one customer, in one common enclosure, none of the individual buildings of which is adapted to separate ownership.
 - d) The one side of a double house having a solid vertical partition wall, so that it may be adapted to separate ownership.
 - e) A building owned or leased by one person, of more than one apartment and using in common one hall and one entrance.
 - f) A building owned or leased by one person, having a number of apartments or offices, and using a common one hall and one or more means of entrance.
 - g) A public building or a single plot such as a park or a playground.
 - h) A building or combination of buildings owned by one customer or entity located on contiguous property not intersected or intervened by another customer or entity.
- 16- "Premises owner" is the party who possesses the exclusive right to hold, use, benefit from, enjoy, convey, transfer, and otherwise dispose of the property. A premises owner may or may not be the customer of record or end-user, as defined in N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.1.
- 17- "PWAC" or "Purchased water adjustment clause" is a provision that authorizes a utility to adjust its rates to compensate for an increase or decrease in the cost of water purchased from a water purveyor. (N.J.A.C. 14:9-7.2)
- 18- "PWAC Year" shall mean the twelve-month period beginning each April 1 and ending March 31 of the following calendar year.
- 19- "Residential customer" means a customer who receives service from a regulated entity for use in a residence. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.1)
- 20- "Sales for Resale Customer" means a municipal water system, a Municipal Utilities Authority, a County Utilities Authority, a Water Supply Authority, district or commission or a water utility regulated by the Board.
- 21- "Service line" is the portion of pipe that starts from a main and ends at the curb stop. The service line is owned, operated and maintained by the Company. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-8)
- 22- "Tap" is the fitting inserted in the main to which the service line is attached. It is used to facilitate the tapping of the main and for shutting off water in case of repairs to the service line.
- 23- "Tariff," as referred to herein, is the entire "Tariff for Water and Wastewater Service" as the same may be amended or revised from time to time in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.3, Tariffs.
- 24- "Water connection" includes all service line, taps and curb stops necessary to supply customers with water at their premises from the Company's water mains.
- 25- "Water service" is the act of providing water to a customer.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

DEFINITIONS - WASTEWATER

The following are definitions of specific terms that used hereafter in the tariff. Additional definitions are set forth in the Definitions section of the tariff for water and wastewater service.

- 1- "New Account" as herein used shall be defined as an account opened as the result of the construction of a new building.
- 2- "Building Drain" shall mean that part of the lowest horizontal piping of a drainage system which receives the discharge from drainage pipes inside the walls of the building terminating five (5) feet outside the face of the building wall from whence it becomes known as the building sewer.
- 3- "Building Sewer" shall mean the extension from the building drain to service lateral line and/or other point of connection to the Company wastewater collection system.
- 4- "Biochemical Oxygen Demand", denoted hereinafter as "B.O.D.", shall mean the quantity of oxygen utilized (demanded) in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory procedure in five (5) days when incubated at 20°C.
- 5- "Bulk User" means a municipality which has contracted with the utility for wastewater treatment services. The utility has no responsibility for construction of the mains connecting the Bulk User to the utility nor in the collection of payments of customers of the bulk user. Bulk User customers are not in the service territory of the utility.
- 6- "Suspended Solids" shall mean solids that either float on the surface of or are carried in suspension in water, wastewater or industrial wastes, and which are removable by laboratory filtering.
- 7- "pH" shall mean the logarithm to the base ten of the reciprocal of the weight of hydrogen ions in moles per liter of solution.
- 8- "Garbage" shall mean solid wastes from domestic and commercial preparation, cooking, dispensing or marketing of food or food products and from the handling, storage and sale of produce.
- 9- "Properly Shredded Garbage" shall mean garbage that has been shredded to such a degree that all particles will be carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in the wastewater system with no particle greater than one-half inch (1/2") in any dimension.
- 10- "PSTAC" or "Purchased wastewater treatment adjustment clause" is a provision that authorizes a utility to adjust its rates to compensate for an increase or decrease in the cost of wastewater treatment purchased from a wastewater treatment purveyor. (N.J.A.C. 14:9-7.2)
- 11- "PSTAC Year" shall mean the twelve-month period beginning each April 1 and ending March 31 of the following calendar year.
- 12- "Slug" shall mean the discharge of water, sewage, or industrial waste which in concentration of any constituent or in quantity of flow exceeds for any period of duration longer than fifteen (15) minutes more than five (5) times the average twenty-four hour flow or concentration under normal operating conditions.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Seventh Revised Sheet: No. 6
Superseding Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 6

AN OVERVIEW OF CUSTOMER RIGHTS

- (1) No public utility shall refuse to furnish or supply service to a qualified applicant. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.1
- (2) The utility shall not place the name of a second individual on the account of a residential customer unless specifically requested by said second individual. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.2(b))
- (3) A customer has the right to have any complaint against the utility handled promptly by that utility. (Board Order, Docket No. CO8602155)
- (4) Each utility shall, upon request, furnish its customers with such information as is reasonable in order that the customers may obtain safe, adequate and proper service. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.3(a)) Each utility shall inform its customers, where peculiar or unusual circumstances prevail, as to the conditions under which sufficient and satisfactory service may be secured from its system. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.3(c)) Each utility shall supply its customers with information on the furnishing and performance of service in a manner that tends to conserve energy resources and water resources and preserve the quality of the environment. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.3(d)

GENERAL RULES

- 1- The location of meters and the arrangement of the fittings and piping are subject to inspection and approval of the Company and should meet Company's requirements presented herein.
- 2- The Company will endeavor to provide a regular and uninterrupted supply of water through its facilities. However, if service shall be interrupted, irregular, or defective, or fail because of breakdown or emergency, the Company will not be liable for damage, inconvenience or lost income resulting there from.
- 3- A customer's responsibility to pay for service continues from the time service is commenced, pursuant to his/her application, until notice is received by the Company of a change of ownership or occupancy of the premises or notice is received by the Company to discontinue the applicable service. Upon receipt of such notice, the Company will arrange for a final meter reading and billing. No allowance will be made in case of non-occupancy, unless the Company is notified as stated above.
- 4- The Company does not undertake to render any special service or maintain any fixed pressure. In the event of an accident or for other reasons, the Company may shut off the water in its mains and pipes and may restrict the use of water whenever the public welfare may require it. All customers requiring an uninterrupted supply or a uniform pressure of water for any purpose, such as steam boilers, are cautioned to provide their own means of providing such special uninterrupted service. When the supply is to be interrupted or curtailed, the Company will endeavor to give notice.
- 5- The Company does not undertake to supply any uniform quality of water for special purposes, such as laboratories, manufacturing or processing plants, swimming pools, bleaching or dyeing plants, or laundries. Customers requiring water of special quality, or water free from discoloration or turbidity, are required to provide their own means of treating water, or provide such other protection as may be deemed necessary for the purpose required.
- 6- From time to time, the Company may provide public notices, specific notices, correspondence or other notifications ("Notices") regarding the presence of conditions affecting the quality and/or quantity of water service provided by the Company. (Examples of such Notices include, but are not limited to, boil water alerts, notice of hydrant and main flushing, and notice of water quality testing results.) These Notices may contain information about actions members of the public may wish to, are recommended to, or should take in response to the conditions identified in the Notice. In the event the Company issues a Notice, the Company will not be liable for any expenses or costs incurred by a customer or end-user for any action taken in response to any condition identified in the Notice.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 ____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 6.1

GENERAL RULES (Continued)

- 7- Neither by inspection approval nor failure to approve, nor in any other way, does the Company give any guarantee, or assume any responsibility, expressed or implied, as to the adequacy, safety or characteristics of any structures, equipment, pipes, appliances or devices owned, installed or maintained by the customer or leased by the customer from third parties.
- 8- The Company will not be liable for any loss, injury, casualty, or damage resulting from the supply or use of water service, or from the presence or operation of the Company's structures, equipment, pipes, appliances or devices on the customer's premises.
- 9- No unauthorized person is permitted to turn the water on or off at any street valve, corporation stop, curb stop, or other street connection, or disconnect or remove any meter without the consent of the Company.
- 10- No agent or employee of the Company shall have authority to bind it, by any promise, agreement, or representation not provided in this tariff, or in any way inconsistent therewith

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water and Wastewater

Sixth Revised Sheet: No. 7
Superseding Fifth Revised Sheet: No. 7

GENERAL RULES (Continued)

- 11- Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.
- 12- The quantity of water recorded by the meter shall be taken to be the amount delivered to the customer, except where the meter has been found to be registering fast by more than one and one-half percent (1.5%) or has ceased to register.
- 13- All service provided by the Company except public fire protection shall be metered. Thus, no unmetered water service connections are permitted except as otherwise set forth herein or approved by the Company.
- 14- The Company shall own and provide without charge for each customer supplied on a measured basis, a meter and such appurtenances related to the meter as are customarily furnished by the Company, such as encoders, radio transmitters, meter pits (but not meter vaults), or other devices designed to facilitate the collection of accurate and efficient meter reads.
- 15- The Company requires that all meters be housed inside meter pits (for meters that are less than or equal to 2-inches) or meter vaults (for meters that are larger than 2-inches). Where more than one service type exists (domestic, private fire protection or irrigation) all meters shall be housed inside a meter vault if any one meter is greater than two inches. The Customer is responsible for the installation and maintenance of meter vaults. All meter pits and meter vaults will be located outside of the Customer's structure in a location acceptable to the express approval of the Water Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may grant an exception to this rule on a case by case basis at the Company's discretion.
- 16- The Company maintains and repairs meters except in case of misuse or damage by the customer or the customer's invitees, agents, representatives or contractors, in which case the Company shall charge the customer for repairing and replacing the meter, said charge to be based on the costs related to the removing, repairing, replacing and/or resetting the meter. The charge will be made in accordance with Rate Schedule P-2.
- 17- Where more than one rate schedule is available to particular customers, the utility shall have at all times the duty to assist such customers in the selection of the rate schedule most favorable for their individual requirements and to make every reasonable effort to ensure that such customers are served under the most advantageous schedule.
- 18- Upon the request of a customer, the Company shall send a Spanish language version of the notice of discontinuance for nonpayment. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3(e)
- 19- The Company reserves the right to require any customer having unusual requirements of demand, services or supply to enter into a special written contract, which contract shall provide for the mutual obligations of the customer and Company. Special contracts will be filed with the Board.
- 20- In case of fraud, deception, illegal use, or when it is clearly indicated that the customer is preparing to leave, the Company may demand immediate payment of accounts and terminate service without further notice.
- 21- The Company reserves the right to change, take from or add to this tariff and the Standard Terms and Conditions, to the extent permitted by law, or permitted by the applicable regulations of the state regulatory body having jurisdiction.
- 22- For all materials furnished or services rendered to any governmental agency or unit of the United States, New Jersey, or sub-unit thereof, that is not covered by any other tariff provision or rate schedule, and which pertain to hydrants, meters or situations involving emergencies, the charges will be 10% more than the total of the following applicable items:
 - (a) Equipment and materials: actual costs;
 - (b) Labor charges: actual costs (including base plus fringe); and,
 - (c) Other charges: actual costs (such as permits, police protection, contractor labor, restoration, etc.).

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

DEPOSITS

1. If after notice of the methods of establishing credit and being afforded an opportunity, a customer has not established satisfactory credit, the utility may require a deposit. The deposit amount shall be determined in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.4.
2. The utility must furnish a receipt to any customer posting a deposit. The deposit will be returned with simple interest at a rate established annually by the Board of Public Utilities. Once the customer has established satisfactory credit with the utility, the deposit shall be returned to the customer with interest due. The customer has the option of receiving the deposit refund either by a check or a credit on the account. If a residential customer's deposit is not returned, the utility shall credit the customer's account with the accrued interest once every twelve months, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.5.
3. Where a water or wastewater utility furnishes unmetered service, for which payment is received in advance, it may not require a deposit. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.4(j)
4. The Company shall review a residential customer's account at least once every year and a nonresidential customer's account at least once every two years to determine whether the customer has established credit satisfactory to the Company. If this review indicates that the customer has met the utility's standard requirements for establishing credit, the utility shall refund the customer's deposit. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.5, Return of deposits, interest on deposits.
5. If the deposit has remained with the Company for at least three months, without default, it will be returned to the customer with simple interest on an annual basis at a rate established annually by the Board of Public Utilities. Deposits shall cease to bear interest upon the discontinuance of service.

FORM OF BILL FOR METERED SERVICE

6. All bills will be computed in accordance with the rates of the Company as shown in this Tariff, and as the same may be amended or revised from time to time. Rates are subject to such changes as the state regulatory body having jurisdiction may require, authorize or allow.
7. A customer has twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted, or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing, to pay a bill. A water and/or wastewater company may not discontinue water or wastewater service unless it has provided written notice giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. This written notice shall be sent by first class mail, apart from the bill and as a separate mailing. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3 (c)) The notice shall not be given until after the expiration of the said twenty (20) days' time to pay a bill. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3(b)) The notice shall contain sufficient information for the customer to notify the Board of Public Utilities of the nature of the dispute. The utility shall make a good faith effort to determine which of its residential customers are over 65 years of age, and shall make good faith efforts to notify such customers of discontinuance of service by telephone in addition to notice by regular mail. This effort may consist of an appropriate inquiry set forth on the notice informing customers that they may designate a third party to receive notice of discontinuance.
8. Bills rendered must contain the following information: (a) the meter readings at the beginning and end of the billing period; (b) the dates on which the meter is read; (c) the number and kind of units measured; (d) identification of applicable rate schedule or statement that the applicable rate schedule will be furnished upon request; (e) the amount of the bill; (f) a distinctive marking to indicate an estimated, averaged, or remote meter index and web address and telephone number where the customer can obtain a description of the method used; (g) an explanation or statement of any conversion from meter reading to billing units or any other calculations or factors used in determining the bill; and (h) the gross receipts and franchise tax statement. N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.2

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

FORM OF BILL FOR METERED SERVICE (Continued)

9. Estimated Billing. If for any reason a utility cannot read a customer's meter, the utility may use estimated billing in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.2(c). Customers may request a special reading for a meter where a high bill or other reason exists to believe the meter reading used for billing purposes is in error. Rules concerning estimated bills for residential customers are as follows:
- a. The Company shall maintain a regular meter reading schedule and make a reasonable effort to read all meters.
 - b. The Company, upon request, must make available to all customers a postage-paid business reply card on which the customer may mark the meter reading. Said card shall have appropriate explanation. The utility must permit the customer to telephone the meter reading to the utility. The customer reading is to be used in lieu of an estimated reading, provided the reading is received in time for billing.
 - c. When the Company estimates an account for four consecutive billing periods (monthly accounts), or two consecutive billing periods (bi-monthly and quarterly accounts), the Company must initiate a program to mail a notice marked "Important Notice" to the customer on the fifth and seventh months explaining that a meter reading must be obtained and said notice must explain the penalty for failure to complete an actual meter reading. After all reasonable means to obtain a meter reading have been exhausted, the Company may discontinue service provided at least eight months have passed since the last meter reading was obtained, the Board of Public Utilities has been so notified, and the customer has been properly notified by prior mailing. If service is discontinued and subsequently restored, the utility may charge a reconnection charge equal to the reconnection charge for restoring service after discontinuance for non-payment. The reconnection charge shall become due when service is restored, whether the Company or an authorized professional physically restores service. Unauthorized reconnections shall be considered theft of service. Unauthorized reconnections by a customer no longer in arrears, shall be considered tampering with utility facilities.
 - d. The Company must submit to the Board of Public Utilities a statement detailing their estimating procedures.
 - e. An estimated bill must be clearly designated as such.
 - f. If low estimates result in a customer receiving an actual bill that is at least twenty five percent (25%) greater than the prior estimated bill, the Company shall allow the customer to amortize the excess amount. The amortization will be in equal installments over a period of time equal to the period when no actual meter reading was taken by the customer or the Company. (7) Annually, the Company shall notify all customers of their rights to amortize as set forth in N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.2.

BUDGET BILLING

10. The Company will make available to residential customers whose accounts do not reflect past-due balances the option to pay their bills on a monthly, budgeted basis. The budget billing plan year will be a twelve (12)-month time frame and allows a customer to pay a predetermined monthly amount, based upon the customer's average usage. If a customer is a new customer with little or no prior history of utility use, the monthly budget amount shall be determined using a reasonable estimate of likely usage. The budget billing plan will be made available to eligible customers by bill insert or bill message at least twice in each twelve (12)-month period.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

BUDGET BILLING (Continued)

11. The Company will "true up" the actual cost of service rendered as determined by actual meter readings and the actual monthly budgeted amount at the beginning of the budget plan year, and at least once during the budget plan year if the true-up performed during the customer's budget plan year reveals an increase or decrease of twenty-five (25) percent or more in the monthly budget amount, the Company will adjust the budget billing plan up or down, if necessary. There shall be no more than one such adjustment during the budget plan year. The Company will notify the customer of any change in the budget billing amount prior to such change.
12. A final bill for the budget plan year shall be issued in the last month of the budget plan year, and shall contain the month's monthly budget amount, plus an adjustment of any difference between said amount and the actual cost of service rendered during the budget plan year. Payment of this final balance due is required before the customer will be allowed to participate in the budget billing program for the upcoming budget billing plan year.
13. The Company shall notify the budget billing plan customers in writing of a revised monthly budget amount at least ten (10) working days before the due date the initial bill of the next budget plan year. Should the customer opt out of the budget billing plan, payment of the total charges incurred to date will be due immediately, or, in the alternative, agree to enter into a deferred payment agreement according to N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.7; or a credit will be applied to the account, whichever is applicable. The plan bill shall contain the information required by N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.2, Form of Bill for Metered Service, N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.3 Form of Bill for Unmetered Service, and N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.4, Method of Billing.
14. Should the customer breach the terms of the budget billing plan by failing to make the monthly payments as required under the plan or by having a budget billing plan payment returned due to insufficient funds, the Company reserves the right to terminate the customer's participation from the program; payment of total charges incurred to date will be due immediately, or, in the alternative, the Company and the customer will agree to enter into a deferred payment agreement according to N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.7.

FINANCIAL AID

15. The Company understands that from time to time its customers may have difficulty paying their water and/or wastewater bills issued by the Company. If at any time customers find that they cannot pay their water and/or wastewater bill by the due date, the Company requests that the customers contact the Company's Customer Service Center, prior to the due date, to work out a payment arrangement with the Company to avoid a shut-off of service, at 1-800-272-1325.
16. In addition to working out payment arrangements with customers in times of financial difficulty, the Company has also established a residential customer assistance program for its low-income customers who are having difficulty paying their water and/or wastewater bills issued by the Company. This residential customer assistance program, called the H2O Help to Others Assistance Program, is designed to provide financial assistance to qualified residential customers to pay their water and/or wastewater bills and protect them from an unnecessary discontinuance of their water and/or wastewater service. A grant from the H2O Help to Others Assistance Program may be awarded to cover a portion or all of the residential customer's outstanding bill based on the customer's ability to pay, income level and the availability of funds in the program. For more information about this program, please contact NJ Shares at 1-877-652-9426 or any subsequent program administrator whose contact information may be found on the Company's web site. Customers who qualify for the program are required to recertify income eligibility every two years.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

DEFERRED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

17. A customer is entitled to at least one deferred payment plan in one year. In the case of a residential customer who receives more than one utility service from the same utility (ex: water and wastewater; gas and electric) and the amount which is in arrears is a combination of those services, the utility shall offer a separate deferred payment agreement for each service based on the outstanding balance for that service. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.7(b)2) The Company must renegotiate the deferred payment agreement should the customer document a significant change in financial situation. The Company must also issue a new discontinuance notice each time it intends to shut off service, including defaults on the terms of the agreement. In the case of a residential customer who receives more than one utility service from the same utility and has subsequently entered into an agreement for each separate service, default on one such payment agreement shall constitute grounds for discontinuance of only that service. N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.7(f)

DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE

18. A water and wastewater utility shall not discontinue service because of nonpayment of bills in cases where a charge is in dispute provided the undisputed charges are paid (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.2(e)5) and a request is made to the Board within five (5) days for investigation of the disputed charge. The Company must advise the customer of their right to appeal to the Board of Public Utilities. N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.6(b)

19. Basis for Discontinuance of Service. The Company shall have the right to suspend or curtail or discontinue service for any of the following reasons (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(a)):

- a. For the purpose of making permanent or temporary repairs, changes or improvement in any part of its system;
- b. For compliance in good faith with any governmental order or directive, regardless of whether such order or directive subsequently may be held to be invalid;
- c. For non-payment of a valid bill due for service furnished at a present or previous location, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.2. However, non-payment for business service shall not be a reason for discontinuance of residence service except in cases of diversion of service pursuant to N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.8;
- d. For nonpayment of a deposit, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14: 3-3A.9;
- e. For any of the following acts or omissions on the part of the customer:
 - (i) Refusal of reasonable access to the customer's premises in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.6;
 - (ii) tampering with any facility of the Company;
 - (iii) fraudulent representation in relation to the use of service;
 - (iv) customer moving from the premises, unless the customer requests that service be continued;
 - (v) providing service to others without approval of the Company;
 - (vi) refusal to contract for service where such contract is required;
 - (vii) connecting and operating equipment in such manner as to produce disturbing effects on the service of the Company or other customers;
 - (viii) failure of the customer to comply with reasonable Standard Terms and Conditions;
 - (ix) where the condition of the customer's installation presents a hazard to life or property; or
 - (x) failure of a customer to repair any faulty facility of the customer.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401_____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE (Continued)

20. Public Utilities shall not discontinue residential service except between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday unless there is a safety-related emergency. There shall be no involuntary discontinuance of service on Fridays, Saturdays or Sundays or on the day before a New Jersey State holiday or on a New Jersey State holiday, absent such emergency. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(c)
21. Should a customer be more than 20 days delinquent in paying the monthly bill for service, or violate one or more of the standard terms and conditions of service contained in this or subsequent tariffs of the Company, the Company may discontinue service by giving 10 days' written notice of disconnection to the customer and, for wastewater service, a copy of such notice to the local Board of Health.
22. Notices herein of discontinuance of service shall be sent by first class mail, apart from the bill and as a separate mailing. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3(b)2) Customers are advised that it is illegal to operate a dwelling without adequately functioning wastewater facilities, and that the Company is required to notify local health authorities of wastewater service termination.
23. Medical Emergency. Notwithstanding the following, at the end of the period of medical emergency the customer remains liable to the Company for the charges for services rendered during the period of non-discontinuance, subject to the provisions of N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.6. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.2(i)). Residential service may not be discontinued for non-payment for a period of 90 days if a medical emergency exists within the premises and which would be aggravated by the shut off so long as the customer provides the Company with reasonable proof of his or her inability to pay and a licensed medical professional's written statement as to the existence of the emergency, its nature and probable duration, and how the termination of service will aggravate the medical emergency. This period of non-discontinuance may be extended as set forth in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.2(j). The Company reserves the right to contest the validity of any claimed medical emergency before the BPU.
24. Utilities shall annually notify all residential customers that, upon request, notice of discontinuance of service will be sent to a designated third party as well as to the customer of record. This provision shall not apply if Company makes a good faith effort to contact all residential customers by telephone prior to discontinuance and file with the Board a statement setting forth such procedure. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4
25. The Company shall make every reasonable attempt to determine when a landlord-tenant relationship is known to exist, and if the tenants are not the customers of record but are end-users, as these terms are defined at N.J.A.C. 14:3-1.1. Discontinuance of service is prohibited unless the utility has given a 15-day written notice to the owner of the premises or to the customer of record to whom the last preceding bill was rendered. The utility shall use its best efforts to determine the names and addresses of each tenant, in order to provide such notice, for example, through mailings to landlords requesting a list of tenants. The utility shall use its best efforts to provide copies of the discontinuance notice to all tenants. In addition, the utility shall provide the tenant(s) with a twenty (20) day written notice, which shall be hand delivered, mailed, or posted in a conspicuous area of the premises and in the common areas of multiple family premises. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.6(a) If a utility uses posting as the method of notice, each utility shall use its best efforts to also place a copy of the notice on each tenant's car windshield or under the door of each tenant's dwelling. In the case of tenants of single and two-family dwellings, each tenant shall also be provided with a 15-day individual notice. Each utility shall offer the tenant(s) continued service to be billed to the tenant(s) unless the utility demonstrates that such billing is not feasible. Tenants seeking continuation of service under this provision shall supply the utility with a copy of a valid lease or rental agreement. The continuation of service to a tenant shall not be conditioned upon payment by the tenant of any outstanding bills due upon the account of any other person. The utility shall not be held to the requirements of this provision if the existence of a landlord-tenant relationship could not be reasonably ascertained. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.6(b)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE (Continued)

26. The utility or its designated contractor shall have the right of reasonable access to customer's premises, and to all property furnished by the utility, at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspection of customer's premises incident to the rendering of service, reading meters, or inspecting, testing, repairing or conducting markouts, either itself or through its contractor designated to perform said markouts, in compliance with the Underground Facility Protection Act, N.J.S.A. 48:2-73 et seq., and N.J.A.C. 14:2, also known as the "One-Call rules," of its facilities used in connection with supplying the service, for the discontinuance of service for nonpayment after proper notice, or for the removal of its property. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.6(a)) Service can be discontinued for refusal of reasonable access to customer's premises for necessary purposes in connection with rendering of service, including meter and remote reading device installation, reading or testing, or the maintenance or removal of the utility's property. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(a)5.i) Reconnection fees as shown on Rate Schedule P-2 and Rate Schedule 9-A will be charged upon restoration of service.
27. It is the responsibility of a customer who wishes to voluntarily discontinue his or her service to notify the Company and request a final reading. A customer wishing to discontinue service shall give notice to the utility. Within 48 hours of said notice, the utility shall discontinue service or obtain a meter reading for the purpose of calculating a final bill. Where such notice is not received by the utility, the customer shall be liable for service until the final reading of the meter is taken. Notice to discontinue service will not relieve a customer from any minimum or guaranteed payment under any contract or rate in accordance with the Standard Terms and Conditions on Sheet Nos. 23 and 24, nor will it mitigate any of the obligations on the Company's General Metered Rate Schedules. In accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(b).
28. If a customer wishes to have his service physically disconnected, then notice as set forth within this tariff is required prior to such disconnection provided, however, that nothing herein shall operate to prevent the Company from discontinuing service at any time under conditions and for reasons set forth in this tariff; and provided further, that nothing herein shall be construed to prevent the making of contracts for extension of service or other special conditions.
29. When a customer is physically disconnected (water service) or the service lateral is plugged (wastewater service) for non-payment of a bill for, or violation of the standard terms and conditions of service, the customer will be required to pay, in addition to any outstanding or delinquent amount, the Company's actual cost of reconnection or \$350.00, whichever is more, before service is restored. See Rate Schedules P-2 and 9-A. Wastewater service customers who remove plugs from their service laterals, and water customers who operate the curb stop to restore service after disconnection are tampering with Company property and may be charged with theft of service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

RESTORATION OF SERVICE

30. Service shall be restored within 12 hours upon proper application when: 1. all of the conditions under which service was discontinued are corrected; and 2. payment of all charges due is received at the utility or at an authorized payment center and the utility has received notice of the payment. Any other provision notwithstanding, the utility shall restore service within 12 hours if there is a complaint involving such matters before the Board and Board staff so directs the utility. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.9. See Rate Schedules P-2 and 9-A for restoration of service charges. Restoration of water service performed outside of normal business hours as shown on Rate Schedule P-2 will be subject to the Emergency Reconnection service charge of \$100 as shown on that Rate Schedule P-2.

THEFT OF SERVICE

31. Whenever the Company reconnects service to a customer under the following conditions, a charge will be rendered for providing this service as described in Rate Schedule P-2 or 9-A.
- a. Whenever the Company has determined that a customer's service has been reconnected without the permission of the Company after service has been terminated for non-payment of bills or violation of the Company's tariff, the Company will terminate the customer's service for a second time and give written notice to the customer that if service is reconnected again without the permission of the Company, it will be necessary for the Company to excavate and physically disconnect service. A reconnection charge will be applied as set forth in Rate Schedules P-2 or 9-A of the present tariff.
 - b. Customers in default in the payment of a bill may be required to furnish a deposit or increase their existing deposit in an amount sufficient to secure the payment of future bills. Service shall not be discontinued for failure to make such deposit except after proper notice to the customer. If a customer who has made a deposit fails to pay a bill, the Company may apply such deposit insofar as is necessary to liquidate the bill and may require that the deposit be restored to its original amount. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.4(f)
32. The Company has certain rights under the law to obtain the cessation of acts constituting theft of service that have been committed in violation of N.J.S.A. 2C:20-8, as well as complete restitution for any losses or damages it has suffered as a result of said acts. Customers who tamper with Company property to illegally restore service after being shut off for nonpayment or any other reason under N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A et seq. may be subject to fees pursuant to Rate Schedule P-2 and Rate Schedule 9-A and responsible for payment of any resulting damages.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

33. Should a nonresidential customer fail to make payment as specified under Terms of Payment in the Rate Schedules the Company may, on the twenty-sixth (26th) day, assess a late charge at the rate of 0.35%. Service to state, county or municipal government entities will not be subject to a late payment charge. The charge will be applied to all amounts billed and unpaid finance charges applied to previous bills. The amount of the late payment charge to be applied to the Customer's account shall be calculated by multiplying the previous unpaid bill amount by the late payment charge rate. When payment is received by the Company from a Customer who has an unpaid balance which includes charges for late payment, the Customer's payment shall be applied first to the oldest aged unpaid bill amount and its applicable late charge, and then to the next oldest aged bill amount and late charge. Notwithstanding the foregoing, shut off provisions in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A will still apply to past due accounts.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

METER

34. The utility must provide for one free water meter test during any twelve (12) month period if the customer so requests it. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5) A meter of a customer who has a complaint filed with the Board reflecting on the accuracy of the meter shall not be removed from service by the utility during the pendency of said complaint or during the following thirty (30) days unless otherwise authorized or directed by the Board. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.8(c)) When a billing dispute is known to exist, the water utility shall, prior to removing the meter, advise the customer that they may have the meter tested by the utility or may have the Board witness a testing of the meter by the utility, and that in any event the customer may have the test witnessed by a third party. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5(c)) A meter test arising from a billing dispute may be appropriate in instances which include, but not limited to, unexplained increased consumption, crossed meters, consumption while an account is vacant or any other instance where the meter's accuracy might be an issue in a bill dispute. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5 (d)) The customer can apply to the Board for a Board inspector to test the customer's meter. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5(e)) All costs such a test shall be borne by the Company. N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5(e)
35. If more than one meter test is made within a twelve (12) month period at the request of the customer and the meter is found to be accurate, the Company shall charge the customer for this meter test at the rate set forth in Rate Schedule P-2 for each additional test. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5). If the meter is found to register fast by more than one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the water passed through the meter at full capacity, the customer will not be charged for the test. N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.6
36. Whenever a water meter is found to be registering fast by more than one and one-half percent, an adjustment of charges shall be made in accordance with the regulations which can be found at N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.6.
37. If a meter is found to be registering less than 100 percent of the service provided, an adjustment of charges may be made in accordance with the regulations which can be found at N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.6. In cases where the meter registers zero usage for an entire billing period, and the customer has knowingly taken and received water service, the customer shall be deemed to have reasonable knowledge that the meter may be defective or malfunctioning.
38. A water utility must maintain records of customers' accounts for each billing period occurring within a six year period. Such records shall contain all information necessary to permit computation of the bill. N.J.A.C. 14:3-6.1(b)
39. When the meter is not located inside the customer's building but outside in a meter pit, the customer shall not make connections or alterations inside the meter pit. All such connections are to be made outside of the meter pit on the customer's side of the meter. The meter pit or vault shall be installed at a location acceptable to, and with the express approval of, the Company. The Company may install, at the Company's discretion, radio transmitters or other remote meter reading devices on its meters and appurtenances as needed to promote efficient and accurate meter reads. Failure to comply with this requirement will be considered tampering with facilities of the Company and the customer will be subject to charges for repairs to damaged equipment and/or discontinuance of service.
40. When the customer's usage is obtained through an electronic ("encoder") read, that usage shall be deemed actual. No adjustment shall be made for a meter that is found to be registering less than 100 percent except in the case of meter tampering, non-registering meters or in circumstances in which the customer should reasonably have known that the bill did not reflect the actual usage. N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.6(d)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

METER (Continued)

41. A customer having two or more meters (excluding meters for Service to Privately Owned Fire Protection Systems under applicable Rate Schedules set forth in the tariff) on the same premises will be charged at the tariff rate for the quantity of water equivalent to the sum registered on all of the meters on the premises, subject to a facilities charge equal to the sum of the facilities charges for each meter. Private Fire Protection services will be charged separately, in agreement to the present tariff.

APPLICATIONS FOR SERVICE

42. Inquiry for a water or wastewater service connection may be made by mail, telephone (888.237.1333) or via the Company's website at www.amwater.com/njaw, and the Company will provide and submit to the applicant, if necessary, any and all forms required to be filled out and signed by the owner, or their agents, for the premises to be supplied, including the identity of the customer of record before any new connection shall be installed. The application will not be processed until all forms are completed in full and any required supporting documentation is provided. Customers must agree to the terms, conditions and rates for service as set forth in this and subsequent tariffs of the Company.
43. Such inquiry shall be made in a reasonable time before such service is required for new buildings and premises not previously supplied to allow for the installation of service lines and accessories by the Company, as hereinafter defined.
44. Separate inquiry shall be made for each premises and for each type of service requested to be furnished (*i.e.* consumptive, irrigation, construction, wastewater, etc.)
45. Water and wastewater connections shall be made by the Company subject to the prior existence of a main that is adequately sized in terms of capacity and pressure required for the specific water connection within a public right of way or company easement abutting the property or premises to be served except in the case where the location of the connection is proposed to be on the long side of a divided (raised or grass) state highway, in which case the customer will be required to enter into an extension agreement. The acceptance of such inquiries for service shall in no way obligate the Company to extend its distribution or collection mains to abut the property or premises except as hereinafter provided.
46. The connection shall be in accordance with the applicable laws including but not limited to those of the BPU, DEP and all federal, state and local agencies.
47. In areas where the billing for wastewater service is based on the volume of water supplied to the premise by the Company, the Company will provide wastewater service only where the water used on the premises is measured by a water meter, subject to the limitations described within this paragraph, below. Where wastewater service is provided and water used on the premises is not supplied by the Company, then the water so used shall be measured by a meter furnished and installed by the Company at a location approved by the Company subject to the limitations described within this paragraph, below. Said wastewater charges shall be based on the volume of water supplied to the premises and measured by the water meter, unless the Company determines that, due to such issues as adverse ground conditions or due to other such unforeseen circumstances, or as required by other tariff provisions herein, it is impracticable or imprudent to install a water meter at the customer's premises in order to base wastewater service charges on the volume of water supplied to the premises as measured by said meter. In such situations, wastewater service billing will be based upon a flat rate, or a minimum usage as established by the applicable rate schedule within this tariff. In instances where a customer's water comes from a well, the Company will make a reasonable effort to install a meter on said well for purposes of determining wastewater service based on water consumption. However, if the utility determines that it is not feasible or practical to install a water meter on the well, the wastewater service billing shall be based upon a flat rate. In addition, should conditions in or around the well cause the meter to malfunction 2 times after installation, the Company has the right to remove the meter and to bill wastewater service on a flat rate, or a minimum usage as established by the applicable rate schedule within this tariff.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER AND WASTEWATER

APPLICATIONS FOR SERVICE (CONTINUED)

- 48. The Company is not obligated to install more than one service and meter for each property or premises. Furthermore, in those instances where more than one service is requested the Company reserves the right to recapture all costs associated with the additional service(s).
- 49. Physical connections, such as cross-connections, interconnections, valves, pumps, or similar devices, either permanent or temporary, connecting the pipelines or facilities of the Company with other pipelines or facilities supplied with water from other sources will not be permitted without the express written consent of the Company. Water which has once been drawn from the Company's distribution network and used for any purpose or stored in tanks, is considered an unapproved source of supply.
- 50. The Company may require a cross-connection protective device on a customer's service, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:10-10, which will be purchased and installed at the expense of the customer. The cross-connection device shall be of the type approved by the Company. Inspection and testing at intervals, in accordance to N.J.A.C. 7:10-10, will be performed at the expense of the customer.
- 51. No device or connection is permitted between pipes carrying water from the mains of the Company and any portion of the plumbing system of the premises, which may under any condition permit back-flow or back-siphonage unless prior written permission has been granted by the Company.
- 52. Customers requesting a relocation of their service line will be required to pay a fee for the new service line and elimination of the existing service line.
- 53. Customers requesting a relocation of a Public Fire Hydrant will be required to pay a fee for its relocation.
- 54. Installation of electronic meter reading devices and other equipment designed to facilitate efficient and accurate meter reads, protect the integrity of the water system and/or quality of the water supplied by the Company may be required from any customer as a condition of service at the discretion of the Company.
- 55. Water sales to customers or entities using trucks or tanks that require additional attention can affect the Company's daily operations. A surcharge may be applied as listed in Rate Schedule P-1 of the present tariff.
- 56. A deposit may be required to guarantee payment for water service used for general construction and contracting purposes in an amount equal to the cost of the meter furnished. The deposit, less the cost of repairs to the meter, if any, will be refunded after surrender of the meter and payment of all charges for water supplied through it.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER

WATER SERVICE AND CONNECTING LINES

Company Side – Service Lines

1. The Company is responsible for the installation and maintenance of the service line.
2. Only employees of the Company or persons duly authorized to do so by the Company are permitted to operate or otherwise access the curb stop.
3. No service line shall be used to supply more than one customer unless authorized in advance by the Company in writing.
4. Where two or more customers are supplied through a single service line, the customers and/or premises owner must provide a suitable location(s) for a separate meter and separate shut-off valve that will be dedicated to each customer. The piping of the building must be so arranged that each customer can be supplied through an independent meter, shut off valve and piping system as may be required by the Company, at the Company's sole discretion. The meter pit or vault shall be installed at a location acceptable to, and with the express approval of, the Company. Failure to comply with this provision may result in termination of service to all accounts serviced by a single connecting line when service to one account must be discontinued for non-payment or failure to otherwise comply with the terms and conditions of service provided for herein. Notice provisions outlined on Sheet No. 12, paragraph 25, will apply.
5. No single building or single group of buildings in one common enclosure and under one ownership shall be supplied by more than one of the same type of service line (i.e., only one domestic line and one fire line).

Customer Side – Connecting Lines

6. Connecting lines are owned, installed, maintained and repaired by the premises owner at the premises owner's sole expense. The connecting line should be maintained in a condition conducive for the Company to perform the services required to serve its customers. If the connecting pipe is not so maintained, any failure of this pipe following the operation of the curb stop by the Company will be the responsibility of the premises owner. While performing its duties, if the Company notices that the connecting pipe or other premises owner-owned and maintained appurtenances appear to be in poor condition, the Company will attempt to notify the premises owner of such, including that the owner may desire to contact a licensed plumber for a professional evaluation and/or repair of the connecting pipe and appurtenances. Failure to repair a leaking connecting line is grounds for termination of water service. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(a)5.
7. Notwithstanding any other provision of this tariff, the Company may, at its own expense, and with the permission of the customer, replace a customer's connecting line that is i) made of lead pipe, ii) made of pipe lined with lead or iii) made of ferrous-based pipe material capable of retaining lead particles.
 - a. After the Company replaces the customer's connecting line, as described above, the customer will continue to own and be responsible for the connecting line, including maintenance of such line, in accordance with this tariff. The Company will offer the customer a warranty of the workmanship of its installation of the new connecting line for a period of 12 months following the date the customer signs the replacement agreement with the Company, with the Company's liability limited to the cost of repairing or replacing the customer's connecting line during that time. Except for the Company's limited liability under the 12-month workmanship warranty, the Company will not own nor assume any liability or responsibility with respect to the customer connecting line. The customer will agree to release and hold the Company harmless the Company, its contractors and subcontractors from and against all claims, liability and costs resulting from acts and omissions of Company and/or its approved contractors and/or subcontractors in installing the Customer service line pursuant to the replacement agreement.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER

WATER SERVICE AND CONNECTING LINES

Customer Side – Connecting Lines (continued)

8. Connecting lines should be installed, without sharp bends, at right angles to the line of the street and shall be installed in the trench not less than 3-1/2 feet in depth to avoid damage and possible interruption to service caused by freezing. Other utility service lines shall not be installed in the same trench as the connecting line. No attachment shall be made to the connecting line between the curb stop and the meter except as otherwise authorized by the Company. Unauthorized attachments are grounds for termination of service. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(a)5.ii
9. Connecting lines should not be less than ¾ inch in inside diameter.
10. A customer must install a water pressure reducing valve where required by State of New Jersey plumbing code. If a water pressure reducing valve is required to be installed, the customer must install a pressure relief valve (collectively both are referred to as the "Valves"). In all cases, the costs of installation and maintenance of the Valves shall be borne by the customer. The customer shall own and be obligated to maintain the Valves. The Company will not be liable for damage due to meter failures if the customer is located in a high pressure zone and does not have a pressure reducing valve or has a pressure reducing valve downstream from a water meter that is installed inside the premises.
11. For meters less than or equal to 2 inches the pressure reducing valve will be located on the downstream side of the meter if the meter is located outside of the customer's premises and on the upstream side of the meter, if the meter is located inside of the customer's premises. For meters greater than 2 inches the pressure reducing valve will always be located on the upstream side of the meter.
12. The customer is required to make all changes in the connecting line due to changes in grade, relocation of mains, or other causes only if such changes are mandated by a municipality, county, state or other governmental body.

WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS

13. The Company will extend water service in accordance with all applicable laws of the State of New Jersey and Board of Public Utilities regulations and orders including N.J.A.C. 14:3-8.1 et seq. Mains will be extended to the mid-point of property frontage for residential properties, and along the entire frontage for commercial properties, regardless of where the service stub is installed.

Information on how to apply for a water main extension can be found on the Company's website at <https://www.amwater.com/njaw/About-Us/Providing-Solutions/Developers/>.

CUSTOMER'S PREMISES

14. The Company may refuse to provide a water connection, or furnish water through a connection pipe already installed, when a customer's piping system is not installed in accordance with the regulations of the Company and of the municipality in which the premises are located; or when the system on the premises is not at sufficient depth to prevent freezing.
15. Customers shall not permit access to the meter and other appliances of the Company except by authorized employees of the Company or properly authorized state or local inspectors.
16. In all cases the customers should not interfere with property of the Company, but should immediately notify the Company of any problem.
17. It is the sole responsibility of each customer to ensure that all piping and appurtenances within a customer's premises comply with state, municipal and other public health regulations in force with respect hereto including state and local plumbing codes. The piping and appurtenances shall be maintained in a condition conducive for the Company to perform the services required to serve the customer.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER

CUSTOMER'S PREMISES (CONTINUED)

18. In any premises where devices are used which might produce a back pressure, such as steam boilers, carbonation equipment for soft drinks, booster pumps, etc., a check valve shall be installed by the customer at the meter. In the event such check valve is installed, pressure relief valves should be provided by the customer in the system.
19. In any premises where an auxiliary water source is available, the pipes carrying water from the mains of the Company are required to be marked in some distinctive manner for ready identification.

PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

20. Customers desiring a separate service connection for private fire service are required to make separate application for such service on forms prescribed by the Company. Private fire service installations are made in accordance with the provisions of this tariff regarding the installation of service and connecting pipes and other facilities.
21. Service lines designated for private fire protection are installed for customers requiring a private fire service to supply sprinkler heads, hydrants or hose connections. Any connection in which sprinkler heads and/or hose connections are supplied through a domestic service connection are considered "multi-use", are not considered as part of a private fire protection service, and shall not be deemed as part of this section. The utility shall have the right to suspend or curtail or discontinue service for any of the following acts or omissions on the part of the customer: tampering with any facility of the utility; fraudulent representation in relation to the use of service; and connecting and operating in such manner as to produce disturbing effects on the service of the utility or other customers. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(a)5)
22. The connection shall be in accordance with the applicable laws including but not limited to those of the BPU, DEP and all federal, state and local agencies.
23. Unless specified by the Company, dedicated private fire service lines and facilities, including hydrants, are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes and should be equipped with special meters.
24. No water should be used through private fire protection facilities except for permitted testing purposes or in case of fire. The use of private fire protection facilities for other reasons will result in termination of service following notification pursuant to N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(d).
25. Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for private fire protection.
26. A "multi-use" service is not a private fire service. Please refer to Schedule P-3 for the terms and conditions regarding multi-use service.
27. Private fire protection shall not be offered or charged for service to private fire hydrants connected after a master meter on a general metered or multi-use service. A master meter on general metered or multi-use service with a hydrant will be billed pursuant to the applicable general metered rate schedule and considered as such.
28. The Company shall not be liable for any loss, injury, casualty or damage resulting from fire or water, or other agency, resulting from the supply or use of water service or the failure thereof, which may occur on account of the installation or presence of a private fire service connection, or from the presence or operation of the Company's structures, equipment, pipes, appliances or devices on the customer's premises, or connected therewith.
29. The Company may not discontinue water service unless it has provided written notice giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. However, in case of fraud, illegal use, or when it is clearly indicated that the customer is preparing to leave, immediate payment of accounts may be required, and service may be discontinued without further notice.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER

PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

30. Upon application or request by a duly authorized representative of a municipality in the Company's service area, the Company will install fire hydrants for purposes of public fire protection. The locations of such hydrants are selected by agreement between officials of the municipalities and representatives of the Company after careful consideration. Municipalities or the designated customer of record (e.g. local fire district) shall pay the Company a charge for service to public fire hydrants within that municipality as provided in the applicable rate schedule set forth in this tariff.

MULTI-USE SERVICE

31. Multi-use service is only available to franchise customers who submit a completed application to the Company. By applying for multi-use service, the customer agrees to be responsible for all claims, costs and liability for personal injury, death and/or property damage, resulting from the customer's individual water system, unless caused by the negligence of the water utility. A "multi-use" service is not a private fire service. Please refer to Schedule P-3 for the terms and conditions regarding multi-use service.
32. All multi-use service lines shall be metered and the meter shall be located in a meter pit or vault located outside of the Customer's structure. The meter pit or vault shall be installed at a location acceptable to the express approval of the Water Company.
33. If a customer requests a change in meter size associated with a multi-service meter, the customer must re-apply for service and re-certify each item addressed below and in Rate Schedule P-3.
34. By applying for multi-use service, and operating the same, the customer agrees:
- The customer has complied with all of the terms and conditions set forth on Rate Schedule P-3;
 - To include a backflow prevention device(s) as defined at N.J.A.C. 7:10-1.3, and as specified at N.J.A.C. 7:10-10.3;
 - To be solely responsible for all costs and expenses relating to the installation, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the customer's water system, including the fire suppression system and backflow prevention device(s);
 - To ensure that the customer's water system complies with the applicable requirements of the Uniform Construction Code in effect at the time of system installation, including any applicable building, plumbing and fire protection sub-codes;
 - To ensure that the customer's water system is maintained in accordance with all applicable law so as to protect against backflow, back-siphonage and contamination of the potable water system; and
 - To be subject to disconnection under the standard terms and conditions as apply to fire protection service or multi-use service in accordance with the Board's rules governing discontinuance of such service at N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(k) and N.J.A.C. 14:9-8.3.

EMERGENCY RESPONSES DUE TO EXTRAORDINARY DEMAND AND/OR DIMINISHED SUPPLY

34. Discontinuance of service for failure to comply with use restrictions. For compliance by the utility in good faith with any governmental order or directive, notwithstanding that such order or directive subsequently may be held to be invalid, the Company may, upon reasonable notice, suspend, curtail, or discontinue service pursuant to N.J.S.A. 48:2-23, N.J.S.A. 48:2-24, and N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A for any of the following acts or omissions on the part of the customer:
- Connecting or operating any piping or other facility, including but not limited to, lawn sprinkling on the customer's premises in such a manner as to adversely affect the safety or adequacy of service provided to other customers present or prospective; or

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WATER

EMERGENCY RESPONSES DUE TO EXTRAORDINARY DEMAND AND/OR DIMINISHED SUPPLY

Discontinuance of service for failure to comply with use restrictions (continued)

- b. Continuing waste of water by customers after notice from the utility through improper or imperfect pipes, fixtures, or failure to comply with restrictions; or
 - c. Failure to comply with the standard terms and conditions contained in this tariff or failure to comply with any state law, or the rules, regulations, orders or restrictions of any governmental authority having jurisdiction.
35. Water service shall be restored when the conditions under which such service was discontinued, as specified above, are corrected and upon the payment of the SPECIAL RESTORATION OF SERVICE CHARGE of \$100.00 for each restoration.
36. The Company will endeavor to provide a regular and uninterrupted supply of water through its facilities. However, if because of emergencies beyond the control of the Company, including governmental mandate, service is interrupted, irregular, defective or fails, the Company will not be liable for damages or inconvenience resulting there from. In the event of an extraordinary demand and/or diminished supply, or when operational issues make such actions desirable, including, among other things, protecting the integrity of the system and permit conditions, the Company may restrict the use of water whenever the public welfare may require it and, if necessary, may shut off the water in its mains and pipes. In such cases the Company shall advise its customers by placing a prominent advertisement detailing the conditions and restrictions in a newspaper of general circulation in the utility service area. The notice will state the purpose and probable duration of the restriction or discontinuance. Failure to provide regular and uninterrupted service due to breakdowns is covered under other sections of this tariff.
37. The Company may restrict water service during certain periods, where the Company advises the Board of Public Utilities, in order to protect the public water supply, or otherwise to comply with any regulations, orders or decrees issued by the Governor of New Jersey or the Department of Environmental Protection, or any successor agency or department pursuant to the Water Supply Management Act, or other statutes or regulations of the state or federal government. Such interruptions or restrictions shall be reported to the Department of Environmental Protection, if necessary, and the Board by each utility by the speediest means of communications available, promptly followed by a detailed written report, pursuant to the provisions of N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.7 et seq. Thereafter the utility shall provide weekly reports for the duration of the emergency.
38. When the supply of water to individual customers is to be discontinued or curtailed for the customer's failure to comply with emergency water restrictions imposed because of extraordinary demand or diminished supply, the Company shall advise such customer(s) by placing a door tag on the front door of the home of the individual(s) in violation of the restrictions, at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to discontinuance or curtailment, or by giving another form of notice acceptable to the Board. The Company will advise business and commercial customers, in writing, by mailing a notice to the customers' billing address. In the case of door tags, they shall be sequentially numbered and include the date, time and nature of the violation and the procedure for restoration of service. All such notices shall be accounted for by the utility.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401_____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WASTEWATER

A. WASTEWATER MAIN EXTENSIONS

Applicability

Applicable to all wastewater service customers served by the Company.

1. The Company will extend wastewater service in accordance with all applicable laws, regulations and orders of the State of New Jersey and Board of Public Utilities including N.J.A.C. 14:3-8, et seq.
2. Mains will be extended to the mid-point of property frontage for residential properties, and along the entire frontage for commercial properties, regardless of where the service stub is installed.
3. Documentation on how standard wastewater main extensions are handled can be found on the Company's website at <https://www.amwater.com/njaw/About-Us/Providing-Solutions/Developers/>.
4. Please also refer to Sheet No. 13, paragraph 28 of the Standard Terms and Conditions .

B. CALCULATION OF WINTER QUARTER CONSUMPTION

Applicability

Applicable to wastewater service customers served by the Company in the Statewide Wastewater Collection Areas of Lakewood, Tewksbury Township, Service Area 1D, the former Applied Wastewater Management Service Area ("Applied"), Plumsted Township, Elk Township, the Boroughs of Haddonfield and Mount Ephraim, the former Environmental Disposal Corp. Service Area ("EDC"), and the Borough of Manville, Rate Schedules 2-A, 6-A, 10-A, 11-A, 13-A, 21-A, and 23-A, respectively.

Volumetric Wastewater Charge

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. The monthly Volumetric Wastewater Charge shall be determined based upon winter quarter consumption, but in no case less than 2,000 gallons per month. Winter quarter consumption shall be determined based on an initial water meter reading taken in December of one year with the concluding meter reading taken approximately 90 days thereafter in March of the following year.

The monthly Volumetric Wastewater Charge shall be determined as follows:

Meters read in January, February and March

The Volumetric Wastewater Charge for each respective month shall be determined by multiplying the applicable monthly usage times applicable volumetric charges.

Meters read in April through December

The Volumetric Wastewater Charge for each month April through December shall be based on the Monthly Usage Constant, equal to one-third of the winter quarter consumption, but in no case less than 2,000 gallons per month, multiplied by applicable volumetric charges.

In the case of new customers, the volume of wastewater discharged shall be determined as follows:

1. New Customers in an Existing Dwelling or Premises for Which Actual Full Period Winter Quarter Usage History is Available.
Determination of the monthly use constant shall be based on the last known full period winter quarter usage at that property, but in no case less than 2,000 gallons per month. This monthly use constant will be used for billing purposes until the customer receives the January bill in the following year. The January and subsequent bills will be calculated in accordance with the method described in this Tariff for determining the monthly Volumetric Wastewater Charge.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WASTEWATER

B. CALCULATION OF WINTER QUARTER CONSUMPTION (CONTINUED)

2. Existing or New Customers in an Existing or New Dwelling or Premises for Which No Full Period Winter Quarter History has Been Established.

a. For service established outside of the winter quarter:
Determination of the monthly use constant shall be based on 12,000 gallons per quarter (a monthly usage constant of 4,000 gallons) until the customer receives the January bill in the following year. The January and subsequent bills will be calculated in accordance with the method described in this Tariff for determining the monthly Volumetric Wastewater Charge.

b. For service established during the winter quarter:
Determination of the monthly use constant will be based upon the actual usage during the winter quarter with a minimum of 12,000 gallons (a monthly usage constant of 4,000 gallons). This monthly use constant will be used for billing purposes until the customer receives the January bill in the following year. The January and subsequent bills will be calculated in accordance with the method described in this Tariff for determining the monthly Volumetric Wastewater Charge.

C. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO WASTEWATER SERVICE – COLLECTION SYSTEMS

Applicability

Applicable to wastewater service customers served by the Company in Bound Brook, Bridgewater, Haddonfield, the Egg Harbor City Utility, Howell Township, Lakewood Township, Mount Ephraim, Ocean City, Elk Township, and the Boroughs of Somerville and Manville.

1. Separate and independent wastewater service lines shall be installed for each customer. All building drains and building wastewater appurtenances shall be the responsibility of the customer and shall be installed and maintained by the customer.
2. No customer shall discharge or cause to be discharged into the Company's system any storm water, surface water, ground water, roof runoff, sub-surface drainage, foundation or basement sump drainage, uncontaminated cooling water or unpolluted industrial process water.
3. No customer shall discharge or cause to be discharged into the Company's system the following described substances, materials, waters, or wastes without the prior written approval of the Company. Such wastes can harm either the wastewater system or treatment process and/or equipment, have an adverse effect upon the receiving stream for the treated wastewater, or can otherwise endanger life, limb or property or create a nuisance. In forming the opinions as to whether or not to permit the discharge, the Company will consider the effect upon receiving wastewater system, as well as the conditions placed upon the Company by its service agreements with the local treatment Utilities Authorities that treat the wastewater the Company collects.
4. The customer shall be responsible for maintaining and repairing the "building drain" and "building sewer."
5. The customer shall be responsible for installing and maintaining a backwater valve in buildings that have fixtures below grade level. In the event of a gray water backup, the Company shall not be liable for any damage or inconvenience resulting from the absence/malfunctioning of this appurtenance.
6. The Company reserves the right upon completion of its findings to:
 - a. Reject the wastes.
 - b. Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge.
 - c. Require flow equalization.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WASTEWATER

C. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO WASTEWATER SERVICE – COLLECTION SYSTEMS
(CONTINUED)

- 7. In the event pretreatment facilities or flow equalization is required, the design and construction of such facilities shall be subject to approval of the Company and operation of said facilities shall be subject to inspection by the Company. Monitoring and/or sampling equipment shall be installed and operated by the customer as deemed necessary by the Company to ascertain proper operation of the pretreatment facilities.
- 8. The wastes requiring written approval are:
 - a. Any liquid or vapor having a temperature in excess of 150°F.
 - b. Any waters or wastewaters containing phenols.
 - c. Any waters or wastes having a pH in excess of 9.5.
 - d. Any water containing unusual concentrations of inert suspended solids, such as, but not limited to, diatomaceous earth, lime and lime slurries or of dissolved solids such as but not limited to sodium chloride or sodium sulfate.
 - e. Any water or wastewater containing excessive discoloration.
 - f. Wastewater having unusual "B.O.D." concentration, suspended solids concentration or high chlorine demand in such quantities as to constitute a significant load on the treatment plant.
 - g. Unusual volume of flow or concentrations of wastes constituting "slugs" as hereinbefore defined.
 - h. Water or wastes containing substances not amenable to biological treatment processes as defined by a wastewater treatment plant owner or operator.
- 9. No customers shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following described waters or wastes to the wastewater system:
 - a. Any gasoline, benzene, naptha, paints, lacquers, fuel oil or other flammable or explosive liquid, solid or gas which by reason of its nature or quality may cause fire or explosion or which, in any way, may be injurious to personnel or the wastewater system.
 - b. Any water or wastes containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, or gases in sufficient quantity either singly or by interaction with other wastes to injure or interfere with any wastewater treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans or animals, create a public nuisance, or create any hazard in the receiving waters of the wastewater treatment plant.
 - c. Any waters or wastes having a pH of lower than 5.5 or having any other corrosive property capable of causing damage or hazard to the wastewater system and/or personnel of the Company.
 - d. Plating mill wastewater or other industrial process water containing spent pickle liquor, concentrated plating solutions, chromium, zinc and similar toxic heavy metals, cyanides and cleaning solvents.
 - e. Any radioactive material.
 - f. Any water or wastes containing fats, wax, grease, tar, oils or any other substances, whether emulsified or not which may solidify or become viscous at temperatures between 32° and 150°F or which would impair, impede, affect, interfere with, or endanger personnel or the wastewater system.
 - g. Any garbage not properly shredded.
 - h. Any solids of such size or characteristic capable of causing obstruction to the flow in sewers, such as, but not limited to, ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, metal shavings, glass, rags, feathers, tar, plastic, wood, paunch manure, hair fleshings, offal, entrails, etc.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WASTEWATER

C. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO WASTEWATER SERVICE – COLLECTION SYSTEMS
(CONTINUED)

10. Any customer discharging industrial wastes shall provide and maintain a control manhole suitable to facilitate observation, sampling and measurement of the wastes. The Company (and the local treatment Utilities Authorities that treat the wastewater the Company collects) shall have the right to inspect, sample, measure and analyze wastewater as they deem necessary.

D. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO WASTEWATER SERVICE – TREATMENT SYSTEMS

Applicability

Applicable to wastewater service to customers served by the Company in Service Area 1D, the former Applied Wastewater Management Service Area ("Applied"), Plumsted Township, Tewksbury Township, Long Hill Township, the former EDC Service Area and Salem City, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff.

1. The within rates are applicable to normal wastewater, as defined by the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection, namely 250 ppm.5 – day B.O.D. The utility company reserves the right to require pretreatment of the wastewater prior to discharge into sewers in the event that the wastewater contains harmful substances such as gasoline, PCBs, oil, explosive liquids, phenols, acids, alkalines, lint, excessive detergents or any other substance as defined by NJDEP. Each customer shall be fully responsible for proper use of the wastewater system and shall therefore not discharge any chemicals or contaminants which are toxic and which may cause damage to the wastewater system's electrical, mechanical, biological, or physical process components or may harm either the groundwater, soil or atmosphere, as listed on Schedule A on Sheet No. 27, as it may be periodically updated. Any cost involved in repairs of damage to the Company's facilities, environmental damages and penalties or fines levied against the utility caused by the introduction by the customer of unacceptable or harmful substances shall be the responsibility of the customer.
2. In accordance with the National Standard Plumbing Code adopted by the Uniform Construction Code of the State of New Jersey, no storm drainage system of a building shall be connected directly or indirectly to the sanitary drainage system. The company adopts the above provision and prohibits the drainage of storm water into its collecting system. Each customer shall be responsible to prevent any surface water or groundwater from entering into the wastewater system and therefore shall not connect or allow to be connected to the system any sump pumps, basement or crawl space drains, roof gutters, downspouts, or floor drains, and shall properly maintain all pipes and clean-outs to assure a watertight connection. Improperly discharging effluent from a non-approved drainage or collection system shall be considered the basis for immediate termination of service pursuant to N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1 et seq. The Company will provide notice of the termination of service to the extent reasonably possible.
3. Garbage disposal units are not permitted unless specifically authorized by the Company.
4. Each customer shall prevent damage to all system components located on the property being served, including components located within easement area; maintain the grass growth and prevent the growth of trees, shrubs, and ornamentals within the easement areas; maintain and repair pipes connecting the home to the septic tank to prevent clogging and leaking; and to notify the Company of any damage which may occur to system components.
5. Because the wastewater system can only handle a limited quantity of water, each residential customer may discharge no more than the maximum average of 350 gallons per day, or 32,000 gallons per quarter, of wastewater. In order to verify compliance with this provision, each customer must allow a representative of the Company to inspect all plumbing components upon request and to obtain all water meter readings as may be required.
6. Customers may not trespass on Company property or enter any Company facility without a representative of the Company being present.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WASTEWATER

C. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO WASTEWATER SERVICE – TREATMENT SYSTEMS
(CONTINUED)

7. A customer may permanently terminate service by giving notice to the Company, which shall terminate service within five (5) business days of receipt of each notification. Temporary discontinuance of wastewater service is not permitted and each customer shall pay the applicable fixed service charge and minimum monthly charge (i.e., "RATES"), per month or per quarter, as applicable, unless and until such time as a replacement customer commences service at the premise. Customers are advised that it is illegal to operate a dwelling without adequate functioning wastewater facilities, and that the Company is required to notify local health authorities of wastewater service termination.

SCHEDULE A

I. MATERIALS NOT TO BE DISPOSED THROUGH THE WASTEWATER SYSTEM

Grease
Wipes (baby, cleaning, flushable, wet)
Gloves (latex, rubber)
Food scraps
Plastics
Gasoline or motor fuels
Paint and paint thinners
Used motor oils
Petroleum solvents
Pesticides (solids or liquids)
Herbicides (solids or liquids)
Engine coolants (antifreeze)
Acids
Water softener backwash
Photographic development solutions

II. MAXIMUM PERMITTED DISCHARGE CONCENTRATIONS

"Biochemical Oxygen Demand", – 250mg/L
Chemical oxygen demand – 351 mg/L
Total organic carbon – 99 mg/L
Total solids – 1,608 mg/L
Volatile solids – 295 mg/L
Total suspended solids – 75 mg/L
Volatile suspended solids – 62 mg/L
Calcium – 59 mg/L
Magnesium – 33 mg/L
Sodium – 218 mg/L
Chlorine – 218 mg/L
Oil and grease – 22 mg/L
Total dissolved solids – 872 mg/L
Total Kjeldahl nitrogen – 60.7 mg – N/L
Ammonia nitrogen – 53.3 mg – NL
Phosphorus – 6.3 mg – P/L
Turbidity – 45 NTU
Ph – 5-9
Alkaline – 479 mg CaCo3/L
Hardness – 327 mg CaCo3/L
Volatile organics by GC/MS – Non-detectable
Pesticides – Non-detectable
Herbicides – Non-detectable

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Eleventh Revised Sheet: No. 28
Superseding Tenth Revised Sheet: No. 28

AREA SERVED - WATER SERVICE

This tariff shall apply to the service area of the Company, which includes all or part of the following municipalities and all other places as may be permitted by law. This tariff shall also apply to other systems under contract wherever served. Hereafter, and unless otherwise specified herein,

- **Service Area 1** refers to the water service area of New Jersey-American Water Company as it existed prior to January 1, 2007;
- **Service Area 2** refers to the water service area of the former Elizabethtown Water Company;
- **Service Area 3** refers to the water service area of the former Mount Holly Water Company;
- **Service Area 1A** refers to the water service area of the former South Jersey Water Supply Company;
- **Service Area 1B** refers to the water service area of the former Penns Grove Water Supply Company;
- **Service Area 1C** refers to the service area of the former Shorelands Water Company;
- **Service Area 1D** refers to the service area of the former Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"); and
- **Service Area 1E** refers to the service area including all customers formerly served by the Borough of Haddonfield or located within the geographic boundaries of Haddonfield;
- **Service Area 1F** refers to the service area of the former Roxbury Water Company; and
- **Service Area 1G** refers to the service area of the former Egg Harbor City Water & Sewer Utility ("Egg Harbor City Utility").
- **Service Area 1H** refers to the former service area of Salem City ("Salem");

Unless otherwise indicated, all municipalities and customers referenced below having no numeric designation next to their names were served by New Jersey-American Water Company as it existed prior to January 1, 2007. All municipalities and customers with a (2) designation next to their names were served by the former Elizabethtown Water Company prior to January 1, 2007; with a (3) designation next to their names were previously served by the former Mount Holly Water Company prior to January 1, 2007; with a (1A) designation next to their names were previously served by the former South Jersey Water Supply Company prior to November 1, 2007; with a (1B) designation next to their names were previously served by the former Penns Grove Water Supply Company prior to November 1, 2007; with a (1C) next to their names were previously served by the former Shorelands Water Company prior to April 3, 2017; with a (1D) designation next to their names were previously served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. prior to September 1, 2010; and with a (1F) designation were previously served by Roxbury Water Company prior to January 1, 2019; with a (1G) designation were previously served by the Egg Harbor City Water & Sewer Utility prior to June 1, 2023; and with a (1H) designation, were previously served by Salem City prior to [date of closing]. Where a municipality was served in part by two of the former water companies listed above, service provided by New Jersey-American Water Company as it existed prior to January 1, 2007 shall be identified by a (1) designation. All municipalities for which the Company provides water service only to a portion of the municipality are reflected by a double asterisk (**) designation.

Atlantic County

Franchise Customers

<u>Cities</u>		<u>Townships</u>
Absecon	Northfield	Egg Harbor
Egg Harbor	Pleasantville	Galloway (1)(1G)
Linwood	Somers Point	

Burlington County

Franchise Customers

<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>
Palmyra	Burlington **
Riverton	Cinnaminson
	Delanco
	Delran
<u>Cities</u>	Eastampton (3)
Beverly	Edgewater Park
	Hainesport (3)
	Lumberton (3)
	Mansfield (3)
	Maple Shade**
	Mt. Laurel *
	Mt. Holly (3)
	Pemberton **
	Riverside
	Southampton (3)
	Springfield (3) **
	Westampton (3)

Resale Customers

Evesham Township MUA
Township of Moorestown
*Medford Township
Mt. Laurel Township MUA
Township of Maple Shade

(Continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

AREA SERVED - WATER SERVICE
(Continued)

Camden County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>		<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Cities</u>	
Audubon	Camden (11th and 12th Wards) **	Township of Haddon
Barrington		Aqua New Jersey
Bellmawr **		Borough of Berlin
Clementon **		Merchantville-Pennsauken
Gibbsboro	<u>Townships</u>	Water Commission
Haddon Heights	Cherry Hill **	Winslow Township MUA
Haddonfield (1E)	Gloucester **	Pine Hill Borough MUA
Hi-Nella	Haddon **	Audubon Park
Laurel Springs	Pennsauken **	Ancora Psychiatric Hospital
Lawnside	Voorhees	
Lindenwold		
Magnolia		
Mt. Ephraim		
Oaklyn		
Runnemede		
Somerdale		
Stratford		

Cape May County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>	<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Cities</u>	
Ocean City	Middle Township Water District #2
<u>Townships</u>	
Middle **	
Upper	

Essex County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>	<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>
North Caldwell **	Cedar Grove **
	Irvington
	Livingston **
	Maplewood
	Millburn
	South Orange Village **
	West Orange
	Township of Livingston
	City of Orange
	Township of South Orange Village
	Borough of Essex Fells

Gloucester County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>	<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Townships</u>	
East Greenwich **	Deptford Township MUA
Elk Township	East Greenwich Township
Harrison (1A)	Mantua Township MUA
Logan (1) & (1B)	Township of West Deptford
Mantua**	City of Woodbury
Woolwich**	Borough of Pitman
	Borough of Woodbury Heights
	Borough of Glassboro
	Borough of National Park
	Aqua New Jersey
	Borough of Clayton

(Continued)

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

AREA SERVED - WATER SERVICE
(Continued)

Hunterdon County

Franchise Customers

<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>
Frenchtown	Raritan (2) Readington (2)** Tewksbury (2) (1D)**

Mercer County

Franchise Customers

<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>
Princeton (2)	Hopewell (2) ** Lawrence (2)** West Windsor (2)

Resale Customers

Borough of Hopewell (2)

Middlesex County

Franchise Customers

<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>
Dunellen (2) Jamesburg Middlesex (2)** South Plainfield (2) **	Cranbury (2) Edison (2)** Monroe ** Piscataway (2) ** Plainsboro (2) ** South Brunswick (2) **

Resale Customers

Township of Edison
Township of South Brunswick (2)
Middlesex Water Co. (2)

Monmouth County

Franchise Customers

<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Cities</u>
Allenhurst Bradley Beach Deal Eatontown Fair Haven Highlands Interlaken Little Silver Monmouth Beach Neptune City Oceanport Red Bank ** Rumson Sea Bright Shrewsbury Tinton Falls Union Beach West Long Branch	Asbury Park Long Branch <u>Townships</u> Aberdeen ** Colts Neck ** Freehold ** Hazlet (1C) Holmdel **(1C) Howell ** Middletown Neptune (incl. Ocean Grove) Ocean Shrewsbury ** <u>Villages</u> Loch Arbour

Resale Customers

Borough of Avon
Borough of Belmar
Lake Como Borough
Borough of Matawan
Borough of Red Bank
Borough of Keansburg
Farmingdale Borough
Aberdeen Township (1C)
Keyport Borough (1C)

(Continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

AREA SERVED - WATER SERVICE
(Continued)

Morris County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>		<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>	
Mendham	Chatham	Township of East Hanover
Florham Park **	Chester (2) (1D)**	
Chester	Harding **	
	Long Hill (formerly Passaic)	
	Mendham **	
	Mt. Olive (1) (1D)**	
	Roxbury (1F)	

Ocean County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>		<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>	
Bay Head	Berkeley**	Borough of Point Pleasant
Lavallette **	Brick**	
Mantoloking	Toms River (formerly Dover)**	
	Lakewood	
	Plumsted (3)	

Passaic County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>	
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>
West Paterson **	Little Falls

Salem County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>	
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>
Pennsgrove (1B)	Carneys Point (1B)
	Mannington (1H)
	Oldmans (1B)
<u>Cities</u>	Quinton (1H) **
Salem (1H)	

Somerset County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>		<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>	
Bernardsville	Bedminster (1) & (2)	Franklin Township (2)
Bound Brook (2)	Bernards	Rocky Hill Borough
Far Hills	Branchburg (2)	
Manville (2)	Bridgewater (2)	
Millstone (2)	Franklin (2) **	
North Plainfield (2)	Green Brook (2)	
Peapack and Gladstone (2)	Hillsborough (2)	
Raritan (2)	Montgomery (2)	
Rocky Hill	Warren (1) & (2)	
Somerville (2)		
South Bound Brook (2)		
Watchung (1) & (2)		

(Continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

AREA SERVED - WATER SERVICE
(Continued)

Union County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>		<u>Resale Customers</u>
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>	
Fanwood (2)	Berkeley Heights	City of Elizabeth (2)
Garwood (2)	Clark (2)	Winfield Mutual Housing Corporation (2)
Kenilworth (2)	Cranford (2)	City of Rahway
Mountainside (2)	Hillside (1) & (2)	
New Providence	Scotch Plains (2)	
Roselle (2)	Springfield	
Roselle Park (2)	Union (1) & (2)	
<u>Cities</u>	<u>Towns</u>	
Summit	Westfield (2)	
Linden (2)		
Plainfield (2)		

Warren County

<u>Franchise Customers</u>	
<u>Boroughs</u>	<u>Townships</u>
Washington	Franklin
<u>Towns</u>	Mansfield
Belvidere	Oxford **
	Washington
	White

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

WATER SERVICE RATE SCHEDULES
TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Class of Service</u>	<u>Rate Schedule</u>	<u>Sheet No.</u>
General Metered – Area 1, Area 1A, Area 1B, Area 1C, Area 1D, Area 1E, Area 2, Area 3	A-1	34.1
General Metered – Sales for Resale	A-2	34.2
General Metered – Area 1F – Roxbury	A-16	34.6
General Metered – Area 1G – Egg Harbor City Utility	A-17	34.7
General Metered – Area 1G – Irrigation Service – Egg Harbor City Utility	A-18	34.8
General Metered – Area 1H – Salem (Residential, Light Commercial)	A-19	34.9
General Metered – Area 1H – Salem (Institutional, Heavy Commercial, Industrial)	A-20	34.10
Economic Development Program	Rider A	35
Sales for Resale – Commodity-Demand Service	C	36.1
Sales for Resale – Off-Peak Service	D	36.2
Sales for Resale – Area 1 – Manasquan	E	36.3
Sales for Resale – Area 1 – Manasquan	Appendix A	36.3.2
Industrial – Optional Industrial Wholesale	F	36.4
Sales for Resale – Area 2 – Service to Others Systems	G	36.5
Sales for Resale – Peaking Services	H	36.6
Sales for Resale – Area 1C – Emergency or Backup Bulk Rate Sales	I	36.7
Sales for Resale – Area 1C – Manasquan	J	36.8
Distribution System Improvement Charge	K	37
Private Fire – Area 1 – General	L-1	38.1
Private Fire – Area 1 – Logan and Woolwich Townships	L-2	38.2
Private Fire – Area 2 – General	L-3	38.3
Private Fire – Areas 1A and 3 – General	L-7	38.5
Private Fire – Area 1B – General	L-9	38.6
Private Fire – Area 1C – General	L-10	38.7
Private Fire – Area 1D – Applied	L-11	38.8
Private Fire – Area 1F – Roxbury	L-12	38.9
Private Fire – Area 1G – Egg Harbor City Utility	L-13	38.10
Private Fire – Area 1H – Salem	L-14	38.11
Public Fire – General	M-1	39.1
Public Fire – Area 1 – Logan and Woolwich Townships Ortle Beach, Pelican Island (Toms River Twp.) and Adelpia System	M-2	39.2
Public Fire – Area 2 – Bedminster and Franklin Townships	M-5	39.4
Public Fire – Area 3 – General	M-6	39.5
Public Fire – Area 1A – General	M-7	39.6
Public Fire – Area 1B – General	M-8	39.7
Public Fire – Area 1D – Applied	M-10	39.9
Public Fire – Area 1G – Egg Harbor City Utility	M-12	39.11
Purchased Water Adjustment Clause	O-1	40
Lead Service Line Replacement Charge	O-2	40.2
Universal Affordability – Water	O-3	40.3
Revenue Decoupling Mechanism	O-4	40.4
Miscellaneous Service	P-1	41
Miscellaneous Service	P-2	42
Multi-Use Service Line	P-3	43

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 34.1
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 34.1

RATE SCHEDULE A-1
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general metered residential, commercial, industrial, and municipal service throughout Service Area 1, Service Area 1A, Service Area 1B, Service Area 1C, Service Area 1D, Service Area 1E, Service Area 2, and Service Area 3, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt Per Month	Exempt Per Month
5/8"	\$23.80	\$20.55
3/4"	35.70	30.83
1"	59.60	51.47
1 1/2"	119.20	102.94
2"	190.90	164.87
3"	357.80	309.00
4"	596.00	514.72
6"	1,191.90	1,029.35
8"	1,907.00	1,646.93
10"	2,383.70	2,058.61
12"	2,979.40	2,573.07
16"	4,767.40	4,117.23

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter.

	Gallons Per Month	Rate* Per 100 Gallons	Rate* Per 1,000 Gallons
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.97710	\$9.7710
Exempt	All	\$0.84384	\$8.4384

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 34.2
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 34.2

RATE SCHEDULE A-2
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general metered sales for resale service throughout the entire territory served except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>	<u>Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	\$23.80	\$20.55
3/4"	35.70	30.83
1"	59.60	51.47
1 1/2"	119.20	102.94
2"	190.90	164.87
3"	357.80	309.00
4"	596.00	514.72
6"	1,191.90	1,029.35
8"	1,907.00	1,646.93
10"	2,383.70	2,058.61
12"	2,979.40	2,573.07
16"	4,767.40	4,117.23

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter.

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.97710	\$9.7710
Exempt	All	\$0.84384	\$8.4384

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

Reserved for future use.

Issued: August 29, 2022

Effective: September 1, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 34.4
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 34.4

Reserved for Future Use

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 34.5
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 34.5

Reserved for Future Use

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE A-16
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general metered service throughout Service Area 1F, Roxbury, served by the Company, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	\$23.80
3/4"	35.70
1"	59.60
1 1/2"	119.20
2"	190.90
3"	357.80
4"	596.00
6"	1,191.90
8"	1,907.00
10"	2,383.70
12"	2,979.40
16"	4,767.40

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter.

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate* Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate* Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0. 49150	\$4.9150

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 ___ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

First Revised Sheet: No. 34.7
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 34.7

RATE SCHEDULE A-17
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general metered residential, commercial, industrial, and municipal service throughout Service Area 1G, Egg Harbor City Utility, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	\$23.80
3/4"	35.70
1"	59.60
1 1/2"	119.20
2"	190.90
3"	357.80
4"	596.00
6"	1,191.90
8"	1,907.00
10"	2,383.70
12"	2,979.40
16"	4,767.40

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter.

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.97710	\$9.7710

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

Issued: _____

Effective: June 2, 2025

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 _____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

First Revised Sheet: No. 34.8
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 34.8

RATE SCHEDULE A-18
IRRIGATION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to use of water supplied through meters to residential, commercial, industrial, and municipal customer located in Service Area 1G, the Egg Harbor City Utility, for the sole purpose of irrigation. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed service charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service. The charge for the general metered irrigation service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge and the Water Charge.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	\$5.00
3/4"	7.50
1"	12.50
1 1/2"	25.00
2"	40.10
3"	75.20
4"	125.20
6"	250.40
8"	400.60
10"	500.80
12"	625.90
16"	1,001.60

WATER CHARGE

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate* Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate* Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.97710	\$9.7710

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE A-19
GENERAL METERED AND FLAT SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general metered residential and light commercial service throughout Service Area 1H, Salem, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. Those who receive metered water service will receive volume-based water service billings; all others will receive flat rate billings for unmetered service. The Company may require a water meter to be installed by any customer utilizing a well or other private water system at the property owner's expense. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge and the Water Charge.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Usage Allowance</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	2,500	\$30.87
3/4"	5,000	61.41
1"	9,000	110.15
1 ¼"	20,000	244.99
1 ½"	20,000	244.99
2"	35,000	429.22

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter above the usage allowance included in the Fixed Service Charge.

<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate* Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate* Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Up to 1,000,000	\$0.84600	\$8.4600
Over 1,000,000	\$1.01300	\$10.1300

FLAT RATE WATER CHARGE

All unmetered water service customers in a Single Family unit as defined by the Salem City municipal code shall pay a Flat Rate Water Charge per unit as indicated below.

	<u>RATE PER MONTH PER UNIT</u>
Non-Exempt	\$35.42

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 34.10

RATE SCHEDULE A-20
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general metered institutional, heavy commercial, industrial and municipal service throughout Service Area 1H, Salem, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for general metered service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge and the Water Charge

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All general metered water service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Usage Allowance</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	2,500	\$30.98
3/4"	5,000	62.85
1"	9,000	110.30
1 1/4"	20,000	245.25
1 1/2"	20,000	245.25
2"	35,000	429.26
3"	50,000	614.10
4"	100,000	1,226.25
6"	150,000	1,837.25
8"	300,000	3,571.63

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter above the usage allowance included in the Fixed Service Charge.

<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Up to 167,000	\$0.84600	\$8.4600
Over 167,000	\$1.01300	\$10.1300

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for general metered water service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

RIDER A
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

ELIGIBILITY:

- Minimum Annual Average Monthly Volume: 35,000 gallons per monthly billing cycle for new customers or a net increase of 35,000 gallons for existing customers meeting the additional provisions below.
- Employment of a minimum of ten (10) new full-time equivalent employees or a 50% increase in the number of new full-time jobs created, whichever is less, who will be employed in the new or expanded space.
- Customer Classes: General Metered Service Commercial and General Metered Service Industrial
 - Customer class exception: Residential uses in Commercial class (Apartments and condominiums) while considered commercial customers, are not eligible for this program.
- New customers who lease, purchase or construct new space for manufacturing, retail, research, office or warehousing.
- Existing customers who lease, purchase or construct new space for manufacturing, retail, research, office or warehousing and/or expand its existing operations.
- Any existing space that is reconverted for use for the purpose of qualifying under this program must have been vacant for a minimum of one (1) year.
- Application to New Jersey American Water shall be made on the Company's form, which must be completed and submitted by the customer and approved by New Jersey American Water, at the Company's discretion, before the customer may participate in the program.
- An annual certification is required. The certification shall be made on the form prescribed by New Jersey American Water by an officer of the customer stating that eligibility requirements have been met. Failure to submit the annual certification shall be grounds for termination of the customer's participation in the program.

BENEFITS:

- Credit on water consumption charge for up to four (4) years. Applicable fixed charges, PWAC charges, and any other applicable charges will continue to be applied at the standard rate, as set forth within this tariff.
- Amount of Credit on Water Consumption Charges:

Year	Amount of Credit
1 st Year	50%
2 nd Year	40%
3 rd Year	25%
4 th Year	10%
- Additional credit of five per cent (5%) on water consumption charges will be added to the above credits for all of the Company's customers who qualify for the Economic Development Program and who are also located in a "priority location" (Urban Enterprise Zone) as defined by the New Jersey Economic Development Authority.

NOTE:

The decision to accept the initial application, or continued participation, of a customer into the program resides with New Jersey American Water, at the Company's discretion. Also, the ability to include customers into the program is subject to available capacity as established through the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection permitting process.

Failure of the customer to maintain the minimum monthly usage during 2 or more months in a rolling 12-month period shall be grounds to remove the customer from the Economic Development Program.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 36.1
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.1

RATE SCHEDULE C
SALES FOR RESALE – COMMODITY-DEMAND SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to Sales for Resale customers served by the Company who have executed a Commodity-Demand Regional Water Sales Agreement ("Agreement") with an initial term of 10 years and a minimum Nominated Demand, as defined in the Agreement, of 50,000 gallons per day. The charge for service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Commodity Charge, the Demand Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the terms of the agreement.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All such customers shall pay a monthly fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company, in addition to the charge for the commodity of water used and the charge for the demand nominated or experienced, whichever is greater. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>	<u>Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	\$23.80	\$20.55
3/4"	35.70	30.83
1"	59.60	51.47
1 1/2"	119.20	102.94
2"	190.90	164.87
3"	357.80	309.00
4"	596.00	514.72
6"	1,191.90	1,029.35
8"	1,907.00	1,646.93
10"	2,383.70	2,058.61
12"	2,979.40	2,573.07
16"	4,767.40	4,117.23

COMMODITY CHARGE

A charge will be rendered for all water used pursuant to the provisions of the Applicability section of this Rate Schedule C as follows:

<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>		<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>	
	<u>Non-Exempt</u>	<u>Exempt</u>	<u>Non-Exempt</u>	<u>Exempt</u>
All	\$0.07540	\$0.06510	\$0.7540	\$0.6510

DEMAND CHARGE

A monthly charge will be rendered for all water available to the customer in accordance with the customer's Nominated Demand, as provided for in the Agreement.

<u>Nominated Demand Charge Per Month</u>			
<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons of Nominated Demand</u>		<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons of Nominated Demand</u>	
<u>Non-Exempt</u>	<u>Exempt</u>	<u>Non-Exempt</u>	<u>Exempt</u>
\$8.94690	\$7.72670	\$89.4690	\$77.2670

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sales for resale service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due 30 days after the invoice date. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 36.2
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.2

RATE SCHEDULE D
SALES FOR RESALE – OFF-PEAK SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to Sales for Resale customers served by the Company who have executed an Off-Peak Water Sales Agreement ("Agreement") with an initial term of 10 years and a minimum Off-Peak Demand, as defined in the Agreement, of 50,000 gallons per day. The charge for service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Commodity Charge, the Demand Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the terms of the agreement.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All such customers shall pay a monthly fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company, in addition to the charge for the commodity of water used and the charge for the demand selected or experienced, whichever is greater. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established for a new customer or discontinued for a customer leaving the system permanently, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service. The fixed service charge shall not be prorated for any service provided during the months of May through September of each year.

Size of Meter	Non-Exempt	Exempt
	Per Month	Per Month
5/8"	\$23.80	\$20.55
3/4"	35.70	30.83
1"	59.60	51.47
1 1/2"	119.20	102.94
2"	190.90	164.87
3"	357.80	309.00
4"	596.00	514.72
6"	1,191.90	1,029.35
8"	1,907.00	1,646.93
10"	2,383.70	2,058.61
12"	2,979.40	2,573.07
16"	4,767.40	4,117.23

COMMODITY CHARGE

A charge will be rendered for all water used pursuant to the provisions of the Applicability section of this Rate Schedule D as follows:

Gallons Per Month	Rate Per 100 Gallons		Rate Per 1,000 Gallons	
	Non-Exempt	Exempt	Non-Exempt	Exempt
All	\$0.07540	\$0.06510	\$0.7540	\$0.6510

DEMAND CHARGE

A monthly charge will be rendered for all water available to the customer in accordance with the customer's Off-Peak Demand, as provided for in the Agreement. The Demand Rate is 91.96% of the Commodity-Demand Service Demand Rate set forth on Rate Schedule C.

Off-Peak Demand Charge Per Month			
Rate Per 100 Gallons of Off-Peak Demand		Rate Per 1,000 Gallons of Off-Peak Demand	
Non-Exempt	Exempt	Non-Exempt	Exempt
\$8.2343	\$7.1113	\$82.3430	\$71.1130

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sales for resale service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due 30 days after the invoice date. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE E
SALES FOR RESALE – MANASQUAN

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to Sales for Resale customers served by the Company in Service Area 1 who have executed Manasquan Reservoir Water Supply System Water Purchase Contracts and either: (1) whose purchases of water and rates of flow are in accordance with the provisions of Appendix A of this Rate Schedule; or, (2) who have executed a Water Resale and Treatment Agreement, in which case the terms of such Agreement, regarding purchase limitations, shall supersede the applicable Appendix A schedule herein.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the terms of the agreement.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All such customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge based on the size of each meter installed by the Company, in addition to the charge for the quantity of water used, if any, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	\$23.80
3/4"	35.70
1"	59.60
1 1/2"	119.20
2"	190.90
3"	357.80
4"	596.00
6"	1,191.90
8"	1,907.00
10"	2,383.70
12"	2,979.40
16"	4,767.40

WATER CHARGE

A charge will be made for all water used pursuant to the provisions of the Applicability section of this Rate Schedule E as follows:

	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
	<u>Non-Exempt</u>	<u>Non-Exempt</u>
Uninterruptible	\$0.25080	\$2.5080
Interruptible	\$0.97710	\$9.7710

(Continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE E
SALES FOR RESALE – MANASQUAN
(Continued)

DEFINITIONS:

UNINTERRUPTIBLE SERVICE

Uninterruptible service is water service to be provided to customers in quantities specified in Appendix A herein or Schedule A of the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement. The Annual Purchase Requirement is the minimum total volume of water per year which will be purchased take-or-pay by the customer from the Company. The Company agrees to provide to the customer the quantity specified in Appendix A herein or Schedule A of the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement unconditionally, except to the extent that: (1) the limitations of Appendix A herein or Schedule A of the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement apply to restrict the quantity of water which the customer may take on a maximum monthly, maximum daily and peak hourly basis; and, (2) in those cases where the contracts have been executed, the provisions of Section 5 of the Agreement, regarding force majeure events, may apply under certain circumstances. The rate may be found on Rate Schedule E of the present tariff.

INTERRUPTIBLE SERVICE

Interruptible service means a supply of water, to the extent that the Company in its reasonable judgment determines that it has excess water available above the Annual Purchase Period Limitations specified in Appendix A herein or Schedule A of the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement, which may be provided to the customer: (1) to meet extraordinary consumer demand requirements; (2) for occasional, temporary, or emergent needs; or (3) in such other circumstances as shall be agreed upon by the Company and the customer. The rate may be found on Rate Schedule E of the present tariff. In addition to the charge for the quantity of water used, if any, above the Annual Purchase Period Limitations specified in Appendix A herein or Schedule A of the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1 will apply.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sales for resale service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due 30 days after the invoice date. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

(Continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 ___ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 36.3.2

RATE SCHEDULE E
SALES FOR RESALE – MANASQUAN

APPENDIX A

Annual Purchase Period: July 1, 1990 through June 30, 1991 and each subsequent 12-month period thereafter.

Uninterruptible Service shall not exceed the limits established for each month, day and hour in each Annual Purchase Period as set forth in the following tables:

Borough of Avon-By-The-Sea

Annual Purchase Requirement: 46.0 Million Gallons Per Year (MGY)

Uninterruptible Service
Annual Purchase Period Limitations

<u>Month</u>	<u>Maximum Monthly Purchase Million Gallons (MG)</u>	<u>Maximum Daily Purchase Million Gallons (MG)</u>	<u>Peak Hourly Purchase Gallons Per Minute (GPM)</u>
January	7	0.30	250
February	7	0.30	250
March	7	0.30	250
April	7	0.30	250
May	3	0.11	90
June	2	0.11	90
July	1	0.05	90
August	2	0.11	90
September	4	0.16	90
October	7	0.30	250
November	7	0.30	250
December	7	0.30	250

Borough of Belmar

Annual Purchase Requirement: 105.0 MGY

Uninterruptible Service
Annual Purchase Period Limitations

<u>Month</u>	<u>Maximum Monthly Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Maximum Daily Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Peak Hourly Purchase (GPM)</u>
January	17	1.00	1000
February	17	1.00	1000
March	17	1.00	1000
April	17	1.00	1000
May	0	0.00	0
June	0	0.00	0
July	0	0.00	0
August	0	0.00	0
September	0	0.00	0
October	17	1.00	1000
November	17	1.00	1000
December	17	1.00	1000

(Continued)

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

RATE SCHEDULE E
SALES FOR RESALE – MANASQUAN

APPENDIX A
(Continued)

Borough of Matawan

Annual Purchase Requirement: 121.18 MGY

Uninterruptible Service
Annual Purchase Period Limitations

<u>Month</u>	<u>Maximum Monthly Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Maximum Daily Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Peak Hourly Purchase (GPM)</u>
January	24	1.20	900
February	21	1.05	900
March	23	1.15	900
April	21	1.05	900
May	0	0.00	0
June	0	0.00	0
July	0	0.00	0
August	0	0.00	0
September	0	0.00	0
October	23	1.15	900
November	23	1.15	900
December	23	1.15	900

Borough of Red Bank

Annual Purchase Requirement: 200.0 MGY

Uninterruptible Service
Annual Purchase Period Limitations

<u>Month</u>	<u>Maximum Monthly Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Maximum Daily Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Peak Hourly Purchase (GPM)</u>
January	51	2.55	2100
February	51	2.55	2100
March	51	2.55	2100
April	34	1.46	1200
May	6	0.30	300
June	6	0.30	300
July	6	0.30	300
August	6	0.30	300
September	6	0.30	300
October	34	1.46	1200
November	62	2.66	2150
December	62	2.66	2150

With mutual consent, the parties may agree to reduce delivery at one point while increasing delivery at the other point.

(Continued)

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 36.3.4

RATE SCHEDULE E
SALES FOR RESALE – MANASQUAN

APPENDIX A
(Continued)

Lake Como Borough

Annual Purchase Requirement: 36.5 MGY

Uninterruptible Service
Annual Purchase Period Limitations

<u>Month</u>	<u>Sales for resale Manasquan Maximum Monthly Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Manasquan Maximum Daily Purchase (MG)</u>	<u>Manasquan Peak Hourly Purchase (GPM)</u>
January	4.0	0.37	300
February	4.0	0.37	300
March	4.0	0.37	300
April	4.0	0.37	300
May	3.65	0.12	400
June	2.45	0.12	500
July	1.23	0.06	450
August	2.45	0.12	400
September	4.8	0.18	350
October	5.0	0.37	350
November	4.0	0.37	300
December	4.0	0.37	300

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 36.4
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.4

RATE SCHEDULE F
OPTIONAL INDUSTRIAL WHOLESALE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable only to customers that are served by the Company and that (a) use 9,350,000 or more gallons of water per month, each and every month (b) have loading factors (the ratio of maximum demand (peak load) to the average demand (load) during a given period) not in excess of 1.2 times their monthly consumption on an average daily basis. The charge for service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All such customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge based on the size of the meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate. Whenever service is established or discontinued, all applicable fixed charged shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service as follows:

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>	<u>Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	\$23.80	\$20.55
3/4"	35.70	30.83
1"	59.60	51.47
1 1/2"	119.20	102.94
2"	190.90	164.87
3"	357.80	309.00
4"	596.00	514.72
6"	1,191.90	1,029.35
8"	1,907.00	1,646.93
10"	2,383.70	2,058.61
12"	2,979.40	2,573.07
16"	4,767.40	4,117.23

WATER CHARGE

<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>		<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>	
<u>Non-Exempt</u>	<u>Exempt</u>	<u>Non-Exempt*</u>	<u>Exempt*</u>
\$0.51200	\$0.44220	\$5.1200	\$4.4220

MINIMUM CONSUMPTION CHARGE

A minimum consumption charge is applicable. The minimum consumption charge is equal to 9,350,000 gallons of water per month multiplied by the appropriate Water Charge herein and the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sale of water under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

(Continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.4.1
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 36.4.1

RATE SCHEDULE F
OPTIONAL INDUSTRIAL WHOLESAL
(Continued)

TERMS

Bills are rendered monthly in arrears.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

If monthly consumption on an average daily basis exceeds a load factor of 1.2 times the last (rolling) twelve months average monthly consumption on an average daily basis for three consecutive months, between April 1 and September 30, a customer will be removed from this Rate Schedule and will be billed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1. A customer eliminated from this Rate Schedule will continue to be billed under General Metered Service for a minimum of twelve months and will again be eligible for this schedule if, after twelve months, its monthly consumption on an average daily basis has not exceeded, for three consecutive months, 1.2 times the last twelve-month average monthly consumption.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE G
SALES FOR RESALE – SERVICE TO OTHER SYSTEMS

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to Sales for Resale customers receiving service from the Company as of December 8, 2008. Applicable to customers served by the Company throughout Service Area 2 that have a contract demand of 500,000 or more gallons per day pursuant to a contract entered into with the Company at the Company's sole option. The charge for metered Service to Other Systems Under Contract shall consist of the total of Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by written agreement.

WATER CHARGE

<u>Consumption</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>	
	<u>Non-Exempt</u>	<u>Exempt</u>
All water usage	\$3.9380	\$3.4010

	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	
	<u>Non-Exempt</u>	<u>Exempt</u>
All water usage	\$0.39380	\$0.34010

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sale of water under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

TERMS

Subject to written agreement.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE H
SALES FOR RESALE – PEAKING SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to Sales for Resale customers for sales occurring during the Company's peak service period May 1 through September 30 who: (1) do not have a written agreement with the Company for the provision of water service; or (2) whose written agreement with the Company does not contain an annual purchase commitment. This Rate Schedule does not apply to customers taking service under Rate Schedule D (Off-Peak) during non-drought conditions unless otherwise provided for in that customer's agreement. During drought emergencies declared by the Governor, this Rate Schedule will be applied to all surplus water transfers ordered by the Commissioner of the Department of Environmental Protection to mitigate drought. The charge for this service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Water Charge, the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Interruptible.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All such customers shall pay a fixed service charge, during any month when water is consumed pursuant to this Rate Schedule H, based on the size of each meter installed by the Company. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate.

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>	<u>Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	\$23.80	\$20.55
3/4"	35.70	30.83
1"	59.60	51.47
1 1/2"	119.20	102.94
2"	190.90	164.87
3"	357.80	309.00
4"	596.00	514.72
6"	1,191.90	1,029.35
8"	1,907.00	1,646.93
10"	2,383.70	2,058.61
12"	2,979.40	2,573.07
16"	4,767.40	4,117.23

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter.

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$1.14450	\$11.4450
Exempt	All	\$0.98841	\$9.8841

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sales for resale service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due 30 days after the invoice date. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 36.7
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 36.7

RATE SCHEDULE I
EMERGENCY OR BACKUP BULK RATE SALES

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to emergency/backup bulk sales to municipalities or other water purveyors in Service Area 1C, Shorelands, and only by yearly contract between the municipality or other water purveyor and the Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by "Standard Terms and Conditions".

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All such customers shall pay a fixed service charge, during any month when water is consumed pursuant to this Rate Schedule I, based on the size of each meter installed by the Company, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K. The Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, will apply to all water used in excess of any Annual Purchase Requirement. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate.

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	\$23.80
3/4"	35.70
1"	59.60
1 1/2"	119.20
2"	190.90
3"	357.80
4"	596.00
6"	1,191.90
8"	1,907.00
10"	2,383.70
12"	2,979.40
16"	4,767.40

WATER CHARGE

In addition to the Fixed Service Charge set forth above, a charge will be made for all water used as registered by the meter.

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.67810	\$6.7810

Exempt customers, as defined in N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50(c), are those public utility corporations which are subject to the payment of a tax based on gross receipts.

Non-Exempt customers are all other customers not entitled to the statutory exemptions provided pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50(c). Uninterruptible customers are as defined in the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sale of water under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 ___ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE J
SALES FOR RESALE – MANASQUAN

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to bulk sales to municipalities or other water purveyors taking water from the New Jersey Water Supply Authority ("NJWSA") delivered through Service Area 1C, Shorelands, pursuant to Water Resale and Treatment contractual requirements where they pay the NJWSA directly for the raw water.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All sales for resale service customers shall pay a fixed service charge based on the size of each meter installed, in addition to the charge for the quantity of water used, if any, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, and the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K. The Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, will apply to all water used in excess of any Annual Purchase Requirement. Customers with multiple meters shall be charged for each meter at the indicated rate.

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	\$23.80
3/4"	35.70
1"	59.60
1 1/2"	119.20
2"	190.90
3"	357.80
4"	596.00
6"	1,191.90
8"	1,907.00
10"	2,383.70
12"	2,979.40
16"	4,767.40

WATER CHARGES

A charge will be made for all water used pursuant to the take or pay contractual agreement as follows:

	<u>Non-Exempt Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Uninterruptible	\$0.35790	\$3.5790

Exempt customers, as defined in N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50(c), are those public utility corporations which are subject to the payment of a tax based on gross receipts.

Non-Exempt customers are all other customers not entitled to the statutory exemptions provided pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50(c). Uninterruptible customers are as defined in the Water Resale and Treatment Agreement.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for sales for resale service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due 30 days after the invoice date. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 _____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE K
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT CHARGE

Applicable to all general metered service and sales for resale customers throughout the entire territory served.

CHARACTER

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions".

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT CHARGE (DSIC)

In addition to all other charges for general metered service (GMS) and sales for resale customers throughout the entire territory served, the following charges will be assessed on a fixed, per meter basis for each monthly bill, commencing _____.

RATE

This charge is in addition to Rate Schedules A-1 through A-18 as noted on those rate schedules, and C, D, E, F, H, I and J.

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>	<u>Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	\$0.00	\$0.00
3/4"	0.00	0.00
1"	0.00	0.00
1 1/2"	0.00	0.00
2"	0.00	0.00
3"	0.00	0.00
4"	0.00	0.00
6"	0.00	0.00
8"	0.00	0.00
10"	0.00	0.00
12"	0.00	0.00
16"	0.00	0.00

FILING

The DSIC is authorized pursuant to N.J.A.C. 14:9-10.1 et seq. and the procedures for filing, reviewing, approving and implementing the DSIC are set forth therein. The DSIC is based on the Company's Foundational Filing, which was reviewed and approved by the Board of Public Utilities on August 17, 2022. The approval process included public notice and four public hearings. The notice included proposed surcharge amounts, which were estimated based on projected construction schedules, costs and other factors. Pursuant to the approved Foundational Filing, the Company shall endeavor to make semi-annual DSIC filings at approximately six-month intervals. The DSIC is subject to a maximum amount and other limitations in N.J.A.C. 14:9-10.1 et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedules for applicable customer classes.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

SPECIAL PROVISION

*Non-Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-21(a). Exempt consumption charges reflect a water tax of \$.01 multiplied by 0.863621 per 1,000 gallons. This water tax is not applicable for sales for resale service. Exempt rates are charged for service rendered to those customers entitled to statutory relief pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:30A-50, et seq.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 _____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE L-1
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively for private fire protection throughout Service Area 1, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the connection charge and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

1 – Service Charge

<u>Size of Connection</u>	<u>Per Month</u>
For each connection of 2" or less	\$30.16
For each 3" connection	67.85
For each 4" connection	120.60
For each 6" connection	271.37
For each 8" connection	482.45
For each 10" connection	754.00
For each 12" connection	1,085.76
For each 16" connection	1,930.24

Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$66.00

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. The use of private fire protection facilities for other reasons will result in termination of service following notification pursuant to N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(d), and water charges will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-1.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 ___ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE L-2
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively for private fire protection where multiple customers are served from one private fire service connection in Service Area 1 in the Townships of Logan and Woolwich, Gloucester County in the area formerly served by Logan Wells Water Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

The charge for private fire protection shall consist of the total of the sprinkler head charge based on the number of sprinkler heads, the hydrant charge based on the number of hydrants, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Sprinkler Head	\$1.53
For each Hydrant	\$61.50

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered in monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-2.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE L-3
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively for private fire protection throughout Service Area 2, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the connection charge, the hydrant charge, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

1- <u>Service Charge</u>	
<u>Size of Connection</u>	<u>Per Month</u>
For each connection of 2" or less	\$55.18
For each 3" connection	108.40
For each 4" connection	174.79
For each 6" connection	324.23
For each 8" connection	553.64
For each 10" connection	722.97
For each 12" connection	1,041.04
For each 16" connection	2,045.52
For each 20" connection	3,727.87
2- <u>Hydrant Charge</u>	
	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$65.50

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-3.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

First Revised Sheet: No. 38.4
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 38.4

Reserved for future use.

Issued: August 29, 2022

Effective: September 1, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

RATE SCHEDULE L-7
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively for private fire protection throughout Service Area 3 and Service Area 1A, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the connection charge, the hydrant charge, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

1- Service Charge

<u>Size of Connection</u>	<u>Per Month</u>
For each connection of 2" or less	\$30.16
For each 3" connection	67.85
For each 4" connection	120.60
For each 6" connection	271.37
For each 8" connection	482.45
For each 10" connection	754.00
For each 12" connection	1,085.76
For each 16" connection	1,930.24

2- Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$52.50

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-7.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE L-9
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively for private fire protection throughout Service Area 1B, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the connection charge, the hydrant charge, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

1- Service Charge

<u>Size of Connection</u>	<u>Per Month</u>
For each connection of 2" or less	\$30.16
For each 3" connection	67.85
For each 4" connection	120.60
For each 6" connection	271.37
For each 8" connection	482.45
For each 10" connection	754.00
For each 12" connection	1,085.76
For each 16" connection	1,930.24

2- Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$45.30

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-9.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 38.7
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 38.7

RATE SCHEDULE L-10
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively to private fire protection facilities served by the Company, throughout Service Area 1C, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the connection charge, the hydrant charge, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Sprinkler services with hose or hydrant connected to them:

<u>Size of Connection</u>	<u>Per Month</u>
For each 3" connection	\$190.00
For each 4" connection	316.26
For each 6" connection	632.52
For each 8" connection	1,012.52
For each 10" connection	1,569.18

Sprinkler services without hose or hydrant connected to them:

<u>Size of Connection</u>	<u>Per Month</u>
For each connection of 2" or less	\$63.74
For each 3" connection	133.61
For each 4" connection	223.09
For each 6" connection	446.18
For each 8" connection	713.40
For each 10" connection	1,114.22

Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$66.00

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

(continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 38.7.1

RATE SCHEDULE L-10
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE
(Continued)

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-10.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 38.8
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 38.8

RATE SCHEDULE L-11
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to customers throughout Service Area 1D, formerly served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"), for private fire protection service. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the connection charge, the hydrant charge, and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by "Standard Terms and Conditions".

RATES

1- Service Charge

<u>Size of Connection</u>	<u>Per Month</u>
For each connection of 2" or less	\$30.16
For each 3" connection	67.85
For each 4" connection	120.60
For each 6" connection	271.37
For each 8" connection	482.45
For each 10" connection	754.00
For each 12" connection	1,085.76
For each 16" connection	1,930.24

2- Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$40.30

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed service charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-1.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-11.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 ___ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Third Revised Sheet: No. 38.9
Superseding Second Revised Sheet: No. 38.9

RATE SCHEDULE L-12
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively to private fire protection facilities served by the Company, throughout Service Area 1F, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. The charge for private fire protection service will consist of the total of the monthly system charge and the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

For each system: Per Month
\$40.30

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-16.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-12.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

First Revised Sheet: No. 38.10
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 38.10

RATE SCHEDULE L-13
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively to private fire protection facilities served by the Company, throughout Service Area 1G, the Egg Harbor City Utility, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

1- **Service Charge**

<u>Size of Connection</u>	<u>Per Month</u>
For each connection of 2" or less	\$68.70
For each 3" connection	68.70
For each 4" connection	68.70
For each 6" connection	146.56
For each 8" connection	274.80
For each 12" connection	641.20

2- **Hydrant Charge**

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$15.00

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-17.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-13.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Original Sheet: No. 38.11

RATE SCHEDULE L-14
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for service furnished exclusively to private fire protection facilities served by the Company, throughout Service Area 1H, Salem, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

1- Service Charge

<u>Size of Connection</u>	<u>Per Month</u>
For each connection of 2" or less	\$53.01
For each 4" connection	249.06
For each 6" connection	438.86
For each 8" connection	619.14
For each 12" connection	805.36

2- Sprinkler Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Sprinkler	\$0.36

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for private fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The Company will adhere to all applicable notification requirements found in N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) before discontinuing service.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions", including those specific to Private Fire Protection starting on Sheet No. 20, except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. Testing, inspection, maintenance, and repair of private fire hydrants shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

No additional charge shall be made for water used in extinguishing fires or for underwriters' tests where service is furnished under this schedule.

Private fire service lines shall be equipped with special meters and are to be used exclusively for fire protection purposes. No water shall be used through these connections except for purposes of underwriters' tests or extinguishment of fire. Any water usage for other purposes will be computed under the General Metered Service Rate Schedule A-19.

Residential customers served by a water service line of two (2) inches or less in diameter will not be imposed a standby fee for fire protection system.

Rooming and boarding houses as defined in the "Rooming and Boarding House Act of 1974" and those residential health care facilities as defined in the "Health Care Facilities Planning Act," upon furnishing to the Company proof in the form of a license or certificate from the appropriate state agency that the particular facility or house is entitled to exemption, will be exempt from the charges of Rate Schedule L-14.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 _____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.1
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.1

RATE SCHEDULE M-1
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company throughout Service Areas 1, 1C, 1E, and 2, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$66.00

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.2
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.2

RATE SCHEDULE M-2
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company in Service Area 1 in the Townships of Logan and Woolwich, Gloucester County in the area formerly served by Logan Wells Water Company as well as in Ortley Beach and the Pelican Island System in Toms River Township, Ocean County, and in the Townships of Howell and Freehold, Monmouth County, in the area formerly served by Adelpia Water Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$61.50

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.3
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.3

Reserved for future use.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 _____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE M-5
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company in the Townships of Bedminster and Franklin in Service Area 2.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
<u>For each Hydrant</u>	\$60.50

TERMS AND PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due fifteen (15) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

TERM

Continuous until water service within municipality is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE M-6
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company in Service Area 3.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge The amount of the bill will reflect the hydrant charge as defined hereafter for each tariff zone located in Service Area 3 as defined in Rate Schedule M-6.

<u>Tariff Zone</u>	<u>For each Hydrant Per Month</u>
3A	\$42.50
3B	47.80
3C	52.30
3D	56.80
3G	63.50

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

TERM

Continuous until water service within municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule. The table hereafter defines the different tariff zones for Service Area 3:

<u>Tariff Zone</u>	<u>Municipality</u>
3A	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Mansfield (Columbus) Township • Springfield Township
3B	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Plumsted Township
3C	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Mansfield -Homestead • Southampton Township
3D	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Mount Holly Township
3G	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Eastampton Township • Hainesport Township • Lumberton Township • Medford Township • Westampton Township

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.6
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.6

RATE SCHEDULE M-7
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company throughout Service Area 1A, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. Applicable for flat rate fire protection service in the locations where the Company has facilities suitable and adequate for the desired service upon request from the proper authorities.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$52.50

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE M-8
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to municipalities for public fire protection service provided by the Company throughout Service Areas 1B and 1H, Salem, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this tariff. Applicable for flat rate fire protection service in the locations where the Company has facilities suitable and adequate for the desired service upon request from the proper authorities.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

Hydrant Charge

	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$45.30

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for public fire protection service furnished under this schedule are to be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

Reserved for future use.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

Second Revised Sheet: No. 39.9
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 39.9

RATE SCHEDULE M-10
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to the municipality for all fire hydrants on public streets within Service Area 1D, formerly served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"), and Service Area 1F, Roxbury.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by "Standard Terms and Conditions".

RATES

<u>Hydrant Charge</u>	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$40.30

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed service charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

CONDITIONS

Subject to "Standard Terms and Conditions".

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

Reserved for future use.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE M-12
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to the municipality for all fire hydrants on public streets within Service Area 1G, the Egg Harbor City Utility.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by "Standard Terms and Conditions".

RATES

<u>Hydrant Charge</u>	<u>Per Month</u>
For each Hydrant	\$15.00

TERM

Continuous until water service to the municipality is permanently discontinued. Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed service charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date. Thereafter, the Company may not discontinue water service unless written notice is provided giving the customer at least ten (10) days' notice prior to the proposed discontinuance. The 10 days shall begin on the postmark date of the notice. N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3.

CONDITIONS

Subject to "Standard Terms and Conditions".

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401_____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE O-1
PURCHASED WATER ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PWAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Metered Water Customer classes served by the Company in all service areas for water service, except for Manasquan Uninterruptible Service, and those customers subject to Rate Schedules I and J, who will only be subject to the PWAC for any water used in excess of their Annual Purchase Requirement.

The PWAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions of this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased water associated with the normal operations of the Company and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased water costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WATER ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PWAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons or per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased water costs not included in the Water Charge or any other Charge:

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.05477	\$0.5477
Exempt	All	\$0.04731	\$0.4731

The PWAC Charge is also applicable to any difference between the quantity of water actually purchased by the customer and any applicable take-or-pay commitment.

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PWAC filing no later than December 1st of each year proposing a PWAC rate to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PWAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PWAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PWAC charge for purchased water;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased water costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PWAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential water customer bill for a twelve-month period.

(Continued)

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE O-1
PURCHASED WATER ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PWAC)
(Continued)

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PWAC rates at the beginning of each PWAC Year succeeding any PWAC year in which any monthly purchased water costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred net revenue or separate cost of purchased water accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of purchased water balances. Interest on such water costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7.1, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7.1, et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedules for applicable customer classes.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

RATE SCHEDULE O-2
LEAD SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT CHARGE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all water customer classes served by the Company in all service areas for water service taking service under Rate Schedules A-1 through A-16 (GMS) and C, D, E, F, G, H, I, J, and L-1 through L12 (non-GMS). The Lead Service Line Replacement Charge is designed to recover project costs associated with replacing customer-owned lead service lines.

CHARACTER

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions".

LEAD SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT CHARGE (LSLRC)

In addition to all other charges for GMS and non-GMS customers throughout the entire territory served, the following charges will be assessed as follows commencing January 1, 2024:

- For each surcharge period, revenue responsibility shall be assigned to GMS customers on a volumetric basis in the same proportion as total revenue requirements were assigned to GMS in the Company's most recently concluded base rate case. Then the balance of the revenue responsibility shall be assigned to non-GMS as a fixed per customer surcharge based on the aggregate customer count of non-GMS customers.
- The non-GMS customer count and GMS volumetric usage will be updated with each surcharge filing. The non-GMS customer count will be updated to reflect the count at the end of the month prior to each surcharge filing. The GMS usage will be updated to reflect the actual usage from the six-month period during which the costs were incurred.
- GMS and non-GMS LSLRC revenue requirement allocation percentages will be updated following each base rate proceeding during the LSLRC recovery period.

RATE

This charge is in addition to Rate Schedules A-1 through A-16 (GMS) and C, D, E, F, G, H, I, J, and L-1 through L12 (non-GMS). The surcharge amounts for GMS and Non-GMS customers are as follows:

<u>GMS</u> <u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>	<u>Non-GMS</u> <u>Fixed Charge Per Month</u>
\$ 0.6630	\$21.24

The recovery of these costs will be shown as a LSLRC surcharge on each customer's bill.

FILING

The LSLRC is authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58:12A-40, *et seq.* (Lead Service Line Replacement Law) and the procedures for filing, approving and implementing the LSLRC are set forth therein, along with the Company's Lead Service Line Replacement Plan, which was reviewed and approved by the Board of Public Utilities in BPU Docket No. WR22010017 on October 12, 2022, and the BPU Order approving said Plan.

The approval process for implementing this surcharge includes public notice and hearing. The notice included a proposed surcharge amount based on the actual project costs associated with the replacement of customer-owned lead service lines incurred by the Company between July 1, 2020 and October 31, 2022, as well as estimated surcharge amounts for the first five years of the lead service line replacement program, which were estimated based on estimated construction schedules, costs and other factors described in the approved Lead Service Line Replacement Plan. Pursuant to the approved Lead Service Line Replacement Plan, the Company shall endeavor to make semi-annual LSLRC filings at approximately six-month intervals. In addition, to ensure that customers are surcharged the proper amount, the Company will reconcile any over- or under-collections on an annual basis as part of its surcharge filings.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedules for applicable customer classes.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: November 17, 2023

Effective: January 1, 2024

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010017 dated October 12, 2022.

RATE SCHEDULE O-3
UNIVERSAL AFFORDABILITY

AVAILABILITY

Available to all residential water customers served by the Company in all service areas who meet the income criteria of 200% or less than the Federal Poverty Level ("FPL"). NJ Shares determines and maintains the qualification requirements for the Company's discount programs. Customers who qualify for the program are required to recertify income eligibility every two years.

APPLICABILITY

The discount will be applied to the Fixed Service Charge and Water Charge (volumetric) portion of the bill for water service. The discount will not be applied to the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1, the Lead Service Line Replacement Charge (LSLRC), as shown on Rate Schedule O-2, or the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule K.

DISCOUNT

	Household Income	Fixed Service Charge Discount	Water Charge Discount
Tier 1	0% - 50% of FPL	80%	80%
Tier 2	51% - 100% of FPL	60%	60%
Tier 3	101% - 150% of FPL	40%	40%
Tier 4	151% - 200% of FPL	20%	20%

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 _____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE O-4
REVENUE DECOUPLING MECHANISM

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all water customer classes served by the Company in all service areas for water service taking service under Rate Schedules A-1 through A-16.

CHARACTER

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions".

REVENUE DECOUPLING MECHANISM ("RDM")

For purposes of the RDM only, the terms below are defined to mean:

Effective Period shall mean the period for which the adjustments are to be billed to customers and shall be the nine-month period April 1 through December 31 after the Filing Month.

Filing Month shall mean the month in which an adjustment is determined by the Company and submitted to the Board, which shall be on or before January 31 each year.

Fiscal Year shall mean the 12-month period that ended as of the most recent December 31.

GMS Residential Customers shall mean all general metered service residential customers.

GMS Non-Residential Customers shall mean all general metered service commercial, industrial, municipal, and Sales for Resale customers.

Previous Amortization Period shall mean the nine-month reconciliation amortization period that ended as of the most recent Fiscal Year.

Upcoming Amortization Period shall mean the nine-month reconciliation amortization period commencing on April 1 following the Fiscal Year.

RATE

This charge is in addition to Rate Schedules A-1 through A-16. The calculation of the adjustments for GMS Residential and GMS Non-Residential customers are detailed below.

The GMS Residential Adjustment is calculated as follows:

$$\frac{\text{RESREV} - (\text{VC} \cdot \text{RESUSE}) - (\text{RC} \cdot \text{RESCUST})}{\text{RESFC}}$$

RESFC

Where:

RESREV represents the actual dollar amount of revenues billed to residential customers for the identified service classifications, excluding revenues arising from adjustments under this tariff and any other tariff, which were billed for the applicable month.

RESUSE represents the number of 100-gallon units delivered to residential customers by the Company, including the number of 100-gallon units for the applicable month.

RESCUST represents the average number of residential customers for the applicable month

VC represents the Volumetric Charge (\$0.9771 per hundred gallons proposed)

RC represents the Residential Fixed Charge (based on meter size per month at proposed)

RESFC represents the number of 100-gallon units expected to be delivered to residential customers by the Company, including the number of 100-gallon units for the applicable Effective Period.

(continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE O-4
REVENUE DECOUPLING MECHANISM
(Continued)

The GMS Non-Residential Adjustment is calculated as follows:

$$\frac{\text{NONREV} - (\text{VC} \cdot \text{NONUSE}) - (\text{NC} \cdot \text{NONCUST})}{\text{NONFC}}$$

Where:

- NONREV represents the actual dollar amount of revenues billed to GMS Non-Residential customers for the identified service classifications, excluding revenues arising from adjustments under this tariff and any other tariff, which were billed for the applicable month.
- NONUSE represents the number of 100-gallon units delivered to GMS Non-Residential customers by the Company, including the number of 100-gallon units for the applicable month.
- NONCUST represents the average number of GMS Non-Residential customers for the applicable month
- VC represents the Volumetric Charge (\$0.9771 per hundred gallons proposed)
- NC represents the Non-Residential Fixed Charge (based on meter size per month at proposed)
- NONFC represents the number of 100-gallon units expected to be delivered to GMS Non-Residential customers by the Company, including the number of 100-gallon units for the applicable Effective Period.

FILING

The Company shall submit to the Board on or before January 30 of each year, the RDM calculation and support for any annual adjustments to be effective under this tariff. The Board will have 60 days to review. The reconciliation amount will be surcharged from April 1 through December 31 of each calendar year. Any credit will be issued as soon as administratively possible.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedules for applicable customer classes.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401_____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE P-1
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable throughout the entire area served by the Company for Miscellaneous Municipal Service, General Building Construction and Trucked Bulk Water Sales.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RATES

(a) Miscellaneous Municipal Service: Each customer shall pay for all water used for street sprinkling, street or sewer flushing, swimming pools or other miscellaneous uses at the General Metered Service Rates of this tariff as applicable. Water consumption will be determined by metering or by such other method as may be mutually agreed upon by the customer and the Company. Fire hydrants are not to be used for this service without the express consent of the Company in each circumstance where this service is required. No person, other than municipal fire and Company personnel is permitted to operate or take water from any public fire hydrant for street sprinkling, flushing sewers, storm water drains, or any purpose unless authorized by the Company and the fire chief of the municipality in writing and upon the terms and conditions set forth by the fire chief and the Company therein.

(b) Water For Building Construction: Where water service is temporarily furnished for building construction and/or any other temporary use, it shall, wherever practical, be supplied through a meter at the General Metered Service Rates of this tariff as applicable. Should a new service be required to provide this temporary use, the customer shall pay the cost to install and remove the service. No person, other than municipal fire and Company personnel, is permitted to operate or take water from any public fire hydrant for building construction or any purpose unless authorized by the Company and the fire chief of the municipality in writing and upon the terms and conditions set forth by the fire chief and the Company therein.

(c) Bulk Water Sales for water transfers using Trucks and Tanks: Water sales to customers or entities using trucks or tanks to receive water service from the Company that require additional attention may affect the Company's daily operations. A surcharge in the amount of \$50 may be applied for each such request in addition to the water charge as set forth in the applicable General Metered Service Rates of this tariff. If at any time the Company determines that a customer or entity has taken water without permission or proper compensation to the Company under this provision, the Company reserves the right to refuse to sell water to the customer or entity hereunder. Bulk Water Sales for water transfers using trucks and tanks in Service Area 1H, Salem, will be charged \$19.95 per 1,000 gallons.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

All charges rendered under this Rate Schedule are in arrears for metered service and in advance for un-metered service. At the option of the Company, a deposit may be required for metered service billed in arrears, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.4, et seq. The Company may not require a deposit for un-metered service billed in advance in accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.4(i). Bills are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill is transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Where metered service is provided through a hydrant meter, a deposit equal to the cost of the hydrant meter may be required by the Company. The meter shall be kept safe and accessible during its use. The deposit, less the cost of repairs to the meter, if any, will be returned to the applicant by the Company after surrender of the meter and payment of all charges for water supplied through it.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE P-2
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE –
CHARGES NOT INVOLVING THE USE OF WATER

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all classes of customers unless specified for the following classes of miscellaneous services throughout the entire area served by the Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

RECONNECTIONS AND RECONNECTION CHARGE

1. Resumption of service rates due to: discontinuance of service as a result of non-payment of bills; violation of the Company's tariff rules; the voluntary request of the customer when the meter has not been removed (e.g. seasonal requests) or for customer's convenience, are set forth as follows.

Conditions	Rate
<p>Normal working hours</p> <p>For the purpose of requests for reconnection services under this section, normal working hours are as follows:</p> <p>Monday through Friday* 8 AM to 6 PM Saturday* 8 AM to 2 PM</p> <p>*Except for the following holidays: New Year's Day, President's Day, Veteran's Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, the day after Thanksgiving, and Christmas Day.</p>	<p>\$28.00</p>
<p>After-hours restoration of service</p> <p>The Company has 12 hours from proper application by the customer to restore service, after all of the conditions under which such service was discontinued are corrected and the utility has received notice of payment. Requests for reconnection of service that must be worked all days and times outside of normal working hours as listed above, plus all holidays as listed above, are subject to the after-hours restoration of service rate.</p>	<p>\$100.00</p>

2. Resumption of service when a customer's service has been reconnected without the permission of the Company after service has been terminated by the Company for non-payment of bills or violation of the Company's tariff. The Company will physically disconnect the customer's service for a second time and the customer will be required to pay, in addition to any outstanding or delinquent amount, the Company's actual cost of reconnection or \$350.00, whichever is more, before service is restored. The Company shall give written notice to the customer that if service is reconnected again without the permission of the Company, it will be necessary for the Company to excavate and physically disconnect service and that a reconnection charge of \$500, or the actual cost incurred by the Company to excavate and physically disconnect and reconnect the service, whichever is more, will be made. The Company may also seek criminal prosecution under N.J.S.A. 2C:20-8c as well as civil damages.

(Continued)

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

**RATE SCHEDULE P-2
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE –
CHARGES NOT INVOLVING THE USE OF WATER
(Continued)**

3. Requirement for Customer to be Present for Reconnection. Customers must be present on the premises when the Company reconnects a discontinued water service to said premises. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the customer is not present but has given consent to the Company to reconnect the water service in his, her or its absence, the Company may reconnect the water service. In such case, the customer is solely responsible for any damage incurred by the customer and/or to the customer's premises due to an approved reconnection of service when the customer is not present at the time of said reconnection, provided that the customer will not be responsible for damage due to the sole negligence of the Company.

CROSS CONNECTION INSPECTION CHARGE

A charge of \$75.00 will be imposed by the Company for an inspection of each cross-connection device installed between an unapproved source of supply and the Company's water supply, subject to the availability of Company resources. The customer must provide proof of inspection.

METER TESTING AND REPLACEMENT CHARGE

1. Customer Request for Additional Meter Testing. If a customer requests that the Company test a meter during any twelve (12) month period in which the Company has already provided one free meter test per N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5, or if the meter first referred to has been in use less than two years, and the meter is found to be accurate, the Company may charge the customer a fee for removing the meter and a fee for testing the meter as follows:

Schedule for removing and replacing a meter

Meter Size	Rate
Meters up to and including 2" in diameter	\$37.00
Meters larger than 2" in diameter	Actual cost

These charges will not exceed the replacement cost of the meter.

Schedule for testing the meter

Meter Size	Rate
All meters from 5/8 inches up to 1 inch	\$50.00
All meters from 1 1/2 inches up to 3 inches	\$75.00
All meters from 4 inches up to 10 inches	\$100.00
All meters from 12 inches and larger	\$125.00

2. Removing, Repairing and Replacing Meters damaged due to negligence of the customer. The Company may impose a charge on any customer who causes damage to a meter as follows:

(a) Repair Only: Actual cost of materials used to repair the meter, and the actual cost of labor required to repair and reinstall the meter.

(b) Meter Replacement for Non-repairable Meters: Actual cost of a new meter, materials used to replace the meter, and the actual cost to install the meter, including the cost of labor required to install the meter.

(Continued)

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Water

First Revised Sheet: No. 42.2
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 42.2

RATE SCHEDULE P-2
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE –
CHARGES NOT INVOLVING THE USE OF WATER
(Continued)

BAD CHECK CHARGE

If the Company receives a negotiable instrument from a customer in payment of a bill, charge, or deposit due, and such instrument is subsequently dishonored or uncollectible for any reason, the Company shall charge the customer a handling charge per instrument of \$15.00.

If a bad check charge is applied to a customer account, that amount, as well as the amount of the dishonored check shall be paid with cash, certified check, money order, bank check, or other means of guaranteed payment before such account shall be deemed paid. Additionally, if a customer presents two checks that are dishonored by the bank as a result of the customer's error, the customer will be required to pay by the methods stated above for a period of twelve months from the date of the last dishonored check.

The provisions of this tariff section shall not be deemed to require a customer to submit to automatic deduction from any bank account, credit card, or by on-line banking but the Company may offer same as an option provided the customer is presented with all other available options offered by the Company.

UNAUTHORIZED USE OF COMPANY FACILITIES

There will be a minimum charge of \$500.00 for unauthorized use of Company facilities plus costs for repair of any damages to Company property resulting therefrom.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills furnished under this schedule are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

TERM

Continuous until water service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The Company may waive the fees and charges referenced in this Rate Schedule P-2 for a customer who is enrolled in the Company's H2O Help to Others Assistance Program or the H2O Help to Others Discount Program, provided that the customer is not deemed to have been abusing and/or taking advantage of the system, including but not limited to repeatedly requiring service reconnections more than three (3) times in any twelve (12) month period.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 ___ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE P-3
MULTI-USE SERVICE LINE

APPLICABILITY

The Company will provide an option to customers, upon request and where applicable, to use a "multi-use" service line per N.J.A.C. 14:9-8.3 et seq.

"Multi-use service" means water service that is supplied through one water line extending from the water main to the structure, and which is used for both domestic water service on the premises and for fire suppression service inside a structure. A multi-use service is not private fire protection service.

Terms and Conditions not defined specifically below for Multi-Use services shall be the same as those under the STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

RATES

Rates applicable to multi-use service are those found in the Company's General Metered Service Rate Schedules in this tariff as applicable.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

A water utility may terminate a customer's multi-use service for non-payment of a valid water bill for multi-use service, in accordance with the Board's rules governing discontinuance of such service at N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.4(j) and N.J.A.C. 14:9-8.3.

CONDITIONS

By applying for multi-use service, the customer or builder certifies that:

1. The customer or builder has hydraulically calculated the demand for the customer's or builder's water system, based on the simultaneous domestic and fire sprinkler demand. The customer or builder shall make this calculation in accordance with the Uniform Construction Code and any other applicable state or local codes; and
2. The customer or builder will ensure that the system is installed in accordance with the Uniform Construction Code at N.J.A.C. 5:23; and
3. The customer will, prior to installation of the meter, obtain and provide the Company with a copy of a valid construction permit in accordance with the Uniform Construction Code from the enforcing agency having jurisdiction over the system.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 1- By applying for multi-use service, the customer agrees to be responsible for all claims, costs and liability for personal injury, death and/or property damage, resulting from the customer's individual water system, and agrees that the Company shall not be so liable unless caused by the negligence of the water utility. (N.J.A.C. 14:9-8.3(d))
- 2- All multi-use service lines shall be metered, and the meter shall be located in a meter pit or vault located outside of the Customer's structure. The meter pit or vault shall be installed at a location acceptable to the express, advance approval of the Water Company, and otherwise shall comply with the Company's standard terms and conditions.
- 3- If a customer requests a change in meter size associated with a multi-service meter, the customer must re-apply for service and re-certify each item addressed in this Rate Schedule.

(Continued)

Issued: August 29, 2022

Effective: September 1, 2022

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR22010019 dated August 17, 2022.

RATE SCHEDULE P-3
MULTI-USE SERVICE LINE
(Continued)

PROVISION OF SERVICES

By applying for multi-use service, and operating the same, the customer agrees:

1. To include a backflow prevention device(s) as defined at N.J.A.C. 7:10-1.3, and as specified at N.J.A.C. 7:10-10.3;
2. To be solely responsible for all costs and expenses relating to the installation, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the customer's water system, including the fire suppression system and backflow prevention device(s);
3. To ensure that the customer's water system complies with the applicable requirements of the Uniform Construction Code in effect at the time of system installation, including any applicable building, plumbing and fire protection sub-codes; and
4. To ensure that the customer's water system is maintained in accordance with all applicable law so as to protect against backflow, back-siphonage and contamination of the potable water system.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

AREA SERVED – WASTEWATER SERVICE

	<u>County</u>	<u>Municipality</u>	<u>All or Portion</u>	<u>Development/Section</u>	<u>Wastewater System</u>
**	Atlantic	City of Egg Harbor	All	N/A	Egg Harbor City
**	Atlantic	Twp. of Galloway	Portion	N/A	Egg Harbor City
**	Atlantic	Twp. of Mullica	Portion	N/A	Egg Harbor City
A)	Bergen	Twp. of Oakland	Portion	Ramapo River Reserve	Ramapo River Reserve
A)	Burlington	Twp. of Mansfield	Portion	Mapleton (Mansfield Farms)	Mapleton
B)	Burlington	Twp. of Mansfield	Portion	Homestead (Country Walk)	Homestead
D)	Burlington	Twp. of Mansfield	Portion	John Hydock Elementary School	Mapleton
D)	Burlington	Twp. of Mansfield	Portion	Northern Burlington School	Mapleton
**	Burlington	Twp. of Mansfield	Portion	Mansfield Warehousing Area	
**	Camden	Borough of Haddonfield	All	N/A	Haddonfield/CCMUA
**	Camden	Borough of Mount Ephraim	All	N/A	Mount Ephraim
A)	Cape May	Twp. of Middle	Portion	Avalon Country Club	Avalon Links
*	Cape May	Ocean City	All	N/A	Ocean City/CMCMA
**	Gloucester	Twp. of Elk	All	N/A	Elk Township
A)	Hunterdon	Borough of Bloomsbury	Portion	Fawn Run	Fawn Run
A)	Hunterdon	Twp. of Tewksbury	Portion	Crossroads at Oldwick	Crossroads
*	Hunterdon	Twp. of Tewksbury	Portion	Pottersville	Pottersville
A)	Hunterdon	Twp. of Union	Portion	Village Square	Village Square
A)	Hunterdon	Twp. of Clinton	Portion	Brass Castle	Brass Castle
A)	Hunterdon	Twp. of Union	Portion	Lookout Pointe	Lookout Pointe
A)	Hunterdon	Twp. of Clinton	Portion	Glen Meadows & Twin Oaks	Glen Meadows
A)	Monmouth	Twp. of Upper Freehold	Portion	Four Seasons at Upper Freehold	Beacon Hill
D)	Monmouth	Twp. of Upper Freehold	Portion	Beacon Hill Clubhouse	Beacon Hill
*, **	Monmouth	Twp. of Howell	Portion	N/A	Howell/MRRSA/OCUA
A)	Morris	Twp. of Mount Olive	Portion	Country Oaks	Country Oaks
A)	Morris	Twp. of Chester	Portion	Four Seasons @ Chester	Four Seasons @ Chester
A)	Morris	Twp. of Jefferson	Portion	Peaks @ Jefferson	Jefferson Peaks
A)	Morris	Twp. of Mount Olive	Portion	Morris Chase	Morris Chase
**	Morris	Twp. of Long Hill	All	N/A	Long Hill Township
*	Ocean	Twp. of Lakewood	Portion	N/A	Lakewood/OCUA
**	Ocean	Twp. of Plumsted	Portion	Jensen's Deep Run	Jensen's
**	Salem	City of Salem	All	N/A	Salem City
**	Salem	Twp. of Mannington	All	N/A	Salem City
C)	Somerset	Twp. of Bedminster	Portion	N/A	EDC
C)	Somerset	Twp. of Bernards	Portion	N/A	EDC
**	Somerset	Borough of Bound Brook	All	N/A	Bound Brook
**	Somerset	Twp. of Bridgewater	Portion	Somerville Adjacent	Somerville
A)	Somerset	Twp. of Hillsborough	Portion	Hillsborough Chase	Hillsborough Chase
**	Somerset	Borough of Manville	All	N/A	Manville
**	Somerset	Borough of Somerville	All	N/A	Somerville
A)	Warren	Twp. of Washington	Portion	Hawk Pointe	Hawk Pointe

- KEY:
- A) Community On-Site Water and/or Wastewater System (COWS) (formerly served by Applied)
 - B) Homestead (formerly served by Applied)
 - C) Wastewater system of the former Environmental Disposal Corp. ("EDC")
 - D) Other Contracts (formerly served by Applied)
 - * Wastewater systems served by the Company prior to the merger of Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied") into the Company on September 1, 2010.
 - ** Systems acquired by the Company after January 1, 2011.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

WASTEWATER SERVICE RATE SCHEDULES
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Rate schedules are applicable for service provided in the entire area served as follows:

<u>Location/Type</u>	<u>Class of Service</u>	<u>Rate Schedule</u>	<u>Sheet No.</u>
Ocean City	General Metered Service	1-A	46
Ocean City	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	1-B	47
Statewide Collection	General Metered Service	2-A	48
Lakewood Township	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	2-B	49
Howell Township	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	3-B	51
Statewide Collection and Treatment	General Flat Rate Service	5-A	52
Statewide Collection and Treatment	General Metered Service	6-A	53
Other Contracts (C) former EDC service area, and (D) former Applied service area	Contracts	8-A	54
Entire Service Territory	Miscellaneous Service Charges	9-A	55
Entire Service Territory	Wastewater System Improvement Charge	9-A.1	55.1
Entire Service Territory	Universal Affordability – Wastewater	9-A.2	55.2
Plumsted Township (Jensen's Deep Run)	General Metered Service	10-A	56
Haddonfield Borough	General Metered Service	11-A	57
Elk Township	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	12-B	58
Borough of Mount Ephraim	General Metered Service	13-A	59
Long Hill Township	General Flat Rate Service	14-A	60
Long Hill Township	General Metered Service	15-A	61
Egg Harbor City Utility	General Metered and Flat Rate Service	16-A	62
Egg Harbor City Utility	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	16-B	63
Bound Brook Borough	General Flat Rate Service	18-A	64
Bound Brook Borough	General Metered Service	19-A	65
Somerville System	General Metered and Flat Rate Service	20-A	66
Somerville System	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	20-B	67
Former EDC System	General Metered Service	21-A	68
Salem City and Mannington	General Metered Service	22-A	69
Manville	General Metered Service	23-A	70
Manville	Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment (PSTAC)	23-B	71

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401_____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 1-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in the City of Ocean City. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Minimum Service Charge, the Wastewater Usage Charge, the Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff and as shown on Rate Schedule 1-B, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

MINIMUM SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Minimum Service Charge in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any. The Minimum Service Charge for a customer is determined every January 1 for the year based on the water usage for the prior July, August and September meter readings ("Summer Quarter Consumption") but in no event will a customer be billed for less than 7,480 gallons per year for wastewater service.

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$1.64000	\$16.4000

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. Charges shall be based on water consumption as indicated by water meter readings on a monthly basis.

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.40210	\$4.0210

TERMS OF PAYMENT

The following plan for payment of the Annual Minimum Service Charge is offered as a convenience to our customers and, in the case of seasonal service, does not relieve the customer of the liability to pay the entire Annual Minimum Service Charge if wastewater service is rendered for only a portion of the calendar year. In the case of a non-seasonal customer terminating their account, the customer shall be billed for service provided through the date of service termination.

A new customer, initiating service at existing premises, shall be billed for such service as of the account activation date. The new customer account usage will be based on the existing premises last known summer quarter consumption, until the new customer establishes a summer quarter consumption. A new customer account without established summer quarter consumption data will be required to pay a pro-rata share of the Annual Minimum Service Charge, until the new customer establishes a summer quarter consumption. The proration shall be based on the portion of the calendar year for which the customer receives service.

In addition, in the case of a reactivated account, the customer will be required to pay for the charges as if the account had been active as of January 1. The calculated Annual Minimum Service Charge will therefore be billed across the remaining installment billing periods in that calendar year.

For monthly billed customers, one-twelfth of the Minimum Service Charge shall be due and payable upon receipt of the regular bill for wastewater service.

If the Company determines by application of the following criteria that the customer's past record of payments does not warrant application of this payment plan, the Company may require payment of the entire service charge at one time rather than in installments.

1. If a customer has been terminated at least once in the past two years for non-payment of a bill for wastewater service; or,
2. If a customer receives three (3) Final Reminder Notices during a twelve-month period.

Usage charges based upon meter readings shall be billed in monthly in arrears.

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 1-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Wastewater Service customer classes including general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in the City of Ocean City. The PSTAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs associated with the normal operations of the Company, and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

The following are the PSTAC charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons that will be charged based on the Summer Quarter Consumption as defined in the Minimum Service Charge section of Wastewater-Rate Schedule 1-A to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs, but in no event will the consumption level for PSTAC be less than 7,480 gallons per year.

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$3.37033	\$33.7033

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate or percentage to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for wastewater treatment and disposal;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for the applicable customer class.

(Continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 47.1

RATE SCHEDULE 1-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)
(Continued)

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

RATE SCHEDULE 2-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE
STATEWIDE COLLECTION AREAS

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in the Statewide Wastewater Collection Area including Lakewood, Elk Township, and the Adelpia System (service area of the former Adelpia Sewer Company) and other franchise areas within the Township of Howell. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Wastewater Usage Charge, the Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, shown on Rate Schedule 2-B (Lakewood), Rate Schedule 3-B (Howell and Adelpia System), and Rate Schedule 12-B (Elk Township), and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any, as follows:

Fixed Service Charge per customer per month.	<u>Non-Exempt</u> \$18.20
--	------------------------------

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

Volumetric Charges

	<u>Gallons</u> <u>Per Month</u>	<u>Rate</u> <u>Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate</u> <u>Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.59890	\$5.9890

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 2-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Wastewater Service customer classes including general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in the Statewide Wastewater Collection Area (Lakewood). The PSTAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs associated with the normal operations of the Company, and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for general metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs not included in the Wastewater Usage Charge or any other Charge as set forth in Rate Schedule 2-A of the current Tariff:

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$ 0.46191	\$4.6191

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate or percentage to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for purchased wastewater treatment and disposal;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

(Continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

First Revised Sheet: No. 49.1
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 49.1

RATE SCHEDULE 2-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)
(Continued)

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for applicable customer class.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: October 30, 2020

Effective: November 1, 2020

By: Cheryl Norton, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR19121516 dated October 28, 2020.

Reserved for Future Use

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 3-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Wastewater Service customer classes including general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service customers provided service by the Company's Adelpia System (service area of the former Adelpia Sewer Company) and other franchise areas within the Township of Howell in Monmouth County. The PSTAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased wastewater treatment and disposal associated with the normal operations of the Company, and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for general metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs not included in the Wastewater Usage Charge or any other Charge as set forth in Rate Schedule 2-A of the current Tariff:

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.69196	\$6.9196

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for purchased wastewater treatment and disposal;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

(Continued)

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

First Revised Sheet: No. 51.1
Superseding Original Sheet: No. 51.1

RATE SCHEDULE 3-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)
(Continued)

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7 et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for applicable customer class.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 _____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 5-A
GENERAL FLAT RATE SERVICE
STATEWIDE COLLECTION AND TREATMENT AREAS

APPLICABILITY FOR GENERAL FLAT RATE WASTEWATER SERVICE CUSTOMERS

Applicable to all general flat rate wastewater service customers located in the Company's Tewksbury System (Pottersville - service area of the former Valley Road Sewerage Company) in the Township of Tewksbury in Hunterdon County, and Service Areas noted as (A) and (B), formerly served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"), on Sheet No. 44 (COWS) who are not water service customers of NJAWC. The Class A/Class B designations in effect at the time rates were set by the Board in Docket. No. WR11070460 (May 1, 2012) shall remain in effect unless changed by order of the Board. No new Class A designations shall be made except at the discretion of the Company. The Company's charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of a Flat Rate Service Charge, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

FLAT RATE SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL FLAT RATE WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a flat rate service charge as indicated below.

	<u>RATE PER MONTH</u>
<u>CLASS A</u>	\$86.00
<u>CLASS B</u>	100.00

The Class A/Class B designations in effect at the time rates were set by the Board in Docket. No. WR11070460 (May 1, 2012) are as follows:

CLASS A

- 4 BEDROOM AGE RESTRICTED
- 3 BEDROOM AGE RESTRICTED
- 2 BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE
- 3 BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE AGE RESTRICTED
- 2 BEDROOM AGE RESTRICTED
- 1 BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE

CLASS B

- DETACHED SINGLE FAMILY
- 3 BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE

CHARACTER OF FLAT RATE SERVICE

Continuous (unmetered), except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 6-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE
STATEWIDE COLLECTION AND TREATMENT AREAS

APPLICABILITY FOR GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER SERVICE CUSTOMERS

Applicable to all general metered wastewater service customers located in the Company's Tewksbury System (Pottersville - service area of the former Valley Road Sewerage Company) in the Township of Tewksbury in Hunterdon County, Service Areas noted as (A) and (B), formerly served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"), on Sheet No. 44 (COWS and Homestead) who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC, and the Mansfield Warehousing Area. The Company's charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, a Wastewater Usage Charge, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a fixed service charge as indicated below, in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any.

RATE PER MONTH

Non-Exempt \$65.50

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

The volume of wastewater use is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

	<u>Gallons</u>	<u>Rate</u>	<u>Rate</u>
	<u>Per Month</u>	<u>Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$1.03990	\$10.3990

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 8-A
OTHER CONTRACTS

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to wastewater service customers located in the Service Areas noted as D), formerly served by Applied Wastewater Management, Inc. ("Applied"), and C), formerly served by Environmental Disposal Corp. ("EDC") on Sheet No. 44 (Other Contracts).

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous (unmetered).

RATES

<u>SERVICE AREA</u>	<u>CLASS</u>	<u>RATE PER MONTH</u>	
Applied	Schools	\$153.80	Per Formula*
Applied	Other	153.80	Per Equivalent Dwelling Units**
EDC	Bulk User***	9.6010	Per 1,000 Gallons

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

* Quarterly Charge = $\$360.00 \times (\text{Average Daily Enrollment} \times \text{Student GPD}) / 300$
 Where Student GPD is as follows:
 NJDEP projected usage per Elementary School student = 15 GPD
 NJDEP projected usage per Middle School student = 20 GPD
 NJDEP projected usage per High School student = 25 GPD

**An equivalent residential customer is based on 235 GPD

*** Rates for treatment of wastewater of BULK USER Customers delivered by said customers to the EDC treatment facility as set forth in this Tariff Sheet shall supersede the contractual rates and terms set forth in each of the Amended and Restated Sewer Allocation and Bulk User Agreements Between Environmental Disposal Corp. and the Boroughs of Bedminster, Far Hills, and Peapack and Gladstone ("Bulk User Agreements"), respectively.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 9-A
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE CHARGES

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all classes of customers unless specified for the following classes of miscellaneous services throughout the entire area served by the Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

BAD CHECK CHARGE

If the Company receives a negotiable instrument from a customer in payment of a bill, charge, or deposit due, and such instrument is subsequently dishonored or uncollectible for any reason, the Company shall charge the customer a handling charge per instrument of \$15.00.

If a bad check charge is applied to a customer account, that amount, as well as the amount of the dishonored check shall be paid with cash, certified check, money order, bank check, or other means of guaranteed payment before such account shall be deemed paid. Additionally, if a customer presents two checks that are dishonored by the bank as a result of the customer's error, the customer will be required to pay by the methods stated above for a period of twelve months from the date of the last dishonored check.

The provisions of this Tariff section shall not be deemed to require a customer to submit to automatic deduction from any bank account, credit card, or by on-line banking but the Company may offer same as an option provided the customer is presented with all other available options offered by the Company.

RESUMPTION OF SERVICE AFTER PHYSICAL DISCONNECTION OR PLUGGING DUE TO NONPAYMENT OF BILLS OR VIOLATION OF THE COMPANY'S RULES

Wastewater Service - At any time Greater of \$350.00 or actual cost

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The Company may waive the fees and charges referenced in this Rate Schedule 9-A for a customer who is enrolled in the Company's H2O Help to Others Program or the Low Income Payment Program, provided that the customer is not deemed to have been abusing and/or taking advantage of the system, including but not limited to repeatedly requiring service reconnections more than three (3) times in any twelve (12) month period.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 55.1
Superseding Third Revised Sheet: No. 55.1

RATE SCHEDULE 9-A.1
WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT CHARGE

Applicable to all wastewater treatment and service customers on Rate Schedules 1-A, 2-A, 5-A, 6-A, 10-A, 11-A and 13-A, and Rate Schedule 16-A effective June 2, 2025.

CHARACTER

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions".

WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT CHARGE (WSIC)

In addition to all other charges for wastewater collection and treatment throughout the entire territory served, the following charges will be assessed on a fixed, per meter or meter equivalent basis for each monthly bill, commencing _____.

RATE

This charge is in addition to Rate Schedules 1-A, 2-A, 3-A, 5-A, 6-A, 10-A, 11-A and 12-A.

<u>Size of Meter</u>	<u>Non-Exempt Per Month</u>	<u>Exempt Per Month</u>
5/8"	\$0.00	0.00
3/4"	0.00	0.00
1"	0.00	0.00
1 1/2"	0.00	0.00
2"	0.00	0.00
3"	0.00	0.00
4"	0.00	0.00
6"	0.00	0.00
8"	0.00	0.00
10"	0.00	0.00
12"	0.00	0.00
16"	0.00	0.00

FILING

The WSIC is authorized pursuant to N.J.A.C. 14:9-11.1 et seq. and the procedures for filing, reviewing, approving and implementing the WSIC are set forth therein. The WSIC is based on the Company's Foundational Filing, which was reviewed and approved by the Board of Public Utilities on October 6, 2021. The approval process included public notice and public hearings. The notice included proposed surcharge amounts, which were estimated based on projected construction schedules, costs and other factors. Pursuant to the approved Foundational Filing, the Company shall endeavor to make semi-annual WSIC filings at approximately six-month intervals. The WSIC is subject to a maximum amount and other limitations in N.J.A.C. 14:9-11.1 et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedules for applicable customer classes.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: November 15, 2023

Effective: December 30, 2023

By: Mark McDonough, President
One Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102
Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR21060917 dated October 6, 2021.

RATE SCHEDULE 9-A.2
UNIVERSAL AFFORDABILITY

AVAILABILITY

Available to all residential wastewater service customers served by the Company in all service areas who meet the income criteria of 200% or less than the Federal Poverty Level ("FPL"). NJ Shares determines and maintains the qualification requirements for the Company's discount programs. Customers who qualify for the program are required to recertify income eligibility every two years.

APPLICABILITY

The discount will be applied to the Fixed Service Charge and Wastewater Usage Charge (volumetric) portions of the bill for wastewater service. The discount will not apply to the Purchased Wastewater Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as shown on Rate Schedule O-1 or the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

DISCOUNT

	Household Income	Fixed Service Charge Discount	Wastewater Charge Discount
Tier 1	0% - 50% of FPL	80%	80%
Tier 2	51% - 100% of FPL	60%	60%
Tier 3	101% - 150% of FPL	40%	40%
Tier 4	151% - 200% of FPL	20%	20%

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Eleventh Revised Sheet: No. 56
Superseding Tenth Revised Sheet: No. 56

RATE SCHEDULE 10-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general flat rate residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers served by the Company's Jensen's Deep Run System in the Township of Plumsted in Ocean County. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of a Fixed Service Charge, a Wastewater Usage Charge, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a fixed service charge as indicated below, in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any.

	<u>RATE PER MONTH</u>
Non-Exempt	\$40.00

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

	<u>Gallons</u>	<u>Rate</u>	<u>Rate</u>
	<u>Per Month</u>	<u>Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$1.03990	\$10.3990

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for wastewater service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401_____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 11-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers served by the Company's Haddonfield Collection System in Camden County. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of a Wastewater Usage Charge based on the water consumption at the location for the same billing period, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a fixed service charge as indicated below, in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any.

RATE PER MONTH

Non-Exempt \$12.50

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

The volume of wastewater use is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.56680	\$5.6680

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for wastewater service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 ___ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 12-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Wastewater Service customer classes including general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in Elk Township. The PSTAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs associated with the normal operations of the Company and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for general metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs not included in the Wastewater Usage Charge or any other Charge as set forth in Rate Schedule 2-A of the current Tariff:

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.40008	\$4.0008

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate or percentage to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for purchased wastewater treatment and disposal;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for applicable customer class.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Fourth Revised Sheet: No. 59
Superseding Third Revised Sheet: No. 59

RATE SCHEDULE 13-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in the Borough of Mount Ephraim. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of a Wastewater Usage Charge based on the water consumption at the location for the same billing period, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a fixed service charge as indicated below, in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any.

RATE PER MONTH

Non-Exempt \$12.50

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

The volume of wastewater use is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

	<u>Gallons</u>	<u>Rate</u>	<u>Rate</u>
	<u>Per Month</u>	<u>Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.03590	\$0.3590

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for wastewater service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 _____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 14-A
GENERAL FLAT RATE SERVICE¹

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers in Long Hill Township who do not receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC. The Company may require a water meter to be installed by any wastewater customer utilizing a well or other private water system at the property owner's expense. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the Fixed Service Charge and the Flat Rate Service Charge.

AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE

As the Company has implemented a voluntary wastewater connection ban due to excess wastewater flow, all requests for new wastewater connections to the Long Hill Township wastewater system will be granted at the sole discretion of the Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous (unmetered), except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – WASTEWATER

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Flat Rate Service Charge as indicated below. If a wastewater customer has multiple connections to a single property, only one Fixed Service Charge shall be applied to the wastewater customer.

	<u>RATE PER MONTH</u> Effective 10/23/2024
Non-Exempt, per unit	\$15.93

FLAT RATE USAGE CHARGE – WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Flat Rate Usage charge as indicated below.

	<u>RATE PER MONTH</u> Effective 10/23/2024
Non-Exempt Residential, per connection	\$52.37
Non-Exempt Commercial, Industrial and Municipal, per connection	\$109.27

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE DISCOUNT – RESIDENTIAL WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

Residential wastewater customers of Long Hill Township enrolled in the Township's Senior Discount Program as of October 22, 2020, shall receive a Fixed Service Charge discount of \$40.00 annually, or \$3.33 per month. After October 22, 2020, customers will no longer be added to this Fixed Service Charge Discount program.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Fixed Service Charges and Flat Rate Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

¹ The rates on this schedule will increase by 3% on 10/23/2024 by the terms of the Agreement of Sale between Long Hill Township and New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 _____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Second Revised Sheet: No. 61
Superseding First Revised Sheet: No. 61

RATE SCHEDULE 15-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE⁴

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers in Long Hill Township who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge and the Wastewater Usage Charge.

AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE

As the Company has implemented a voluntary wastewater connection ban due to excess wastewater flow, all requests for new wastewater connections to the Long Hill Township wastewater system will be granted at the sole discretion of the Company.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, as indicated below. If a wastewater customer has multiple connections to a single property, only one Fixed Service Charge shall be applied to the wastewater customer.

	<u>RATE PER MONTH</u> Effective 10/23/2024
Non-Exempt, per unit	\$15.93

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater discharged for monthly billing purposes shall be calculated by taking the total water metered (Actual Usage) for the six (6) winter months (January through March and October through December) from the preceding billing year and dividing that Actual Usage by twelve (12).

If the meter is not read or incorrectly read for one or more months of the Actual Usage period as determined by the Company, the amount charged for those months shall be equal to the approximate average monthly usage among other billable months during the same period.

Volumetric Charges

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt Effective 10/23/2024	All	\$1.99640	\$19.9640

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE DISCOUNT – RESIDENTIAL WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

Residential wastewater customers of Long Hill Township enrolled in the Township's Senior Discount Program as of October 22, 2020, shall receive a Fixed Service Charge discount of \$40.00 annually, or \$3.33 per month. After October 22, 2020, customers will no longer be added to this Fixed Service Charge Discount program.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Fixed Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

⁴ The rates on this schedule will increase by 3% on 10/23/2024 by the terms of the Agreement of Sale between Long Hill Township and New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Second Revised Sheet: No. 62
Superseding First Sheet: No. 62

RATE SCHEDULE 16-A
GENERAL METERED AND FLAT RATE SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial, and municipal wastewater service to customers in Service Area 1G, the Egg Harbor City Utility. Those who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC will receive volume-based wastewater service billings; all others will receive flat rate billings for unmetered service. The Company may require a water meter to be installed by any wastewater customer utilizing a well or other private water system at the property owner's expense. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Wastewater Usage Charge, the Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, shown on Rate Schedule 16-B, and the Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC), as shown on Rate Schedule 9-A.1.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous (unmetered), except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a fixed service charge as indicated below, in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any.

	<u>RATE PER MONTH</u>
Non-Exempt	\$12.50

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater use is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.42260	\$4.2260

FLAT RATE SERVICE CHARGE – WASTEWATER

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Flat Rate Service Charge as indicated below.

	<u>RATE PER MONTH</u>
Non-Exempt	\$46.40

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Flat Rate Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Issued: _____

Effective: June 2, 2025

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 _____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 16-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Wastewater Service customer classes including general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in Service Area 1G, the Egg Harbor City Utility. The PSTAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs associated with the normal operations of the Company and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for general metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs not included in the Wastewater Usage Charge or any other Charge as set forth in Rate Schedule 16-A of the current Tariff:

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.44935	\$4.4935

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate or percentage to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for purchased wastewater treatment and disposal;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C., 14:9-7, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for applicable customer class.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: June 2, 2025

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 _____ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 18-A
GENERAL FLAT RATE SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers in the Borough of Bound Brook who do not receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC. The Company may require a water meter to be installed by any wastewater customer utilizing a well or other private water system at the property owner's expense.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous (unmetered), except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FLAT RATE SERVICE CHARGE – WASTEWATER

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Flat Rate Service Charge as indicated below.

	<u>RATE PER MONTH⁷</u>
Non-Exempt	\$40.77

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Flat Rate Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

⁷ The Flat Rate Service Charge will increase by 3% on 8/12/2025, and 8/12/2026 by the terms of the Agreement of Sale between the Borough of Bound Brook and New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 19-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE⁸

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers in the Borough of Bound Brook who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, as indicated below.

	<u>RATE PER MONTH</u>
Non-Exempt	\$5.15

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater use is assumed to equal water meter registration.

Volumetric Charges

<u>Customer Class*</u>	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt Residential Tax Exempt Commercial – Class 1	All	\$0.65920	\$6.5920
Multiple-Dwelling	All	0.72510	7.2510
Commercial – Class 2 Industrial Significant Industrial Integrated Health Services and Successors Mixed Residential and Commercial Class 2	All	0.82400	8.2400

*Customer Class as these terms were defined by the Borough of Bound Brook at the time of acquisition, as follows:

Residential: any property solely used as a home or residence, including single family, multi two-family, and single dwelling condominium form of ownership, discharging domestic waste.

Tax-Exempt: any property exempt from real property taxation, discharging domestic waste.

Commercial - Class 1: any nonresidential property solely used for nonresidential purposes, including the retail of nonprocessed goods or for office or other business uses discharging domestic wastes.

Multiple-Dwelling: A building containing three or more dwelling units, discharging domestic waste.

Commercial - Class 2: Any property used for nonresidential purposes, including any use not classified in "Commercial User Class 1," discharging domestic wastes. Class 2 users include but are not limited to: industrial park, any property utilized for preparing food for sale, hair and nail salons, barber shops, laundromats and dry cleaners, automotive and small engine repair and sales, fueling/service stations, and funeral homes.

Industrial - Any person or property who discharges, causes, or permits the direct or indirect discharge of nondomestic wastewater into the treatment works. All nondomestic wastes discharged by an industrial user shall be considered industrial waste. **Multiple-Dwelling:** A building containing three or more dwelling units, discharging domestic wastes.

Significant Industrial - A user defined as a significant industrial user pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Middlesex County Utilities Authority.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Fixed Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

⁸ All rates on this schedule will increase by 3% on 8/12/2025, and 8/12/2026 by the terms of the Agreement of Sale between the Borough of Bound Brook and New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 20-A
GENERAL METERED AND FLAT RATE SERVICE⁹

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers in the Borough of Somerville and the portion of the Township of Bridgewater served by the Somerville System. Those who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC will receive volume-based wastewater service billings; all others will receive flat rate billings for unmetered service. The Company may require a water meter to be installed by any wastewater customer utilizing a well or other private water system at the property owner's expense. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Wastewater Usage Charge, and the Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, shown on Rate Schedule 20-B.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges shall be determined based upon winter quarter consumption (detailed below), but in no case less than 2,493 gallons per month.

<u>Customer Location</u>	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Somerville	All	\$0.34759	\$3.4759
Bridgewater	All	0.48128	4.8128

FLAT RATE SERVICE CHARGE

<u>Customer Location</u>	<u>Rate Per Month</u>
Somerville	\$32.00
Bridgewater	\$40.33

CALCULATION OF WINTER QUARTER CONSUMPTION

Winter quarter consumption shall be determined based on an initial water meter reading taken in December of one year with the concluding meter reading taken approximately 90 days thereafter in March of the following year.

The monthly Wastewater Usage Charge shall be determined as follows:

Meters read in January, February and March

The Wastewater Usage Charge for each respective month shall be determined by multiplying the applicable monthly usage times applicable volumetric charges, but in no case less than 2,493 gallons per month, multiplied by applicable volumetric charges.

Meters read in April through December

The Wastewater Usage Charge for each month April through December shall be based on the Monthly Usage Constant, equal to one-third of the winter quarter consumption, but in no case less than 2,493 gallons per month, multiplied by applicable volumetric charges.

In the case of new customers, the volume of wastewater discharged shall be determined as follows:

New Customers in an Existing or New Dwelling or Premises for Which Actual Full Period Winter Quarter Usage History is Available: Determination of the monthly use constant shall be based on the last known full period winter quarter usage at that property.

Existing or New Customers in an Existing or New Dwelling or Premises for Which No Full Period Winter Quarter Usage History is Available: Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges will be calculated at the minimum usage of 2,493 gallons per month.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Fixed Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

⁹ The rates on this schedule will increase by 3% on October 4th in 2025, 2026, and 2027, and by 4% on October 4th in 2028 and 2029 by the terms of the Agreement of Sale between the Borough of Somerville and New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 20-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service to customers in the Borough of Somerville and the portion of the Township of Bridgewater served by the Somerville System.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for general metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs not included in the Wastewater Usage Charge or Flat Rate Service Charge any other Charge as set forth in Rate Schedule 20-A:

	<u>Gallons Per Month</u>	<u>Rate Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.52139	\$5.2139

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate or percentage to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for wastewater treatment and disposal;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for applicable customer class.

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 ___ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 68

RATE SCHEDULE 21-A
GENERAL METERED AND FLAT RATE SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial, and municipal wastewater service to customers in the Environmental Disposal Corp. ("EDC") Service Area. Those who receive volume-based water service billings from NJAWC will receive volume-based wastewater service billings; all others will receive flat rate billings for unmetered service. The Company may require a water meter to be installed by any wastewater customer utilizing a well or other private water system at the property owner's expense.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous (unmetered), except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

All wastewater service customers shall pay a fixed service charge as indicated below, in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any.

	<u>Rate Per Month</u>
<u>Non-Exempt:</u>	\$39.97

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE – GENERAL METERED WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

	<u>Gallons</u>	<u>Rate</u>	<u>Rate</u>
	<u>Per Month</u>	<u>Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
<u>Non-Exempt</u>	All	\$1.03990	\$10.3990

FLAT RATE SERVICE CHARGE

	<u>Rate Per Month</u>
<u>Non-Exempt</u>	\$81.57

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable Flat Rate Service Charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 _____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 69

RATE SCHEDULE 22-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service provided in Salem City and the Township of Mannington. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge and the Wastewater Usage Charge.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any, as follows:

Fixed Service Charge per customer per month.	<u>Non-Exempt</u> \$56.88
--	------------------------------

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. Charges shall be based on water consumption as indicated by water meter readings on a monthly basis.

<u>Gallons</u> <u>Per Month</u>	<u>Rate</u> <u>Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate</u> <u>Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
All	\$0.88500	\$8.8500

SPECIAL SURCHARGES

<u>Item</u>	<u>Additional Cost</u>
Per pound of BOD ₅	\$0.26000
Per pound of suspended solids	\$0.16000
Septage rate per gallon	\$0.08000

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for wastewater service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401____ dated _____.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
B.P.U. No. 8 – Wastewater

Original Sheet: No. 70

RATE SCHEDULE 23-A
GENERAL METERED SERVICE¹⁰

APPLICABILITY

Applicable for general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service provided in the Borough of Manville. The charge for wastewater service shall consist of the total of the Fixed Service Charge, the Wastewater Usage Charge, and the Purchased Wastewater Treatment Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) Charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, shown on Rate Schedule 23-B.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

All wastewater service customers shall pay a Fixed Service Charge in addition to the Wastewater Usage Charge, if any, as follows:

Fixed Service Charge per customer per month.	<u>Non-Exempt</u> \$7.20
--	-----------------------------

WASTEWATER USAGE CHARGE

The volume of wastewater discharged is assumed to equal water meter registration. See Standard Terms and Conditions – Wastewater, Sheet No. 23, for an explanation of how Monthly Wastewater Usage Charges are calculated.

	<u>Gallons</u> <u>Per Month</u>	<u>Rate</u> <u>Per 100 Gallons</u>	<u>Rate</u> <u>Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$0.17136	\$1.7136

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Valid bills for wastewater service furnished under this schedule will be rendered monthly in arrears and are due twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted or electronic transmission date for customers on electronic billing. All bills shall list a due date.

Whenever service is established or is discontinued, all applicable fixed charges shall be prorated to the date of establishment or discontinuance of service.

¹⁰ The rates on this schedule will increase by 2% in 2025, 3% in 2026, 2027 and 2028, and 4% in 2029 and 2030 by the terms of the Agreement of Sale between the Borough of Manville and New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Issued: _____ Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 ___ dated _____.

RATE SCHEDULE 23-B
PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC)

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all Wastewater Service customer classes including general residential, commercial, industrial and municipal wastewater service in the Borough of Manville. The PSTAC charge, as defined under the Standard Terms and Conditions in this tariff, is designed to recover the cost of purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs associated with the normal operations of the Company and allow the Company to achieve a zero or near-zero deferred balance each April 1st on its purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Continuous, except as limited by the "Standard Terms and Conditions."

PURCHASED WASTEWATER TREATMENT ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (PSTAC) CHARGE

In addition to all other charges for general metered service, the following charges per one hundred gallons and per one thousand gallons for all sales will be made to recover purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs not included in the Wastewater Usage Charge or any other Charge as set forth in Rate Schedule 23-A of the current Tariff:

	Gallons <u>Per Month</u>	Rate <u>Per 100 Gallons</u>	Rate <u>Per 1,000 Gallons</u>
Non-Exempt	All	\$ 0.51380	\$5.1380

FILING

The Company shall endeavor to make an annual PSTAC filing no later than December 1st of each year, proposing a PSTAC rate or percentage to be effective on or about the following April 1st.

The notice of filing and of public hearing in the annual PSTAC proceedings shall include the specific rate change proposed to be implemented on April 1st. The notice shall also include the impact of such potential increases on a benchmark bill.

The annual PSTAC filing shall contain, but not be limited to, the following:

1. A reconciliation of actual versus estimated costs and revenues from the last Board approved PSTAC charge for purchased wastewater treatment and disposal;
2. Projected rates supported by projected volumes, revenues, and projected purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs;
3. Deferred balances and the timeframe over which they are proposed to be collected or returned;
4. A written explanation of the circumstances that caused the deferred balances in (3) above;
5. A written explanation of any significant activities or trends which may affect costs for the prospective period; and
6. Updated tariff sheets to reflect any change to the PSTAC rate.

The benchmark bill shall be the average residential wastewater customer bill for a twelve-month period.

PROVISIONS

Interest shall be passed onto customers through the PSTAC rates at the beginning of each PSTAC Year succeeding any PSTAC year in which any net monthly purchased wastewater treatment and disposal costs over recovery has taken place. Any debit or credit balance in the separate deferred revenue or separate cost of wastewater treatment accounts shall be determined monthly. Monthly interest shall be calculated on the average of the current and prior month's ending cumulative deferred revenue or cost of wastewater treatment balances. Interest on such wastewater treatment costs shall be calculated utilizing the rate of return on rate base utilized to set rates in the Company's last preceding base rate case, and shall be changed from time to time, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

The clause shall be subject to deferred accounting, consistent with N.J.A.C. 14:9-7, et seq.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

See Rate Schedule for applicable customer class.

TERM

Continuous until wastewater service to the customer is permanently discontinued.

CONDITIONS

Subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions" except as otherwise set forth in this Schedule.

Issued: _____

Effective: _____

By: Mark K. McDonough, President
1 Water Street, Camden, NJ 08102

Filed pursuant to Order of the Board of Public Utilities entered in
Docket No. WR2401 dated _____.

**BEFORE THE
STATE OF NEW JERSEY
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES**

IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF	:	AGREEMENT OF
NEW JERSEY AMERICAN WATER	:	NON-DISCLOSURE
COMPANY FOR APPROVAL OF INCREASED	:	
TARIFF RATES AND CHARGES FOR	:	BPU DOCKET NO. WR2401 _____
WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE,	:	
CHANGE IN DEPRECIATION RATES, AND	:	
OTHER TARIFF MODIFICATIONS	:	

It is hereby AGREED, by and among New Jersey-American Water Company (“Petitioner”), the Staff of the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (“Board Staff”), and Division of Rate Counsel (“Rate Counsel”) (collectively, the “Parties”), who have agreed to execute this Agreement of Non-Disclosure of Information Claimed to be Confidential (“Agreement”) and to be bound thereby effective upon execution and delivery thereof, that:

WHEREAS, in connection with the above-captioned proceeding before the Board of Public Utilities (the “Board”), Petitioner and/or another party (“Producing Party”) may be requested or required to provide petitions, pre-filed testimony, other documents, analyses and/or other data or information regarding the subject matter of this proceeding that the Producing Party may claim constitutes or contains confidential, proprietary or trade secret information, or which otherwise may be claimed by the Producing Party to be of a market-sensitive, competitive, confidential or proprietary nature (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “Confidential Information” or “Information Claimed to be Confidential”); and

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into this Agreement to facilitate the exchange of information while recognizing that under Board regulations at N.J.A.C. 14:1-12.1 et seq., a request for confidential treatment shall be submitted to the Board’s Custodian of Records (“Custodian”) who is to rule on requests made pursuant to the Open Public Records Act (“OPRA”), N.J.S.A. 47:1A-1 et seq., unless such information is to be kept confidential pursuant

to court or administrative order (including, but not limited to, an Order by an Administrative Law Judge sealing the record or a portion thereof pursuant to N.J.A.C. 1:1-14.1, and the parties acknowledge that an Order by an Administrative Law Judge to seal the record is subject to modification by the Board), and also recognizing that a request may be made to designate any such purportedly confidential information as public through the course of this administrative proceeding; and

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that unfiled discovery materials are not subject to public access under OPRA; and

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that, despite each Party's best efforts to conduct a thorough pre-production review of all documents and electronically stored information ("ESI"), some work product material and/or privileged material ("Protected Material") may be inadvertently disclosed to another Party during the course of this proceeding; and

WHEREAS, the undersigned Parties desire to establish a mechanism to avoid waiver of privilege or any other applicable protective evidentiary doctrine as a result of the inadvertent disclosure of Protected Material;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto, intending to be legally bound thereby, DO HEREBY AGREE as follows:

1. The inadvertent disclosure of any document or ESI which is subject to a legitimate claim that the document or ESI should have been withheld from disclosure as Protected Material shall not waive any privilege or other applicable protective doctrine for that document or ESI or for the subject matter of the inadvertently disclosed document or ESI if the Producing Party, upon becoming aware of the disclosure, promptly requests its return and takes reasonable precautions to avoid such inadvertent disclosure.

2. Except in the event that the receiving party or parties disputes the claim, any documents or ESI which the Producing Party deems to contain inadvertently disclosed protected material shall be, upon written request, promptly returned to the Producing Party or destroyed at the Producing Party's option. This includes all copies, electronic or otherwise, of any such documents or ESI. In the event that the Producing Party requests destruction, the receiving party shall provide written confirmation of compliance within thirty (30) days of such written request. In the event that the receiving party disputes the Producing Party's claim as to the protected nature of the inadvertently disclosed material, a single set of copies may be sequestered and retained by and under the control of the receiving party until such time as the Producing Party has received final determination of the issue by the Board or an Administrative Law Judge, provided that the Board has not modified or rejected an order by the Administrative Law Judge.

3. Any such protected material inadvertently disclosed by the Producing Party to the receiving party pursuant to this Agreement shall be and remain the property of the Producing Party.

4. Any Information Claimed to be Confidential that the Producing Party produces to any of the other Parties in connection with the above-captioned proceeding and pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be specifically identified and marked by the Producing Party as Confidential Information when provided hereunder. If only portions of a document are claimed to be confidential, the Producing Party shall specifically identify which portions of that document are claimed to be confidential. Additionally, any such Information Claimed to be Confidential shall be provided in the form and manner prescribed by the Board's regulations at N.J.A.C. 14:1-12 et seq., unless such information is to be kept confidential

pursuant to court or administrative order. However, nothing in this Agreement shall require the Producing Party to file a request with the Custodian for a confidentiality determination under N.J.A.C. 14:1-12 et seq. with respect to any Information Claimed to be Confidential that is provided in discovery and not filed with the Board.

5. With respect to documents identified and marked as Confidential Information, if the Producing Party's intention is that not all of the information contained therein should be given protected status, the Producing Party shall indicate which portions of such documents contain the Confidential Information in accordance with the Board's regulations at N.J.A.C. 14:1-12.2 and 12.3. Additionally, the Producing Party shall provide to all signatories of this Agreement full and complete copies of both the proposed public version and the proposed confidential version of any information for which confidential status is sought.

6. With respect to all Information Claimed to be Confidential, it is further agreed that:

(a) Access to the documents designated as Confidential Information, and to the information contained therein, shall be limited to the Party signatories to this Agreement and their identified attorneys, employees, and consultants whose examination of the Information Claimed to be Confidential is required for the conduct of this particular proceeding.

(b) Recipients of Confidential Information shall not disclose the contents of the documents produced pursuant to this Agreement to any person(s) other than their identified employees and any identified experts and consultants whom they may retain in connection with this proceeding, irrespective of whether any such expert is retained specially and is not expected to testify, or is called to testify in this proceeding. All consultants or experts of any Party to this Agreement who are to receive copies of documents produced pursuant to this

Agreement shall have previously executed a copy of the Acknowledgement of Agreement attached hereto as "Attachment 1", which executed Acknowledgement of Agreement shall be forthwith provided to counsel for the Producing Party, with copies to counsel for Board Staff and the Rate Counsel.

(c) No other disclosure of Information Claimed to be Confidential shall be made to any person or entity except with the express written consent of the Producing Party or their counsel, or upon further determination by the Custodian, or order of the Board, the Government Records Council or of any court of competent jurisdiction that may review these matters.

7. The undersigned Parties have executed this Agreement for the exchange of Information Claimed to be Confidential only to the extent that it does not contradict or in any way restrict any applicable Agency Custodian, the Government Records Council, an Administrative Law Judge of the State of New Jersey, the Board, or any court of competent jurisdiction from conducting appropriate analysis and making a determination as to the confidential nature of said information, where a request is made pursuant to OPRA, N.J.S.A. 47:1A-1 et seq. Absent a determination by any applicable Custodian, Government Records Council, an Administrative Law Judge, the Board, or any court of competent jurisdiction that a document(s) is to be made public, the treatment of the documents exchanged during the course of this proceeding and any subsequent appeals is to be governed by the terms of this Agreement.

8. In the absence of a decision by the Custodian, Government Records Council, an Administrative Law Judge, or any court of competent jurisdiction, the acceptance by the undersigned Parties of information which the Producing Party has identified and marked as Confidential Information shall not serve to create a presumption that the material is in fact

entitled to any special status in these or any other proceedings. Likewise, the affidavit(s) submitted pursuant to N.J.A.C. 14:1-12.8 shall not alone be presumed to constitute adequate proof that the Producing Party is entitled to a protective order for any of the information provided hereunder.

9. In the event that any Party seeks to use the Information Claimed to be Confidential in the course of any hearings or as part of the record of this proceeding, the Parties shall seek a determination by the trier of fact as to whether the portion of the record containing the Information Claimed to be Confidential should be placed under seal. Furthermore, if any Party wishes to challenge the Producing Party's designation of the material as Confidential Information, such Party shall provide reasonable notice to all other Parties of such challenge and the Producing Party may make a motion seeking a protective order. In the event of such challenge to the designation of material as Confidential Information, the Producing Party, as the provider of the Information Claimed to be Confidential, shall have the burden of proving that the material is entitled to protected status. However, all Parties shall continue to treat the material as Confidential Information in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, pending resolution of the dispute as to its status by the trier of fact.

10. Confidential Information that is placed on the record of this proceeding under seal pursuant to a protective order issued by the Board, an Administrative Law Judge, provided that the Board has not modified or rejected an order by the Administrative Law Judge, or any court of competent jurisdiction shall remain with the Board under seal after the conclusion of this proceeding. If such Confidential Information is provided to appellate courts for the purposes of an appeal(s) from this proceeding, such information shall be provided, and shall continue to remain, under seal.

11. This Agreement shall not:

(a) Operate as an admission for any purpose that any documents or information produced pursuant to this Agreement are admissible or inadmissible in any proceeding;

(b) Prejudice in any way the right of the Parties, at any time, on notice given in accordance with the rules of the Board, to seek appropriate relief in the exercise of discretion by the Board for violations of any provision of this Agreement.

12. Within forty five (45) days of the final Board Order resolving the above-referenced proceeding, all documents, materials and other information designated as "Confidential Information," regardless of format, shall be destroyed or returned to counsel for the Producing Party. In the event that such Board Order is appealed, the documents and materials designated as "Confidential Information" shall be returned to counsel for the Producing Party or destroyed within forty-five (45) days of the conclusion of the appeal.

Notwithstanding the above return requirement, Board Staff and Rate Counsel may maintain in their files copies of all pleadings, briefs, transcripts, discovery and other documents, materials and information designated as "Confidential Information," regardless of format, exchanged or otherwise produced during these proceedings, provided that all such information and/or materials that contain Information Claimed to be Confidential shall remain subject to the terms of this Agreement. The Producing Party may request consultants who received Confidential Information who have not returned such material to counsel for the Producing Party as required above to certify in writing to counsel for the Producing Party that the terms of this Agreement have been met upon resolution of the proceeding.

13. The execution of this Agreement shall not prejudice the rights of any Party to seek relief from discovery under any applicable law providing relief from discovery.

14. The Parties agree that one original of this Agreement shall be created for each of the signatory parties for the convenience of all. The signature pages of each original shall be executed by the recipient and transmitted to counsel of record for Joint Petitioners, who shall send a copy of the fully executed document to all counsel of record. The multiple signature pages shall be regarded as, and given the same effect as, a single page executed by all Parties.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the undersigned Parties do HEREBY AGREE to the form and execution of this Agreement.

**NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER
COMPANY, INC.**

By: _____
Bruce V. Miller, Esq.
Cullen and Dykman

Date:

**MATTHEW J. PLATKIN
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF NEW JERSEY**

By: _____
[]
Deputy Attorney General

Date:

**BRIAN O. LIPMAN
DIRECTOR
DIVISION OF RATE COUNSEL**

By: _____

Date:

**BEFORE THE
STATE OF NEW JERSEY
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES**

IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF : **AGREEMENT OF**
NEW JERSEY AMERICAN WATER : **NON-DISCLOSURE**
COMPANY FOR APPROVAL OF INCREASED :
TARIFF RATES AND CHARGES FOR : BPU DOCKET NO. WR2401 _____
WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE, :
CHANGE IN DEPRECIATION RATES, AND :
OTHER TARIFF MODIFICATIONS :

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF AGREEMENT

The undersigned is an attorney, employee, consultant and/or expert witness for the Division of Rate Counsel or an intervenor who has received, or is expected to receive, Confidential Information provided by Petitioner or by another party (Producing Party) which has been identified and marked by the Producing Party as "Confidential Information." The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the Agreement of Non-Disclosure of Information Claimed to be Confidential and agrees to be bound by the terms of the Agreement.

Dated:

By: _____

(Name, Title and Affiliation)



**NOTICE OF FILING OF
PROPOSED RATE INCREASE
AND PUBLIC HEARING**

**ALL PARTIES ARE INVITED TO ATTEND AND
PRESENT THEIR VIEWS**

**IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER
COMPANY, INC. FOR APPROVAL OF INCREASED TARIFF RATES AND CHARGES
FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE, CHANGE IN DEPRECIATION RATES,
AND OTHER TARIFF MODIFICATIONS**

**OAL DOCKET NO. PUC XXXXX-XXXX
BPU DOCKET NO. WR2401XXXX**

TO OUR CUSTOMERS:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on January 19, 2024, New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc., (the “Company”) filed with the Board of Public Utilities (“Board”), pursuant to N.J.S.A. 48:2-21, N.J.S.A. 48:2-21.1, and N.J.A.C. 14:1-5.12, a petition (“Petition”) seeking to increase rates for water and wastewater service and to implement other tariff revisions. These changes were proposed to become effective for service rendered on or after February 21, 2024, or at such later date as may be determined by the Board. Based on the Company’s total projected operating revenues for the twelve months ending March 31, 2025, the new rates proposed herein will yield additional operating revenues of \$161.7 million or 16.89%. The total projected operating revenues include the revenue being recovered through the Distribution System Improvement Charge (“DSIC”) and Wastewater System Improvement Charge (“WSIC”) previously approved by this Board, and revenues recovered through the PWAC/PSTAC.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the New Jersey Office of Administrative Law (OAL) has scheduled virtual public comment hearings for the purpose of receiving comments from the public regarding the Company’s Petition. Members of the public are invited to participate by telephone and express their views on the proposed rate increase. Such comments will be made a part of the final record in the proceeding.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that virtual public comment hearings on the Company's petition have been scheduled as follows:

[Date TBD]

4:30 PM

Call in numbers (callers can use any phone number): _____

Upon calling in, the caller will be prompted to enter the meeting ID of _____ and press the pound or hashtag button (#)

Press the pound or hashtag button (#) a second time (in response to the second electronic prompt)

The caller will then be prompted to enter the password for the public meeting of _____ and press the pound or hashtag button (#)

The caller will then be entered into the waiting room where the OAL IT staff will admit the caller into the public hearing. The caller should mute their phone to prevent background noise. Failure to mute your own line may cause OAL IT staff to mute the caller and the caller would have to disconnect and call back in to participate in the public discussion portion

5:30 PM

Call in numbers (callers can use any phone number): _____

Upon calling in, the caller will be prompted to enter the meeting ID of _____ and press the pound or hashtag button (#)

Press the pound or hashtag button (#) a second time (in response to the second electronic prompt)

The caller will then be prompted to enter the password for the public meeting of _____ and press the pound or hashtag button (#)

The caller will then be entered into the waiting room where the OAL IT staff will admit the caller into the public hearing. The caller should mute their phone to prevent background noise. Failure to mute your own line may cause OAL IT staff to mute the caller and the caller would have to disconnect and call back in to participate in the public discussion portion

Administrative Law Judge _____ from the Office of Administrative Law will preside over the virtual public comment hearings. Members of the public are invited to participate and express their views on the proposed rates. Such comments will be made a part of the final record in the proceeding.

Whether or not you attend the virtual public hearings, written comments may be submitted no later than _____, to the Hon. _____, Office of Administrative Law, P.O. Box 049, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0049 and/or the Hon. Sherri L. Golden, Secretary, Board of Public Utilities, 44 S. Clinton Avenue, 1st Floor, Trenton, NJ 08625-0350, or emailed to board.secretary@bpu.nj.gov. Please include OAL Docket No. _____ and BPU Docket No. _____ in your written comments. Written comments will be provided the same weight as statements made at the hearings.

IN ORDER TO ENCOURAGE FULL PARTICIPATION IN THIS OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT, PLEASE SUBMIT ANY REQUESTS FOR NEEDED ACCOMMODATIONS, INCLUDING INTERPRETERS OR MOBILITY ASSISTANCE, TO THE COMPANY 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS HEARING TO DENISE FREE, SENIOR DIRECTOR OF COMMUNICATIONS AND EXTERNAL AFFAIRS, NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC. AT (856) 955-4874 or DENISE.FREE@AMWATER.COM.

The average residential water customer using 5,640 gallons per month will see their bill increase from \$70.70 to \$82.00, an increase of \$11.30 or 15.98% per month. The actual percentage increase to specific customers will vary according to the applicable rate schedule and level of the customer's usage. The changes proposed in the Petition will result in the changes indicated in the chart below.

The following comparisons of average present and proposed rates will permit customers to determine the approximate net effect upon them of the proposed increases and adjustments in rates. Any assistance required by customers in this regard will be furnished by the Company upon request. Complete information about the present and proposed rates for every class of customer is available on the Company's website at www.newjerseyamwater.com by first selecting Customer Service and then Rates Information. Please note that the Board, in its discretion, may apply all or any portion of whatever rate increase the Board may ultimately find

just and reasonable to any class or classes of customers or to any rate schedule or schedules, or in a manner different than what the Company has proposed in its filing. Accordingly, the final rates and charges to be determined by the Board in this proceeding may be different than what the Company has described herein.

Customer Class	Usage	Rates		Change	
		Current Bill*	Proposed Bill	Amount	Percentage
General Metered Service: All except SA-1F, 1G, 1H	5,640 gal/mo.	\$70.70	\$82.00	\$11.30	15.98%
SA-1F (Roxbury)	5,640 gal/mo.	46.38	54.61	8.23	17.73%
SA-1G (Egg Harbor City)	5,640 gal/mo.	73.65	78.91	5.26	7.14%
Manasquan Resale	Various	Various	Various	Various	25.82%
Optional Industrial Wholesale	Various	Various	Various	Various	26.00%
Sales for Resale – CD	Various	Various	Various	Various	25.84%
Sales for Resale – SOS	Various	Various	Various	Various	26.01%
Private Fire Protection	Various	Various	Various	Various	17.29%
Public Fire Protection	Various	Various	Various	Various	8.45%
Sewer					
Ocean City	16,920 gal/summer	\$82.52	\$93.32	\$10.80	13.09%
Statewide Collection Avg.	5,640 gal/mo.	74.54	81.02	6.48	8.69%
Former AWWM/Pottersville	5,640 gal/mo.	95.71	124.15	28.44	29.71
Jensen's Run	5,640 gal/mo.	74.59	98.65	24.06	32.26%
Haddonfield	5,640 gal/mo.	29.58	44.47	14.89	50.34%
Mount Ephraim	1,991 gal/mo.	9.11	13.22	4.11	45.08%
Long Hill	5,640 gal/mo.	124.79	128.59	3.74	2.99%
Egg Harbor City	5,640 gal/mo.	53.13	61.43	8.30	15.62%
Bound Brook	5,640 gal/mo.	41.10	42.33	1.23	3.00%
Somerville System	5,640 gal/mo.	49.01	49.01	0.00	0.00%
EDC System	2,707 gal/mo.	68.95	68.12	(0.83)	-1.21%

*Rates include the Purchased Water Adjustment Clause (PWAC) and Purchased Wastewater (Sewer) Treatment Adjustment Clause (PSTAC) as approved by the Board under BPU Docket Number WR23110791, the fully implemented Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC) of \$3.90 for a 5/8" meter expected to be approved by the Board under BPU Docket No. WR22030230, effective April 29, 2024, and the fully implemented Wastewater System Improvement Charge (WSIC) of \$2.85, effective December 30, 2023. Currently, the DSIC is \$2.82 for a 5/8" meter, effective October 30, 2023.

In addition to actual rate changes, the Company is proposing other changes and additions to its Tariff, some of which would apply to all customers and others that would apply only to specified customers. These changes include, but are not limited to, changes to various rate schedules and standard terms and conditions.

Notice of the petition was served on the clerk, executive or administrator of each municipality and county in the service area of the Company. Further information and copies of the petition may be obtained at the Board of Public Utilities' Offices located at 44 South Clinton

Avenue, 1st Floor, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0350. Any members of the public who wish to inspect the petition at the Board should contact the Board's Division of Case Management at (609) 913-6298 or board.secretary@bpu.nj.gov. Additionally, the petition and applicable attachments as well as the Public Hearing Notice for this proceeding can be viewed on the Company's website at www.newjerseyamwater.com by first selecting Customer Service and then Your Water and Wastewater Rates.

Any relief determined by the Board of Public Utilities to be just and reasonable may be applied by the Board of Public Utilities in such manner as it may deem appropriate.

BY: MARK K. McDONOUGH
President

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC
1 Water Street
Camden, NJ 08102



New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Revenue Requirement Computation

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Docket No. WR2XXXXXX
Witness: Jamie D. Hawn

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule RR
Page 1 of 1

Line No.	Reference Schedule	Revenue Requirement
1		
2	15	\$5,066,727,126
3		
4	16	<u>7.8988%</u>
5		
6		\$400,210,642
7		
8	4	<u>\$290,695,241</u>
9		
10		\$109,515,401
11		
12		<u>1.47668</u>
13		
14		<u><u>\$161,719,726</u></u>
15		
16		
17		<u>Gross-up Factor</u>
18		100.00000%
19	7	0.41279%
20	12	0.26328%
21	11	<u>13.60335%</u>
22		85.72058%
	<u>Statutory Rate</u>	
23	21.00%	<u>18.00132%</u>
24		67.71926%
25		1.47668

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Comparative Balance Sheet

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Docket No. WR2XXXXXX

Witness: Jamie D. Hawn

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 1

Page 1 of 2

Line No.	Account Title	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021	December 31, 2020
1				
2	Assets and Other Debits			
3				
4	<u>Utility Plant</u>			
5	101-106 Utility Plant	\$7,130,441,110	\$6,663,885,656	\$6,291,439,295
6	108 Accumulated Depreciation (Cr.)	(1,477,934,637)	(1,460,391,560)	(1,375,052,731)
7	110 Accumulated Amortization. (Cr.)	(12,016,544)	(9,712,182)	(7,544,061)
8	114-115 Utility Plant Acquisition Adjustments (net)	3,215,097	3,464,062	(8,589,301)
9				
10	Net Utility Plant	<u>\$5,643,705,026</u>	<u>\$5,197,245,976</u>	<u>\$4,900,253,202</u>
11				
12	<u>Other Property & Investments</u>			
13	121 Nonutility Property	\$594,145	\$594,145	\$594,145
14	123 Investment in Assoc. Companies	43,955,329	43,955,329	43,986,506
15	124-125 Utility and Other Investments	247,102	325,251	396,516
16				
17	Total Other Property and Investments	<u>\$44,796,576</u>	<u>\$44,874,725</u>	<u>\$44,977,167</u>
18				
19	<u>Current and Accrued Assets</u>			
20	131 Cash	\$3,181,377	\$2,733,198	\$2,323,659
21	132-133 Special Deposits	2,180,000	2,230,000	8,600
22	141 Customer Accounts Receivable	83,033,537	86,384,950	69,226,373
23	142 Other Accounts Receivable	12,018,467	11,496,056	8,793,332
24	143 Accum. Prov. for Uncollect. Accts. (Cr.)	(17,449,194)	(20,000,140)	(7,147,098)
25	145 Accts. Rec. from Assoc. Companies	20,250,138	20,010,846	112,342,262
26	151-161 Materials and Supplies	23,975,067	14,923,698	12,073,238
27	162 Prepayments	10,587,572	9,477,710	6,904,983
28	173 Accrued Utility Revenue	46,439,347	41,485,441	37,197,238
29	174 Misc. Current and Accrued Assets	642,828	670,743	720,324
30				
31	Total Current and Accrued Assets	<u>\$184,859,139</u>	<u>\$169,412,502</u>	<u>\$242,442,911</u>
32				
33	<u>Deferred Debits</u>			
34	181 Unamort. Debt Disc. and Expense	\$19,655,429	\$20,859,670	\$22,292,615
35	183 Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges	2,059,993	2,514,573	125,000
36	186 Miscellaneous Deferred Debits	64,171,378	71,904,450	57,416,821
37	190 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes	0	236,312	0
38				
39	Total Deferred Debits	<u>\$85,886,800</u>	<u>\$95,515,005</u>	<u>\$79,834,436</u>
40				
41	Total Assets and Other Debits	<u>\$5,959,247,541</u>	<u>\$5,507,048,208</u>	<u>\$5,267,507,716</u>
42				
43				

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Comparative Balance Sheet

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Docket No. WR2XXXXXXX

Witness: Jamie D. Hawn

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 1

Page 2 of 2

Line No.	Account Title	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021	December 31, 2020
1				
2	Equity Capital and Liabilities			
3	<u>Equity Capital</u>			
4	201 Common Stock Issued	\$86,974,200	\$86,974,200	\$86,974,200
5	211 Other Paid-In Capital	1,341,587,784	1,200,754,765	1,081,858,617
6	214-215 Retained Earnings	858,182,519	795,044,258	728,870,634
7				
8	Total Equity Capital	<u>\$2,286,744,503</u>	<u>\$2,082,773,223</u>	<u>\$1,897,703,451</u>
9				
10	<u>Long-Term Debt</u>			
11	221-222 Bonds & Long Term debt	\$1,877,712,261	\$1,748,217,170	\$1,588,027,050
12	224 Other Long-Term Debt	498,045	6,901,275	6,961,019
13				
14	Total Long-Term Debt	<u>\$1,878,210,306</u>	<u>\$1,755,118,445</u>	<u>\$1,594,988,069</u>
15				
16	<u>Current and Accrued Liabilities</u>			
17	231 Accounts Payable	\$132,821,545	\$113,902,785	\$92,849,399
18	233 Accts. Payable to Assoc. Companies	4,927,037	4,814,676	7,792,581
19	234 Notes Payable to Assoc. Companies	301,132,733	205,289,893	347,918,451
20	236 Taxes Accrued	(6,916,615)	218,515	966,164
21	237 Interest Accrued	12,956,239	12,121,942	11,800,758
22	241 Misc. Cur. and Accrued Liabilities	35,362,439	33,683,702	28,896,361
23				
24	Total Current and Accrued Liabilities	<u>\$480,283,378</u>	<u>\$370,031,513</u>	<u>\$490,223,714</u>
25				
26	<u>Deferred Credits</u>			
27	252 Customer Advances for Construction	\$138,394,905	\$121,255,523	\$101,557,262
28	253 Other Deferred Credits	327,966,781	384,488,203	449,232,226
29	255 Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits	7,084,986	7,415,934	7,746,971
30				
31	Total Deferred Credits	<u>\$473,446,672</u>	<u>\$513,159,660</u>	<u>\$558,536,459</u>
32				
33	<u>Operating Reserves</u>			
34	265 Miscellaneous Operating Reserves	\$26,639,294	\$23,057,814	\$13,423,851
35				
36	271-272 Contributions in Aid of Construction			
37	(net of accumulated amort.)	\$244,817,825	\$247,043,134	\$247,590,512
38				
39	281-283 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes	\$569,105,563	\$515,864,419	\$465,041,660
40				
41	Total Equity Capital and Liabilities	<u>\$5,959,247,541</u>	<u>\$5,507,048,208</u>	<u>\$5,267,507,716</u>
42				
43				
44				
45				

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Comparative Income Statement

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Docket No. WR2XXXXXXX
Witness: Jamie D. Hawn

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 2
Page 1 of 1

Line No.	Account Title	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021	December 31, 2020
1				
2	Utility Operating Income			
3	400 Operating Revenues	\$908,835,903	\$825,905,826	\$796,476,133
4				
5	<u>Operating Expenses</u>			
6	401 Operation Expense	\$242,178,318	\$228,232,685	\$224,840,286
7	402 Maintenance Expense	36,583,166	39,750,276	31,357,818
8	403 Depreciation Expense	155,260,386	149,052,551	139,874,903
9	406 Amortization of UPAA	269,824	368,094	368,094
10	407 Amortization Expense	473,399	1,379,517	946,307
11	408 Taxes Other Than Income Taxes	120,749,497	116,507,471	110,383,116
12	409 Income Taxes	9,771,966	(688,198)	14,162,167
13	410 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes	37,892,113	15,773,177	27,932,903
14	411 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes - Credit	0	0	0
15	412 Investment Tax Credits	(330,948)	(331,037)	(371,253)
16	Total Operating Expenses	\$602,847,721	\$550,044,536	\$549,494,342
17	Net Operating Revenue	\$305,988,182	\$275,861,290	\$246,981,791
18				
19	Total Utility Operating Income	\$305,988,182	\$275,861,290	\$246,981,791
20				
21	Other Income			
22	415 Revenues from Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work	\$288,603	\$290,009	\$300,963
23	416 Costs of Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work	(18,323)	1,258	(8,978)
24	419 Interest and Dividend Income	285,764	294,416	363,336
25	421 Nonutility Income	25,570	116,258	46,472
26	Total Other Income	\$581,614	\$701,941	\$701,794
27				
28	Gross Income	\$306,569,796	\$276,563,231	\$247,683,585
29				
30	Miscellaneous Income Deductions			
31	426 Miscellaneous Nonutility Expenses	\$254,568	\$497,371	\$325,454
32	409-412 Taxes - Income & Other than Income for Other Income & Deductions	0	0	0
33	Total Miscellaneous Income Deductions	\$254,568	\$497,371	\$325,454
34	Income Before Interest Charges	\$306,315,229	\$276,065,860	\$247,358,131
35				
36	Interest Charges			
37	427 Interest Expense	\$67,827,279	\$59,861,955	\$63,828,135
38	428 Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense	3,135,155	3,248,322	2,621,189
39	429 Amortization of Premium on Debt	0	0	0
40	420 AFUDC - Interest Charges to Construction-Credit	(11,404,689)	(10,190,405)	(10,463,785)
41	Total Interest Charges	\$59,557,746	\$52,919,872	\$55,985,539
42				
43	Net Income	\$246,757,483	\$223,145,988	\$191,372,592
44				
45	Dividends Paid			
46	437 Preferred Stock	\$0	\$0	\$0
47	438 Common Stock	183,828,669	157,458,092	139,715,355
48	Income to Retained Earnings	\$62,928,814	\$65,687,896	\$51,657,237

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Balance Sheet

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Docket No. WR2XXXXXXX

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 3

Witness: Jamie D. Hawn

Page 1 of 2

Line No.	Account Title	Balance As Of November 30, 2023
1		
2	Assets and Other Debits	
3		
4	<u>Utility Plant</u>	
5	101-106 Utility Plant	\$7,566,621,403
6	108 Accumulated Depreciation (Cr.)	(1,519,368,486)
7	110 Accumulated Amortization. (Cr.)	(14,087,370)
8	114-115 Utility Plant Acquisition Adjustments (net)	<u>2,986,879</u>
9		
10	Net Utility Plant	<u>\$6,036,152,426</u>
11		
12	<u>Other Property & Investments</u>	
13	121 Nonutility Property	\$594,145
14	123 Investment in Assoc. Companies	43,955,329
15	124-125 Utility and Other Investments	<u>143,808</u>
16		
17	Total Other Property and Investments	<u>\$44,693,282</u>
18		
19	<u>Current and Accrued Assets</u>	
20	131 Cash	\$3,560,153
21	132-133 Special Deposits	1,800,000
22	141 Customer Accounts Receivable	78,098,578
23	142 Other Accounts Receivable	18,381,198
24	143 Accum. Prov. for Uncollect. Accts. (Cr.)	(11,504,483)
25	145 Accts. Rec. from Assoc. Companies	4,875,101
26	151-161 Materials and Supplies	29,229,323
27	162 Prepayments	(746,694)
28	173 Accrued Utility Revenue	47,142,173
29	174 Misc. Current and Accrued Assets	<u>2,779,148</u>
30		
31	Total Current and Accrued Assets	<u>\$173,614,497</u>
32		
33	<u>Deferred Debits</u>	
34	181 Unamort. Debt Disc. and Expense	\$20,570,744
35	183 Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges	1,444,538
36	186 Miscellaneous Deferred Debits	<u>80,580,897</u>
37		
38	Total Deferred Debits	<u>\$102,596,179</u>
39		
40	Total Assets and Other Debits	<u><u>\$6,357,056,384</u></u>
41		
42		

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Balance Sheet

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Docket No. WR2XXXXXX

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 3

Witness: Jamie D. Hawn

Page 2 of 2

Line No.	Account Title	Balance As Of November-23
1		
2	Liabilities and Other Credits	
3	<u>Equity Capital</u>	
4	201 Common Stock Issued	\$86,974,200
5	204 Preferred Capital Stock	0
6	211 Other Paid-In Capital	1,501,956,196
7	214-215 Retained Earnings	<u>981,239,146</u>
8		
9	Total Equity Capital	<u>\$2,570,169,542</u>
10		
11	<u>Long-Term Debt</u>	
12	221-222 Bonds & Long Term debt	\$2,017,963,265
13	224 Other Long-Term Debt	<u>6,483,662</u>
14		
15	Total Long-Term Debt	<u>\$2,024,446,927</u>
16		
17	<u>Current and Accrued Liabilities</u>	
18	231 Accounts Payable	\$144,257,120
19	233 Accts. Payable to Assoc. Companies	2,005,993
20	234 Notes Payable to Assoc. Companies	247,886,326
21	236 Taxes Accrued	(25,247,269)
22	237 Interest Accrued	22,874,532
23	241 Misc. Cur. and Accrued Liabilities	<u>38,975,064</u>
24		
25	Total Current and Accrued Liabilities	<u>\$430,751,766</u>
26		
27	<u>Deferred Credits</u>	
28	252 Customer Advances for Construction	\$150,355,433
29	253 Other Deferred Credits	287,671,611
30	255 Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits	<u>6,774,214</u>
31		
32	Total Deferred Credits	<u>\$444,801,258</u>
33		
34	<u>Operating Reserves</u>	
35	265 Miscellaneous Operating Reserves	\$28,935,480
36		
37	271-272 Contributions in Aid of Construction (net of accumulated amort.)	\$249,916,625
38		
39	281-283 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes	<u>\$608,034,786</u>
40		
41	Total Equity Capital and Liabilities	<u><u>\$6,357,056,384</u></u>
42		

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Operating Income Statement

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Docket No. WR2XXXXXX
Witness: Jamie D. Hawn

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 4
Page 1 of 1

Line No.	Reference Schedule	Test Year	Post-Test Year ending March 31, 2025 - Present Rates		Post-Test Year ending March 31, 2025 - Proposed Rates	
		12 Mos. Ending June 30, 2024	Adjustments	Post-Test Year Amount	Revenue Deficiency	Post-Test Year Amount
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)
1						
2						
3	5	<u>\$975,698,764</u>	<u>(\$42,623,334)</u>	<u>\$933,075,430</u>	<u>\$161,719,726</u>	<u>\$1,094,795,156</u>
4						
5						
6	6	<u>\$293,520,792</u>	<u>(\$30,536,986)</u>	<u>\$262,983,806</u>	<u>\$667,563</u>	<u>\$263,651,369</u>
7	8	<u>172,962,650</u>	<u>28,967,097</u>	<u>201,929,746</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>201,929,746</u>
8	10	<u>135,415,466</u>	<u>4,089,413</u>	<u>139,504,879</u>	<u>22,425,074</u>	<u>161,929,953</u>
9						
10		<u>\$601,898,908</u>	<u>\$2,519,524</u>	<u>\$604,418,432</u>	<u>\$23,092,637</u>	<u>\$627,511,069</u>
11						
12		<u>\$373,799,856</u>	<u>(\$45,142,857)</u>	<u>\$328,656,999</u>	<u>\$138,627,089</u>	<u>\$467,284,088</u>
13	14	<u>58,949,945</u>	<u>(20,988,188)</u>	<u>37,961,758</u>	<u>29,111,689</u>	<u>67,073,447</u>
14						
15		<u>\$314,849,911</u>	<u>(\$24,154,669)</u>	<u>\$290,695,241</u>	<u>\$109,515,400</u>	<u>\$400,210,641</u>
16						
17	15			<u>\$5,066,727,126</u>		<u>\$5,066,727,126</u>
18						
19	16			5.7373%		7.8988%
20						
21						
22						
23						
24						

* Test year revenues and expenses include PWAC/PSTAC and DSIC/WSIC amounts; PWAC/PSTAC were removed on a Post-Test Year basis.

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Statement of Operating Revenue

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Docket No. WR2XXXXXXX

Witness: Heath Brooks

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 5

Page 1 of 1

Line No.	Test Year		(Col. (1)+(2)) Post-Test Year		(Col. (3)+(4)) Post-Test Year	(Col. (4))/(3)) Percent
	Present Rates @ June 30, 2024	Post-Test Year Adjustments	Present Rates @ March, 31, 2025	Increase	Proposed Rates @ March, 31, 2025	Increase
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)
1						
2						
3	Total Water Service Revenues:					
4	Metered Service	\$783,018,255	\$38,262,182	\$821,280,437	\$146,127,785	\$967,408,222 18.00%
5	Private Fire Protection Service	32,572,923	345,021	32,917,944	5,693,009	38,610,953 17.00%
6	Public Fire Protection Service	33,552,245	84,428	33,636,673	2,843,900	36,480,573 8.00%
7	Revenues From Water Sales	\$849,143,423	\$38,691,631	\$887,835,054	\$154,664,694	\$1,042,499,748 17.00%
8						
9	Other Operating Revenues	\$3,930,753	\$593,150	\$4,523,903	\$0	\$4,523,903 0.00%
10						
11	Total Water Operating Revenues	\$853,074,176	\$39,284,781	\$892,358,957	\$154,664,694	\$1,047,023,650 17.00%
12						
13						
14	Revenues From Wastewater Sales	\$40,988,073	(\$282,462)	\$40,705,610	\$7,055,032	\$47,760,643 17.00%
15	Other Operating Revenues	10,863	0	10,863	0	10,863 0.00%
16						
17	Total Wastewater Operating Revenues	\$40,998,936	(\$282,462)	\$40,716,474	\$7,055,032	\$47,771,506 17.00%
18						
19	Total Company Operating Revenues					
20	Water and Wastewater Service	\$894,073,112	\$39,002,319	\$933,075,430	\$161,719,726	\$1,094,795,156 17.00%
21						

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Uncollectible Expense

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Docket No. WR2XXXXXX
Witness: Michael B. McKeever

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 7
Page 1 of 1

Line No.	Post-Test Year ending March 31, 2025 - Present Rates			Post-Test Year ending March 31, 2025 - Proposed Rates		
	Total Water	Total Wastewater	Total Company	Total Water	Total Wastewater	Total Company
1						
2	\$892,358,957	\$40,716,474	\$933,075,430	\$1,034,427,091	\$60,368,066	\$1,094,795,156
3						
4	0.41%	0.41%	0.41%	0.41%	0.41%	0.41%
5						
6	\$3,683,569	\$168,074	\$3,851,643	\$4,270,013	\$249,193	\$4,519,206
7						
8				\$586,444	\$81,119	\$667,563
9						
10						
11						
12	¹ Calculation of the Average Write Off Ratio - based on three -year average					
13	<i>12 months ended</i>	June 30, 2021	June 30, 2022	June 30, 2023	3-Year Average	
14	Net Write-Offs	\$1,419,369	\$3,481,626	\$5,856,267	\$3,585,754	
15	Billed Revenues	\$805,496,994	\$849,632,429	\$950,859,121	\$868,662,848	
16	Average Write-Off Ratio	0.18%	0.41%	0.62%	0.41%	
17						

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Summary of Depreciation and Amortization

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Docket No. WR2XXXXXXX
Witness: Jamie D. Hawn

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 8
Page 1 of 1

Line No.	Reference Schedule	Test Year ending June 30, 2024			Adjustments			Post-Test Year ending March 31, 2025 - Proposed Rates			
		Total	Total	Total	Total	Total	Total	Total	Total	Total	
		Water	Wastewater	Company	Water	Wastewater	Company	Water	Wastewater	Company	
1											
2	Depreciation	9	\$164,912,670	\$7,708,954	\$172,621,623	\$17,932,433	\$3,275,542	\$21,207,974	\$182,845,102	\$10,984,496	\$193,829,598
3	Amort. Of Plant Acquisition Adj.	15-9	266,510	3,314	269,824	1,678	(1,678)	0	268,188	1,636	269,824
4	Amort. Of Regulatory Asset Other		70,576	627	71,203	0	0	0	70,576	627	71,203
5	Amort. Of Pension / OPB Deferral	8-5	0		0	7,208,869	245,212	7,454,081	7,208,869	245,212	7,454,081
6	Amort. Of WIPA Transaction Costs	8-6	0	0	0	150,055	137,260	287,315	150,055	137,260	287,315
7	Amort. Of Energy Efficiency Program Costs	8-7	0	0	0	17,726	0	17,726	17,726	0	17,726
8											
9	Total Depreciation and Amortization		\$165,249,755	\$7,712,894	\$172,962,650	\$25,310,761	\$3,656,336	\$28,967,097	\$190,560,517	\$11,369,230	\$201,929,746

10
11
12

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Statement of Depreciation
Total Water

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Docket No. WR2XXXXXXX
Witness: Jamie D. Hawn

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 9
Page 5 of 6

Line No.	Utility Account	NARUC Account	Description	Rate	UPIS Balance	UPIS Balance	Net Plant Adds	(Col. 2+3+4)	(Col. 1x5)
					@ Nov. 30, 2023	@ June 30, 2024	@ Dec. 31, 2024	UPIS Balance @ Dec. 31, 2024	Post-Test Year Expense
				(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)
1	339100	339.1	Other P/E-Intangible	5.52%	\$6,106,023	\$0	\$0	\$6,106,023	\$336,839
2	340100	340.5	Office Furniture & Equip	15.35%	7,467,868	1,340,986	8,827,900	17,636,754	2,706,397
3	340200	340.5	Comp & Periph Equip	0.20%	9,459,224	0	0	9,459,224	18,548
4	340300	340.5	Computer Software	12.03%	148,042,460	26,469,401	0	174,511,861	20,997,140
5	340310	340.5	Comp Software Mainframe	0.00%	195,201	0	0	195,201	0
6	340400	340.5	Data Handling Equipment	0.00%	0	0	0	0	0
7	340500	340.5	Other Office Equipment	0.00%	6,939	0	0	6,939	0
8	341001	341.5	Trans Equip Not Classified	5.22%	6,360,268	0	0	6,360,268	162,532
9	341100	341.5	Trans Equip Lt Duty Trks	8.00%	23,992,987	4,320,211	3,388,400	31,701,598	1,243,174
10	341200	341.5	Trans Equip Hvy Duty Trks	6.46%	24,093,263	0	0	24,093,263	762,269
11	341300	341.5	Trans Equip Autos	4.61%	7,935,459	0	0	7,935,459	179,412
12	341400	341.5	Trans Equip Other	5.22%	9,043,538	0	0	9,043,538	231,394
13	342000	342.5	Stores Equipment	5.03%	1,763,717	0	0	1,763,717	88,675
14	343000	343.5	Tools,Shop,Garage Equip	4.43%	19,322,190	1,255,268	975,315	21,552,773	955,502
15	344000	344.5	Laboratory Equipment	1.08%	3,046,601	0	0	3,046,601	32,992
16	345000	345.5	Power Operated Equipment	3.64%	2,941,428	0	635,325	3,576,753	130,169
17	346000	346.5	Comm Equip Not Classified	8.75%	34,869,473	4,204,383	11,327,695	50,401,550	4,412,641
18	346100	346.5	Comm Equip Non-Telephone	5.65%	13,029,628	0	0	13,029,628	736,566
19	346190	346.5	Remote Control & Instrument	6.84%	42,500,951	0	0	42,500,951	2,905,457
20	346200	346.5	Comm Equip Telephone	0.11%	1,282,829	0	0	1,282,829	1,380
21	347000	347.5	Misc Equipment	4.41%	35,762,615	0	0	35,762,615	1,578,412
22	348000	348.5	Other Tangible Property	4.60%	1,146,298	0	1,296,975	2,443,273	112,349
23	3XXXXX	0	Capitalized Vehicle Depreciation	0.00%	0	953,223	821,518	1,774,741	0
24	Acq 1	0	Acquisition - Salem City Water	2.58%	0	10,000,000	0	10,000,000	258,010
25									
26			Total Depreciable Plant		\$6,882,476,869	\$237,669,823	\$226,199,794	\$7,346,346,485	\$190,389,285
27									
28			Non Depreciable UPIS		\$35,867,088	\$0	(\$864)	\$35,866,224	\$0
29									
30			Amortization of CAC and CIAC		(\$6,187,336)	(\$104,565)	(\$52,282)	\$0	(\$6,344,183)
31									
32			Cost of Removal Liability Amortization		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	(\$1,200,000)
33									
34			Total Post-Test Year Depreciation Expense						\$182,845,102

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Gross Receipts and Franchise Tax

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Docket No. WR2XXXXXX
Witness: Michael B. McKeever

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 11
Page 1 of 1

Line No.	Post-Test Year ending March 31, 2025 - Present Rates			Adjustments			Post-Test Year ending March 31, 2025 - Proposed Rates			
	Total Water	Total Wastewater	Total Company	Total Water	Total Wastewater	Total Company	Total Water	Total Wastewater	Total Company	
1										
2										
3	Total Revenues (Exhibit P-2, Schedule 4)	\$892,358,957	\$40,716,474	\$933,075,430	\$142,068,134	\$19,651,592	\$161,719,726	\$1,034,427,091	\$60,368,066	\$1,094,795,156
4	Less:									
5	Sales to Exempt Utilities	(11,367,273)	0	(11,367,273)	0	0	0	(11,367,273)	0	(11,367,273)
6	Other Operating Revenues	(4,523,903)	(10,863)	(4,534,766)	0	0	0	(4,523,903)	(10,863)	(4,534,766)
7										
8	Basis for Gross Receipts and Franchise Tax (a)	\$876,467,781	\$40,705,610	\$917,173,391	\$142,068,134	\$19,651,592	\$161,719,726	\$1,018,535,915	\$60,357,202	\$1,078,893,117
9										
10	Gross Receipts Tax Rate ¹ (b)	8.4375%	8.4375%	8.4375%	8.4375%	8.4375%	8.4375%	8.4375%	8.4375%	8.4375%
11	Post-Test Year Gross Receipts Tax Amount (a*b)=(c)	\$73,951,969	\$3,434,536	\$77,386,505	\$11,986,999	\$1,658,103	\$13,645,102	\$85,938,968	\$5,092,639	\$91,031,607
12										
13	<i>Franchise Tax Calculation</i>									
14	Miles of Main (Public) % ² (d)	92.4511%	87.4000%	92.2269%	92.4511%	87.4000%	91.8373%	92.4511%	87.4000%	92.1685%
15	Basis for Franchise Tax (a*d)=(e)	\$810,304,307	\$35,576,700	\$845,881,007	\$131,343,585	\$17,175,490	\$148,519,075	\$941,647,893	\$52,752,190	\$994,400,083
16										
17	Franchise Tax Rate ³ (f)	5.625%	5.625%	5.625%	5.625%	5.625%	5.625%	5.625%	5.625%	5.625%
18	Post-Test Year Franchise Tax Amount (e*f)=(g)	\$45,579,617	\$2,001,189	\$47,580,806	\$7,388,077	\$966,121	\$8,354,198	\$52,967,694	\$2,967,311	\$55,935,005
19										
20	Total Post-Test Year GRAFT Amount (c+g)=(h)	\$119,531,586	\$5,435,725	\$124,967,311	\$19,375,076	\$2,624,224	\$21,999,300	\$138,906,662	\$8,059,950	\$146,966,612
21										
22	Test Year Expense	\$120,297,903	\$1,362,258	\$121,660,161				\$119,531,586	\$5,435,725	\$124,967,311
23										
24	Post-Test Year Adjustment	(\$766,317)	\$4,073,467	\$3,307,150				\$19,375,076	\$2,624,225	\$21,999,301
25										
26	Post-Test Year GRAFT Tax Rate (h/a)=(i)	13.6379%	13.3537%	13.6253%				13.6379%	13.3538%	13.6220%
27										

28 ¹ Tax Rate reflects a combined rate of 8.4375% (Gross Receipts Tax of 7.5% and Surtax of 0.9375%).

29 ² Reflects percent of miles of main in public streets, 92.45% overall for Water and 87.40% overall for Wastewater.

30 ³ Tax Rate reflects a combined rate of 5.625% (Franchise Tax of 5% and Surtax of 0.625%).

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Federal Income Tax Calculation

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Docket No. WR2XXXXXX
Witness: Michael B. McKeever

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 14
Page 1 of 1

Line No.	Reference Schedule	Post-Test Year ending March 31, 2025 - Present Rates			Post-Test Year ending March 31, 2025 - Proposed Rates		
		Total Water	Total Wastewater	Total Company	Total Water	Total Wastewater	Total Company
1							
2	Operating revenue	\$892,358,957	\$40,716,474	\$933,075,430	\$1,034,427,091	\$60,368,066	\$1,094,795,156
3							
4	Less:						
5	Operation and maintenance expense	\$250,138,390	\$12,845,416	\$262,983,806	\$250,724,833	\$12,926,536	\$263,651,369
6	Depreciation expense	182,845,102	10,984,496	193,829,598	182,845,102	10,984,496	193,829,598
7	Non-Tax Amortizations	7,627,112	384,108	8,011,220	7,627,112	384,108	8,011,220
8	Taxes other than income	133,715,910	5,788,969	139,504,879	153,465,021	8,464,932	161,929,953
9	Interest charges	88,196,042	5,364,466	93,560,508	88,196,042	5,364,466	93,560,508
10	Permanent book/tax differences	(382,533)	0	(382,533)	(382,533)	0	(382,533)
11	Excess tax depreciation over book	170,489,699	10,882,321	181,372,020	170,489,699	10,882,321	181,372,020
12							
13	Total deductions	\$832,629,722	\$46,249,775	\$878,879,497	\$852,965,276	\$49,006,858	\$901,972,134
14							
15	Taxable income	\$59,729,235	(\$5,533,302)	\$54,195,933	\$181,461,815	\$11,361,207	\$192,823,022
16							
17	Tax Rate	21.00%	21.00%	21.00%	21.00%	21.00%	21.00%
18							
19	Federal income tax (current)	\$12,543,139	(\$1,161,993)	\$11,381,146	\$38,106,981	\$2,385,854	\$40,492,835
20							
21							
22	Deferred federal income tax:						
23	Excess tax depreciation over book	\$170,489,699	\$10,882,321	\$181,372,020	\$170,489,699	\$10,882,321	\$181,372,020
24	Tax rate	21.00%	21.00%	21.00%	21.00%	21.00%	21.00%
25	Net	\$35,802,837	\$2,285,287	\$38,088,124	\$35,802,837	\$2,285,287	\$38,088,124
26	Reverse South Georgia adjustment	(\$458,735)	\$0	(\$458,735)	(\$458,735)	\$0	(\$458,735)
27							
28	Deferred F.I.T. (accel.depr.)	\$35,344,102	\$2,285,287	\$37,629,389	\$35,344,102	\$2,285,287	\$37,629,389
29							
30	Deferred federal income tax:						
31	Amortization of excess deferred tax-TCJA	(\$12,485,560)	\$0	(\$12,485,560)	(\$12,485,560)	\$0	(\$12,485,560)
32	Amortization of ITC	(309,273)	(10,595)	(319,868)	(309,273)	(10,595)	(319,868)
33	Amortization of flow through tax-prior	1,756,651	0	1,756,651	1,756,651	0	1,756,651
34							
35							
36	Total Federal Income Tax	\$36,849,058	\$1,112,699	\$37,961,758	\$62,412,900	\$4,660,546	\$67,073,447
37							
38	Notes:						
39	(1) Interest synchronization calculation:						
40	Rate Base	\$4,776,216,895	\$290,510,231	\$5,066,727,126	\$4,776,216,895	\$290,510,231	\$5,066,727,126
41	Weighted Cost of Debt	1.8466%	1.8466%	1.8466%	1.8466%	1.8466%	1.8466%
42							
43	Interest Charges	\$88,196,042	\$5,364,466	\$93,560,508	\$88,196,042	\$5,364,466	\$93,560,508
44							
45							
46							

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Weighted Cost of Capital

Total Company

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Docket No. WR2XXXXXXX

Witness: Jamie D. Hawn

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 16

Page 1 of 1

Post-Test Year at December 31, 2024

Line No.	Type of Capital	Reference Schedule	Balance Outstanding	Ratios	Cost Rate	Weighted Cost Rate	Pre-tax Rate of Return
1							
2	Long-Term Debt	16-2	\$2,166,905,507	43.7000%	4.2256%	1.8466%	1.8466%
3							
4	Preferred Stock		0	0.0000%		0.0000%	0.0000%
5							
6	Common Equity		2,791,885,127	56.3000%	10.7500%	6.0523%	7.6611%
7							
8			<u>\$4,958,790,635</u>	<u>100.0000%</u>		<u>7.8988%</u>	<u>9.5076%</u>
9							
10							

**New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Consolidated Tax Adjustment**

**New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Docket No. WR2XXXXXX
Witness: Jamie D. Hawn
CONFIDENTIAL**

**Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 17
Page 1 of 1**

**CONFIDENTIAL Exhibit P-2, Schedule 17 has been filed with the Records Custodian of the BPU and will be provided
to Staff and Rate Counsel upon execution of an Agreement of Non-Disclosure**

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.
Schedule of Payments to Affiliated Companies

New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc.

Docket No. WR2XXXXXXX

Exhibit No. P-2, Schedule 18

Witness: Michael B. McKeever

Page 1 of 1

Line No.	Affiliated Companies	12 Months Ended June 30, 2023
1		
2	American Water Works Company, Inc. ("AWK")	\$0
3		
4	American Water Capital Corporation ("AWCC")	\$62,410,728
5		
6	American Water Works Service Company, Inc. ("AWWSC")	\$82,182,054
7		
8		

BEFORE THE
STATE OF NEW JERSEY
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF
NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.
FOR APPROVAL OF INCREASED TARIFF RATES AND
CHARGES FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE,
CHANGE IN DEPRECIATION RATES, AND
OTHER TARIFF MODIFICATIONS

BPU Docket No. WR2401_____

Direct Testimony of

Mark K. McDonough

January 19, 2024

Exhibit P-3

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>PAGE</u>
I. INTRODUCTION, SUMMARY AND PRESENTATION OF WITNESSES	1
II. REASONS FOR RELIEF REQUESTED.....	5
III. IMPROVING WATER EFFICIENCY.....	12
IV. VALUE OF WATER AND AFFORDABILITY	15
V. CUSTOMER COMMITMENT AND COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT	19

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 **I. INTRODUCTION, SUMMARY AND PRESENTATION OF WITNESSES**

2 **1. Q. Please state your name and business address.**

3 A. My name is Mark McDonough and my business address is 1 Water Street, Camden,
4 New Jersey 08102.

5 **2. Q. By whom are you employed and in what capacity?**

6 A. I am the President of New Jersey-American Water Company, Inc. ("New Jersey-
7 American Water," "NJAWC" or the "Company").

8 **3. Q. What are your responsibilities in this position?**

9 A. As President of NJAWC, I am responsible for all aspects of its business, including
10 financial, operations, production, distribution, customer service, engineering and
11 capital investment planning, employee relations, environmental, and regulatory affairs.
12 I lead a team of dedicated professionals who are devoted to providing safe and reliable
13 service to approximately 668,000 water and fire service customers and 64,200
14 wastewater service customers in about 200 communities in 18 counties throughout the
15 State of New Jersey. My goal is to ensure that all activities of the Company are carried
16 out in compliance with all local, state and federal laws and regulations, and standards
17 of good business practice.

18 **4. Q. Please describe your educational background and business experience.**

19 A. I hold a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Delaware, a Master of
20 Science degree from the American University and a Juris Doctor from the Antonin

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 Scalia Law School of George Mason University. I am admitted to practice law in the
2 States of New Jersey and Maine.

3 I have over 18 years of experience in the water industry. I joined American Water as
4 a Corporate Counsel for American Water Enterprises Group in 2005 working with the
5 Military Services Group on federal contracts for the provision of water and wastewater
6 services to the United States Department of Defense. I have also served as the Deputy
7 General Counsel and Division General Counsel to American Water Enterprises. In
8 2016, I was appointed the Chief Compliance Officer for American Water and oversaw
9 the compliance and ethics program enterprise-wide. In 2018, I was named President
10 of the Military and Contract Services Group, where I was responsible for all water and
11 wastewater services contracts with the United States Department of Defense and
12 various municipal clients, including the Cities of Camden and North Brunswick, New
13 Jersey. I held that position until April of 2021, when I was named President of New
14 Jersey-American Water Company. Prior to coming to American Water, I worked as a
15 trial attorney in private practice in Maine and New Jersey from 1998 to 2005. Between
16 1988 and 1996, I worked as a Special Agent with the Office of Inspector General at the
17 United States General Services Administration, the National Railroad Passenger
18 Corporation, and the United States Department of Energy. My focus was on complex
19 fraud investigations and environmental and financial crime.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 **5. Q. Have you previously testified in regulatory proceedings?**

2 A. Yes, I submitted testimony in the Company's 2022 rate case in BPU Docket No.
3 WR22010019.

4 **6. Q. What is the purpose of your testimony in this proceeding?**

5 A. The purpose of my testimony in this proceeding is to describe the reasons why the
6 Company is seeking the relief requested in this filing, including the request to increase
7 base rates and implement other regulatory tariff changes. Specifically, I will explain
8 the primary reasons for the proposed revenue increase, the Company's regulatory
9 proposals and how our cost recovery proposals in this case will support the efficient
10 use of water and investment in our system. I believe that it is important that the Board
11 of Public Utilities ("Board" or "BPU") and all our stakeholders understand the
12 Company's contributions to the State of New Jersey in providing water and wastewater
13 service -- critical services that are vital to our health, welfare and economic well-being.

14 **7. Q. Please identify NJAWC's witnesses in this case and provide brief summary of
15 their testimonies.**

16 A. In addition to my Direct Testimony, the following witnesses provide testimony in
17 support of the Company's Request:

18 Thomas Shroba: will testify on the Company's operations, its commitment
19 to water quality, environmental compliance, safety,
20 improving water efficiency, as well as the Company's
21 proposed staffing levels and compensation philosophy.

22 Donald C. Shields: will testify on the Company's capital investment planning
23 process, the need to recover capital expenditures incurred
24 since the Company's last rate case, the plan for the
25 engineered coating of steel structures, and some of the

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 risks and challenges for water and wastewater utilities
2 associated with increased identification and regulation of
3 contaminants and with increased climate variability.

4 Michael B. McKeever: will testify on the Company's compensation and benefits,
5 Service Company expenses, other operations and
6 maintenance ("O&M"), general and income taxes and
7 deferral requests for pension and other post-employment
8 benefits expenses, and for production costs.

9 Jamie D. Hawn: will testify on the Company's revenue requirement, rate
10 base, capital structure, acquisitions, depreciation and
11 amortization, and proposed tariff modifications.

12 Charles B. Rea: will testify on NJAWC's affordability analyses for water
13 and wastewater service, the Company's proposal to offer a
14 universal affordability tariff, the Company's analysis of
15 residential, commercial, and public authority customers'
16 water consumption and long-term trends in water usage,
17 and the proposed Revenue Decoupling Mechanism.

18 Heath J. Brooks: will testify on NJAWC's cost of service study, the
19 proposed rate design for both water and wastewater service
20 and the determination of Post-Test Year revenues at
21 present and proposed rates.

22 Ann E. Bulkley: will testify on the reasonableness of the Company's cost of
23 equity and its capital structure.

24 Patrick L. Baryenbruch: will testify on the reasonableness of Service Company
25 costs.

26 Robert V. Mustich will testify on the reasonableness of the Company's
27 compensation program and benchmarks the Company's
28 compensation expense against national and regional peer
29 groups.

30 Harold Walker, III will testify on the Company's cash working capital and the
31 lead/lag study.

32 Larry E. Kennedy: will present the Company's depreciation studies for water
33 and wastewater.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 **II. REASONS FOR RELIEF REQUESTED**

2 **8. Q. When were NJAWC's current rates approved?**

3 A. The Board approved NJAWC's base rates in its Order effective August 24, 2022, in
4 Docket No. WR22010019. Those rates were based on a test year ended June 30, 2022.
5 The test year in this case is the 12 months ending June 30, 2024.

6 **9. Q. What amount of rate relief is the Company seeking in this case?**

7 A. NJAWC is seeking an increase of \$161.7 million in annual revenue over present rates.
8 The proposed increase will provide the Company with an opportunity to recover its
9 cost of service and earn a reasonable return on the capital invested in the system.
10 NJAWC is fully committed to continued investment in the Company's operations at
11 the level and in the manner necessary to continue to provide safe and reliable service
12 for our customers over the long term and is simply seeking the revenues to support
13 doing so.

14 **10. Q. Why is the Company filing this rate case?**

15 A. New Jersey-American Water has provided service to our customers for over 130 years.
16 Our customers rely on the Company to provide them with safe and reliable water and
17 wastewater services. Providing these services, however, requires us to make ongoing,
18 significant capital investments, as well as to incur a substantial amount of O&M
19 expenses. This filing is primarily driven by the capital investment required to maintain
20 and improve our infrastructure. As Company witness Mr. Donald Shields explains, the
21 Company's investments in water and wastewater utility plant and equipment since the
22 last base rate case through the end of the test year in this case, 12 months ending June

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 30, 2024 (“Test Year”) and the six months post-test year ending December 31, 2024
2 (“Post-Test Year” or “PTY”), total over \$1.3 billion.

3 **11. Q. The basis of this case, then, is fundamentally about investment in New Jersey**
4 **infrastructure, is that correct?**

5 A. Yes. As with our previous rate filings, the Company’s proposed revenue increase is
6 driven by investment in New Jersey’s infrastructure, making up approximately 68% of
7 the request in this case. NJAWC has managed its operations responsibly and
8 effectively and will continue to uphold its commitment to make the investments needed
9 to provide safe and reliable water and wastewater services to our customers at
10 reasonable rates. The benefits of our infrastructure investment are not only vital to the
11 health and welfare of our customers and the state, but they improve our economy and
12 provide much needed jobs because every \$1 million we spend in capital is expected to
13 create or sustain approximately 16 jobs in New Jersey.¹ These investments include
14 improving the resiliency of the Company’s distribution system and treatment plants,
15 treatment changes to maintain regulatory compliance, technology investments that will
16 integrate with existing systems to enhance service to customers, and management of
17 source of supply and system demands. As noted, the Company will have invested over
18 \$1.3 billion in capital improvements since the effective date of rates in the Company’s
19 last rate case. By doing so, the Company has created or sustained over 20,000 jobs
20 during that time period.

¹ For every \$1 million spent, 15.5 jobs are created (6.1 direct jobs and 9.4 indirect jobs).
https://uswateralliance.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/Economic-Impact-of-Investing-in-Water-Infrastructure_VOW_FINAL_pages_0.pdf

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 **12. Q. Are there other factors contributing to the requested rate relief in this case?**

2 A. Yes, there are, but none approaches the magnitude of our capital investment program
3 as a driver to file this case. In addition to O&M expenses driven by recent high levels
4 of inflation and supply chain disruptions, the Company's cost of capital has increased
5 due, as Ms. Bulkley explains, to the rise in interest rates driven by the Federal Reserve
6 Board's anti-inflation campaign which has increased the cost of debt and equity.
7 Unfortunately, the high inflation we've seen and supply chain disruptions recently
8 experienced have adversely affected all businesses and the Company is no exception.
9 Nevertheless, as Messrs. Shields and Shroba testify, our smart investments have helped
10 to contain costs and, as Mr. Rea explains, kept our services affordable. Furthermore,
11 although the Company is seeking an increase in O&M expenses, as Company witness
12 Hawn explains, New Jersey-American Water's O&M expense per customer is not much
13 higher than it was more than a decade ago. In 2014, the O&M expense per customer
14 was \$298. If that cost were increased at the rate of inflation, it would be \$401 per
15 customer in this proceeding rather than the proposed \$358 per customer, or over \$31
16 million more of annual O&M expense than that proposed by the Company in this case.
17 More importantly, given that generally each dollar of O&M expense that is avoided
18 permits NJAWC to invest approximately \$8 in plant, the O&M savings that the
19 Company has been able achieve over inflation over that 10-year period translates into
20 over \$1.5 billion of investment with no additional rate impact on customers. This is a
21 testament to the Company's expert planning and prudent stewardship of financial
22 resources.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 **13. Q. Please describe the importance of the Company's capital investment program.**

2 A. As Mr. Shields explains in his testimony, the Company's capital investment plan can
3 be divided into two distinct areas: recurring projects ("RPs" or "RP") and investment
4 projects ("IPs" or "IP"). IPs represent investments made to meet environmental or
5 water quality regulations, infrastructure resiliency, capacity expansion or
6 rehabilitation, or replacement of aging facilities. These projects allow the Company to
7 meet the service demands of the community, maintain regulatory compliance and
8 reduce asset failure. Moreover, as Mr. Shields further explains, many of New Jersey-
9 American Water's capital projects are necessary to anticipate and meet the needs of
10 new environmental, health and safety regulations and to address the effects of climate
11 variability. There are a host of emerging compounds that must be addressed, including
12 perfluorooctanoic acid ("PFOA"), 1,4-dioxane, and hexavalent chromium (chromium
13 (VI)). Mr. Shields estimates that these new requirements will require investments of
14 over \$500 million before the end of 2027. These investments are not negotiable
15 because our customers rely on New Jersey-American Water to keep current with
16 investment needs so that we can anticipate and treat water to achieve ever-tightening
17 water quality standards and to anticipate situations that might disrupt water or
18 wastewater service reliability. Similarly, we must also address the effect of climate
19 variability on our system and its reliability, as revisions to the Safe Drinking Water Act
20 now require all water systems serving populations greater than 3,300 people to
21 complete Risk & Resiliency Assessments for affected systems in accordance with

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 compliance deadlines.² Mr. Shields describes some of these projects in his testimony.
2 I would simply point out their importance in recent years when the record-producing
3 flood resulting from Hurricane Ida was held back by the recently completed flood wall
4 at our Raritan-Millstone Water Treatment Plant, and our newly installed backup
5 generators worked to maintain power at several of our facilities during widespread
6 power grid failures after Tropical Storm Isaias. These carefully planned investments
7 kept millions of people in the region with safe drinking water and reliable sanitation.
8 Even as recently as this December when a nor'easter dumped several inches of rain on
9 the state and our waterways surged, the investments we made enabled our teams to
10 prepare our critical facilities for the worst, with the goal of sustaining operations for
11 the millions of people who rely on us. This is a responsibility we take seriously, and
12 it's the investments we are committed to making that help us continue to keep the water
13 flowing for the people we serve. We must also constantly work to modernize our
14 system. Nationwide, water system pipeline replacement rates are in the range of 0.45%
15 per year, which translates to a replacement cycle of approximately 200 years. Mr.
16 Shields describes how through heightened focus on this issue, we have significantly
17 improved our pipeline replacement rate over the last few years, from near industry
18 average levels in 2011 to a five-year average rate of 0.85% from 2018-2022 (latest full
19 year available). In this regard, RPs are critical investments for both the Company and
20 our customers as these investments support the backbone of NJAWC's water and
21 wastewater systems by increasing both system resiliency and reliability.

² See <https://www.epa.gov/waterresilience/awia-section-2013>

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 **14. Q. You mentioned that investments made also help the Company's employees to**
2 **work more efficiently and productively. Please explain.**

3 A. Mr. Shroba's testimony chronicles the many ways our investments have allowed us to
4 work smarter and more efficiently. In the following section involving Water
5 Efficiency, I will explain some of the ways capital spending is employed to allow our
6 people to work smarter and more efficiently and discuss the various programs and
7 initiatives we follow to maintain a safe and productive workplace.

8 **15. Q. Is the Company seeking to recover its full employee compensation costs?**

9 A. Yes, we are. There is approximately \$13 million of the Company's market-based total
10 compensation costs that historically has not been recognized in rates even though this
11 practice is now well established in both the utility industry and other industries as well.
12 Nevertheless, the Company must pay these costs to remain competitive in the job
13 market in order to attract and retain skilled employees. The testimony of Messrs.
14 Mustich and Shroba establish that New Jersey-American Water's market-based
15 compensation is designed to keep the organization focused on delivering clean, safe,
16 reliable and affordable service while increasing efficiency, decreasing waste, and
17 boosting overall productivity. It is not appropriate to ignore the market based total
18 compensation paid by the Company to its employees, which is in line with industry
19 norms and is at, or below, the median for companies and utilities of similar size in the
20 region with which NJAWC must compete to attract and retain a talented workforce.
21 The Company's market-based total compensation is a manifestly just, reasonable and

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 prudent expense required to operate our business and it should be reflected fully in
2 rates.

3 **16. Q. Is the attraction and retention of dedicated and talented employees important to**
4 **the Company's customers?**

5 A. Yes, it is of critical importance. New Jersey-American Water has consistently been
6 ranked by J.D. Power as being either the number one or number two highest rated in
7 residential customer satisfaction for large Northeast water utilities.³ Such an
8 achievement is not possible without the efforts of dedicated and talented employees
9 who focus on providing exceptional service and reliability to our customers. Instilling
10 the drive for excellence exhibited by this recognition is a key objective of the
11 Company's performance compensation philosophy and it translates directly into
12 benefits to our customers.

13 **17. Q. Is the Company requesting recovery for all its post-test year capital additions?**

14 A. Yes. As demonstrated by Mr. Shields, the Company has a track record of delivering
15 its planned capital investment consistently and in line with projections on a year-to-
16 year basis. All these capital additions are important components of continuing to
17 provide safe and reliable service to our customers. Because these investments will be
18 completed by the time new rates go into effect or shortly thereafter, the Company
19 should have the ability to recover its costs for these investments.

<https://www.jdpower.com/business/press-releases/2023-us-water-utility-residential-customer-satisfaction-study>. New Jersey-American Water ranked only slightly below the municipally-owned New York City system.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 **18. Q. Is New Jersey-American Water proposing a Revenue Decoupling Mechanism**
2 **(“RDM”) in this case?**

3 A. Yes, we are. Mr. Rea describes in his testimony the need for a revenue decoupling
4 mechanism that will harmonize revenue actually collected with the revenue
5 requirement and associated fixed costs approved by the Board in this case. Because
6 approximately 67% of the Company’s water service revenues will be collected through
7 volumetric charges while approximately 95% of the Company's costs are fixed costs,
8 which do not vary depending on how much water our customers use, if water sales are
9 less than the levels used to set rates, the Company's revenues will be less than the
10 authorized level in this proceeding. As a result, the Company's ability to recover the
11 costs that the Board determines to be prudent will be diminished. The proposed RDM
12 will improve the likelihood that the Company collects the revenue necessary to operate
13 our system and make the investments needed to continue to provide safe and adequate
14 service.

15 **III. IMPROVING WATER EFFICIENCY**

16 **19. Q. Please explain the concept of water efficiency.**

17 A. Water efficiency means using improved practices and technologies to deliver safe,
18 reliable and adequate water service more effectively. The Company’s water efficiency
19 efforts include supply-side practices, such as reducing non-revenue water losses, using
20 more efficient motors and pumps, pursuing purchasing economies and employing GIS
21 technology, as well as demand-side strategies, such as rate design and public education
22 programs. For example, the leak detection programs described in detail by Mr. Shroba

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 can reduce the amount of water, pressure, and energy required to deliver the same
2 amount of water to consumers and the more efficient pumps and motors he describes
3 reduce power costs; the expanded use of technology helps our crews to be more
4 efficient in locating water and wastewater facilities and quickly access system and
5 customer information on a real-time basis. Improving efficiency saves customers
6 money in the long run, enhances the economy, and protects the environment.

7 **20. Q. How is the concept of water efficiency relevant to this case?**

8 A. Improving water efficiency requires achieving a cost-effective mix of prudent
9 investments and improved operations and maintenance management capabilities
10 targeting safety, customer satisfaction, environmental compliance, sustainability, asset
11 performance and operational efficiency. New Jersey-American Water continually
12 strives to develop and implement efficiency measures that deliver steady or improved
13 levels of service to consumers while mitigating cost increases. As discussed in the
14 Direct Testimony of witnesses Messrs. Shields and Shroba, the investments we are
15 making to better serve our customers are primarily in non-revenue producing
16 investments – replacing aging infrastructure, compliance with environmental
17 regulations, and efficiency investments. Mr. Shields, for example, discusses how
18 replacing inefficient equipment can reduce our energy costs. Mr. Shroba notes how the
19 Company's use of GIS technology and MapCall makes our employees more efficient,
20 also helping to contain costs and improve customer satisfaction. As we plan our
21 investments, however, we know how important it is to balance the need for system
22 improvements with what our customers pay for water and wastewater service.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 Consequently, the Company continually strives to find more efficient and cost-
2 effective ways to operate and maintain its business. Our intense focus on controlling
3 expenses produces direct benefits to our customers.

4 **21. Q. Can regulation support New Jersey-American Water's efforts to improve water**
5 **efficiency?**

6 A. Yes, it can. Our ratemaking proposals are intended to support efforts to improve water
7 efficiency. As mentioned above and explained in the Direct Testimonies of Company
8 Witnesses Shroba and Shields, NJAWC is requesting approval of new rates that reflect
9 the Company's total market-based employee compensation costs and the recognition
10 of its capital investment through the post test-year period. The Company's ratemaking
11 proposals support the more efficient use of water, more effective maintenance of our
12 system, and more efficient investment in our system.

13 Ultimately, it is our customers who will benefit because these ratemaking tools will:
14 allow New Jersey-American Water to anticipate and plan for a consistency in
15 regulatory oversight necessary to attract capital; properly match cost incurrence with
16 cost recovery; support the Company's continued efforts to use market-based total
17 compensation to drive efficiencies and improve our service to customers; and support
18 more consistent planning and deployment of the most efficient resources. Removing
19 barriers to improving efficiency and needed investment is also in our customers'
20 interests because, over time, it reduces the cost of providing water and wastewater
21 service to customers and promotes the sustainability of our natural resources.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 **22. Q. What is the Company's ultimate goal with regard to water efficiency?**

2 A. Our goal is to provide quality water and wastewater services as efficiently as possible,
3 and by doing so, to increase the value of the services that we provide our customers.

4 **IV. VALUE OF WATER AND AFFORDABILITY**

5 **23. Q. In general, why is NJAWC's proposed rate increase reasonable and appropriate?**

6 A. NJAWC's proposed rate increase is reasonable and appropriate because, as I previously
7 discussed, it is driven primarily by the need to make the investments necessary to keep
8 our water and wastewater service safe and reliable. Such investments cannot be
9 avoided indefinitely and are in the long-term best interests of our customers. If such
10 investment is not made, our customers will be adversely impacted in the long run as
11 costs will increase even more. For example, when mains are not replaced in a timely
12 fashion, or equipment neglected, our costs rise, as unanticipated main breaks create
13 water quality issues, unexpected expenses, and disruption to our communities.
14 Similarly, equipment in need of replacement makes workers less efficient and can
15 create safety issues.

16 **24. Q. Have you evaluated the impact of your proposed rate increase on customers?**

17 A. Yes, we have. As Ms. Hawn explains, under our proposal the water bill for the average
18 customer using 5,640 gallons per month, would increase \$11.30 from the current charge
19 of \$70.70 to \$82.00, an increase of \$0.38 per day. Even at the proposed rates, the cost
20 for our water service remains a good value. Proposed water costs would approximate
21 \$2.73 per day, or only \$.0145 per gallon for an average customer.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 **25. Q. Has the Company performed a more in-depth analysis of the affordability of**
2 **service under the proposed rates?**

3 A. Yes. Mr. Rea has conducted a detailed analysis of the affordability of our historical and
4 proposed rates demonstrating that the proposed rate increase has not adversely affected
5 the range of affordability of our service over the past decade. Mr. Rea relates the
6 median household income (“MHI”) in our service territory to our utility bills over time.
7 Even with the rate increases necessitated to continue to provide safe, reliable and
8 efficient service over the long term, Mr. Rea demonstrates that our water and
9 wastewater service remains affordable to the vast majority of our customers. His
10 testimony demonstrates that, even with the proposed increase, New Jersey-American
11 Water’s services are, and remain, affordable for most of our customers as our water
12 rates have held steady in the bill to income (“BTI”) range of 0.6%-0.8% of MHI since
13 2012 and are expected to be 0.71% under the Company’s proposed rates. The BTI
14 percentage under our rate proposal is well below the 2.0-2.5% range of a BTI ratio that
15 is generally considered “affordable.” The data similarly shows that the BTI Ratios for
16 the Company’s wastewater customers have come down from 2021 levels and have held
17 steady from 2019 to 2023 between 0.7% and 0.8% of MHI. The BTI Ratio at the
18 median income level is expected to be 0.77% under the Company’s proposed rates in
19 this case.

20 **26. Q. Is this trend in affordability reflective of the value of service that NJAWC’s**
21 **customers enjoy from the Company?**

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 A. Yes. This trend in affordability is a result of the long-term investment and management
2 practices of the Company and is a positive reflection of the fact that the investment
3 strategies the Company has undertaken over time and the way that the Company has
4 proactively managed the system is in the long-term best interests of our customers. As
5 Mr. Shields explains, the Company has or will invest over \$1.3 billion since its last
6 base rate case. Nevertheless, the Company's service has remained affordable, largely
7 due to the Company's ability to manage its O&M expense and its targeted and timely
8 infrastructure investments. . The combination of proactive investment, steady O&M,
9 and strong and improving affordability demonstrates that the Company's management
10 of the business and investment in the business delivers a high-value service to
11 customers at affordable rates, which is in the long-term best interest of our customers.

12 **27. Q. How does New Jersey-American Water maintain the affordability of its water and**
13 **wastewater services?**

14 A. An important way that we maintain affordability is by continuously seeking to improve
15 our business processes and making investments that improve operational efficiencies,
16 and we have been very successful in doing so, as witnessed by the cost containment in
17 O&M expenses discussed previously. As Mr. Shields and Mr. Shroba explain in their
18 testimony, we use targeted investments to permit us to work smarter and more
19 efficiently and leverage the power of our organization both to share learning on best
20 practices and to purchase equipment and supplies at advantageous terms. All of these
21 help us manage and contain cost increases.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 **28. Q. What else is New Jersey-American Water doing to maintain the affordability of**
2 **its services for its customers?**

3 A. In addition to delivering our services in the most efficient, cost-effective ways to
4 benefit all of our customers, New Jersey-American Water also offers several targeted
5 customer assistance programs to help our most vulnerable customers. As Mr. Rea
6 discusses in his Direct Testimony, the Company currently has a low-income discount
7 tariff for water and wastewater service. Through this program, the Company provides
8 a discount to the customer's monthly bill which is set equal to the customer's applicable
9 water Fixed Service Charge. If the customer is also provided wastewater service by
10 the Company, the customer is also eligible for a wastewater service discount equal to
11 the water service discount amount, in an amount not to exceed the wastewater service
12 charge. In this filing, the Company is proposing a Universal Affordability Tariff for
13 water service that includes multiple tiers of discounts based on different levels of
14 household income stated as multiples of the federal poverty level ("FPL"). The tariff
15 offers discounts on both the basic 5/8" meter charge and the volumetric charges for
16 water service and would offer discounts on fixed and volumetric charges for
17 wastewater service. As explained by Mr. Rea, the Company's proposed tiered
18 discounts under this tariff will provide customers at each interval of FPL the
19 opportunity to have "basic water and/or wastewater service" (i.e., service that is
20 necessary and reasonable to meet basic household needs for drinking, cooking,
21 cleaning, sanitation, and general health requirements and that does not include seasonal
22 discretionary water use) under 2% of household income.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 The Company also makes programs available to customers that attenuate the impact of
2 rate increases on them, contributing to the affordability of our rates. NJAWC's
3 residential customers have the option of paying bills under the Company's budget
4 billing plan, and the Company offers its customers flexible payment arrangements
5 through installment agreements if they are financially unable to pay a past due water
6 service bill. NJAWC also assists customers who are experiencing financial hardship
7 through the Company's Help to Others ("H2O") Program. The H2O Program is
8 available to customers with an annual income at or below 300% of the federal poverty
9 guidelines and is composed of two main components: grants and a discount on the
10 service charge. The grant component is an emergency bill-paying assistance program
11 funded by NJAWC's shareholders and donations from customers who want to help
12 other customers in need. The service charge discount component, funded through rates,
13 provides eligible customers up to a 100% discount on their monthly fixed service
14 charge for water and is also available for our wastewater customers.

15 **V. CUSTOMER COMMITMENT AND COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT**

16 **29. Q. Please describe the Company's commitment to its customers.**

17 A. Customers are a top priority for the Company. As I mentioned previously, our focus
18 on customers is validated as New Jersey-American Water is consistently named
19 Number One or Number Two in residential customer satisfaction for large, Northeast
20 water utilities by J.D. Power. Whether it's helping to ensure their health and safety
21 through the work we do and how we do it, striving to provide service in the most cost-
22 effective manner possible over the long term, or undertaking key initiatives to better

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 serve them, customers are and will continue to be our key focus. This is evidenced
2 throughout the testimony provided in this case.

3 **30. Q. Does New Jersey-American Water play an active role in the communities that it**
4 **serves?**

5 A. Yes. New Jersey-American Water is a responsible corporate citizen and is known for
6 its community involvement and volunteerism. Our management team encourages our
7 employees and their families to be active volunteers in the communities we serve.

8 NJAWC believes that community investment starts with our employees. NJAWC
9 values community service and we encourage our employees to be equally invested in
10 the communities we serve through various charitable endeavors and volunteer
11 activities. NJAWC gives back to the community by supporting innovative,
12 environmental grant programs that improve, protect or restore drinking water supplies
13 and surrounding watersheds. We believe in investing in innovative programs that align
14 with our core business of water and wastewater service and are committed to working
15 with community partners to develop sustainable solutions to local environmental
16 issues. As an organization, NJAWC focuses community giving in four key areas: (1)
17 water and the environment; (2) water and healthy living; (3) environmental education;
18 and (4) community sustainability. In 2022,⁴ we provided more than \$1.52 million to
19 communities through general charitable contributions, grants, sponsorships and

⁴ 2022 is the most recent year for which the Company has a full year's information on the generosity of our employees. Information for 2023 will not be available until early Spring 2024.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 programming support to more than 80 organizations. The following is an overview of
2 the activities the Company and its employees' support:

- 3 • Each September, our employees participate in our AmerICANs in Action
4 Month of Service -- helping neighbors, participating in different community
5 volunteer projects and providing hours of volunteer service to local
6 community-based organizations in need of assistance. In 2022, our employees
7 spent 2,780 hours volunteering their time with local community
8 organizations, not just in September, but throughout the year.
- 9 • Through the American Water Charitable Foundation (the "Foundation"),
10 NJAWC and American Water support employees in their own charitable
11 endeavors, provide support for targeted disaster relief efforts and provide
12 funding for higher level initiatives related to clean water, conservation,
13 education and sustainability. The Foundation donated more than \$260,000
14 through the Employee Volunteer and Matching Gift and Building Better
15 Communities programs in 2022 -- and continues to make a difference every
16 day. Since 2012, the American Water Charitable Foundation has matched
17 over \$2.1 million to public charities that are important to our employees. This
18 includes more than 46,000 hours of volunteer time; and
- 19 • During the last ten years, American Water and its employees have donated \$4
20 million to United Way efforts across the country.

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 **31. Q. How else does the Company help support the communities it serves?**

2 A. In 2021, New Jersey-American Water piloted a new workforce development program
3 in partnership with the Camden non-profit Hopeworks. The concept of the new Water
4 Utility Pipeline (“Water UP!”) training program is to connect individuals from
5 underserved communities we serve with transformative career opportunities in the
6 water industry. We launched this 11-week program in Camden with eight young adults
7 who learned job skills training through hands-on experiences with our employees in
8 the field, as well as other business essentials. Since then, we have hosted two additional
9 Water UP! Cohorts – one in Plainfield in 2022 and one in Lawnside in 2023. The most
10 recent program was held in partnership with Rowan College of South Jersey and funded
11 by a grant from the New Jersey Governor’s Office of Climate Action, the Green
12 Economy & the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection’s the Building
13 our Resilient, Inclusive, and Diverse Green Economy (BRIDGE) Initiative.

14 The goal is to create a career path for the participants to qualify for entry level utility
15 jobs, with the potential of career placement at the end of the program either within New
16 Jersey-American Water, another American Water subsidiary, or with another company
17 that does business in the utility space. To date, 30 adults have graduated from the
18 program. We plan to continue hosting this training program, as well as others, in
19 additional communities where we operate, to continue to create opportunities for young
20 people and to help build a future pipeline of water utility workers.

21 **32. Q. In what other activities has New Jersey-American Water partnered with the**
22 **communities it serves?**

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 A. Through community giving, in-kind donations, partnerships and volunteering, NJAWC
2 demonstrates our commitment to programs that address community-specific needs. We
3 work with a number of community-based partners throughout our service areas to
4 positively impact the overall quality of life where our employees, customers and
5 neighbors live and work. It takes more than a one-time grant or volunteer effort to make
6 a lasting difference – so we seek out and support organizations that understand how to
7 best meet the needs of the community.

8 A few examples of how we take an active part in the communities we serve include:

- 9 • Environmental Grant Program: Providing grants of \$1,000 to \$10,000 for
10 community-based projects that improve, restore and protect our source water
11 and surrounding watersheds.
- 12 • Speakers' Bureau: Offering our water industry experts to speak at conferences,
13 industry events, organizations and schools, with presentations on the water and
14 wastewater treatment process, source water protection, conservation, and
15 careers in the water and wastewater industry, which can be tailored for
16 audiences of all ages. Our education outreach also includes tours of our
17 treatment facilities for middle and high school students in our service areas, to
18 educate them about the science of water treatment and careers in the industry.
- 19 • First Responder Grant Program: Providing grants of up to \$2,000 each to assist
20 volunteer emergency service organizations in our service areas with the
21 purchase of protective gear, lifesaving equipment, tools, training and related

NEW JERSEY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY, INC.

1 activities/materials to support volunteer firefighter and emergency responder
2 operations.

3 • Community Events: Contributing to community events, activities and
4 organizations that benefit the growth, sustainability, and protection of our
5 service areas, either through small sponsorships or monetary donations, a visit
6 from our H2O On the Go Water Education Van, and/or hosting a table with
7 information for customers.

8 • Inclusion, Diversity & Equity Grant Program: Offered for the first time in 2023,
9 the ID&E Grant Program provides funding of \$2,500 to nonprofit organizations
10 seeking to develop and implement programs, training and community-related
11 projects that aim to promote and foster inclusion and diversity in communities
12 we serve. This program is funded by the American Water Charitable
13 Foundation as part of its State Strategic Grant Program.

14 **33. Q. Does this conclude your Direct Testimony?**

15 A. Yes, it does.